
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

AGENDA 

1. Call to order the business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council by Mayor Curd. 

2. Roll Call and Establishment of a Quorum. 

3. Invocation by the Reverend Nicholas Phares, Rector, St. Luke’s Episcopal Church. 

4. Public Comments on Agenda Items. 

5. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 

6. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committees 

• One opening on the Bartlesville Area History Museum Trust Authority 
• One Opening on the Bartlesville Library Trust Authority 
• One opening on the Street and Traffic Committee 
• Two openings on the White Rose Cemetery Board 

7. Consent Docket 

a. Approval of Minutes 
i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of June 2, 2025. 

 b. Approval and/or Ratification of Appointments and Reappointment to Authorities, 
Board, Commissions, and Committees. 
i. Appointment of Ms. Amanda Hakola to a three-year term on Keep Bartlesville 
 Beautiful at the recommendation of Councilmember Kirkpatrick.   
ii. Appointment of Ms. Shavon Robles to a three-year term on the City Planning 
 Commission at the recommendation of Councilmember Kirkpatrick. 
iii. Appointment of Mr. Wyatt Gerth to fill an unexpired term on the City Planning 
 Commission at the recommendation of Councilman Kirkpatrick. 
iv. Ratification of new BDA officers and a new Trustee- Mr. Chase Allcott, Chairman, 
 Ms. Tara Gotwalt, Secretary/Treasurer, and Mr. Mark Runnels for a three term, at 
 the recommendation of Mayor Curd and Vice Mayor Dorsey. 

c. Approval of Resolutions 
i. Authorizing and requiring the marking of the graves of John F. Walters and 
 George E. Moore and commending Joe Todd for his efforts on behalf of veterans. 
ii. Amending the contracts of the City Attorney, City Judge, and City Manager 
 adjusting their compensation to accommodate the approved cost of living 
 adjustments and merit increases for Fiscal Year 2025-2026. 

 iii. Amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2024-25 
 appropriating unanticipated revenue for the Health Insurance Fund. 

 iv. Amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for Fiscal Year 2025-26 
 appropriating unbudgeted Fund Balance for the Capital Reserve Fund. 

 
 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE  
BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

Monday, July 7, 2025 
 5:30 p.m. 

James S. Curd, Jr., Mayor 
918-338-4282 

 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 



 
 
 
 
 

d. Approval and Ratification of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, Leases, 
MOU’s, Ordinances, and Proposals. 
i. Fire Apparatus Purchase Agreement between the City of Bartlesville and Conrad 

Fire Equipment/Pierce OshKosh Corporation for the purchase of a new 2026 
custom fire engine in the amount of $858,839.53. 

ii. Ordinance and Joinder Agreement to Amend the Employee Defined Contribution 
Plan. 

iii. Contract with HCC Life Insurance company, budget impact of 12.79% increase 
over last year.  

iv. Hangar Lease Agreement with Eagle Sky Patrol for Hangar #8, revenue $2400 
annually. 

v. Hangar Lease Agreement with Phoenix Rising Aviation, Inc. for Hangar #6, 
revenue, revenue $56,160 annually. 

vi. Service and Lease Agreement between Tri County Technology Center and the 
Bartlesville Police Department providing a satellite office/substation and training 
classroom in the amount of $120 annually and provide one school resource officer 
annually at no cost to Tri County Technology Center. 

vii. Agreement with Pepsi Beverages Company and Adams Golf Course, revenue 
based on resale, no negative impact on budget. 

viii. Right-of-Way Donation Agreements with Sheltre Farms, LLC., Orlina and Jeffrey 
Andrews and Lansdown Family Trust for additional public right-of-way along both 
sides of Sunset Boulevard, in the amount of $130,161.00.  

ix. Sixth Amendment to the tower/ground lease agreement between the City of 
Bartlesville and New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC for a portion of property located 
in Washington County named SE Water Tower Bartlesville. 

 
e. Accept Conveyance of Property 

i. Accept conveyance of 15 properties from the Washington County Treasurer’s 
 Office, such properties having not received a minimum reserve bid covering the 
 amount of City liens on the properties, at the annual Washington County Tax 
 Resale auction held on June 9, 2025, said City liens to be released on these 
 properties: 1. 1408 SW Armstrong Ave., 2. 117 NW Cheyenne Ave., 3. 405 NW 
 Theodore Ave., 4. 115 NW Virginia Ave., 5. 1714 SW Jennings Ave., 6. 812 E. 8th 
 St., 7. 322 SW Penn Ave., 8. 712 NW Lupa St., 9. 501 SW Morton Ave., 10. 920 
 SW Maple Ave., 11. 129 NW Santa Fe Ave., 12. 127 NW Santa Fe Ave., 13. 213 
 NW Margarite Ave., 14. 1724 W. 4th St., and 15. 513 SW Morton Ave. 

f. Receipt of Report of Findings Regarding an Appeal 
i. Receipt and acceptance of report of findings regarding an appeal by Brad D. 
 Purvis  of the Code Enforcement Hearing Examiner’s Order of Abatement in 
 Case No. DS-0325-0378, regarding the property at 116 S. Comanche Ave., legally 
 described as the South ½ of Lot 5, Block 12, Capitol Hill Addition, Bartlesville, 
 Washington County, Oklahoma. 

g. Receipt of Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report 
i. Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report June 2025 

h. Receipt of ALPR (Flock Cameras) Report 
i. ALPR Report for June 2025  

i. Receipt of Financials 
i. Interim financials for eleven months ending May 31, 2025.  

j. Receipt of Bids 
i. Bid No. 2024-2026-001 for Water and Waste Water Line Materials 
ii. Bid No. 2024-2026-002 for Water Treatment Chemicals 
iii. Bid No. 2024-2026-003 for Highland Drive, Wilshire Avenue, Waverly Avenue, and 

Oakdale Drive Concrete Panel Replacements 
iv. Bid No. 2024-2026-005 Construct Box Hangar for the Bartlesville Municipal Airport 



 
 
 
 
 

  
8. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2026-001 for Water and Waste 

Water Line Materials. Presented by Councilmember East.  
 
9. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2026-002 for Water Treatment 

Chemicals. Presented by Councilmember East. 
 
10. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2026-003 for Highland Drive, 

Wilshire Avenue, Waverly Avenue, and Oakdale Drive Concrete Panel Replacement 
Project. Presented by Councilmember East. 

 
11. Unsheltered Homeless Task Force Update. Presented by Task Force Members Ms. Rachel 

Showler and Mr. Tom Gorman. 
 
12. Discuss and take possible action on appeals by Danny L. Blackwood of the Hearing 

Examiner’s Order of Abatement for boarding and securing, and demolition and removal of 
dilapidated structures at 1032 SW Oak Ave., legally described as Lot 12, Blk 1 McCaleb 
Addition, Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma (Code Enforcement Case Number 
DS-0325-0384 and -0385). Presented by Larry Curtis, Director of Community Development.  

 
13. Discuss and take possible action on approving the Proposed Green Fee, Cart Fees, and 

Annual Pass rates for City of Bartlesville public golf course. Presented by Dee Roadman, 
Director, Golf Division. 

 
14. Presentation of potential capital election timelines for ½ Cent Sales Tax, General 

Obligation Bonds, and Economic Development. Presented by Micah Siemers, P.E., CFM 
and Director of Engineering. 

 
15. Discuss and take possible action to adopt Council Action Items that resulted from the 

March 24, 2025 Strategic Planning Retreat. Presented by Mike Bailey, City Manager. 
 
16. New Business. 
 
17. City Manager and Staff Reports. 
 
18. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 
 
19. Adjournment. 
 
The Agenda was received and filed in the Office of the City Clerk and posted in prominent public view at 
City Hall at 5:30 p.m. on Friday, June 27, 2025. 

Jason Muninger              /s/ Elaine Banes             
Jason Muninger, City Clerk/CFO                          by Elaine Banes, Deputy City Clerk 

City of Bartlesville Website: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/ 
Live Streaming: https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/ 
Cable Viewing on Sparklight: Channel 56 
 
 Open Meetings Act Compliance (25 O.S. Sec. 301 et seq.): all discussion items are subject to possible action by the City Council. Official action can only be 
taken on items which appear on the agenda. The City Council may adopt, approve, ratify, deny, defer, recommend, amend, strike, or continue any agenda 
item. When more information is needed to act on an item, the City Council may refer the matter to the City Manager, Staff or City Attorney, or back to a 
committee or other recommending body. Under certain circumstance, items are deferred to a specific later date or stricken from the agenda entirely. Agenda 
items requiring a public hearing as required by law will be so noted. The City Council may at their discretion change the order of the business agenda items. 
City of Bartlesville encourages participation from all its citizens. If participation at any public meeting is not possible due to a disability, notification to the 
City Clerk at least one working day prior to the scheduled meeting is encouraged to make the necessary accommodations. The City may waive this rule if 
signing is not the necessary accommodation. 

https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/meeting-agendas/
https://www.cityofbartlesville.org/city-government/city-council/webcast/


 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 
MINUTES 

(The Notice of Meeting was posted December 15, 2024 and the Agenda was posted May 
27, 2025 at 5:30 p.m.) 

City Council in attendance was Mayor Jim Curd, Jr., Vice Mayor Trevor Dorsey, and 
Councilmembers Tim Sherrick, Larry East and Aaron Kirkpatrick. 

City staff in attendance was Mike Bailey, City Manager; Laura Sanders, Assistant City 
Manager, Jess Kane, City Attorney; Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk; Terry Lauritsen, 
Director of Water Utilities; Police Chief Kevin Ickleberry; Fire Chief H.C. Call; Matt 
McCollough, Director of IT;  Larry Curtis, Director of Community Development; Alicia 
Shelton, Accounting and Finance Supervisor; Kiley Roberson, Director of the Library and 
History Museum; Lisa Beeman, Grants; Deputy Police Chiefs Troy Newell and Andrew 
Ward; Police Captain Elkins; Police Captain Martinez; Officer Sierra Compton and Office 
Brandon Meyer; and Elaine Banes, Executive Assistant. 

1. The business meeting of the Bartlesville City Council was called to order by Mayor 
Curd  at 5:30 p.m. 

2. Roll Call was conducted a quorum established. 

3. The invocation was provided by Dr. Larry Cowan, Grand Mental Health. He also took 
this opportunity to thank first responders for their assistance when his house caught on 
fire, including saving his cat. 

4. Public Comments on Agenda Items. 

Sarah Burnett expressed concern over proposed changes to the records retention policy, 
specifically the lack of retention requirements for emails, texts, and digital 
communications. She emphasized the importance of transparency and accountability in 
governance. 

Noah Meadows shared insights from attending Unsheltered Homeless Task Force 
meetings. She praised the Task Force but expressed concerns that certain individuals 
are still being overlooked by existing shelter systems, urging broader compassion and 
inclusion. 

Shavon Robles emphasized the complexity of homelessness and advocated for a 
balanced approach between accountability and compassion. She acknowledged the 
genuine effort of the Task Force to address these challenges thoughtfully. 

Homer Heffington raised privacy concerns about Flock cameras and their reliance on 
Amazon Web Services. He warned of potential data vulnerabilities and urged caution. 

REGULAR MEETING OF THE  
BARTLESVILLE CITY COUNCIL 

Monday, June 2, 2025 
 5:30 p.m. 

James S. Curd, Jr., Mayor 
918-338-4282 

 

City Hall, Council Chambers 
401 S. Johnstone Avenue 
Bartlesville, OK 74003 

 

Agenda Item 7.a.i.



 
 
 
 
 

Toby Ennis criticized policies perceived as punitive toward the unhoused. She questioned 
the morality and constitutionality of fines and called for greater empathy. 

Angela Utley, Chair of Washington County Democrats, supported efforts to aid the 
homeless and suggested engaging businesses like Walmart for support. She proposed 
considering a staggered fine structure. 

5. City Council Announcements and Proclamations. 

• Douglass School Reunion Days – July 17-20, 2025. Presented by Vice Mayor 
Dorsey. 

6. Authorities, Boards, Commissions and Committees 

• One opening on the Bartlesville Area History Museum Trust Authority 
• One Opening on the Bartlesville Library Trust Authority 
• One opening on the Street and Traffic Committee 
• Two openings on the White Rose Cemetery Board 

7. Consent Docket 

a. Approval of Minutes 
i. The Regular Meeting Minutes of May 5, 2025. 

 b. Approval and/or Ratification of Appointments and Reappointment to 
Authorities, Board, Commissions, and Committees. 

i. Reappointment of Mr. Eric Gray, Ms. Kim Miller, and Ms. Julie Pranger to 
additional two years each to the Bartlesville Library Board at the 
recommendation of Mayor Curd. 

ii. Reappointment of Mr. Michael Colaw and Mr. Dean Robertson to additional 
three-year terms on Visit Bartlesville Board of Directors at the 
recommendation of Vice Mayor Dorsey and Councilman 
Kirkpatrick.                                                              
 

 c. Approval and Ratification of Agreements, Contracts, Engagement Letters, 
Leases, MOU’s, and Proposals. 

i. PatronPoint Software License Agreement between Springshare, LLC and 
Bartlesville Public Library/City of Bartlesville to assist with online access to 
a variety of library services in the amount of $8,500. 

ii. Service Agreement with Sanderson Construction LLC to provide site 
restoration of a demolished property in the amount of $25,000. 

iii. Literacy Training Contact between the Oklahoma Department of Libraries 
and the City of Bartlesville for in-person training, at no expense to the 
Library. 

iv. Annual Destination Marketing Agreement with Visitors Inc. in the amount of 
$445,000. 

v. Contract with B-Town Construction to install a slip line sewer rehab on 
select line segments in the amount of $99,505. 

vi. Five T-Hangar Lease Agreements to be executed to reflect rent increase to 
fair market value with the addition of a CPI-U annual increase component 
resulting in $13,200 revenue annually. 



 
 
 
 
 

vii. Support and Software Assurance Agreement with Verge Network Solutions 
as a telecommunications vendor, a two-year agreement in the amount of 
$9,792.00. 

viii. Third Amendment to the tower/ground lease agreement between the City 
of Bartlesville and SBC Tower Holdings, LLC for a portion of property 
located in Washington County named SE Water Tower Bartlesville. 

ix. Amendment to License Agreement for the ForeUP credit card processing 
payment agreement, fees expenses on yearly budget based on percentage 
of projected revenues. 

 
d. Receipt of Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report 

i. Bartlesville NEXT Progress Report May 2025. 

e. Receipt of ALPR (Flock Cameras) Report 
i. ALPR Report for April and May 2025  

f. Receipt of Financials 
i. Interim financials for ten months ending April 30, 2025.  

g. Receipt of Bids 
i. Bid No. 2024-2025-015R Operation Yard Sheds Project 
ii. Bid No. 2024-2025-017 for Tuxedo FEB Liner Replacement Project 

 
 Mayor Curd provided the consent docket on a PowerPoint slide and referred citizens to 

the agenda where every item was listed. He asked the Council if there were any items to 
be pulled for discussion.  

 
 Mr. Kirkpatrick removed Items 7.c.ii., 7.c.iv. and 7.e. for further discussion. 
 
 Mayor Curd removed Item 7.c.i. for further discussion. 
 

Vice Mayor Dorsey moved to approve the Consent Docket as presented/with the 
exception of Items 7.c.i., 7.c.ii., 7.c.iv., and 7.e. seconded by Mr. East. 

 
  Voting Aye: Mr. Sherrick, Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mayor Curd 
  Voting Nay: None 
  Motion: Passed 
 
  Items removed for further discussion: 
 

Agenda Item 7.c.ii. Service Agreement with Sanderson Construction LLC to provide site 
restoration of a demolished property in the amount of $25,000. 

 
 Mr. Kirkpatrick pointed out two typos in the contract. Mr. Kane confirmed they did not 

adversely affect the contract. 
 

He also inquired if the building had already been demolished. Mr. Curtis reported that it 
has been but due to a basement that is now open ground, there is a need to get it filled. 
He reported that the building and basement was quite large, therefore the substantial cost 
to fill it.  

 
Agenda Item 7.c.iv. Annual Destination Marketing Agreement with Visitors Inc. in the 
amount of $445,000. 



 
 
 
 
 

 
Mr. Kirkpatrick inquired as to a section in the agreement regarding the Visit Bartlesville 
executive officer will not be employed by the Bartlesville Regional Chamber of Commerce 
or any related or similar entity. Mr. Bailey explained that several years ago the president 
of the then BDC was also president of the Chamber of Commerce. There were concerns 
regarding conflict of interest at that time, so the agreements between the City and now 
BDA and Visit Bartlesville Inc. added and continues to keep the section in the agreements. 
Mr. Kirkpatrick added that he would like to visit with Mr. Bailey in the near future about 
these entities to better fully understand them. 
 
Agenda Item 7.e.i.  ALPR Report for April and May 2025  

Mr. Kirkpatrick stated his appreciation to the Police Department for moving the cameras 
into the locations that align with the recently passed ordinance. He went on to share 
information he read from an article that a police department in Illinois had provided 
information to Federal agents/ICE and his concern about this. Chief Ickleberry reassured 
him that a request for information must be provided to him, it has to be about an active 
case, and must be approved by him. He stated he and his staff are adhering to the 
ordinance approved by the City Council. Mr. Kirkpatrick concluded that he just wanted to 
make everyone aware of others who may try to bypass the legal process for information. 

Agenda Item 7.c.i. PatronPoint Software License Agreement between Springshare, LLC 
and Bartlesville Public Library/City of Bartlesville to assist with online access to a variety 
of library services in the amount of $8,500. 
 
Mayor Curd wanted it noted that the wrong State of Jurisdiction was in the contract in the 
Council packet. It was corrected today and the updated Agreement has been provided to 
the Council for their approval. 

 
Vice Mayor Dorsey moved to approve Items 7.c.i., 7.c.ii., 7.c.iv. and 7.c.e, seconded by 
Mr. East. 

 
 A brief discussion covered language in Item 7.c.v. and it was determined the agreement 

language was correct as it is written. 
 
  Voting Aye: Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mr. Sherrick, Mayor Curd 
  Voting Nay: None 
  Motion: Passed 
 

8. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-015R for Operation 
Yard Sheds Project. Presented by Vice Mayor Dorsey.  

 
 Vice Mayor Dorsey moved to award Bid No. 2024-2025-015R to Higgins Construction, 

Bartlesville, OK, in the amount of $498,000 using additional funding through the GO Bond 
and Water Capital Funds, seconded by Mr. Kirkpatrick. 

 
Voting Aye: Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mr. Sherrick, Mr. East, Mayor Curd 

  Voting Nay: None 
  Motion: Passed 

 
9. Discuss and take possible action to award Bid No. 2024-2025-017 for Tuxedo FEB 

Liner Replacement Project. Presented by Vice Mayor Dorsey.  



 
 
 
 
 
 

Vice Mayor Dorsey moved to award Bid No. 2024-2025-016 to Allstate Lining, Houston, 
TX, in the amount of $268,657.48 using unallocated funds from the Wastewater 
Regulatory Fund, seconded by Mr. East. 

 
Voting Aye: Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mr. Sherrick, Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Mayor Curd 

  Voting Nay: None 
  Motion: Passed 
 

10. Public hearing, consideration and possible action on a request to rezone 0.72 acres 
from RM-3 (Residential Multifamily) & C-2 (Neighborhood Shopping) to C-5 
(General Commercial)/PUD (Planned Unit Development), and for approval of a PUD 
Site Development Plan, located at 125-136 SE De Bell Ave., from Keleher Architects 
on behalf of William Hiatt Trust. Presented by Larry Curtis, Director of Community 
Development. 

 
 Mr. Curtis reported the applicant Kelleher Architects on behalf of William Hyatt Trust 

requested approval of the rezoning of 0.72 acres at 125 through 136 Southeast DeBell 
Avenue from RM-3 and C2 to C5 with a plan unit development and for the approval of the 
associated PUD site development plan. The intent is to resolve split zoning on the 
property and expand future development opportunities by allowing both RM-3 and most 
C5 uses within the C5 use specifically prohibited to protect surrounding residential 
character. The property platted as lots 30 through 38 of Highland Park addition is currently 
vacant. The rezoning would allow flexibility for potential commercial or residential use, 
improving marketability, and align with the site's designation in the comprehensive plan. 
The applicant has submitted a conceptual site development plan showing a possible 
office warehouse layout and the PUD establishes specific development standards 
including reduced setbacks, limited outside storage, and no minimum off-site parking 
requirement for non-residential uses. Multifamily residence would be permitted with 
adjacent parking and standard RM-3 dimensional standards. At their meeting on May 20, 
2025, the Planning Commission voted to recommend approval for the rezoning of the 
PUD requests. Planning Commission found that the proposal will be consistent with the 
comprehensive plan and meets the standards of the PUD approved for the city's rezoning 
regulations. Staff recommends that City Council move with the Planning Commission's 
recommendations for the approval of the rezoning and PUD requested 

 
 Mayor Curd opened the public hearing at 6:20 p.m.  There being no one appear to 

speak, the public hearing was closed at 6:20 p.m. 
 

Mr. Kirkpatrick moved to adopt the Ordinance as presented, seconded by Mr. East. 
 

Voting Aye: Mr. Sherrick, Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mayor Curd 
  Voting Nay: None 
  Motion: Passed 

 
11. Public hearing, consideration and possible action on a request to rezone 0.48 acres 

from C-2 (Neighborhood Shopping)/PUD (Planned Unit Development) to RM-3 
(Residential Multifamily)/New PUD, and for approval of a PUD Site Development 
Plan, located at 521, 525, and 529 S. Seneca Ave., from Richard Smith of American 
Bison Construction Co. on behalf of Quantum trading Group LLC. Presented by 
Larry Curtis, Director of Community Development. 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 Mr. Curtis reported the property is currently vacant and was originally platted as three lots 

in the Armstrong addition. The proposed development includes eight dwelling units and 
four duplexes consistent with the design with nearby projects by the similar builder, same 
builder. Due to lot size and dimensional standards, the applicant is also seeking the 
approval of a PUD to accommodate modest deviations from the standard RM3 zoning 
regulations including lot area per unit and setbacks. The project is consistent with the 
comprehensive plan which identifies the area as transitional neighborhood where 
multifamily residential is the primary use. All surrounding properties are zoned RM3 and 
developed residentially. At the regular meeting on May 20, 2025, the Planning 
Commission voted to recommend approval of the rezoning, the PUD and the site 
development plan for City Council's approval. Access will be provided via the alley to the 
west and sidewalks will connect Seneca Avenue to Adams Boulevard. A five-foot right-
of-way dedication and 10-foot wide easement are also included to address future right-
of-way and trail improvements for the city's future thoroughfare plan. Staff recommends 
approval per the Planning Commission's recommendation. 

 
 Mayor Curd opened the public hearing at 6:22 p.m. Appearing to speak was Richard 

Smith, American Bison, the applicant. He provided information about the property and his 
plans to develop it. There being no one further appear to speak, the public hearing was 
closed at 6:25 p.m. 

 
Mr. Kirkpatrick moved to adopt the Ordinance as presented, seconded by Mr. East. 

 
Voting Aye: Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mr. Sherrick, Mayor Curd 

  Voting Nay: None 
  Motion: Passed 

 
12. Discuss and take action on a request for Final Plat approval, 0.48 acres, to be zoned 

RM-3/PUD, located at 521, 525, and 529 S. Seneca Ave., from Richard Smith of 
American Bison Construction Co. on behalf of Quantum Trading Group LLC. 
Presented by Larry Curtis, Director of Community Development.  

 
 Mr. Curtis reported that this is the plat for the rezoning that was approved in Item 11, 

taking it from three lots to four lots per the PUD requirements. 
 

Mr. East moved to adopt the Final Plat as presented, seconded by Vice Mayor Dorsey. 
 

Voting Aye: Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mr. Sherrick, Mr. East, Mayor Curd 
  Voting Nay: None 
  Motion: Passed 

 
13. Unsheltered Homeless Task Force Update. Presented by Task Force Members Ms. 

Rachel Showler and Mr. Tom Gorman. 
 
 Ms. Showler, using a PowerPoint presentation, provided an in-depth overview of what the 

Task Force has been addressing in the meetings. She presented the Golden Circle 
concept; what was identified as gaps in the community for assistance; signage with 
information included to all resources for the homeless; public education campaign; 
transportation needs of the homeless; obtaining ID’s for the homeless; training for 
volunteers to assist with SSI and SSDI (SOAR training); software to assist all the 
organizations with sharing information on homeless citizens; a possible Community Court 
being established by Judge Gentges and B the Light; how the Task Force would like to 



 
 
 
 
 

have their term extended through January 2026; and the roll-out process of the proposed 
ordinance in Item 14.  

 
 Mr. Kirkpatrick, Chairman of the Task Force, provided comments covering the highway 

out of homelessness process; how a homeless neighbor interfaces initially with local 
helping organizations, a medical provider or law enforcement; and how these are typically 
the first points of contact where immediate and acute life-threatening needs are met, such 
as health, food, and water. Shelter may not be the first need, and not everybody wants 
shelter. Initial points of contact include explaining local ordinances and if necessary, how 
they are enforced; resource sites are provided which is available on both the city website 
and City app;  2-1-1 and 9-8-8 are both great resources; voluntary connection with a local 
shelter who will check for ID and assist with obtaining free ID’s, whether they remain at 
the shelter or not; and how an ID is the essential on-ramp for the process to work 
effectively because the ID is entered into a shared software database used by all of the 
organizations. The software database allows organizations to be as efficient and effective 
as possible saving them from duplicating work and duplicating resources. He continued 
reporting that this process goes all the way back to the Golden Circle that Ms. Showler 
reported on. The ID provides the “who”; the profile created in the software provides the 
“why” they are homeless; and the “what” – what can be done to assist where the emphasis 
is the process for helping a person come out of homelessness which is as unique as they 
are - individualized care. 

 
Mr. Kirkpatrick continued stating that a common critique is that Bartlesville does not do 
enough or Bartlesville does not have every resource that every person needs, adding that 
just because not every service a person might need is not available, it does not mean that 
the community is not doing all that can be done. He stated his appreciation to all of the 
Task Force members and what they have accomplished in the last five months. They 
want to continue to meet monthly to see ensure all of their actions reach fruition, as they 
feel they can help bring meaningful improvement in the quality of life for homeless 
neighbors and for all of Bartlesville. He concluded stating that Representative Strom, who 
is a member of the Task Force, had stated that many communities who face a 
homelessness crisis move to solve the problem; Bartlesville has moved to meet these 
individuals with compassion to try to help. This speaks highly of the individuals who sit on 
this Task Force, and they deserve support and appreciation. 

 
14. Discuss and take possible action to adopt an ordinance recommended by the 

Unsheltered Homeless Task Force regulating acts prohibited in public spaces. 
Presented by Unsheltered Homeless Task Force Chairman and Councilman Aaron 
Kirkpatrick. 

 
 Mr. Kirkpatrick reported that the ordinance was presented in the April 7, 2025 Council 

meeting for review only. The Task Force has continued to discuss the ordinance and how 
a rollout strategy would be beneficial. If the ordinance is adopted at this meeting, it would 
not go into effect until January 2026 to allow education for officials, police officers, and 
the homeless population. Basically, the goal is to make sure that the ordinance is well 
understood and no one gets caught by surprise. During this time frame, a public education 
campaign will be launched as well.  He continued reporting that Mr. Sherrick found a 
conflicting section that has been amended from the previously reviewed draft.  

 
Mr. Kirkpatrick addressed the $500 fine saying that the possibility of a $500 fine was not 
to suggest that there would ever be a $500 fine levied. It was included as a maximum to 
ensure that the offense is a misdemeanor and would be adjudicated in municipal court. 



 
 
 
 
 

Discussion continued covering the fine; how the municipal court and judge has discretion; 
how the municipal judge works with the homeless providing options for them when they 
are in his court; why fines are necessary; and how the Task Force unanimously voted to 
recommend adoption to the City Council. 

 
Mr. East moved to adopt the Ordinance as presented, seconded by Mr. Sherrick. 

 
Voting Aye: Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mr. Sherrick, Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Mayor Curd 

  Voting Nay: None 
  Motion: Passed 

 
15. Discuss and take possible action to approve a resolution amending the 

Unsheltered Homeless Task Force as established with Resolution #3722 to extend 
the term of the Task Force. Presented by the Unsheltered Homeless Task Force 
Chairman and Councilman Aaron Kirkpatrick.  

 
 Mr. Kirkpatrick reported that in the previous two agenda Items, the Task Force’s work has 

been reported. Now that the six months is nearing an end, they would like to extend the 
duration of the Task Force in order to finish their projects, oversee the incremental rollout 
of the ordinances, and keep tabs on progress. He added that one of the most powerful 
things that has happened with this Task Force has been getting so many of the right 
people together on a regular basis to interact and work together, finding ways to efficiently 
and effectively assist the homeless/unsheltered population.   

 
Vice Mayor Dorsey moved to approve the Resolution as presented, seconded by Mr. 
East. 

 
Voting Aye: Mr. Sherrick, Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mayor Curd 

  Voting Nay: None 
  Motion: Passed 
 

Mayor Curd stated his thanks to Mr. Kirkpatrick and to the Task Force. He also 
acknowledged Mr. Bailey who sits on the Task Force and the willingness of City 
administration to commit the time and resources to address this issue.   
 

16. Discuss and take possible action on an appeal by Brad D. Purvis of the Hearing 
Examiner’s Order of Abatement for demolition and removal of a dilapidated 
structure at 116 S. Comanche Avenue, legally described as the South 1/2 of Lot 5, 
Block 12, Capitol Hill Addition, Bartlesville, Washington County, Oklahoma (Code 
Enforcement Case Number DS-0325-0378). Presented by Larry Curtis, Director of 
Community Development. 

 
 Mr. Curtis reported that in 2007, Mr. Purvis received a variance from the Bartlesville Board 

of Adjustment that allowed him to maintain a non-conforming use at a contractor's yard 
in the C5 general commercial zoning district where such a use is otherwise prohibited. 
This variance was contingent upon several specific conditions including obtaining a 
floodplain development permit, approval of the downtown design review committee, and 
the installation and painting of a wooden privacy fence. That same year, Mr. Purvis was 
issued a building permit for storage building tie downs at 114 South Comanche Avenue. 
He proceeded with the partial demolition of the house, removing the front portion and 
retaining the back portion as a storage structure. In 2010, the City of Bartlesville formally 
designated and created the area as a part of the downtown design review district through 



 
 
 
 
 

Ordinance #3335, subjecting future construction and renovations on the property to 
additional design standards and review processes. In March of 2025, when the City began 
receiving multiple complaints from citizens and adjacent businesses. Between March 5th 
and March 10th, four separate complaints were submitted to code enforcement and there 
were two police department issues as well. These reports detailed concerns over 
homeless individuals trespassing, living in the structure without utilities, and even starting 
fires in the yard. There were also reports of public issues and theft impacting the 
neighborhood businesses. In response, code enforcement issued a courtesy notice of 
violation March 11, 2025 and following up with a formal notice of violation in order to abate 
on the property on March 25, 2025, which was both mailed and posted to the property. A 
hearing before the city's hearing examiner, John C. Holden, was held on April 23, 2025. 
Mr. Purvis attended the hearing and testimony was provided by City staff. After reviewing 
the evidence, the hearing examiner determined that the structure was dilapidated, a 
public nuisance, and issued an order of abatement requiring the structure to be 
demolished within 30 days. That order was posted and mailed, and a notice of dilapidation 
and lien was recorded on April 24, 2025. Mr. Purvis subsequently filed a formal appeal of 
the order on May 1, 2025, triggering the current review and the action that is before the 
Council this evening.  

 
A lengthy discussion entailed along with input from the property owner, Mr. Purvis.  Topics 
covered were whether the property was a hazard to the general health and safety of the 
community; how the structure itself does not currently meet the safety standards 
associated with building codes; homeless population using the structure; the gate and 
fence has been repaired and the property has been cleaned up; hesitancy about removing 
a structure that is used for a business; options to secure the structure to keep people out; 
possibly allow the property owner more time to secure the property; the structural integrity 
of the stem and outside walls that have significant lean and separation; floodplain issues; 
how if the structure is secured, it could only be used for storage, not living quarters; how 
even secured, staff believes it could still meet the definition of being a danger to citizens; 
and suspending the demolition order to allow 30 days to allow the property owner to 
secure the building.  
 
Mr. Sherrick moved to extend the appeal and reconsider at the next City Council meeting, 
seconded by Mr. Kirkpatrick. 

 
Voting Aye: Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mr. Sherrick, Mayor Curd 

  Voting Nay: None 
  Motion: Passed 

  
17. Discuss and take possible action to appoint one City Councilmember, one Planning 

Commissioner, and three community stakeholders to an ad hoc committee to 
evaluate and select a consultant to assess the effectiveness of current land use 
development codes and to modify and reform such codes.  Presented by Larry 
Curtis, Director of Community Development. 

 
 Mr. Curtis reported that a five-member committee is proposed consisting of one City 

Council member, one City Planning Commissioner, and three community stakeholders. 
The committee will review the consultant proposals and select a consultant to be 
recommended, identify needed code improvements, engage stakeholders, and guide the 
code update as a process. Staff is recommending appointing the following: Dan Kelleher 
of Kelleher Architects, Brent Taylor, Taylor Homes Groups, Amos Radlinger, Chinowth & 
Cohen Realtors (also a member of the Board of Adjustment), Aaron Kirkpatrick from the 



 
 
 
 
 

City Planning Commission, and then a member of the City Council to be appointed to this 
committee as well. Vice Mayor Dorsey volunteered to serve on the ad-hoc committee.  

 
Mr. Kirkpatrick moved to appoint Vice Mayor Dorsey as the City Council Representative, 
Mr. Kirkpatrick as the City Planning Commission Representative, Dan Keleher, Brent 
Taylor, Amos Radlinger as Community Stakeholders to serve on the ad hoc committee, 
seconded by Mr. East. 

 
Voting Aye: Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mr. Sherrick, Mr. East, Mayor Curd 

  Voting Nay: None 
  Motion: Passed 

 
18. Discuss and take possible action regarding the naming of the internal parkway at 

Lee Lake to “Lisa Beeman Parkway”. Presented by Larry Curtis, Director of 
Community Development. 

 
Mr. Curtis reported that the Bartlesville Park Board considered a proposal brought forward 
by the City Manager to honor a longtime city employee, Lisa Beeman, by naming the 
internal parkway at Lee Lake as Lisa Beeman Parkway. The internal roadway, while not 
officially classified as a City street, is a key component of the Lee Lake complex and 
serves as a cornerstone for vehicular traffic within the park area. The Park Board 
discussed the proposal in the context of Ms. Beeman's decades of service to the city of 
Bartlesville, including her pivotal role in planning, developing, and advocating for parks 
and recreation initiatives. Her leadership has been instrumental in the expansion and 
improvement of public amenities, trails, and green space throughout the community. 
Board members expressed unanimous support for the honorary designation, recognizing 
it as a fitting tribute to Ms. Beeman's legacy and contributes to the City's quality of life. 
The proposed naming would include signage at key intersections along the parkway to 
identify the designation, and those key intersections would be along Silver Lake and along 
Adams Boulevard.  Mayor Curd and Vice Mayor Dorsey stated their support of the request 
and publicly thanked Ms. Beeman for her service and commitment to the City. 

 
Mayor Curd moved to approve naming the internal parkway at Lee Lake to “Lisa Beeman 
Parkway” as presented, seconded by Vice Mayor Dorsey. 

 
Voting Aye: Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mr. Sherrick, Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Mayor Curd 

  Voting Nay: None 
  Motion: Passed 
 

 Mr. Bailey stated that Ms. Beeman means a lot to this community, as well as to the City 
of Bartlesville organization. He added that the idea to honor Ms. Beeman came from 
David Wood, President of the Bartlesville Development Authority. He thanked Ms. 
Beeman for her work and commitment to Bartlesville. Mayor Curd reiterated how it is a 
great honor to be able to honor her. She was the key element in bringing recreation and 
many amenities forward in the last several years. So good job, Beeman.  

 
19. Discuss and take possible action on an updated policy on records retention and 

authority to destroy as part of the City’s Accounting Policies and Procedures 
Manual. Presented by Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk.  

  
Mr. Muninger reported that Resolution #3298 was adopted December of 2012, which is 
when the City adopted the accounting policies and procedures manual. There has been 



 
 
 
 
 

no change since it was adopted in 2012. In that resolution, the city manager has the ability 
to change any part of those policies and procedures, but with the original record retention 
plan being silent on quite a few documents as being such a major change, staff felt it was 
pertinent to bring it before the Council for your consideration. Body worn cameras and 
text messaging were not around, and even voice mail was minimal. Email, although in 
2012 was pretty prevalent, it's utilization for all business aspects really was not what it is 
today. The proposed Plan includes these forms of communication and recordings. Mr. 
Kirkpatrick asked for some information on the number of open records requests receive 
this year which was submitted to the Council as well as providing copies of 2025's request 
versus 2024's requests.  

Key points raised during a lengthy discussion were retention specifics for emails, texts, 
voicemail, body-worn cameras, and social media; Staff emphasis on the balance between 
legal compliance, cost of data storage, and operational practicality; concerns raised about 
potential misuse of open records requests for political or retaliatory purposes; and Council 
members discussed their individual practices and concerns about message deletion, data 
manipulation, and recordkeeping consistency. Council agreed to set a two-year rolling 
retention period for emails, text messages, and other electronic messages that would 
apply to both staff and council members equally; Body-worn camera footage would follow 
the Police Department’s existing policy, with the "none" category allowing department-
specific standards to prevail; and other categories like social media and voicemails were 
deemed acceptable for immediate deletion unless otherwise required. Clarification was 
provided that the “none” category allows for no retention if not otherwise required by law.  

Vice Mayor Dorsey moved to approve the updated policy with the change to move  #1 
under None to 2 YEARS  (two-year retention) for email, text messages, and other 
electronic messages, seconded by Mr. Sherrick. 

 
Voting Aye: Mr. Sherrick, Mr. East, Mr. Kirkpatrick, Vice Mayor Dorsey, Mayor Curd 

  Voting Nay: None 
  Motion: Passed 

 
*Due to the time, Items 20-23 were not addressed. Item 20 will be addressed at the July 7. 
2025 City Council meeting. 
 
20. Presentation on results from the Strategic Planning Retreat. Presented by Mike 

Bailey, City Manager. 
 
21. New Business. 
 
22. City Manager and Staff Reports. 
 
23. City Council Comments and Inquiries. 
 
24. There being no further business to address, Mayor Curd adjourned the meeting at 

8:30 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
            
                                                                                                                                              
        James. S. Curd, Jr., Mayor 
 
 
 
                                                        
Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
 



Agenda Item ___ 
June 26, 2025 

Prepared by Greg Collins 
Community Development Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Consider and take action on the appointment of Ms. Amanda Hokola to Keep Bartlesville 
Beautiful, for her first three-year term.  
 
Attachments: 

 
Application – Amanda Hokola 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Amanda Hokola submitted an application indicating interest in serving on Keep Bartlesville 
Beautiful Committee.  Ms. Hokola is a local small business owner who has a background in urban 
farming and is a farmers market member. She is interested in drought-tolerant  landscaping that 
can be utilized for foraging and is beneficial for pollinators. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Approve the appointment of Ms. Amanda Hokola to Keep Bartlesville Beautiful, for her first 
three-year term, expiring July 2028. 

7.b.i.





Agenda Item ___ 
July 7, 2025 

Prepared by Micah Snyder 
Community Development Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Consider and take action on the appointment of Ms. Shavon Robles to the City Planning 
Commission for her first three-year term.  
 
Attachments: 

 
Application – Shavon Robles 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
The maximum number of consecutive terms one can serve is two. John Kane’s second term on 
the City Planning Commission ended May 2025. Shavon Robles submitted an application 
indicating interest in serving on the City Planning Commission. As Executive Director of the 
West Side Community Center and other previous experience, she has a background in community 
engagement and program strategy. She also contributed to the development of the Endeavor 2045 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Approve the appointment of Ms. Shavon Robles to the City Planning Commission for her first 
three-year term, expiring July 2028. 

7.b.ii.









Agenda Item ___ 
July 7, 2025 

Prepared by Micah Snyder 
Community Development Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Consider and take action on the appointment of Mr. Wyatt Gerth to the City Planning 
Commission to fill the unexpired term of Adam Hibdon.  
 
Attachments: 

 
Application – Wyatt Gerth 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Adam Hibdon recently relocated his residence outside city limits, making him ineligible to serve 
on the City Planning Commission per Ordinance No. 3446. His term ends September 2027. Wyatt 
Gerth submitted an application indicating interest in serving on the City Planning Commission. 
He has a background in education as the instructor for the Creative Marketing Communications 
program at Tri County Tech. He also has significant civic involvement through volunteering 
efforts such as Run the Streets and Young Professionals of Bartlesville. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Approve the appointment of Mr. Wyatt Gerth to the City Planning Commission to fill the 
unexpired term of Adam Hibdon, expiring September 2027. 

7.b.iii.







Agenda Item 7.b.iv.



Agenda Item ___ 
       June 27, 2025

Prepared by Jess M. Kane 
Legal Department 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND

Discuss and take possible action to approve a resolution authorizing and requiring the marking
of the graves of John F. Walters and George E. Moore and commending Joe Todd for his efforts
on behalf of veterans.

Attachments:
Proposed Resolution 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS

Joe Todd, member of the board of trustees of White Rose cemetery, local historian and veterans
advocate, contacted the City concerning plots 3-5-12 and 6-136-5 in White Rose Cemetery.
Those plots are occupied by the earthly remains of John F. Walters and George E. Moore,
veterans of the First World War who died on December 9, 1919 and October 15, 1918,
respectively, of pneumonia. Their graves remain unmarked, and without recognition of their
honorable service in the United States Army.

Pursuant 11 O.S. § 26-105 the City of Bartlesville has established certain rules and ordinances for
the regulation, protection and governance of White Rose Cemetery. Those rules require that only
family members may mark graves in White Rose Cemetery. While this is generally a wise policy,
it has prevented John F. Walters and George E. Moore from being properly honored for their
lives and service because they have no living family. Because the governing body of the
municipality has the authority under 11 O.S. § 26-105 to establish rules for White Rose Cemetery,
it is also within the authority of the Council to provide for certain exceptions that would allow
John F. Walters and George E. Moore to be appropriately honored.

But for the diligence and passion of Joe Todd, the graves of John F. Walters and George E. Moore
would remain unmarked. Mr. Todd is deserving of special commendation from the Council for
his tireless efforts on behalf of Bartlesville veterans.

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION

Approve Resolution as presented.

7.c.i.



RESOLUTION NO.  _________ 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING SETTLEMENT AUTHORITY TO CERTAIN 
EMPLOYEE POSITIONS TO APPROVE LEGAL SETTLEMENTS THAT ARE 
NEGOTIATED BY THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE’S INSURER. 

WHEREAS, pursuant to 11 O.S. § 26-105 the City of Bartlesville has established certain rules and ordinances 
for the regulation, protection and governance of White Rose Cemetery; and 
 
WHEREAS, said rules and ordinances require family members to mark the graves of deceased persons buried 
in White Rose Cemetery; and 
 
WHEREAS, JOHN F. WALTERS and GEORGE E. MOORE served honorably in the United States Army 
during the First World War and are each buried in an unmarked graves in White Rose Cemetery; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary and advisable for the City Council, pursuant to its authority to establish certain 
rules and ordinances for the regulation, protection and governance of White Rose Cemetery under 11 O.S. § 
26-105, to provide for marking of the graves of JOHN F. WALTERS and GEORGE E. MOORE, and 
 
WHEREAS, JOE TODD should be commended for his tireless efforts to preserve the military history of 
Bartlesville, and to honor the sacrifice of veterans such as JOHN F. WALTERS and GEORGE E. MOORE. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILE, OKLAHOMA, THAT: 
 
The Board of Trustees of White Rose Cemetery and Bartlesville City staff are hereby authorized and required 
to place appropriate makers on the graves of JOHN F. WALTERS and GEORGE E. MOORE to honor their 
lives and service to our country in the First World War.  
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILE, 
OKLAHOMA, THAT: 
 
Joe Todd is hereby formally commended for his tireless efforts to preserve the military history of Bartlesville, 
and to honor the sacrifice of Bartlesville veterans.   
 
APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR OF THE 
CITY OF BARTLESVILLE THIS 7th DAY OF July, 2025. 
 

 
 
    _________________________________________ 
    James S. Curd, Jr., Mayor 
    City of Bartlesville 

 
____________________________ 
City Clerk 
City of Bartlesville 



Agenda Item ___ 
July 7, 2025 

Prepared by Robin Betts, HR Director 
Human Resources Division 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
A resolution to amend the contracts of the City Attorney, City Judge, and City Manager adjusting 
their compensation to accommodate the approved cost of living adjustments and merit increases 
for Fiscal Year 25-26.  
 
Attachments: 

Certain Contract and Appointed Employee Pay Increase Resolution 
 

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
The Bartlesville City Council has approved a 2.5% cost of living adjustment and 2.5% merit 
increase for all general employees of the City of Bartlesville for fiscal year 2025-2026. It has 
been a common practice to provide the same increases to the City Attorney, City Judge, and City 
Manager. 
 
This resolution would amend the compensation section of the previously listed employees’ 
contracts to provide the same increase for them as all employees.  
 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
 The total budget impact of these salary increases is $17,393.47.  This amount was considered in 

the budget that was approved by City Council on May 5, 2025. 
 
IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 
Staff recommends approval of resolution to provide cost of living and merit increases to certain 
contracted and appointed employees. 
 

7.c.ii.



 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. __________ 

 
 
 

A RESOLUTION MAKING A COST OF LIVING INCREASE AND MERIT INCREASE 
FOR CERTAIN CONTRACT AND APPOINTED EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, 

OKLAHOMA 
 
 
 

WHEREAS, the Bartlesville City Council has approved cost of living adjustments and merit increases 
for all general employees of the City of Bartlesville and desires to make the same for the City Attorney, City 
Judge, and City Manager. 
 
 

NOW THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA: 
 
 That the wages in effect for the individuals holding the four positions above set forth are adjusted as 
follows: 
 
1. That a 2.5% cost of living adjustment is hereby granted effective July 1, 2025; 
2. That a 2.5% merit increase is hereby granted effective July 1, 2025; 
3. That for the City Attorney, City Judge, and City Manager who have contracts, this Resolution shall 

constitute an amendment to the compensation provision of their contracts.  
 
 
 
PASSED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE THIS 7th DAY JULY, 2025. 
 
 
 
        BY: ___________________________________ 
                     MAYOR 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
             CITY CLERK 



Agenda Item ___ 
June 26, 2025 

Prepared by Alicia Shelton  
Accounting and Finance 

 
 
 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 
 
A resolution amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for fiscal year 2024-25 
appropriating unanticipated revenue for the Health Insurance Fund. 
 
Attachments: 

 
A resolution amending the Budget for the City of Bartlesville for fiscal year 2024-
2025. Appropriating unanticipated revenue for the Health Insurance Fund. 
  

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
The City needs to appropriate funds to cover unexpected specialty drug costs. $377,764 
will come from unanticipated revenue from Stop Loss Reimbursements. 

 
  

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
Budgetary impact nets zero, $377,764 increase in revenue and $377,764 increase in 
expenditure. 
 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

Staff Recommends approval of resolution to appropriate funds. 
 
 

7.c.iii.



RESOLUTION ___________ 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE BUDGET OF THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2024–2025, 
APPROPRIATING UNANTICIPATED REVENUE FOR THE HEALTH 
INSURANCE FUND. 
 
 
WHEREAS, THE City of Bartlesville has unanticipated revenue from Stop Loss 
Reimbursements in the excess of $377,764; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Bartlesville needs to appropriate $377,764 of these revenues prior 
to their expenditure; 
 
NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA that: 
 
 The General Services Dept (170) of the Health Insurance Fund (661) shall be 

increased as follows: 
 

 Group Insurance (51140) $ 377,764 
 

 
APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR OF THE 
CITY OF BARTLESVILLE THIS 7th DAY OF JULY, 2025. 
 
 
 
   
  Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
 City Clerk 



Agenda Item ___ 
June 26, 2025 

Prepared by Alicia Shelton  
Accounting and Finance 

 
 
 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 
 
A resolution amending the budget of the City of Bartlesville for fiscal year 2025-26 
appropriating unbudgeted Fund Balance for the Capital Reserve Fund. 
 
Attachments: 

 
A resolution amending the Budget for the City of Bartlesville for fiscal year 2025-
2026. Appropriating unbudgeted Fund Balance for the Capital Reserve Fund. 

  
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 

The City of Bartlesville received $25,000 from the City of Pawhuska during the 
transfer/trade of the 1998 Ferrara Fire Truck. These funds must be appropriated prior to 
their expense. 

 
  

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
Budgetary impact nets zero, $25,000 increase in revenue and $25,000 increase in 
expenditure. 
 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

Staff Recommends approval of resolution to appropriate funds. 
 
 

7.c.iv.



RESOLUTION ___________ 
 

A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE BUDGET OF THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA FOR FISCAL YEAR 2025–2026, 
APPROPRIATING UNBUDGETED FUND BALANCE FOR THE CAPITAL 
RESERVE FUND. 
 
 
WHEREAS, THE City of Bartlesville has unbudgeted fund balance in the amount of 
$25,000; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City of Bartlesville needs to appropriate $25,000 of these revenues prior 
to their expenditure; 
 
NOW, THERFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 
OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA that: 
 
 The Fire Dept (250) of the Capital Reserve Fund (675) shall be increased as 

follows: 
 

 Tools & Equipment (53410) $ 25,000 
 

 
APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR OF THE 
CITY OF BARTLESVILLE THIS 7th DAY OF JULY, 2025. 
 
 
 
   
  Mayor 
Attest: 
 
 
 
  
 City Clerk 



                 Agenda Item: ________ 
        Date: 6/17/2025 

    Prepared by: Chief Call 
                               Department: Fire 

 
 
 

 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Agenda language: Consent Agenda Item – Approval of Agreement  
 
Attachments: Fire Apparatus Purchase Agreement - State of Oklahoma State Bid Pricing between 
the City of Bartlesville and Conrad Fire Equipment/Pierce OshKosh Corporation for the amount 
of $858,839.53.  

 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
This item deals with the purchase of a new 2026 custom fire engine. This new fire engine will 
have added foam firefighting capabilities for airport responses and will replace our oldest front-
line engine a 2007 model. The 2007 model will be placed in reserve status and used as a back-
up engine. This item will be purchased through the State of Oklahoma Statewide Bid Contract 
SW0240 good through 12/31/2026.          
 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
 25-26 budgeted item. This item was included in the approved 25-26 City of Bartlesville budget 

as a Capital Improvement Project - Capital Reserve Fund (675). Budgeted amount was $950,000. 
Remaining funds will be used to purchase hose, tools, and equipment needed to outfit the truck.   

 
 
 
IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 

City staff recommends approval of the Fire Apparatus Purchase Agreement at the next City 
Council Meeting. 



Sales Rep:

Qty.

N/A

Loose Equipment*

Due Upon Delivery

Customer Name:

PriceDescription

OPTION 2 (w/o Pre-Payment Discount)
Apparatus Purchase Price

Trade-in Value
Price After Trade-in

Pre-Payment Discount

OPTION 1 (with Pre-Payment Discount)
Apparatus Purchase Price

Trade-in Value
Price After Trade-in

Payment Options

Quote Doc Date: 

Warranty Period:

Quote Bid No.: 

Performance Bond: 

Estimated Build Time:

Submitted Date:

Apparatus Quote

Expiration Date:

Payment Terms Notes

Apparatus Detail

Extrication Rescue Tools Extrication Rescue Tools*

Options Options

Pre-Payment Discount

Due Upon Order

Loose Equipment

This quote with its attached provisions and apparatus specifications are accepted by: 

_________________________________          __________________________________          _________________
Name            Signature              Date



APPARATUS QUOTE PROVISIONS

This Quote (together with all attachments referenced herein), as provided by CONRAD FIRE EQUIPMENT, INC (Company) to the referenced 
Customer (Customer) includes the following terms and conditions and attached product specifications as hereby acknowledged by the 
Company and the Customer.  The terms herein shall be applicable to the sale related to this quote and effective upon the Parties pursuant 
to the Customer's acceptance of this quote and/or the Customer's issuance of an official purchase order or the execution of a related 
contract between the parties, which shall expressly incorporate these provisions by referencing the date and bid number of this quote.

1. Specification Changes. Various state or federal regulatory agencies (e.g. NFPA, DOT, EPA) may require changes to the Specifications
and/or the Product and in any such event any resulting cost increases incurred to comply therewith will be added to the Purchase Price to be
paid by the Customer. In addition, any future drive train upgrades (engine, transmission, axles, etc.), or any other specification changes have
not been calculated into our annual increases and will be provided at additional cost.

2. Commercial Chassis Pricing Changes. Pricing for commercial chassis provided by manufacturers other than Pierce (e.g., Kenworth,
International, Peterbilt, etc.) may be subject to change subsequent to an order being placed as determined by the commercial chassis
manufacturer.  To the extent practicable, Company will document any such updated price for the Customer’s approval before proceeding
and provide an option to cancel the order.

3. Persistent Inflationary Environment. If the Producer Price Index of Components for Manufacturing
[www.bls.gov Series ID: WPUID6112] (“PPI”) has increased at a compounded annual growth rate of 5.0% or more between the month Pierce
accepts our order (“Order Month”) and a month 14 months prior to the then predicted Ready For Pickup date
(“Evaluation Month”), then pricing may be updated in an amount equal to the increase in PPI over 5.0% for each year or fractional year
between the Order Month and the Evaluation Month. To the extent this provision results in a price increase to the Customer for the order
associated with this quote, the Company will notify the Customer in writing of such price increase for the Customer’s approval before
proceeding with the order; in lieu of proceeding with the order, the Customer may cancel the associated order without penalty by providing
the Company written cancellation within 30-Days of of receiving the price increase notice pursuant to this provision.

4. Payments.  Pre-payment discounts are based on purchase price at time of order and are not subject to change.  Any outstanding
balance related to an order is due upon product delivery.  All taxes, excises and levies that Company may be required to pay or collect for any
reason shall be for the account of the Customer and shall be added to the Purchase Price.  Delinquent payments shall be subject to a carrying
charge of 1.5 percent per month or such lesser amount permitted by law. Company will not be required to accept payment other than as set
forth in this Agreement.  Company shall have and retain a purchase money security interest in all goods and products now or hereafter sold
to the Customer by Company or any of its affiliated companies to secure payment of the Purchase Price for all such goods and products.  In
the event of nonpayment by the Customer of any debt, obligation or liability now or hereafter incurred or owing by the Customer to
Company, Company shall have and may exercise all rights and remedies of a secured party under Article 9 of the Uniform Commercial Code
(UCC) as adopted by the state of [KANSAS].

5. Cancellation/Termination. In the event this associated order is canceled or terminated by the Customer before completion for any
reason other than that directly related to and allowed per the provisions of Paragraph 3 above, Company may charge a cancellation fee. The
following charge schedule based on costs incurred may be applied: (a) 10% of the Purchase Price after order is accepted and entered by
Company; (b) 20% of the Purchase Price after completion of approval drawings, and; (c) 30% of the Purchase Price upon any material
requisition. The cancellation fee will increase accordingly as costs are incurred as the order progresses through engineering and into
manufacturing. Company endeavors to mitigate any such costs through the sale of such Product to another purchaser; however, Customer
shall remain liable for the difference between the Purchase Price and, if applicable, the sale price obtained by Company upon sale of the
Product to another purchaser, plus any costs incurred by Company to conduct any such sale.

6. Delivery and Custody.  Delivery of the Product is scheduled to be within the production timeline specified herein following the
Effective Date of this Agreement. Due to global supply chain constraints, any delivery date contained herein is a good faith estimate as of the
date of this order/contract and is an approximation based on current information. Delivery updates will be made available and a final firm
delivery date will be provided once established. The Customer is responsible for taking delivery of product directly from the Company and
risk of loss transfers to the Customer upon an authorized Customer representative acknowledging product delivery.  Payment shall be
rendered according to the payment terms herein.

7. Governing Law and Jurisdiction. Without regard to any conflict of law provisions, this Agreement is to be governed by and under the
laws of the state of KANSAS.

8. Entire Agreement. This Agreement shall be the exclusive agreement between the parties for the Product. Additional or different
terms proposed by the Customer shall not be applicable, unless accepted in writing by Company’s authorized representative. No change in,
modification of, or revision of this Agreement shall be valid unless in writing and signed by Company’s authorized representative.

9. Conflict. In the event of a conflict between the Customer Specifications and the Company Proposal, the Company Proposal shall
control. In the event there is a conflict between the Company Proposal and this Agreement, the Company Proposal shall control.

Page 2 of Quote (Bid) No. 1294

herein. 

6. Default. The occurrence of one or more of the following shall constitute a default under this Agreement: 
(a) the Customer fails to pay when due any amounts under this Agreement or to perform any of its obligations 
under this Agreement; (b) Company fails to perform any of its obligations under this Agreement; (c) either 
party becomes insolvent or become subject to a bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings; (d) any representation 
made by either party to induce the other to enter into this Agreement is false in any material respect; (e) the 
Customer dissolves, merges, consolidates or transfers a substantial portion of its property to another entity; or 
(f) the Customer is in default or has breached any other contract or agreement with Company.

7. Governing Law; Jurisdiction. Without regard to any conflict of law provisions, this Agreement is to be 
governed by and under the laws of the state of KANSAS.

8. Entire Agreement. This Agreement shall be the exclusive agreement between the parties for the Product. 
Additional or different terms proposed by the Customer shall not be applicable, unless accepted in writing by 
Company’s authorized representative. No change in, modification of, or revision of this Agreement shall be 
valid unless in writing and signed by Company’s authorized representative.

9. Conflict. In the event of a conflict between the Customer Specifications and the Company Proposal, the 
Company Proposal shall control. In the event there is a conflict between the Company Proposal and this 
Agreement, the Company Proposal shall control.



Option List

Line Option Type Option Description Qty

1 0074080 Build-to-Order, Pierce Florida Product - 2nd Gen Pumper 1
2 0010012 No Boiler Plates requested 1
3 0661794 Single Source Compliance 1
4 0584455 Manufacture Location, Bradenton, Florida 1
5 0584453 RFP Location:  Bradenton, Florida 1
6 0588609 Vehicle Destination, US 1
7 0629866 SP Comparison Report Required - PMFD 1

          Fill in Blank - 43268
8 0816491 Comply NFPA 1900 Changes Effective Jan 1, 2024, With Exceptions 1
9 0533347 Pumper/Pumper with Aerial Device Fire Apparatus 1

10 0588611 Vehicle Certification, Pumper 1
11 0568412 Agency, Apparatus Certification, Pumper/Tanker, Third Party, PMFD 1
12 0766110 Sourcewell 1
13 0537375 Unit of Measure, US Gallons 1
14 0030006 Not Requested 1
15 0816569 P-Bond, Not Requested, PPI 1
16 0000007 Approval Drawing 1
17 0002928 Electrical Diagrams 1
18 0632451 Saber FR Chassis 1
19 0629024 Chassis Discount, Saber FR 1
20 0000110 Wheelbase 1

          Wheelbase - 184.50"
21 0000070 GVW Rating 1

          GVW rating - 42,000#
22 0649713 Frame Rails, 10.25" x 3.50" x .375", Saber FR/Enf 1
23 0020018 Frame Liner Not Req'd 1
24 0635815 18,000 lb Dana Axle 1
25 0637879 Suspension, Front, Standens, Taper Leaf, 18,000 lb, Saber FR/Enforcer 1
26 0778717 Shock Absorbers on Front Axle, Koni, Saber FR 1
27 0000322 Oil Seals, Front Axle 1
28 0582936 Tires, Front, Goodyear, G289 WHA, 315/80R22.50, 20 ply 1
29 0019575 Wheels, Front, Alcoa, 22.50" x 9.00", Aluminum, Hub Pilot 1
30 0641555 Axle, Rear, Dana S23-190, 24,000 lb, Saber/Enforcer 1
31 0544253 Top Speed of Vehicle, 68 MPH /109 KPH 1
32 0565379 Suspen, Rear, Single Slipper Spring, 24,000 lb, Saber/Enforcer 1
33 0000485 Oil Seals, Rear Axle 1
34 0782805 Tires, Rear, Goodyear, Armor Max MSD, 12R22.50, LRH, Single 1
35 0039925 Wheels, Rear, Alcoa, 22.50" x 9.00", Aluminum, Hub Pilot, Single, 12R Tire 1
36 0568081 Tire Balancing, Counteract Beads 1
37 0620570 Tire Pressure Monitoring, RealWheels, AirSecure, Valve Cap, Single Axle 1

          Qty, Tire Pressure Ind - 6
38 0003245 Axle Hub Covers w/center hole, S/S, Front Axle 1
39 0001960 Axle Hub Covers, Rear, S/S, High Hat (Pair) 1
40 0002045 Mud Flap, Front and Rear, Pierce Logo 1
41 0760616 Chains, Onspot Automatic Tire, Custom, Locking Switch 1
42 0617577 Chocks, Wheel, Worden HWG- SB, Super Gripper 1

          Qty, Pair - 01
43 0646364 Mounting Brackets, Chocks, Worden Safety, Model U815T 1

          Location, Wheel chock - one ahead and behind drivers rear axle
          Qty, Pair - 01

44 0820509 ESC/ABS/ATC  Wabco Brake System, Single Rear Axle, NFPA 1900/ULC 1

Customer: Bartlesville Fire Department Bid Number: 1294
Representative Brown, Roger Job Number: 
Organization: Conrad Fire Equipment Number of Units: 1
Requirements Manager: Bid Date: 06/09/2025
Description: Saber 7010 1500/750 SC, Low Hose Bed Stock Number: 44088
Body: Pumper, Medium, Aluminum, 2nd Gen, Saber Price Level: 51 (Current: 52)
Chassis: Saber FR Chassis Lane:

6/6/2025

6/6/2025 3:28 PM Page 11294Bid #:



Line Option Type Option Description Qty
45 0690932 Brakes, Bendix, ADB-22X, 17" Disc, Front 1
46 0581433 Brakes, Bendix, Cam, Rear, 16.50 x 7.00" 1
47 0020784 Air Compressor, Brake, Cummins/Wabco 18.7 CFM 1
48 0644232 Brake Reservoirs, 4,272 Cubic Inch Minimum Capacity, Saber FR/Enforcer 1

          Paint Color, Air Tanks - Frame color
49 0644228 Air Dryer, Wabco System Saver 1200 IWT, Heated, 10" Frame, Standen, SFR/Enf 1
50 0000790 Brake Lines, Nylon 1
51 0000854 Air Inlet, w/Disconnect Coupling 1

          Location, Air Coupling(s) - a) DS Step Well, Forward
          Qty, Air Coupling (s) - 1

52 0811001 SP Engine, Cummins L9, 450 hp, 1250 lb-ft, W/OBD, EPA 2024, Sab FR/Enf, 
BMP/HDR/STK

1

53 0811409 Not Required, Engine Contingency Adjustment 1
54 0001244 High Idle w/Electronic Engine, Custom 1
55 0687994 Engine Brake, Jacobs Compression Brake, Cummins Engine 1

          Switch, Engine Brake - e) ISC/ISM/ISL9/ISX Hi Med Lo
56 0644227 Clutch, Fan, Air Actuated, Saber FR/Enforcer 1
57 0640477 Air Intake, Metal Screen, Saber FR/Enforcer 1
58 0814375 Exhaust System, Horizontal, Right Side 1

          Exhaust, Diffuser - Aluminized Steel (Standard)
          Exhaust, Material/Finish - Aluminized Steel (Standard)
          Location, Diffuser Termination - 2.00" Past Rub Rail (Standard)
          Tip, Exhaust - Straight Tip (Standard)

59 0788765 Radiator, Saber FR/Enforcer 1
60 0001090 Cooling Hoses, Rubber 1
61 0770792 Fuel Tank, 65 Gallon, Left Side Fill, Common Air Bottle Door 1
62 0001129 Lines, Fuel 1
63 0618791 DEF Tank, 4.5 Gallon, LS Fill, Forward of Axle, Common Air Bottle Door 1
64 0723716 Fuel Priming Pump, Electronic, Automatic, Cummins, No Swt Req'd 1
65 0552712 Not Required, Shutoff Valve, Fuel Line 1
66 0699437 Cooler, Chassis Fuel, Not Req'd. 1
67 0690880 No Selection Required From This Category 1
68 0887559 Trans, Allison 6th Gen, 3000 EVS P, w/Prognostics, Imp/Vel/SFR/Enf 1
69 0625329 Transmission, Shifter, 5-Spd, Push Button, 3000 EVS 1
70 0684459 Transmission Oil Cooler, Modine, External 1
71 0001370 Driveline, Spicer 1710 1
72 0637248 Steering, Dual Gear, TRW TAS-65, w/tilt, Pump w/ Cooler, Saber FR/Enforcer 1
73 0509229 Steering Wheel, 2 Spoke 1
74 0681841 Logo/Emblem, Not Required 1
75 0606441 19" Painted Steel Bumper 1
76 0640197 Tray, Hose, Center, 19" Bumper, Outside Air Horns 1

          Grating, Bumper extension - Grating, Rubber
          Capacity, Bumper Tray - 20) 125' of 1.75"

77 0633479 Hose Restraint, Bumper Tray, Velcro Straps, Pair 1
          Qty, Pair - 01

78 0614646 No Lift & Tow Package, Imp/Vel, AXT, SFR/Enf 1
79 0002270 Tow Hooks, Chrome 1
80 0632360 7010 Saber Cab 1
81 0647919 Engine Tunnel, ISL, Spray Insulation, Saber FR/Enforcer 1
82 0887601 Cab Insulation, Enforcer/Saber FR 1
83 0633594 Rear Wall, Interior, Adjustable Seating 1
84 0632103 Rear Wall, Exterior, Cab, Saber FR/Enforcer 1

          Material, Exterior Rear Wall - Aluminum Treadplate
85 0644201 Cab Lift, Elec/Hyd, Saber FR/Enforcer 1
86 0636939 Grille, Polished Stainless Steel, Front of Cab, Saber FR 1
87 0647932 Not Required, Trim, S/S Band, Across Cab Face, AXT/Saber/Enforcer 1
88 0087357 Molding, Chrome on Side of Cab 1
89 0772130 Mirrors, Retrac, West Coast Style, Htd/Rmt, w/Htd/Rmt Convex, Marker Light 1
90 0648170 Half Height Door 1

          Key Model, Cab Doors - 751
          Cab, Exterior Door Handle, Finish - 4-Door, Chrome/Black

91 0655543 Door Panel, Brushed Stainless Steel, Saber/Enforcer 4-Door Cab 1

6/6/2025 3:28 PM Page 21294Bid #:



Line Option Type Option Description Qty
92 0630636 Controls, Electric Roll-Up Windows, 4dr, 4 Driver Controls, Saber FR/Enforcer 1
93 0638310 Steps, 4-Door Cab, Saber FR/Enforcer 1

          Step Well Material - Aluminum Treadplate
94 0770194 Handrail, Exterior, Knurled, Alum, 4-Door Cab 1
95 0892638 Lights, Cab & Crw Cab Acs Stps, P25, LED w/Bezel, 6lts 1

          Color, Trim - Chrome Housing
96 0002141 Fenders, s/s on cab - Saber/Enforcer 1
97 0637984 Window, Side of C/C, Fixed, Saber FR/Enforcer 1
98 0012090 Not Required, Windows, Front/Side of raised roof 1
99 0779033 Not Required, Windows Rear of Crew Cab, Saber FR/Enforcer 1

100 0798597 Holder, Cup, Cab/Crewcab, Each, Loc 2
          Location - on top of engine tunnel for driver and officer
          Qty, - 02

101 0722796 Dash, Poly, Saber FR/Enforcer 1
102 0634206 Mounting Provisions, 1/4" Alum, Full Engine Tunnel, Saber FR/Enforcer 1

          Mounting Provision Spacing - 1.50"
          Material Finish, Cab Interior - Painted

103 0750824 Cab Interior, Vinyl Headliner, Saber FR/Enforcer, CARE 1
          Color, Cab Interior Vinyl/Fabric - Endure Vinyl - Silver/Gray
          Engine Tunnel Cover - Dark Silver Gray Endure Vinyl
          Cab Interior Rear Wall Material - Painted Aluminum

104 0753903 Cab Interior, Paint Color, Saber FR/Enforcer 1
          Color, Cab Interior Paint - i) fire smoke gray

105 0052100 Floor, Rubber Padded, Cab & Crew Cab, Saber/Enforcer 1
106 0741237 HVAC, Standard-Duty, Saber FR, CARE 1

          HVAC System, Filter Access - Removable Panel
          Auxiliary Cab Heater - Both
          HVAC System, Control Loc. - Panel Position #12

107 0639675 Sun Visor, Smoked Lexan, AXT, Imp/Vel, SFR/Enf 1
          Sun Visor Retention - Thumb Latch

108 0634328 Grab Handles, Driver and Officer Door Posts, Saber FR/Enforcer 1
109 0002526 Light, Engine Compt, All Custom Chassis 1
110 0631830 Fluid Check Access, Saber FR/Enforcer, Arrow XT 1

          Latch, Door, Storage - Southco C2 Chrome Flush
111 0583039 Not Required, Side Roll and Frontal Impact Protection 1
112 0622617 Seating Capacity, 6 Belted Seats 1
113 0636957 Seat, Driver, Pierce PSV, Air Ride, High Back, PRIMARY, SFR/Enf 1
114 0636946 Seat, Officer, Pierce PSV, Fixed, SCBA, PRIMARY, SFR/Enf 1
115 0620420 Radio Compartment, Below Non-Air Ride Seat, Saber FR/Enforcer 1

          Latch, Door, Storage - Southco C2 Chrome Flush
116 0632852 Seat, Rr Fcng C/C, LS Otbrd, Pierce PSV, SCBA, PRIMARY, SFR/Enf 1
117 0102783 Not Required, Seat, Rr Facing C/C, Center 1
118 0632848 Seat, Rr Fcng C/C, RS Otbrd, Pierce PSV, SCBA, PRIMARY, SFR/Enf 1
119 0781275 Cabinet, Forward Facing, LS, 22 W x 60 H x 16.25 D, Roll, SFR/Enf 1

          Material Finish, Shelf - Painted - Cab Interior
          Shelf/Tray, Cabinet - (2) Shelves, Adjustable, 0.75" Flange Down
          Door, Cab Interior Cabinet - Rollup, Amdor, Anodized, Non-Locking
          Light, Tall Cabinet - Pierce, Interior, Left Side
          Louvers, Cabinet - 0-No Louvers

120 0819072 Seat, Fwd Fcng C/C, Ctr, (1) Pierce PSV, SCBA, Foldup, 17" Btm, PRIMARY, 
SFR/Enf

1

121 0108190 Not Required, Seat, Forward Facing C/C, RS Outboard 1
122 0766467 Upholstery, Seats In Cab, All Vinyl, Seats Inc, CARE 6

          Color, Cab Interior Vinyl/Fabric - Endure Vinyl - Silver/Gray
          Qty, - 06

123 0543991 Bracket, Air Bottle, Hands-Free II, Cab Seats 5
          Qty, - 05

124 0603866 Seat Belt, Dual Retractor, ReadyReach, Saber FR/Enforcer 1
          Seat Belt Color - Red

125 0817557 Helmet Storage, Provided by Fire Department, NFPA/ULC 2024 1
126 0647647 Lights, Dome, FRP Dual LED 4 Lts 1

          Color, Dome Lt - Red & White
          Color, Dome Lt Bzl - Black

6/6/2025 3:28 PM Page 31294Bid #:



Line Option Type Option Description Qty
126           Control, Dome Lt White - Door Switches and Lens Switch

          Control, Dome Lt Color - Lens Switch
127 0816997 Portable Hand Light, Provided by Fire Dept, NFPA/ULC 2024 1
128 0644187 Cab Instruments, Black Gauges, Black Bezels, Saber FR/Enforcer 1

          Emergency Switching - Individual Switches
129 0002544 Air Restriction Indicator - Pierce Chassis 1
130 0543751 Light, Do Not Move Apparatus 1

          Alarm, Do Not Move Truck - Steady Alarm
131 0637359 Not Required, Door Open Indicator w/Do Not Move Truck Light, Enf/Saber FR 1
132 0754774 Switching, Cab Instrument Lower Console & Overhead, Rocker, Saber 1
133 0802940 Wiper Control, 2-Speed with Intermittent, Saber FR/Enforcer 1

          Location, Wiper Control - Standard Location
134 0820897 NFPA 2024 1

          Location, Wiring - Behind Officer Seat
          12vdc power from - Battery direct
          Wire termination - 10-Place Bus Bar w/Cover

135 0820894 NFPA 2024 1
          Location, Wiring - switch panel #14
          12vdc power from - Battery direct
          Wire termination - 15 amp power point plug

136 0821226 NFPA 2024 1
          Qty, - 01
          12vdc power from - Battery direct
          Location - switch panel #14

137 0763646 Vehicle Information Center, LCD On Gauge Cluster Only, Sab/Enf 1
          System Of Measurement - US Customary

138 0816633 Collision Mitigation, HAAS Alert (R2V), HA7 1
          Subscription, HAAS R2V - R2V - 5 Year Data Plan Subscription

139 0610240 Vehicle Data Recorder w/Seat Belt Monitor 1
140 0687904 Antenna Mount, Custom Chassis, Cable Routed to Behind Officer Seat 1

          Location - officer side of cab roof
          Qty, - 01

141 0808099 Camera, Pierce, 7" HD, R, Camera, AHD 1
          Color - 4) white
          Location, Camera Monitor - Driver Side In Custom Dash

142 0814831 Not Required, Camera Switcher 1
143 0674566 Location, Rear Vision Camera 1

          Location - Center at rear
144 0624249 Electrical Power/Signal Protection & Control, Saber FR 1
145 0624260 Hard Wired Electrical System 1
146 0079166 Batteries, (4) Stryten/Exide Grp 31, 950 CCA ea, Threaded Stud 1
147 0008621 Battery System, Single Start, All Custom Chassis 1
148 0002698 Battery Compartment, Saber/Enforcer 1
149 0812586 Charger, Sngl Sys, Kussmaul, Chief 091-266-12-60, 60 Amp 1
150 0814893 Location, Body, Charger, Front Side Compartment, LS 1

          Location, Comp Body - High On Left Wall
151 0811943 Panel, Remote Control, Kussmaul, Chief 091-266-RCP 1
152 0814939 Location, Cab, Ind/Remote, Driver's Seat Riser 1
153 0016857 Shoreline, 20A 120V, Kussmaul Auto Eject, 091-55-20-120, Super 1

          Qty, - 01
          Color, Kussmaul Cover - b) red
          Shoreline Connection - Battery Charger

154 0020168 Shoreline Cab Loc, Cab, Saber FR 1
          Location, Shoreline(s) - DS Cab Side

155 0647729 Alternator, 320 amp, Delco Remy 40SI 1
156 0644176 Load Manager, Integrated In Electrical System, Saber FR/Enforcer 1
157 0783157 Headlights, Rect LED, JW Spkr Evo 2, Heat,  AXT/DCF/Enf/Imp/Sab/Vel 1

          Color, Headlight Bez - Chrome Bezel
158 0797346 Light, Directional, Wln 600 Cmb, Cab Crn, Wrp Bzl Out Wrn Lts, Enf/Sab 1

          Color, Lens, LED's - Match
159 0620054 Light, Directional/Marker, Intermediate, Weldon 9186-8580-29 LED 2lts 1
160 0647802 Lights, Clearance/Marker/ID, Front, P25 LED 5 Lts, Saber FR/Enforcer 1
161 0786144 SP Lights, Marker, Cab Front Side, Truck-Lite 19036YLED, Enf, Saber FR 1

6/6/2025 3:28 PM Page 41294Bid #:



Line Option Type Option Description Qty
162 0627282 Lights, Clearance/Marker/ID, Rear, FRP LED Bar & P25 LED 4Lts 1
163 0804514 Lights, Tail, Wln M62BTT* Red Stop/Tail & M62T* Amber Dir Arw For Hsg 1

          Color, Lens, LED's - Match
          Flash Pattern, Directional Lts - Steady On (Arrow)

164 0806466 Lights, Backup, Wln M62BU, LED, For Tail Lt Housing 1
165 0889577 Bracket, License Plate & Light, P25 LED, Stainless Brkt 1

          Color, Trim - Chrome Housing
166 0556842 Bezels, Wln, (2) M6 Chrome Pierce, For mtg (4) Wln M6 lights 1
167 0589905 Alarm, Back-up Warning, PRECO 1040 1
168 0687604 Lights, Perimeter Cab, Truck-Lite 6060C LED 4Dr, Grommet Mt 1
169 0769572 Lights, Perimeter Pump House, Amdor AY-LB-12HW020 LED 2lts 1
170 0770056 Lights, Perimeter Body, Amdor AY-LB-12HW020 LED 2lts, Rear Step 1

          Control, Perimeter Lts - Parking Brake Applied
171 0556360 Lights, Step, P25 LED 4lts, Pump Pnl Sw 1
172 0097930 Housing, Light, Painted Blister 6

          Location, Lights - Per AD
          Qty, - 06

173 0735836 Light, Roof Mt, HiViz, FT-B-46-*-*, Cnt Feature 1
          Control, Scene Lts - Cab Sw Panel DS and Cab Sw Panel PS
          Color, Lt Housing HiViz - Black
          Scene Light Optics - Flood/Spot

174 0768061 Lights, Wln, PCPSM2* Pioneer, 12 VDC, 1st 1
          Location - behind drivers door above side crew cab window
          Qty, - 01
          Color, Wln Lt Housing - Chrome Cover
          Control, Scene Lts - Cab Sw Panel DS and Pump Panel Sw LS

175 0768059 Lights, Wln, PCPSM2* Pioneer, 12 VDC, 2nd 1

          Location - behind officers door above side crew cab window
          Qty, - 01
          Color, Wln Lt Housing - Chrome Cover
          Control, Scene Lts - Cab Sw Panel DS and Pump Panel Sw LS

176 0763610 Lights, Wln, PCPSM2*, Pioneer, 12 VDC, 1st 1
          Location - above LS1 compartment
          Qty, - 01
          Color, Wln Lt Housing - Chrome Cover
          Control, Scene Lts - DS Scene Lts

177 0763608 Lights, Wln, PCPSM2*, Pioneer, 12 VDC, 2nd 1
          Location - above RS1 compartment
          Qty, - 01
          Color, Wln Lt Housing - Chrome Cover
          Control, Scene Lts - PS Scene Lts

178 0645877 Lights, Hose Bed, Sides, Dual LED Light Strips 1
          Control, Hose Bed Lts - Cup Switch At Rear

179 0645677 Lights, Not Required, Rear Work, Alt. 12 Volt Lights At Rear Body 1
180 0738110 Lights, Rear Scene, Wln, PCPSM1* Pioneer LED Fld/Spt, Surface Mount 2

          Qty, - 02
          Color, Wln Lt Housing - Chrome Cover
          Control, Rear Scene Lts - Cab Switch Panel DS, Pump Panel DS and 
Body Switch, DS Rear Bulkhead
          Location, Scene Lights - Each Side Rear Body, High, 2lts

181 0709438 Lights, Walk Surf, FRP Flood, LED 1
182 0802863 Pumper, Medium, Aluminum, 2nd Gen, Saber 1
183 0632361 No Additional Florida Discount - w/Saber FR Chassis 1
184 0554271 Body Skirt Height, 20" 1
185 0013492 750 Gallon New York Style Water Tank 1
186 0003405 Overflow, 4.00" Water Tank, Poly 1
187 0028104 Foam Cell Required 1
188 0633066 Sleeve, Through Tank 1

          Qty, Sleeve - 1
          Water Tank Sleeve - Plumbing/Hydraulic Diameter - 3" Plumbing

189 0553725 Restraint, Water Tank, Heavy Duty, Special Type Tank, 4x4, or Export 1
190 0003429 Not Required, Direct Tank Fill 1
191 0003424 Not Required, Dump Valve 1

6/6/2025 3:28 PM Page 51294Bid #:



Line Option Type Option Description Qty
192 0048710 Not Required, Jet Assist 1
193 0030007 Not Required, Dump Valve Chute 1
194 0514778 Not Required, Switch, Tank Dump Master 1
195 0709973 New York Style Hose bed 1

          Material Trim/Scuffplate - b) S/S, Brushed
          Finish, Inside of Hose Bed - Painted
          Finish, Inside of Cargo Area - Painted

196 0723549 Painted Hose Bed 1
          Paint Color, Hose Bed Interior - Match Lower Body

197 0003481 Hose Bed Capacity, Special 1
          Capacity, Hose Bed - 1000'  of 5" DJ Poly  and 500 of 2.5" DJ Poly

198 0083488 Divider, Hose Bed, .25" Unpainted 1
          Qty, Hose Bed Dividers - 1

199 0806306 Straps, Top of Hose Bed 1
200 0816351 Hose Restraint, Hose Bed, Web, Rear, Separate From Top, Seat Belt, Cross Tube 1

          Color, Strap - Orange
          Release, Seat Belt Buckle - Bar
          Fastener, Rear Restraint, Bottom - Seat Belt Buckle (hinged)

201 0648736 Crosstube, Reinforcement, Above Hose Bed 1
          Location - rear of hose bed
          Material/Finish, Cross Tube - Painted Match Upper

202 0581892 Divider, .25", Unpainted, Permanent 1
          Location - In hosebed, next to the ladder compartment
          Qty, - 1

203 0680205 Running Boards, 14.75" Deep 1
204 0689497 Tailboard,  24" & 8" Deep, T-Shaped, Angled Corners 1
205 0818176 Wall, Rear, Smooth Aluminum/Body Material, 16" Inset 1

          Material, Rear Wall Inboard Facing Surfaces - Aluminum Diamondplate
206 0889214 Tow Eyes, w/Tow Bar, 2G Pumper 1
207 0590926 Hose Restraint, Running Board, Velcro Straps 2

          Location, Hose Tray, Running Board - a) both sides
          Qty, Tray, Hose - 2

208 0695614 Tray, Hose, Running Board, Free Floating, Special Capacity, Tapered Both Corners 2
          Location, Hose Tray, Running Board - a) both sides
          Qty, Tray, Hose - 2
          Capacity, Hose Tray - 25' of 5.00"

209 0895820 Construction, Compt, Alum, 2G Pumper 1
210 0023650 152" Rollup FH Front & Rear FDLER 1
211 0063658 152" Rollup FH Front & Rear FDLER 1
212 0594005 Doors, Rollup, Amdor, Side Compartments 6

          Qty, Door Accessory - 06
          Color, Roll-up Door - AMDOR Painted to Match Lower Body
          Latch, Roll-up Door - Non-Locking Liftbar

213 0013671 30.75" FF Rollup Rear Compt 1
214 0594003 Door, Amdor, Rollup, Rear Compartment 1

          Color, Roll-up Door - AMDOR Satin Aluminum
          Latch, Roll-up Door - Non-Locking Liftbar

215 0554995 No Body Modification Required 1
216 0616670 Lights, Compt, Pierce LED, Dual Light Strips, Each Side of Door, Pumper/Tanker 7

          Qty, - 07
          Location, Compartment Lights - All Body Compts

217 0687146 Shelf Tracks, Painted 7
          Qty, Shelf Track - 07
          Location, Shelf Track - LS1, LS2, LS3, RS1, RS2, RS3 and B1

218 0600350 500 lb Adjustable Shelf 5
          Qty, Shelf - 05
          Material Finish, Shelf - Painted - Spatter Gray
          Location, Shelves/Trays, Predefined - LS1-Transition Point, RS1-
Transition Point, RS3-Transition Point, LS3-Transition Point and B1-Upper Third

219 0647091 Tray, Floor Mounted, Slide-Out, 500lb, 2.00" Sides 4

          Qty, - 04
          Location, Tray Slide-Out, Floor Mounted - RS1, RS3, LS1 and LS3
          Material Finish, Tray - Painted - Spatter Gray

6/6/2025 3:28 PM Page 61294Bid #:



Line Option Type Option Description Qty
220 0004016 Rub Rail, Aluminum Extruded, Side of Body 1
221 0784811 Fender Crowns, Rear, Stainless, w/Removable Liner 1

          Material Finish, Fender Liner - Painted Aluminum Lower Body
222 0519849 Not Required, Hose, Hard Suction 1
223 0626229 Handrails, Side Pump Panels, Per Print 1
224 0004126 Handrails, Beavertail, Standard 1
225 0648737 Handrails, Rear, (2), Above Hose Bed, Cross Tube Mounted 1
226 0648325 Compt, Air Bottle, Double, Tri Door, Fender Panel 2

          Qty, Air Bottle Comp - 2
          Door Finish, Fender Compt - Painted
          Location, Fender Compt - Double - LS Fwd - DEF Combo and Double - 
LS Rear - Fuel Combo
          Latch, Air Bottle Compt - Flush Lift & Turn
          Insert, Air Bottle Compt - Rubber Matting

227 0657522 Compt, Air Bottle, Triple, Fender Panel 2
          Qty, Air Bottle Comp - 2
          Door Finish, Fender Compt - Painted
          Location, Fender Compt - Triple - RS Fwd and Triple - RS Rear
          Latch, Air Bottle Compt - Flush Lift & Turn
          Insert, Air Bottle Compt - Rubber Matting

228 0004225 Ladder, 24' Duo-Safety 900A 2-Section 1
229 0004230 Ladder, 14' Duo-Safety 775A Roof 1
230 0049958 Ladders Between Tank & Side Sheet RS 1

          Door, Material & Finish, Ladder Storage - smooth aluminum
          Latch, Door Ladder Storage - D-Handle latch
          Hinge Location - Left Side

231 0014245 Ladder, 10' Duo-Safety Folding 585A, w/Mounting 1
          Location, Folding Ladder - Ladder Compartment

232 0816920 Pike Pole, Provided by Fire Department, NFPA/ULC 2024 1
          Qty, - 01
          Pike Pole Make/Model - Nupla 10' Pike Pole

233 0816918 Pike Pole, 6', Provided by Fire Department, NFPA/ULC 2024 1
          Qty, - 01
          Pike Pole Make/Model - Nupla 6' Pike Pole

234 0004361 Tubes, Alum, Pike Pole Storage 2
          Qty, Pike Pole Tubes - 02
          Location, Pike Pole Tube - Ladder Storage

235 0785102 Steps, Folding, Front of Body, Cargo Bed Access, w/LED, Trident 1
          Coating, Step - black
          Location, Steps - Full Height Left and Right Side w/LED Light

236 0592994 Steps, Folding, Rear of Body, w/LED, Trident 1
          Coating, Step - black

237 0007545 45" Control Zone Side Mount 1
238 0037731 Pump House Structure, Raised, Included with Ladder Storage 1
239 0004425 1500 GPM CSU Waterous 1
240 0004482 Seal, Mechanical, Waterous 1
241 0816447 Trans, Pump, Waterous C22 Series 1
242 0635600 Pumping Mode, Stationary Only 1
243 0605126 Pump Shift, Air Mnl Override, Split Shaft, Interlocked, Waterous 1
244 0003148 Transmission Lock-up, EVS 1
245 0004547 Auxiliary Cooling System 1
246 0014486 Not Required, Transfer Valve, Single Stage Pump 1
247 0746501 Valve, Relief Intake, Elkhart 1

          Qty - 1
          Pressure Setting - 125 psig
          Intake Relief Valve Control - Behind Right Side Pump Panel

248 0826104 Controller, Pressure, FRC, Pump Boss Max, PBA500 1
          Pressure Governor Throttle Control - Clockwise
          Pressure Governor Default Mode - RPM Setting
          Pressure Governor Std/Metric - Standard psi readouts
          Pressure Governor Transducer - Single 600 PSI
          Pressure Governor Alarm - NOT BE an additional alarm provided

249 0072153 Primer, Trident, Air Prime, Air Operated 1

6/6/2025 3:28 PM Page 71294Bid #:



Line Option Type Option Description Qty
250 0780364 Manuals, Pump, (2) Total, Electronic Copies 1
251 0602512 Plumbing, Stainless Steel and Hose, Single Stage Pump, Control Zone 1
252 0795135 Plumbing, Stainless Steel, w/Foam System 1
253 0004645 Inlets, 6.00" - 1250 GPM or Larger Pump 1
254 0004646 Cap, Main Pump Inlet, Long Handle, NST, VLH 1
255 0084610 Valves,  Akron 8000 series- All 1
256 0016158 Valve, Inlet(s) Recessed, Side Cntrl, "Control Zone" 1

          Qty, Inlets - 1
257 0004700 Control, Inlet, at Valve 1
258 0004660 Inlet (1), Left Side, 2.50" 1
259 0029147 Not Required, Inlet, Right Side 1
260 0092569 No Rear Inlet (Large Dia) Requested 1
261 0064116 No Rear Inlet Actuation Required 1
262 0092696 Not Required, Cap, Rear Inlet 1
263 0009648 No Rear Intake Relief Valve Required on Rear Inlet 1
264 0586174 Provision, Front Inlet 1
265 0092568 No Rear Auxiliary Inlet Requested 1
266 0723049 Valve, .75" Bleeder, Aux. Side Inlet, "T" Swing Handle 1
267 0029043 Tank to Pump, (1) 3.00" Valve, 3.00" Plumbing 1
268 0004905 Outlet, Tank Fill, 1.50" 1
269 0062133 Control, Outlets, Manual, Pierce HW if applicable 1
270 0004940 Outlet, Left Side, 2.50" 1

          Qty, Discharges - 01
271 0005091 Elbow, Left Side Outlets, 45 Degree, 2.50" FNST x 2.50" MNST, VLH 1
272 0092570 Not Required, Outlets, Left Side Additional 1
273 0035094 Not Required, Elbow, Left Side Outlets, Additional 1
274 0004945 Outlet, Right Side, 2.50" 1

          Qty, Discharges - 01
275 0025091 Elbow, Right Side Outlets, 45 Degree, 2.50" FNST x 2.50" MNST, VLH 1
276 0092571 Not Required, Outlets, Right Side Additional 1
277 0089584 Not Required, Elbow, Right Side Outlets, Additional 1
278 0816625 Outlet, Large Diameter, Right Side, Akron Valve 1

          Outlet, Large Diameter, Plumbing - 4.00"
          Outlet, Large Diameter, NST Adapter - 4.00" MNST
          Outlet, Large Diameter, Valve Actuation - Pierce large handwheel

279 0005097 Elbow, Large Dia Outlet, 30 Deg, 4.00" FNST x 5.00" Storz 1
          Qty, - 01

280 0649939 Outlet, Front, 1.50" w/2" Plumbing 1
          Fitting, Outlet - 1.50" NST with 90 degree swivel
          Drain, Front Outlet - Automatic
          Location, Front, Single - in center bumper tray

281 0004995 Outlet, Rear, 2.50" 1
          Qty, Discharges - 01
          Location, Outlet - b) left side

282 0040286 Elbow, Rear Outlets, 30 Degree, 2.50" FNST x 2.50" MNST, VLH 1
283 0092574 Not Required, Outlet, Rear, Additional 1
284 0085695 Not Required, Elbow, Rear Outlets, Large, Additional 1
285 0092573 Not Required, Outlet, Hose Bed/Running Board Tray 1
286 0752097 Caps/Plugs for 1.00" to 3.00" Discharges/Inlets, Chain 1
287 0723042 Valve, 0.75" Bleeder, Discharges, "T" Swing Handle 1
288 0820280 Outlet, 3.00" Deluge Riser 1
289 0770359 No Monitor Requested, Customer/Dealer Furnished and Installed 1

          Fill in Blank - no monitor required or requested
290 0029304 No Nozzle Req'd 1
291 0005070 Deluge Mount, NPT 1
292 0723726 Speedlay Module Not Required 1
293 0722432 Hose Restraint Not Required, No Speedlay Module 1
294 0723395 Speedlays, Not Required 1
295 0723394 Speedlays, Not Required 1
296 0029167 (2+) 1.50" Standard Capacity Crosslays 2

          Qty, Crosslays - 2
297 0090442 2.50" Standard Capacity Crosslay 1

6/6/2025 3:28 PM Page 81294Bid #:



Line Option Type Option Description Qty
298 0623374 Hose Restraint, Crosslays, 2" Nylon Web, Seat Belt Buckle, Tether, Bar, Sides 3

          Qty, - 03
          Color, Strap - Orange

299 0029260 No Speedlays 1
300 0750536 Hose Restr, Spdly, Not Required, No Spdly 1
301 0590891 Hose Restraint, Crosslay/Deadlay, Velcro Straps, Top 3

          Qty, - 03
302 0019853 Crosslays, 8.00" Lower Than Standard - Control Zone w/9.00" Raised PH 1
303 0002347 Reel, Booster - Alum. Rear Compt, Roll-up Door 1
304 0005279 Switch, Reel Rewind - One at Reel 1
305 0005300 Hose, Booster - 150' of 1.00"/800 PSI 1
306 0005244 Capacity, Hose Reel 200' of 1" 1
307 0007428 Nozzle for Booster Reel Not Req'd 1
308 0674725 Blowout, Hose Reel - Quarter Turn Valve at Panel 1
309 0622243 Roller Assembly, Additional Pair, Rear Bulkhead 1
310 0592633 Foam Sys, Husky 3, Single Agent 1

          Discharge - front bumper, rear left 2.5", all three crosslays
          Amount of Disc. W/Foam - 5

311 0012126 Not Required, CAF Compressor 1
312 0592527 Refill, Foam Tank, Integral, Husky 3 1
313 0031896 Demonstration, Foam System, Dealer Provided 1
314 0041377 Foam Cell, 25 Gallon, Reduce Water 1

          Type of Foam - Class "A"
315 0697589 Drain, 1.00", Foam Tank #1, Husky 3 Foam System, Quarter Turn 1
316 0091079 Not Required, Foam Tank #2 1
317 0091112 Not Required, Foam Tank #2 Drain 1
318 0738072 Approval Dwg, Pump Panel(s), Not Required 1
319 0032479 Pump Panel Configuration, Control Zone 1
320 0629252 Material, Pump Panels, Side Control Black Vinyl 1

          Material Finish, Pump Panel, Side Control - Black Vinyl
          Material, Pump Panel, Side Control - Aluminum

321 0721765 Panel, Pump Access - Right Side Only, Side Control 1
          Latch, Pump Panel Access, Side Mount - Swell Latch, Black

322 0583824 Light, Pump Compt, Wln 3SC0CDCR LED White 1
          Qty, - 01

323 0586382 Gauges, Engine, Included With Pressure Controller 1
324 0005601 Throttle, Engine, Incl'd w/Press Controller 1
325 0739224 Indicator Light @ Pump Panel, Throttle Ready, Incl w/Pressure Gov/Throttle,Green 1
326 0549333 Indicators, Engine, Included with Pressure Controller 1
327 0745568 Indicator Light, Pump Panel, Ok To Pump, Green 1
328 0553643 Control, Air Horn at Pmp Pnl, Red Switch, Momentary 1
329 0511078 Gauges, 4.00" Master, Class 1, 30"-0-600psi 1
330 0511100 Gauge, 2.00" Pressure, Class 1, 30"-0-400psi 1
331 0062586 Gauge, Water Level, Class 1, Pierce Std 1
332 0062992 Gauge, Foam Level, (1) Tank, Class 1, GAAAR 5lt 1
333 0660319 Light Shield, S/S LED, Full Panel Coverage, Two Piece 1
334 0606694 Air Horns, (2) Hadley, 6" Round, eTone, In Bumper 1
335 0606834 Location, Air Horns, Bumper, Each Side, Outside Frame, Inboard (Pos #2 & #6) 1
336 0757092 Control, Air Horn, Multi Select 1
337 0757078 Control, Air Horn, Push Button Sw, RS 1
338 0757084 Control, Air Horn, Horn Ring 1
339 0533071 Siren, Wln 295SLSC1, 100 or 200 Watt, w/Plug-in/Detachable Microphone Cord 1
340 0790527 Location, Electronic Siren, Center Dash Switch Panel, Saber FR, Enf 1

          Location, Electronic Siren - switch panel # 8
341 0076156 Control, Elec Siren, Head Only 1
342 0601306 Speaker, (1) Wln, SA315P, w/Pierce Polished Stainless Steel Grille, 100 watt 1

          Connection, Speaker - siren head
343 0601565 Location, Speaker, Frt Bumper, Recessed, Center (Pos 4) 1
344 0895310 Siren, Federal Q2B 1

          Finish, Q2B Siren - Chrome
345 0006095 Siren, Mechanical, Mounted Above Deckplate 1

          Location, Siren, Mech - a) Left

6/6/2025 3:28 PM Page 91294Bid #:



Line Option Type Option Description Qty
346 0748305 Control, Mech Siren, Multi Select 1
347 0895055 Control Mech Siren, Ft Sw RS, Interlock 1

          Control, Interlocks - Prk Brk Released
348 0895056 Control Mech Siren, Ft Sw LS, Interlock 1

          Control, Interlocks - Prk Brk Released
349 0740391 Sw, Siren Brake, Momentary Chrome Push Button, RS 1
350 0736164 Sw, Siren Brake, Momentary, LS Overhead Sw Pnl 1
351 0746353 Not Required, Warning Lights Intensity 1
352 0606710 Lightbar, Wln, Freedom IV-Q, 72", RR_R_W____W_R_RR 1

          Filter, Whl Freedom Ltbrs - No Filters
353 0669501 Light, Tomar 3065-CHROME Emitter, Traffic Preemption 1

          Location - driver side
          Opticom Priority - b) High
          Opticom Activation - Cab Switch & E-Master

354 0016380 No Additional Lights Req'd, Side Zone Upper 1
355 0602583 Lights, Front Zone, Wln 6RB* M6** M6** 6RB* LED, 4lts Q Bezel 1

          Color, Lens, LED's - c)clear
          Color, Lt DS Frnt Outside - DS Front Outside Red
          Color, Lt PS Frnt Outside - PS Front Outside Red
          Color, Lt DS Front Inside - r) DS Front Inside Red
          Color, Lt PS Front Inside - r) PS Front Inside Red

356 0540692 Side Zone Lower Lights, Whelen M6 1
          Location, Lights Front Side - b)each side bumper
          Color, Lt Side Front - Red
          Color, Lt Side Middle - Red
          Color, Lt Side Rear - Red
          Location, Lights Mid Side - Over Front Wheels - Centered
          Location, Lights Rear Side - Centered Above Rear Wheels

357 0745867 Lights, Side, Wln M9** LED, Trm Fet 1st 2
          Location, Lights - front upper body corner, one each side of truck.
          Qty, - 02
          Color, Lights, Warning - Red
          Control, Light - b) side warning
          Color, Lens, LED's - Clear
          Color, Trim - Chrome Trim

358 0564655 Lights, Rear Zn Lwr, Wln M6*C LED, Clear Lens, For Tail Lt Housing 1
          Color, Lt DS Rear - r) DS Rear Lt Red
          Color, Lt PS Rear - r) PS Rear Lt Red

359 0541155 Lights, Rear/Side Up Zone, Wln M9*C LED, Clear Lens 4lts 1
          Color, Lt, Side Rear Upper DS - Side Rear Upper Red
          Color, Lt, Side Rear Upper PS - Side Rear Upper Red
          Color, Lt, Rear Upper DS - r) DS Rear Upper Red
          Color, Lt, Rear Upper PS - r) PS Upper Rear Red

360 0006551 Not Required, Lights, Rear Upper Zone Blocking 1
361 0537807 Mtg, Rear Warn Lts, Side Sheets & On Rear Bulkheads 1
362 0791528 Light, Traffic Directing, Wln TAL65, 36.00" Long, TACTL5 1

          Activation, Traffic Dir L - Not Connected
363 0806661 Location, TDL, Over Hose Bed, On Cross Tube (Not Included) 1
364 0530282 Location, Traf Dir Lt Controller, Overhead Switch Panel DS Right End 1
365 0671685 Mounting Provisions, Will-Burt Night Scan, Powerlite NS 3.0 10', Cab 1
366 0519934 Not Required, Brand, Hydraulic Tool System 1
367 0649753 Not Required, PTO Driven Hydraulic Tool System 1
368 0007150 Bag of Nuts and Bolts 1

          Qty, Bag Nuts and Bolts - 1
369 0816508 NFPA Required Loose Equipment, Pumper, NFPA/ULC 2024, Provided by Fire Dept 1
370 0816941 Soft Suction Hose, Provided by Fire Department, NFPA/ULC 2024 1
371 0027023 No Strainer Required 1
372 0816939 Extinguisher, Dry Chemical, NFPA 2024, Provided by Fire Department 1
373 0816937 Extinguisher, 2.5 Gal. Pressurized Water, NFPA/ULC 2024, Provided by Fire Dept 1
374 0816998 Axe, Flathead, Provided by Fire Department 1
375 0817000 Axe, Pickhead, Provided by Fire Department 1
376 0607712 Paint Process/Environmental 1

6/6/2025 3:28 PM Page 101294Bid #:



Line Option Type Option Description Qty
377 0826031 Paint, Two-Tone Color, Saber, PMFD 1

          Paint Color, Upper Area, Predefined - #101 Black PMFD
          Shield, Cab - Standard Shield
          Paint Color, Lower Area, Predefined - #90 Red PMFD
          Paint Break, Cab - Standard Two-Tone Cab Break

378 0826044 Single Color Body Paint 1
          Paint, Body - Match Cab #90 Red PMFD

379 0646897 Paint Chassis Frame Assy, E-Coat, Standard 1
          Paint Color, Frame Assembly, Predefined - Gloss Black

380 0693797 No Paint Required, Aluminum Front Wheels 1
381 0693792 No Paint Required, Aluminum Rear Wheels 1
382 0733739 Paint, Axle Hubs 1

          Paint, Axle Hub - Lower Job Color
383 0821114 Coating, Safe-Stride, Top Flange, Front Bumper 1

          Color, Safe-Stride - Black
384 0007230 Compartment, Painted, Spatter Gray 1
385 0544129 Reflective Band, 1"-6"-1" 1

          Color, Reflect Band - A - e) black
          Color, Reflect Band - B - p) black
          Color, Reflect Band - C - za) black

386 0007356 Reflective across Cab Face 1
387 0820110 Stripe, Chevron, Rear, Oralite, NFPA/ULC 2024, Pumper 1

          Color, Oralite Band - A - Red V98-12
          Color, Oralite Band - B - Fluorescent Lime V98-112

388 0027341 Jog, In Reflective Stripe, Single or Multiple 1
          Qty, - 1

389 0763939 Stripe, Reflective, Chevron, Cab and Crew Cab Doors Interior, Oralite/Reflexite 1
          Size, Chevron Striping - 06
          Color, Oralite Band - A - Red V98-12
          Color, Oralite Band - B - Fluorescent Lime V98-112

390 0594559 Lettering Specifications, (Sign Gold Process) 1
391 0685932 Lettering, Sign Gold, 3.00", (41-60) 1

          Outline, Lettering - Outline and Shade
392 0686013 Lettering, Reflective, 6.00", Each 6

          Qty, Lettering - 06
          Outline, Lettering - Outline and Shade

393 0685849 Lettering, Sign Gold, 3.00", Each 7
          Qty, Lettering - 07
          Outline, Lettering - Outline and Shade

394 0685754 Lettering, Sign Gold, 8.00", Each 2
          Qty, Lettering - 02
          Outline, Lettering - Outline and Shade

395 0685793 Lettering, Sign Gold, 7.00", Each 12
          Qty, Lettering - 12
          Outline, Lettering - Outline and Shade

396 0685806 Lettering, Sign Gold, 5.00", Each 2
          Qty, Lettering - 02
          Outline, Lettering - Outline and Shade

397 0685735 Lettering, Sign Gold, 12.00", Each 4
          Qty, Lettering - 04
          Outline, Lettering - Outline and Shade

398 0685998 Lettering, Reflective, 9.00", Each 1
          Qty, Lettering - 01
          Outline, Lettering - Outline and Shade

399 0685792 Lettering, Sign Gold, 7.00", (1-20) 1
          Outline, Lettering - Outline and Shade

400 0690325 SP Emblem, (3) Letter Monogram Style, Sign Gold, Pair 1

          Qty, - 1
          Location, Emblem - crew cab doors to match 41041

401 0772003 Manual, Fire Apparatus Parts, USB Flash Drive, Custom 1

          Qty, - 01
402 0772037 Manual, Chassis Service, USB Flash Drive, Custom 1

          Qty, - 01

6/6/2025 3:28 PM Page 111294Bid #:



Line Option Type Option Description Qty
403 0772065 Manual, Chassis Operation, (2) USB Flash Drives, Custom 1
404 0030008 Warranty, Basic, 1 Year, Apparatus, WA0008 1
405 0696698 Warranty, Engine, Cummins, 5 Year, WA0181 1
406 0684952 Warranty, Steering Gear, TRW Ross TAS, 1 Year WA0202 1
407 0596017 Warranty, Frame, 50 Year, Custom Chassis, WA0013 1
408 0610471 Warranty, Axle, Eaton/Dana, 5 Year/100,000 Mile, Parts and Labor 1
409 0610485 Warranty, Axle, Eaton/Dana, 5 Year/100,000 Mile, Parts and Labor 1
410 0652758 Warranty, ABS Brake System, 3 Year, Meritor Wabco, WA0232 1
411 0019914 Warranty, Structure, 10 Year, Custom Cab, WA0012 1
412 0744240 Warranty, Paint, 10 Year, Cab, Pro-Rate, WA0055 1
413 0660535 Not Required, Warranty, Electrical System 1
414 0695416 Warranty, Pierce Camera System, WA0188 1
415 0647720 Warranty, Pierce LED Strip Lights, WA0203 1
416 0046369 Warranty, 5-year EVS Transmission, Standard Custom, WA0187 1
417 0685945 Warranty, Transmission Cooler, WA0216 1
418 0688798 Warranty, Water Tank, Lifetime, UPF, Poly Tank, WA0195 1
419 0596025 Warranty, Structure, 10 Year, Body, WA0009 1
420 0693126 Warranty, AMDOR, Roll-up Door, 10 Year/5 Year Painted, WA0185 1
421 0734463 Warranty, Pump, Waterous, 7 Year Parts, WA0382 1
422 0648675 Warranty, 10 Year S/S Pumbing, WA0035 1
423 0657990 Warranty, Foam System, Husky 3, WA0231 1
424 0595820 Warranty, Paint, 10 Year, Body, Pro-Rate, WA0057 1
425 0595412 Warranty, Graphics Lamination, 1 Year, Apparatus, WA0168 1
426 0819254 Certification, Vehicle Stability, CD0196 1
427 0807826 Certification, Engine Installation, Saber FR/Enf, Cummins L9, 2024 1
428 0686786 Certification, Power Steering, CD0098 1
429 0892691 Certification, Cab Integrity, Saber FR/Enforcer, CD0189 1
430 0631973 Certification, Cab Door Durability, Saber FR/Enforcer, CD0137 1
431 0631978 Certification, Windshield Wiper Durability, Saber FR/Enforcer, CD0132 1
432 0631974 Certification, Electric Window Durability, Saber FR/Enforcer, CD0133 1
433 0631977 Certification, Seat Belt Anchors and Mounting, Saber FR/Enforcer, CD0134 1
434 0823238 Certification, Stepping, Standing & Walking Areas, Slip Resistance, CD0197 1
435 0735949 Certification, Cab HVAC System Performance, SFR/Enf, 

CD0165/CD0167/CD0174/CD0175
1

436 0545073 Amp Draw Report, NFPA Current Edition 1
437 0002758 Amp Draw, NFPA/ULC Radio Allowance 1
438 0799247 Appleton/Florida Stock Unit 1
439 0000017 FLORIDA DIVISION BODY 1
440 0000012 PIERCE CHASSIS 1
441 0004713 ENGINE, OTHER 1
442 0046395 EVS 3000 Series TRANSMISSION 1
443 0020011 WATEROUS PUMP 1
444 0020009 POLY TANK 1
445 0028048 FOAM SYSTEM 1
446 0020006 SIDE CONTROL 1
447 0020007 AKRON VALVES 1
448 0020015 ABS SYSTEM 1
449 0755450 PIERCE MFG BODY 1

6/6/2025 3:28 PM Page 121294Bid #:



Docusign Envelope ID: 78C26852-0BAB-4346-9E2C-8F1C97A0B783



Docusign Envelope ID: 78C26852-0BAB-4346-9E2C-8F1C97A0B783



Docusign Envelope ID: 78C26852-0BAB-4346-9E2C-8F1C97A0B783



Oshkosh Corporation Classification - Restricted 

Participating Addendum Number OKSW0240 
Fire Trucks and Fire Apparatus 
Between Oklahoma and Oshkosh Corp. 

SIGNATURE 

The undersigned for each Party represent and warrant that this Participating Addendum is a valid and 
legal agreement binding on the Party and enforceable in accordance with the Participating Addendum's 
terms and that the undersigned is duly authorized and has legal capacity to execute and deliver this 
Participating Addendum and bind the Party hereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Participating Addendum. 

OSHKOSH CORPORATION: 

Signature: 

Name: Michael E. Pack

Title: EVP and President, Oshkosh Vocational 

Date: 

CONRAD FIRE INC.: 

Name: Sal Monteleone 

Title: VP 

Date: May 6, 2025 

Page 4 of 4 
Version 2023.06.15 

STA TE OF OKLAHOMA 
by and through the 
OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND 
ENTERPRISE SERVICES: 

Signature: otnO,l\t}n.;{, G.m:, 
Amanda Otis (May 1, 202515:23 CDT) 

Name: Amanda Otis 

Title: State Purchasing Director 

Date: May 1, 2025 

Sourcewell � 

Docusign Envelope ID: 78C26852-0BAB-4346-9E2C-8F1C97A0B783

6/5/2025



P i e r c e  M a n u f a c t u r i n g  I n c .

AN OSHKOSH CORPORATION COMPANY •  ISO 9001:2000  CERTIFIED 

2600 AMERICAN DRIVE 

POST OFFICE BOX 2017 

APPLETON, WISCONSIN 54912-2017 

920-832-3000 • FAX 920-832-3208

www.piercemfg.com 

Pierce Manufacturing #113021-OKC Fire Apparatus -including rescue, command units and wildland. 

Pricing for contract #113021-OKC is as follows: 

• Base model pricing is provided at 5.50% discount off MSRP.

• Base model options are provided at a 5.50% discount off MSRP.

Additional discounts may be available for identical multi-unit purchases. Discount varies dependent on the number 

of identical units, the configuration of the units, and will be handled on a case-by-case basis. 

Authorized Pierce dealers may offer service contracts for preventative maintenance and other services.  Pricing would 

be quoted on a time and materials basis, by the dealer, at the time of request. Pierce offers our dealers the ability to 

offer/develop custom service/maintenance contracts to Sourcewell members utilizing this contract. 

Persistent Inflationary Environment 

If the Producer Price Index of Components for Manufacturing [www.bls.gov Series ID: WPUID6112] ("PPI") has 

increased at a compounded annual growth rate of 5.0% or more between the month Pierce accepts the order ("Order 

Month") and a month 14 months prior to the then predicted Ready For Pickup date ("Evaluation Month"), then pricing 

may be updated in an amount equal to the increase in PPI over 5.0% for each year or fractional year between the 

Order Month and the Evaluation Month. 

The seller will document any such updated price for the customer's approval before proceeding and provide an option 

to cancel the order. 

Lead-times 

Due to global supply chain constraints, any delivery date on the customer contract is a good faith estimate as of the date of 

the order/contract, and merely an approximation based on current information. Delivery updates will be made available, 

and a final firm delivery date will be provided as soon as possible. 



Agenda Item ___ 
July 7, 2025 

Prepared by Robin Betts, HR Director 
Human Resources Division 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Discuss and take possible action to approve ordinances and joinder agreement to amend the 
employee defined contribution plan. 
 
Attachments: 

Memorandum from McAfee & Taft attorney, John A Papahronis 
Ordinance and Joinder Agreement for Employee Defined Contribution Plan. 
Employee Retirement System of Oklahoma – Plan Documents 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
The City of Bartlesville has two plans with OkMRF; one is the Defined Benefit Plan (that is 
closed to new enrollees) and the other is the Defined Contribution Plan. All full-time general 
employees participate in one of these plans. 
 
OkMRF contracts with McAfee & Taft for review of the plan to ensure compliance with IRS 
guidelines. The Employee Retirement System of Bartlesville, Oklahoma (“Plan”) has been 
amended and restated to incorporate amendments that were adopted since the last restatement of 
the Plan and to incorporate legal updates such as the SECURE Act and SECURE 2.0 Act.  
 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
None. 

 
IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

 
Staff recommends approval and execution of ordinances. 
 
The agreement was sent to Jess Kane for review. 
 

7.d.ii.



64499023_1 

TO: City of Bartlesville 

FROM: McAfee & Taft A Professional Corporation (John A. Papahronis) 

DATE: May 16, 2025 

RE: Employee Retirement System of Bartlesville, Oklahoma – Summary of Material 
Changes 

The Employee Retirement System of Bartlesville, Oklahoma (“Plan”) has been amended 
and restated to incorporate amendments that were adopted since the last restatement of the Plan 
and to incorporate legal updates such as the SECURE Act and SECURE 2.0 Act.  The following 
summarizes the material new changes made in the draft amended and restated Plan: 
 

Sec. Feature Proposed Version 

2.1(cc) Definition of Hour of Service Added definition because previously not defined and 
there is a reference in the Plan to the term 

2.1(cc) Definition of Highly Compensated 
Employee 

Deleted because not applicable 

2.1(ss) Definition of Spouse Updated for current law 

3.1(c)(iv) Exclusions from eligibility Limits the exception for employees in the position of City 
Manager to prior to October 1, 2024 

3.1(c)(vi) Exclusions from eligibility Excludes a person who is an alien and not in the U.S. 
legally 

4.2(a) Picked-up Contributions Deletes redundant language 

10.2 Minimum Distribution Requirements Updates to latest IRS compliant language including 
SECURE Act and SECURE 2.0 Act 

Art. XIII Limitations Updates to latest IRS requirements 

14.4 Benefits Payable to Incompetents Updated to provide more clarity of the payment protocol 

16.4(a) Rollover to Another Plan or IRA Updates definitions for current IRS requirements 

17.3 No Contract Between Employer and 
Participant 

Updates to stronger OkMRF language 

 
 

 

 

 

 

M E M O R A N D U M  



AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
 

ORDINANCE NO. _________  
 

 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM, DEFINED 
CONTRIBUTION PLAN FOR THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA; PROVIDING 
RETIREMENT BENEFITS FOR ELIGIBLE EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA; PERTAINING TO DEFINITION OF COMPENSATION; 
PROVIDING FOR EMPLOYER PICKUP OF REQUIRED CONTRIBUTIONS; PROVIDING 
FOR REPEALER AND SEVERABILITY; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA. 
 

Section 1. AMENDATORY.  The Employee Retirement System, Defined Contribution Plan, of the 

City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, is hereby amended as reflected on the attached Exhibit "A", which is 

incorporated herein and adopted by reference.  These amendments shall become effective on July 1, 2025 . 
Section 2. EXECUTION AUTHORIZATION.  The City Clerk and Mayor be and they are hereby 

authorized and directed to execute the amended Retirement System Plan documents and to do all the other 

acts necessary to put said amendment into effect and to maintain IRS qualification of the Plan.  The executed 

amended document attached hereto as Exhibit "A" is hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects. 

Section 3. SPECIAL INCOME TAX TREATMENT FOR CONTRIBUTIONS UNDER 

IRC414.  The Plan contains provisions which are intended to constitute a pick-up program by the Employer 

which satisfies the requirements of section 414(h)(2) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 (the “Code”); 

and the Plan, be, and it is, approved and adopted as of the date therein stated; and required contributions 

described in Section 5 of the Joinder are designated as “picked-up” by the employer so as to not be included 

in Plan Participants’ gross income for Federal income tax purposes as provided in Section 414(h)(2) of the 

Code.  All such required contributions are to be paid by the employer in lieu of contributions by the Plan 

Participant.  No Participant in the Plan shall have the option of choosing to receive the amounts of required 

Contributions directly in lieu of having such amounts paid by the employer to the Trustees of the Plan. 

Section 4. SEVERABILITY.  If, regardless of cause, any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, 

or clause of this ordinance, including the System as set forth in Exhibit "A" is held invalid or to be 

unconstitutional, the remaining sections, subsections, paragraphs, sentences, or clauses shall continue in full 

force and effect and shall be construed thereafter as being the entire provisions of this ordinance. 

 Section 5. REPEALER.  Any ordinance inconsistent with the terms and provisions of this 

ordinance is hereby repealed; provided, however, that such repeal shall be only to the extent of such 

inconsistency and in all other respects this ordinance shall be cumulative of other ordinances regulating and 

governing the subject matter covered by this ordinance. 

 Section 6. EMERGENCY.   Whereas, in the judgment of the City Council of the City of 

Bartlesville, Oklahoma, the public peace, health, safety, and welfare of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, 

and the inhabitants thereof demand the immediate passage of this ordinance, an emergency is hereby 



declared, the rules are suspended, and this ordinance shall be in full force and effect on its passage and 

approval. 

 

***END*** 

 
The foregoing ordinance was introduced before the City Council on the ______ day of 

____________________ , ________, and was duly adopted and approved by the Mayor and City Council on 

the ______ day of ________________ , ________, after compliance with notice requirements of the Open 

Meeting Law (25 OSA, Sections 301, et. seq.). 
 
 
                                                                                            _____________________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                            MAYOR 
 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
CITY CLERK 
 
 
Approved as to form and legality on _________________________ , ________ . 
 
 
                                                                                         

 ______________________________________ 
                                                                                         CITY ATTORNEY  
 
 



Exhibit A 

 

 OKLAHOMA MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND 
 MASTER DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN 
 JOINDER AGREEMENT 

City of Bartlesville [a municipality or authority chartered, incorporated or formed under the laws of 
Oklahoma], a city, town, agency, instrumentality, or public trust located in the State of Oklahoma, with its 
principal office at Bartlesville, Oklahoma, hereby establishes a Defined Contribution Plan to be known as 
City of Bartlesville Plan (the “Plan”) in the form of the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund Master 
Defined Contribution Plan. 

Except as otherwise provided herein, the definitions in Article II of the Plan apply. 
1. Dates. 

[  ] This instrument is a new Plan effective __ (“Effective Date”) [such date may not be earlier than the 
first day of the Plan Year in which it is executed]. 

[ X ] This instrument is an amendment, restatement, and continuation of the Previous Plan, which was 
originally effective January 1, 2010 . The effective date of this Joinder Agreement is July 1, 2025 
(“Effective Date”) [date may not be prior to Plan Year of the date of execution], except as 
otherwise stated in the Plan and the Joinder Agreement. 

2. Employee. 
The word “Employee” shall mean: 
[ X ] Any person, other than a Leased Employee, who, on or after the Effective Date, is considered to be 

a regular full-time employee in accordance with the Employer’s standard personnel policies and 
practices, and is receiving remuneration for such services rendered to the Employer (including any 
elected official and any appointed officer or employee of any department of the Employer, whether 
governmental or proprietary in nature), including persons on Authorized Leave of Absence.  
Employees shall not include independent contractors.  Elected members of the City Council shall 
not be considered to be Employees solely by reason of their holding such office.  

[  ] Any person, other than a Leased Employee, who, on or after the Effective Date, is considered to be 
a regular employee in accordance with the Employer’s standard personnel policies and practices 
(including part-time, seasonal and temporary employees), and is receiving remuneration for such 
services rendered to the Employer (including any elected official and any appointed officer or 
employee of any department of the Employer, whether governmental or proprietary in nature), 
including persons on Authorized Leave of Absence.  Employees shall not include independent 
contractors.  Elected members of the City Council shall not be considered to be Employees solely 
by reason of their holding such office. 

[  ] Any person who, [  ] on or after the Effective Date, [  ] as of , holds the position of:  
[  ] City Manager, City or Town Administrator, President, Chief Executive Officer, General 

Manager, or District Manager, as applicable. 
[  ] Assistant City Manager  [  ]  Chief of Police [  ]  Fire Chief 
[  ] Department Head or Department Manager  [  ]  Finance Director or Chief Financial Officer 
[  ] General Counsel or Municipal Attorney  [  ]  Municipal Judge  [  ]      (specify position) 

 

The word “Employee” shall not include: 
[ X ] Any person who is currently accruing benefits under any other state or local retirement system. 
[ X ] Any person in the following position and who is covered under another retirement program or 

system approved by the City: 
[ X ] City Manager, City or Town Administrator, President, Chief Executive Officer, General 

Manager, or District Manager, as applicable. 
[  ] Assistant City Manager  [  ]  Chief of Police [  ]  Fire Chief 
[  ] Department Head or Department Manager    
[  ] Finance Director or Chief Financial Officer 
[ X ] General Counsel or Municipal Attorney  [ X ]  Municipal Judge 
[  ]      (specify position) 

[ X ] Any person who currently accruing benefits under the Employee Retirement System of 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma and who has not elected to cease or not begin future benefits in such 
plan.    [description may include a position but not the name of an individual]. 



 

 Exhibit A Page 2 

3. Entry Date. 
Eligible Employees shall commence participation in the Plan:  (Select only one) 
[  ]   months (any number of months up to twelve) after the later of the Employee’s Employment 

Commencement Date or the date the definition of Employee in Section 2 hereof was met, provided 
that the individual has met the definition of Employee in Section 2 hereof throughout such period. 

[ X ] On the Employee’s Employment Commencement Date.  (If the Employer has opted out of Old 
Age and Disability Insurance (OADI), this option must be elected). 

4. Definition of Compensation. 
Compensation shall exclude the item(s) listed below: 
[  ] No exclusions. 
[  ] Overtime pay. 
[  ] Bonuses. 
[  ] Commissions. 
[  ] Longevity pay. 
[ X ] Severance pay. 
[  ] Fringe benefits, expense reimbursements, deferred compensation and welfare benefits. 
[ X ] Accrued vacation or sick leave paid upon termination of employment and moving expenses. 
[  ] Other:  [must be definitely determinable]  

5. Plan Design. 
The Employer hereby elects the following Plan design: 
[ X ] Pick-up Option. Each Employee shall be required to contribute to the Plan 3.00% of his or her 

Compensation. These contributions shall be picked up and assumed by the Employer and paid to 
the Fund in lieu of contributions by the Participant. No Participant shall have the option of 
receiving the contributed amounts directly as Compensation. 

[ X ] Thrift Plan Option. 
 [ X ] A Participant may elect to contribute to the Plan for each Valuation Period an amount which 

is at least 1%, but no more than 3.00% of his Compensation (“Mandatory Contributions”).  
Mandatory Contributions shall be made by payroll deductions.  A Participant shall authorize 
such deductions in writing on forms approved by, and filed with the Committee.  

 [ X ] The Employer shall contribute to the Fund an amount equal to 100.00% of the total 
Mandatory Contributions contributed by Participants. 

 The Employer contribution shall be allocated in the proportion which the Mandatory 
Contributions of each such Participant for such Valuation Period bear to the total Mandatory 
Contributions contributed by all such Participants for such Valuation Period. Forfeitures 
attributable to Employer contributions under the Thrift Plan Option of this Section 5 shall be 
used to reduce Employer contributions under such Option.  

[ X ] Fixed Option. The Employer shall contribute to the Fund an amount equal to 3.00% of the total 
covered Compensation of all Participants for the Valuation Period. The Employer contribution 
shall be allocated in the proportion which the Compensation of each such Participant for such 
Valuation Period bears to the Compensation paid to all such Participants for such Valuation Period. 

[  ] Variable Option. 
[  ] The Employer intends to make a contribution to the Plan for the benefit of the Participants 

for each Valuation Period. The contribution may be varied from year to year by the 
Employer. (Select one option below) 
[  ] Option A:  The Employer contribution shall be allocated in the proportion that each 

such Participant’s total points awarded bear to the total points awarded to all 
Participants with respect to such year.  A Participant shall be awarded one point for 
each Year of Service. 

[  ] Option B:  The Employer contribution shall be allocated in the proportion which the 
Compensation of each such Participant for such Valuation Period bears to the 
Compensation paid to all such Participants for such Valuation Period. 

[  ] Option C:   A combination of Options A and B in the following ratios: % for Option 
A, and % for Option B. 



 

 Exhibit A Page 3 

[  ] 401(k) Option. 
 (This Option available only if elected prior to May 1, 1986) 

[  ] Participant Deferral Elections shall be allowed under the provisions of Section 4.8 of the 
Plan.  Participants shall be allowed to defer no more than % of their Compensation for each 
election period. 

[  ] Section 4.8(d) of the Plan (“Roth Elective Deferrals”) shall apply to contributions after  
(enter a date later than January 1, 2006, but not earlier than the date the Roth option was 
initially adopted), and the Plan will accept a direct rollover from another Roth elective 
deferral account under an applicable retirement plan as described in Code Section 
402A(e)(1).  

[  ] Matching Contribution Option.  The Employer shall contribute to the Fund an amount equal to 
% of the Participant's contributions under the Employer’s Section 457(b) Deferred Compensation 
Plan. The Employer matching contribution shall be limited to % of the Participant’s 
Compensation. Forfeitures attributable to Employer matching contributions under this Matching 
Contribution Option of Section 5 shall be used to reduce Employer matching contributions under 
such Option. 

[  ] No Employer Contribution Option. 

6. Other Participant Contribution Options. 
[ X ] Voluntary Nondeductible Contributions by Participants shall be allowed under the provisions of 

Section 4.4 of the Plan. 
[  ] A Participant may not withdraw Voluntary Nondeductible Contributions. 
[  ] Participants shall not contribute to the Plan. 

7. Self-Directed Investments. 
[ X ] Are permitted. 
[  ] Are not permitted. 

8. Allocation of Forfeitures Available. 
Forfeitures of Employer contributions attributable to the Fixed Option or Variable Option under Section 
5 hereof:  
[  ] Shall be added to Employer contribution under such Option for the calendar quarter following the 

Participant’s Break in Service. 
[ X ] Shall reduce the Employer contribution under such Option for the current or next following Plan 

Year. 

9. Service for Worker’s Compensation Period. 
If a Participant is on an Authorized Leave of Absence and is receiving worker’s compensation during 
such Authorized Leave of Absence, such Participant 
[ X ] shall be credited with Service for such period for purposes of vesting only and not for purposes of 

allocations of Employer Contributions. 
[  ] shall not be credited with Service for such period. 



 

 Exhibit A Page 4 

10. Vesting. 
For purposes of vesting under Section 6.4 of the Plan, the Employer hereby elects the following Option: 
 
[  ]  Option A    [  ]  Option B   
 Vested Forfeited   Vested Forfeited 
Years of Service Percentage Percentage  Years of Service Percentage Percentage 
less than 1 0% 100%  Less than 3 0% 100% 
at least 1 but less than 2 10% 90%  at least 3 but less than 4 20% 80% 
at least 2 but less than 3 20% 80%  at least 4 but less than 5 40% 60% 
at least 3 but less than 4 30% 70%  at least 5 but less than 6 60% 40% 
at least 4 but less than 5 40% 60%  at least 6 but less than 7 80% 20% 
at least 5 but less than 6 50% 50%  7 or more 100% 0% 
at least 6 but less than 7 60% 40%     
at least 7 but less than 8 70% 30%     
at least 8 but less than 9 80% 20%     
at least 9 but less than 10 90% 10%     
10 or more 100% 0%     
       
[  ]  Option C    [  ]  Option D   
 Vested Forfeited   Vested Forfeited 
Years of Service Percentage Percentage  Years of Service Percentage Percentage 
less than 5 0% 100%  Immediate 100% Vesting 100% 0% 
at least 5 but less than 6 50% 50%     
at least 6 but less than 7 60% 40%     
at least 7 but less than 8 70% 30%     
at least 8 but less than 9 80% 20%     
10 or more 100% 0%     
 
[ X ]  Option E 
The Schedule indicated below (the sum of the Vested Percentage and Forfeited Percentage at each Year of Service must 
equal 100%) the vesting schedule must be at least as favorable as one of the safe harbor pre-ERISA schedules.  The safe 
harbor vesting schedules are: 

a. 15-year cliff vesting schedule: The plan provides that a participant is fully vested after 15 years of creditable service 
(service can be based on years of employment, years of participation, or other creditable years of service). 

b. 20-year graded vesting schedule: The plan provides that a participant is fully vested based on a graded vesting 
schedule of 5 to 20 years of creditable service (service can be based on years of employment, years of participation, or 
other creditable years of service). 

c. 20-year cliff vesting schedule for qualified public safety employees: The plan provides that a participant is fully vested 
after 20 years of creditable service (service can be based on years of employment, years of participation, or other 
creditable years of service).  This safe harbor would be available only with respect to the vesting schedule applicable 
to a group in which substantially all of the participants are qualified public safety employees (within the meaning of 
Section 72(t)(10)(B)). 

 
 Vested Forfeited     
Years of Service Percentage Percentage     
Less than 4 0% 100%     
at least 4 but less than 5 25% 75%     
at least 5 but less than 6 50% 50%     
at least 6 but less than 7 75% 25%     
7 or more 100% 0%     
       
       
       
 
 [  ] Option F 

To comply with the Internal Revenue Service Regulations promulgated pursuant to the Code 
Section 3121(b)(7)(F), Participants who are part-time, seasonal or temporary Employees will have 
immediate vesting. 
(If this Option F is elected, one of the other Options above must also be elected for Participants 
who are not part-time, seasonal or temporary Employees). 

 



 

 Exhibit A Page 5 

11. Participant Loans. 
[ X ] Participant loans shall be offered pursuant to Section 6.13 of the Plan. 
[  ] Participant loans shall not be offered. 

12. Direct Transfer to Other Retirement Plan. 
[ X ] Direct transfer of a Participant’s accounts to another defined contribution plan sponsored by the 

Employer is not permitted. 
[  ] The Accounts of any Participant who (i) is 100% vested in his Accounts in this Plan; (ii) has 

ceased to be eligible for participation in this Plan; and (iii) who becomes eligible for participation 
in another defined contribution retirement plan sponsored by the Employer (the “Other Retirement 
Plan”), shall be directly transferred to the Other Retirement Plan as soon as practicable after the 
Plan Administrator provides written direction to the Trustee to such effect in a form acceptable to 
the Trustee. 

13. Valuation Date. Except with respect to any Special Valuation Date determined in accordance with 
Section 5.10, the Valuation Date for the Plan shall be on each business day of the Plan Year for which 
Plan assets are valued on an established market. 

 

14. The Employer has consulted with and been advised by its attorney concerning the meaning of the 
provisions of the Plan and the effect of entry into the Plan. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF the City of Bartlesville has caused its corporate seal to be affixed hereto and this 
instrument to be duly executed in its name and behalf by its duly authorized officers this _______ day of 
______________, _____. 

City of Bartlesville 
 
 

By:  
 
Attest: Title:  
 
__________________________ 

Title:  

 (SEAL) 



 

 Exhibit A Page 6 

 
 
The foregoing Joinder Agreement is hereby approved by the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund this 
________ day of _______________, _____. 

OKLAHOMA MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND  

By:  
 
Title:  

Attest: 

  
Secretary 
 
 (SEAL) 
 
Required Disclosures.  This Joinder Agreement is to be used only with the Oklahoma Municipal 
Retirement Fund Master Defined Contribution Plan.  Failure to properly complete this Joinder Agreement 
may result in failure of the Plan to qualify under Code Section 401(a).  In accordance with IRS Rev. Proc. 
2017-41, the Provider (as defined in Rev. Proc. 2017-41) who has obtained Internal Revenue Service 
approval of the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund Master Defined Contribution Plan has authority 
under the Plan document to amend the Plan on behalf of adopting employers for certain changes in the 
Code, regulations, revenue rulings, other statements published by the Internal Revenue Service, including 
model, sample or other required good faith amendments.  The Provider will inform adopting employers of 
any such amendments or of the discontinuance or abandonment of the Pre-Approved Plan document.  The 
name, address and telephone number of the Provider is: McAfee & Taft A Professional Corporation, 211 
N. Robinson, Oklahoma City, OK 73102, telephone (405) 552-2231.  Any inquiries by the adopting 
employer regarding the adoption of the Plan, the meaning of Plan provisions, or the effect of the Internal 
Revenue Service advisory letter on the Pre-Approved Plan may be directed to the Provider.  

Reliance on Sponsor Opinion Letter. The Provider has obtained from the IRS an Opinion Letter (as 
defined in Rev. Proc. 2017-41) specifying the form of this Joinder Agreement and the basic plan 
document satisfy, as of the date of the Opinion Letter, Code §401. An adopting Employer may rely on the 
Preapproved Plan Sponsor's IRS Opinion Letter only to the extent provided in Rev. Proc. 2017 41. The 
Employer may not rely on the Opinion Letter in certain other circumstances or with respect to certain 
qualification requirements, which are specified in the Opinion Letter and in Rev. Proc. 2017 41 or 
subsequent guidance. In order to have reliance in such circumstances or with respect to such qualification 
requirements, the Employer must apply for a determination letter to Employee Plans Determinations of 
the IRS.    

 



2135543_9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF 

BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 
 

 
 

(Amended and Restated Effective July 1, 2025) 

(Execution Date:  ___________, 2025) 



2135543_9 i 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 

Table of Contents 

Page 

ARTICLE I Name and Purpose of Plan ........................................................................................ I-1 
1.1 Name of Plan............................................................................................................... I-1 
1.2 Purpose ........................................................................................................................ I-1 
1.3 Exclusive Benefit of Employees ................................................................................. I-1 

ARTICLE II Definitions and Construction................................................................................. II-1 
2.1 Definitions..................................................................................................................II-1 

(a) Accrued Benefit ............................................................................................ II-1 
(b) Actuarial Equivalent ...................................................................................... II-1 
(c) Actuary .......................................................................................................... II-1 
(d) Anniversary Date ........................................................................................... II-1 
(e) Authorized Leave of Absence ........................................................................ II-1 
(f) Basic Monthly Salary ..................................................................................... II-2 
(g) Beneficiary .................................................................................................... II-2 
(h) Break-in-Service ............................................................................................ II-2 
(i) City ................................................................................................................ II-2 
(j) City of Bartlesville Defined Contribution Plan ............................................... II-2 
(k) Code .............................................................................................................. II-2 
(l) Committee ..................................................................................................... II-2 
(m) Compensation ................................................................................................ II-2 
(n) Contract ......................................................................................................... II-4 
(o) Contribution ................................................................................................... II-4 
(p) Contribution Accumulation ............................................................................ II-4 
(q) DC Plan Participant ....................................................................................... II-4 
(r) Deferred Vested Pension ................................................................................ II-4 
(s) Disability ....................................................................................................... II-4 
(t) Disability Retirement Date ............................................................................. II-4 
(u) Disability Retirement Income ........................................................................ II-5 
(v) Earliest Retirement Age ................................................................................. II-5 
(w) Early Retirement Date .................................................................................... II-5 
(x) Early Retirement Income ............................................................................... II-5 
(y) Effective Date ................................................................................................ II-5 
(z) Eligible Spouse .............................................................................................. II-5 
(aa) Employee ....................................................................................................... II-5 
(bb) Employer ....................................................................................................... II-5 
(cc) Hour of Service .............................................................................................. II-5 
(dd) Leased Employee .......................................................................................... II-6 
(ee) Municipality .................................................................................................. II-6 
(ff) Normal Retirement Age ................................................................................. II-6 
(gg) Normal Retirement Date ................................................................................ II-6 



2135543_9 ii 

(hh) Normal Retirement Income ............................................................................ II-6 
(ii) Participant ...................................................................................................... II-6 
(jj) Pension .......................................................................................................... II-6 
(kk) Plan ................................................................................................................ II-6 
(ll) Plan Year ....................................................................................................... II-7 
(mm) Postponed Retirement Date ............................................................................ II-7 
(nn) Predecessor Plan ............................................................................................ II-7 
(oo) Qualified Domestic Relations Order (QDRO) ................................................ II-7 
(pp) Re-employment Date ..................................................................................... II-7 
(qq) Retirement ..................................................................................................... II-7 
(rr) Retirement Date ............................................................................................. II-7 
(ss) Spouse ........................................................................................................... II-7 
(tt) Trustees, Trust, Trust Agreement, Trust Assets and Trust Fund ..................... II-7 
(uu) Year of Service .............................................................................................. II-7 

2.2 Construction ...............................................................................................................II-9 
ARTICLE III Participation ........................................................................................................ III-1 

3.1 Eligibility for Participation ...................................................................................... III-1 
3.2 Entry Date ................................................................................................................ III-2 
3.3 Eligibility of a Former Participant Upon Reemployment ........................................ III-2 

ARTICLE IV Contributions ...................................................................................................... IV-1 
4.1 Contributions by the Employer ................................................................................. IV-1 
4.2 Contributions by Participants. ................................................................................... IV-1 
4.3 Pick-up Contributions .............................................................................................. IV-2 
4.4 Contributions Under Mistake of Fact and Disallowance of Deductions ..................... IV-2 
4.5 Payments to Plan ....................................................................................................... IV-2 
4.6 Use of Plan Assets .................................................................................................... IV-2 

ARTICLE V Normal Retirement ................................................................................................ V-1 
5.1 Normal Retirement Income ....................................................................................... V-1 
5.2 Payment of Normal Retirement Income ..................................................................... V-1 
5.3 Postponed Retirement Date ........................................................................................ V-1 
5.4 Deferral of Normal Retirement Income ...................................................................... V-1 

ARTICLE VI Death of a Participant ......................................................................................... VI-1 
6.1 Death Benefits .......................................................................................................... VI-1 
6.2 Designation of Beneficiary ....................................................................................... VI-1 
6.3 HEART Act Provision ............................................................................................. VI-2 

ARTICLE VII Early Retirement .............................................................................................. VII-1 
7.1 Early Retirement Income ......................................................................................... VII-1 
7.2 Deferral of Early Retirement Income ....................................................................... VII-1 

ARTICLE VIII Disability ....................................................................................................... VIII-1 
8.1 Disability Retirement ............................................................................................ VIII-1 
8.2 Proof of Disability ................................................................................................. VIII-1 



2135543_9 iii 

ARTICLE IX Termination of Employment ............................................................................... IX-1 
9.1 Termination of Employment - Vesting of Benefits ................................................. IX-1 
9.2 Re-employment: ....................................................................................................... IX-2 
9.3 Loss of Benefits ....................................................................................................... IX-2 

ARTICLE X Manner of Payment and Optional Benefits ........................................................... X-1 
10.1 Optional Forms of Retirement Income ..................................................................... X-1 
10.2 Minimum Distribution Requirements: ....................................................................... X-2 
10.3 Payments Under a Qualified Domestic Relations Order .......................................... X-7 
10.4 Suspension of Benefits After Participant’s Retirement Date .................................... X-9 
10.5 Applicable Benefit Provisions ................................................................................ X-10 

ARTICLE XI Employment Transfers ........................................................................................ XI-1 
11.1 Transfers From This Plan......................................................................................... XI-1 
11.2 Transfers to This Plan .............................................................................................. XI-1 
11.3 Notice of Transfers .................................................................................................. XI-2 

ARTICLE XII General Benefit Provisions .............................................................................. XII-1 
12.1 Re-employment of Former Employees ................................................................... XII-1 
12.2 Re-employment of Retired Employees ................................................................... XII-1 
12.3 Rights of Previously Retired Participants ............................................................... XII-1 
12.4 Benefits Payable Only Upon Retirement, Death, Disability or Other Termination 

of Employment........................................................................................................ XII-1 
ARTICLE XIII Limitations .................................................................................................... XIII-1 

13.1 Limitations on Benefits Relating to Section 415 of Internal Revenue Code of 
1986....................................................................................................................... XIII-1 

13.2 Definitions............................................................................................................. XIII-1 
13.3 Predecessor Employer ......................................................................................... XIII-10 
13.4 Severance from Employment .............................................................................. XIII-10 
13.5 Year of Participation ........................................................................................... XIII-10 
13.6 Other Rules: ........................................................................................................ XIII-11 

ARTICLE XIV Provisions Relating to Participants ............................................................... XIV-1 
14.1 Information Required of Participants.................................................................... XIV-1 
14.2 Participants’ Right in the Plan .............................................................................. XIV-1 
14.3 Abandonment of Benefits ..................................................................................... XIV-1 
14.4 Benefits Payable to Incompetents ......................................................................... XIV-2 
14.5 Conditions of Employment Not Affected by Plan ................................................ XIV-2 

ARTICLE XV Administration ................................................................................................. XV-1 
15.1 Allocation of Responsibility Among Fiduciaries for Plan Administration ........... XV-1 
15.2 Appointment of Committee ................................................................................... XV-1 
15.3 Claims Procedure ................................................................................................... XV-1 
15.4 Review Procedure .................................................................................................. XV-2 
15.5 Other Committee Powers and Duties ..................................................................... XV-2 
15.6 Rules and Decisions ............................................................................................... XV-3 



2135543_9 iv 

15.7 Committee Procedures ........................................................................................... XV-3 
15.8 Authorization of Benefit Payments ........................................................................ XV-3 
15.9 Application and Forms for Benefits ....................................................................... XV-3 
15.10 Serving in More Than One Capacity ..................................................................... XV-3 
15.11 Funding Policy ....................................................................................................... XV-3 

ARTICLE XVI Amendment and Termination ....................................................................... XVI-1 
16.1 Right to Amend Plan ............................................................................................. XVI-1 
16.2 No Reduction of Accrued Benefit ......................................................................... XVI-1 
16.3 Right to Terminate Plan ........................................................................................ XVI-1 
16.4 Rollover to Another Plan or IRA .......................................................................... XVI-3 

ARTICLE XVII Miscellaneous Provisions ........................................................................... XVII-1 
17.1 Articles and Section Titles and Headings ............................................................ XVII-1 
17.2 Laws of Oklahoma to Govern .............................................................................. XVII-1 
17.3 No Contract Between Employer and Participant ................................................. XVII-1 

ARTICLE XVIII Medical Benefits for Certain Eligible Retirees ....................................... XVIII-1 
18.1 Definitions and Construction ............................................................................. XVIII-1 
18.2 Eligibility for Payment of Medical Benefits ...................................................... XVIII-1 
18.3 Termination of Medical Benefits ....................................................................... XVIII-2 
18.4 Funding of Medical Benefits ............................................................................. XVIII-2 
18.5 Separate Account – Recordkeeping ................................................................... XVIII-2 
18.6 Expenses ............................................................................................................ XVIII-3 
18.7 Non-Diversion of Separate Account Assets ...................................................... XVIII-3 
18.8 Forfeiture............................................................................................................ XVIII-3 

 



2135543_9 I-1 

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 

The City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, a governmental entity, does hereby agree to amend its 
existing retirement plan entitled “EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF BARTLESVILLE, 
OKLAHOMA” and to continue said Plan as amended and hereafter restated, upon the following terms 
and conditions. This instrument is an amendment, restatement, and continuation of the 
“Predecessor Plan” (as defined in Subsection 2.1(nn) herein).  

Therefore, the effective date of this amended and restated Plan is July 1, 2025, except as 
otherwise stated in the Plan.   

ARTICLE I 

Name and Purpose of Plan 

1.1 Name of Plan.  This Plan shall be hereafter known as the EMPLOYEE 
RETIREMENT SYSTEM OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA. 

1.2 Purpose.  The purpose of the Plan is to provide retirement benefits for the eligible 
Employees of the Employer; to enable Employees of the Employer who are eligible to participate 
in the Plan to provide for retirement; and to distribute the funds accumulated in the Plan, in 
accordance with the Plan, to the eligible Employees and their Beneficiaries. 

1.3 Exclusive Benefit of Employees.  This Plan and the related Trust hereto shall be 
maintained for the exclusive benefit of the eligible Employees of the Employer.  The assets of the 
Plan shall never inure to the benefit of the Employer and shall be held for the exclusive purposes 
of providing benefits to the eligible Employees and their Beneficiaries and defraying reasonable 
expenses of administering the Plan.  To the extent this Plan is a governmental retiree benefit plan 
under Section 401(a)(24) of the Code, and prior to the termination of the Plan and satisfaction of 
all liabilities of the Plan, no part of the corpus or income of the Fund shall be used for, or diverted 
to, purposes other than for the exclusive benefit of the Plan participants and their beneficiaries. 



2135543_9 II-1 

ARTICLE II 

Definitions and Construction 

2.1 Definitions.  Where the following capitalized words and phrases appear in this 
instrument, they shall have the respective meanings set forth below unless a different context is 
clearly expressed herein. 

(a) Accrued Benefit:  The words “Accrued Benefit” shall mean a Participant’s 
aggregate retirement benefit calculated at any given point in time under Section 5.1. 

(b) Actuarial Equivalent:  The words “Actuarial Equivalent” shall mean a form 
of benefit differing in time, period, or manner of payment from the normal form of benefit payable 
at Normal Retirement Date having the same value when computed using interest and mortality 
assumptions as follows: 

 Interest 6% per annum 
 Mortality 1984 Unisex Projected mortality without setback or 

setforward 

Provided, however, that in no event shall a Participant receive payments under an optional form of 
annuity in an amount less than determined based on his Accrued Benefit as of June 30, 1997 and the 
actuarial Equivalence Factors in effect on such date.  Actuarial Equivalence adjustments for early 
retirement shall not include a mortality discount prior to Normal Retirement Date. 

This paragraph shall apply to distributions with annuity starting dates on or after December 31, 
2002.  Notwithstanding any other plan provisions to the contrary, any reference in the plan to the 
mortality table prescribed in Rev. Rul. 95-6 shall be construed as a reference to the mortality table 
prescribed in Rev. Rul. 2001-62 for all purposes under the plan.  For any distribution with an 
annuity starting date on or after the effective date of this section and before the adoption date of 
this section, if application of the amendment as of the annuity starting date would have caused a 
reduction in the amount of any distribution, such reduction is not reflected in any payment made 
before the adoption date of this section.  However, the amount of any such reduction that is 
required under 415(b)(2)(B) must be reflected actuarially over any remaining payments to the 
participant. 

(c) Actuary:  The word “Actuary” shall mean an enrolled actuary selected by 
the Committee to provide actuarial services for the Plan. 

(d) Anniversary Date:  The words “Anniversary Date” shall mean the first day 
of each Plan Year. 

(e) Authorized Leave of Absence:  The words “Authorized Leave of Absence” 
shall mean (i) any extraordinary absence authorized by the Employer under the Employer’s 
standard personnel practices provided that all persons under similar circumstances must be treated 
alike in the granting of such leaves of absence; and, provided further, that the Employee returns 
within the period of authorized absence or (ii) an absence due to service in the Armed Forces of 
the United States shall be considered an authorized leave of absence, provided that the absence is 



2135543_9 II-2 

caused by war or other emergency, or provided that the Employee is required to serve under the 
laws of conscription in time of peace, and further provided that the Employee returns to 
employment with the Employer within the period provided by law. 

Notwithstanding any provision of this Plan to the contrary, contributions, benefits and service 
credit with respect to such qualified military service will be provided in accordance with Section 
414(u) of the Code for Plan Years commencing after December 12, 1994. 

(f) Basic Monthly Salary:  Prior to July 1, 2006, the words “Basic Monthly 
Salary” means the Employee’s base hourly wages or salary from the City at the beginning of the 
applicable Plan Year and as determined by the City.  Effective on and after July 1, 2006, the words 
“Basic Monthly Salary” means the Employee’s base hourly wages or salary from the City, as 
adjusted during the Plan Year, and as determined by the City.  Effective January 1, 2010, with 
respect to a DC Plan Participant, Basic Monthly Salary shall not include amounts attributable to 
dates on or after January 1, 2010. 

(g) Beneficiary:  Any person or entity designated or deemed designated by a 
Participant as provided in Section 6.2 hereof. 

(h) Break-in-Service:  The expiration of ninety (90) days from the date the 
Participant last performed Service for the Employer for which such Participant was entitled to 
wages as defined in Section 3121(a) of the Code, unless the Participant is on Authorized Leave of 
Absence.  If an Employee does not resume employment with the Employer upon the expiration of 
an Authorized Leave of Absence, the Participant will be deemed to be absent from work on the 
first day of his Authorized Leave of Absence for purposes of determining if the Participant has a 
Break in Service.  

(i) City:  The word “City” shall mean the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma. 

(j) City of Bartlesville Defined Contribution Plan:  Effective January 1, 2010, 
the words “City of Bartlesville Defined Contribution Plan” shall mean that certain defined 
contribution retirement plan adopted by the City effective January 1, 2010, and entitled the “City 
of Bartlesville Defined Contribution Plan. 

(k) Code:  The word “Code” shall mean the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 
amended from time to time. 

(l) Committee:  The word “Committee” shall mean the Retirement Committee 
appointed by the City under Article XV herein to administer the Plan. 

(m) Compensation:  The word “Compensation” shall mean the total cash 
remuneration paid to an Employee by the Employer for personal services as reported on the 
Employee’s federal income tax withholding statement or statements (Form W-2 or its subsequent 
equivalent), excluding, however, any extraordinary severance payments, such as accrued vacation 
or sick pay, and excluding special payments, such as moving expenses, and benefits provided 
under any employer sponsored employee benefit program. For purposes of determining an 
Employee’s compensation, any election by such Employee to reduce his regular cash remuneration 
under Code Sections 125, 401(k), 414(h) or 457 shall be disregarded. 



2135543_9 II-3 

Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, for Plan Years commencing after December 
31, 1988, the annual Compensation of each Participant taken into account under the Plan for any Plan 
Year shall not exceed $200,000, as adjusted by the Secretary at the same time and in the same manner 
as under Section 415(d) of the Code.  In addition to other applicable limitations set forth in the Plan, 
and notwithstanding any other provision of the Plan to the contrary, for Plan Years beginning on or 
after January 1, 1994, the annual Compensation of each employee taken into account under the Plan 
shall not exceed the Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1993 (“OBRA '93”) annual compensation 
limit.  The OBRA '93 annual compensation limit is $150,000, as adjusted by the Commissioner for 
increases in the cost of living in accordance with Section 401(a)(17)(B) of the Code.  The cost-of-
living adjustment in effect for a calendar year applies to any period, not exceeding 12 months, over 
which compensation is determined (determination period) beginning in such calendar year.  If a 
determination period consists of fewer than 12 months, the OBRA '93 annual compensation limit will 
be multiplied by a fraction, the numerator of which is the number of months in the determination 
period, and the denominator of which is 12. 

For Plan Years beginning on or after January 1, 1994, any reference in this Plan to the 
limitation under Section 401(a)(17) of the Code shall mean the OBRA '93 annual compensation limit 
set forth in this provision. 

If Compensation for any prior determination period is taken into account in determining an 
employee’s benefits accruing in the current Plan Year, the Compensation for that prior determination 
period is subject to the OBRA '93 annual compensation limit in effect for that prior determination 
period.  For this purpose, for determination periods beginning before the first day of the first Plan 
Year beginning on or after January 1, 1994, the OBRA '93 annual compensation limit is $150,000. 

For Plan Years beginning before December 31, 1996, in determining the Compensation of a 
Participant for purposes of this limitation, the rules of Section 414(q)(6) of the Code shall apply, 
except in applying such rules, the term “family” shall include only the spouse of the Participant and 
any lineal descendants of the Participant who have not attained age 19 before the close of the Plan 
Year.  If, as a result of the application of such rules the adjusted $150,000 limitation is exceeded, then 
(except for purposes of determining the portion of Compensation up to the integration level if this 
Plan provides for permitted disparity), the limitation shall be prorated among the affected individuals 
in proportion to each such individual’s Compensation as determined under this Section prior to the 
application of this limitation.  Provided, no such aggregation shall be required for Plan Years 
beginning after December 31, 1996. 

For limitation years beginning on and after January 1, 2001, for purposes of applying the 
limitations described in this Section 2.1(l), Compensation paid or made available during such 
limitation years shall include elective amounts that are not includible in the gross income of the 
Employee by reason of Section 132(f)(4) of the Code. 

For Plan Years Commencing After December 31, 2001: 

The annual Earnings of each participant taken into account in determining benefit accruals 
in any Plan Year beginning after December 31, 2001, shall not exceed $200,000.  For purposes of 
determining benefit accruals in a Plan Year beginning after December 31, 2001, the annual 
Earnings limit for determination periods beginning before January 1, 2002 shall be $150,000 for 



2135543_9 II-4 

any determination period beginning in 1996 or earlier; $160,000 for any determination period 
beginning in 1997, 1998, or 1999; and $170,000 for any determination period beginning in 2000 
or 2001. 

The $200,000 limit on annual Earnings in the preceding paragraph shall be adjusted for 
cost-of-living increases in accordance with Section 401(a)(17)(B) of the Code.  The cost-of-living 
adjustment in effect for a calendar year applies to annual Earnings for the determination period 
that begins with or within such calendar year. 

For Plan Years beginning after December 31, 2008, (i) an individual receiving a differential 
wage payment, as defined by Code Section 3401(h)(2), shall be treated as an employee of the 
Employer making the payment, (ii) the differential wage payment shall be treated as 
Compensation, and (iii) the Plan shall not be treated as failing to meet the requirements of any 
provision described in Code Section 414(u)(1)(C) by reason of any contribution or benefit which 
is based on the differential wage payment. 

(n) Contract:  The word “Contract” shall mean Group Annuity Contract 
Number G696 issued by the insurer formerly known as Southwestern Life Insurance Company 
and held by the Employer. 

(o) Contribution:  The word “Contribution” shall mean contributions to the 
Trust by the Employer pursuant to Section 4.1 herein. 

(p) Contribution Accumulation:  The words “Contribution Accumulation” shall 
mean the Employee’s aggregate contributions pursuant to Sections 4.2 and 4.3, plus interest 
thereon accrued at the rate of six percent (6%) per annum, compounded according to uniform rules 
adopted by the Trustees. 

(q) DC Plan Participant:  Effective January 1, 2010, the words “DC Plan 
Participant” mean a person who participates in the City of Bartlesville Defined Contribution Plan 
and who: (i) was originally hired before January 1, 2010, and made a one-time irrevocable 
voluntary election to cease or to not begin future benefit accruals in the Plan as of and after January 
1, 2010; (ii) first became employed or reemployed on or after January 1, 2010; or (iii) is ineligible 
to participate and who becomes an eligible employee on or after January 1, 2010. 

(r) Deferred Vested Pension:  The words “Deferred Vested Pension” shall mean 
the pension benefit described in Subsection 9.1(d) herein. 

(s) Disability:  The word “Disability” shall mean a physical or mental condition 
arising during employment with the Employer or while on an Authorized Leave of Absence 
whereby a Participant with a vested Accrued Benefit becomes totally and permanently disabled 
and is thereby prevented from engaging in any occupation or employment for remuneration or 
profit and, in the opinion of a qualified physician selected by the Committee, is likely to remain 
so disabled continuously and permanently. 

(t) Disability Retirement Date:  The words “Disability Retirement Date” shall 
mean the first day of the month coinciding with or next following the date a Participant terminates 
employment after (i) satisfying all conditions specified in the foregoing Subsection (s) for 



2135543_9 II-5 

Disability and (ii) completing at least 10 Years of Service.  Provided, however, effective July 1, 
1997, “7” shall be substituted for “10” in the preceding sentence. 

(u) Disability Retirement Income:  The words “Disability Retirement Income” 
shall mean a monthly pension benefit computed in accordance with Section 8.1 herein. 

(v) Earliest Retirement Age:  The words “Earliest Retirement Age” shall mean 
the earliest date a Participant could have elected to retire on his Early Retirement Date.  However, 
with respect to a Participant who dies and has not satisfied the age and/or service requirements for 
an Early Retirement Date, the term “Earliest Retirement Age” shall mean the date the Participant 
would have been eligible to retire on an Early Retirement Date if he had continued in the employ 
of the Employer. 

(w) Early Retirement Date:  The words “Early Retirement Date” shall mean the 
first day of the month coinciding with or next following the date a Participant terminates 
employment after (i) earning at least 10 Years of Service and attaining at least age 55, or (ii) the 
time at which the sum of the Participant’s age at the termination of employment (in years and 
completed months) and Years of Service equals eighty (80) or more.  Provided, effective July 1, 
1997, “7” shall be substituted for “10” in the preceding sentence. 

(x) Early Retirement Income:  The words “Early Retirement Income” shall 
mean a monthly pension benefit computed in accordance with Section 7.1 herein. 

(y) Effective Date:  The words “Effective Date” shall mean the 1st day of July, 
2025, or as otherwise provided herein, as to this amended and restated Plan document. 

(z) Eligible Spouse:  The words “Eligible Spouse” shall mean with respect to 
Sections 6.1 and 10.1 herein, the Spouse to whom the Participant is married on his benefit 
commencement date or date of death if occurring prior to such benefit commencement date. 

(aa) Employee:  The word “Employee” shall mean any person employed by the 
Employer on the basis of an employer-employee relationship who receives remuneration for 
personal services rendered to the Employer, who is regularly scheduled to work at least thirty (30) 
hours per week and who was appointed or hired as distinguished from a person who was elected 
to office by popular vote.  The term does not include persons elected to office by popular vote, but 
does include appointed officers.  The term shall include Leased Employees.  A Leased Employee 
shall not be considered an employee of the recipient if:  (i) such employee is covered by a money 
purchase pension plan providing:  (1) a nonintegrated employer contribution rate of at least 10% 
of compensation, as defined in Section 415(c)(3) of the Code, but including amounts contributed 
by the employer pursuant to a salary reduction agreement which are excludable from the 
employee’s gross income under Section 125, Section 402(a)(8), Section 402(h) or Section 403(b) 
of the Code, (2) immediate participation, and (3) full and immediate vesting; and (ii) leased 
employees do not constitute more than 20% of the recipient’s non-highly compensated workforce. 

(bb) Employer:  The word “Employer” shall mean the City. 

(cc) Hour of Service:  (1) Each hour for which an employee is paid, or entitled to 
payment, for the performance of duties for the employer; and (2) each hour for which an employee is 



2135543_9 II-6 

paid, or entitled to payment, by the employer on account of a period of time during which no duties 
are performed (irrespective of whether the employment relationship has terminated) due to vacation, 
holiday, illness, incapacity (including disability), layoff, jury duty, military duty or leave of absence. 

 

(dd) Leased Employee:  The words “Leased Employee” shall mean any person, 
other than an Employee of the Employer, determined by applying the common law agency rules, and 
determined without regard to the special rule for Leased Employees, who pursuant to an agreement 
between the Employer and any other person or entity (“leasing organization”) has performed services 
for the Employer and/or any affiliated entities as defined in Section 414(n)(6) of the Code 
(“recipient”) on a substantially full time basis for a period of at least one (1) year; provided that, for 
Plan Years beginning after December 31, 1996, such services are performed under the primary 
direction or control of the recipient. 

(ee) Municipality:  The word “Municipality” shall mean (1) each and every 
incorporated municipality in the State of Oklahoma; (2) public trusts having municipalities as 
beneficiaries; (3) interlocal cooperatives created pursuant to 74 Oklahoma Statutes, Sections 1001, 
et seq., between municipalities and/or their public trust, and; (4) any other legal entity comprising 
a municipal authority as that term is used in Chapter 48 of Title 11 Oklahoma Statutes, which has 
become a participant in the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund according to the terms thereof. 

(ff) Normal Retirement Age:  The words “Normal Retirement Age” shall mean 
the 65th birthday of a Participant. 

(gg) Normal Retirement Date:  The words “Normal Retirement Date” shall mean 
the first day of the calendar month coinciding with or next following the later of (i) the Participant’s 
Normal Retirement Age or (ii) the completion of ten (10) years of service with the Employer.  
Provided, effective July 1, 1997, “seven (7)” shall be substituted for “ten (10)” in the preceding 
sentence. 

(hh) Normal Retirement Income:  The words “Normal Retirement Income” shall 
mean a monthly pension benefit computed in accordance with Section 5.1 herein. 

(ii) Participant:  The word “Participant” shall mean an Employee who during a 
Plan Year shall meet the eligibility requirements of Article III herein for participation or 
reparticipation, as the case may be.  Such term shall also include, where appropriate, a former 
Employee, who has previously terminated his employment with the Employer and has a remaining 
undistributed Accrued Benefit. 

(jj) Pension:  A series of monthly amounts which are payable to a person who 
is entitled to receive benefits under the Plan. 

(kk) Plan:  The word “Plan” shall mean the “Employee Retirement System of 
Bartlesville, Oklahoma” as set forth in this instrument, and as hereafter amended from time to 
time. 



2135543_9 II-7 

(ll) Plan Year:  The word “Plan Year” shall mean the annual period beginning 
on the first day of July and ending the last day of June of each calendar year. 

(mm) Postponed Retirement Date:  The words “Postponed Retirement Date” shall 
mean the first day of the month coinciding with or next following the date that a Participant retires 
under Section 5.3 herein subsequent to his Normal Retirement Date. 

(nn) Predecessor Plan:  The words “Predecessor Plan” shall mean this Plan as it 
existed prior to the Effective Date. 

(oo) Qualified Domestic Relations Order (QDRO):  The words “Qualified 
Domestic Relations Order” (“QDRO”) shall mean a domestic relations order as provided under 
Section 10.3 hereof. 

(pp) Re-employment Date:  The words “Re-employment Date” shall mean the 
date that an Employee is again re-employed by the Employer and earns an Hour of Service 
following his termination of employment. 

(qq) Retirement:  Termination of employment after an Employee has fulfilled all 
requirements for a Pension.  Retirement shall be considered as commencing on the day 
immediately following an Employee’s last day of employment. 

(rr) Retirement Date:  The words “Retirement Date” shall mean a Participant’s 
Early Retirement Date, Disability Retirement Date, Normal Retirement Date, or Postponed 
Retirement Date, whichever applies. 

(ss) Spouse:  The word “spouse” shall mean a spouse as determined under 
applicable federal tax law. 

(tt) Trustees, Trust, Trust Agreement, Trust Assets and Trust Fund:  The word 
“Trustees” shall mean the Trustees, or their successors, appointed pursuant to the Trust Indenture 
establishing the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund, being the trust (“Trust”) which, in 
conjunction with this Plan, shall hold and invest assets accumulated under the Predecessor Plan 
and the Contributions made under the Plan other than the Contract for the exclusive benefit of the 
Employees included in the Plan; and, the words “Trust Assets” and “Trust Fund” shall mean the 
assets held in the Trust. 

(uu) Year of Service: 

(1) A Participant’s last continuous period during which the Participant was an 
Employee of the Employer and/or any other Municipality prior to the earlier of his retirement or Break 
in Service. 

(i) Service includes employment with a Municipality other than the 
Employer prior to the time that the other Municipality adopted the Plan if the other 
Municipality credits a Participant’s past service under its retirement plan; and 



2135543_9 II-8 

(ii) Service with any other Municipality shall be recognized for any 
Employee who is in Service with the Employer as of January 1, 2007, or later; and 

(iii) Service with any other Municipality shall be used to determine vesting 
with the Employer and shall not be used to determine benefits under the plan; and 

(iv) Service for the Employer does not include employment with any 
Municipality if that service would not be included under the Municipality’s retirement plan. 

(2) Concurrent employment with more than one Municipality shall be credited as 
only one period of Service. 

(3) Any Authorized Leave of Absence shall not be considered as interrupting 
continuity of employment, provided the Employee returns within the period of authorized absence.  
Until such time as the City Council shall adopt rules to the contrary, credit for Service with the 
Employer shall be granted for any period of Authorized Leave of Absence during which the 
Employee’s full Compensation is continued and contributions to the Trust Fund are continued at the 
same rate and made by or for him, but credit for Service with the Employer shall not be granted for 
any period of authorized, nonpaid absence due to illness, union leave, military service, or any other 
reason, unless arrangements are made with the City Council for the Employee’s continued 
participation and for contributions to be continued at the same rate and made by him or on his behalf 
during such absence.  Provided, however, if a Participant is on an Authorized Leave of Absence and 
is receiving worker’s compensation during such Authorized Leave of Absence, such Participant shall 
be credited with Service for such period for purposes of vesting only (and not for purposes of benefits) 
but no Employee contributions shall be made with respect to the Participant for such period. 

(4) Any reference in this Plan to the number of years of service of an Employee 
shall include fractional portions of a year. 

(5) As of January 1, 2007, with respect to a Participant who was previously 100% 
vested in any other Municipality’s qualified retirement plan, regardless of Break in Service, prior to 
becoming a Participant in this Plan, such Participant’s “Service” for purposes of determining years of 
service for vesting under this Plan shall include the Participant’s last continuous period during which 
the Participant was an employee of the other Municipality. 

(6) Effective January 1, 2010, a DC Plan Participant who was an active Participant 
prior to January 1, 2010 may continue to earn Years of Service after December 31, 2009 under this 
Plan for all purposes other than Section 18.1(c), but will not continue to earn Years of Service for any 
benefit accrual purposes. 

Credit for service with the Employer shall not be granted for any period subsequent to 
December 31, 2009 during which the Employee did not participate in the Plan and Employee 
contributions to the Plan and Fund were not made by or for him except as defined above. 

For purposes of computing a Participant’s benefit under this Plan, the Participant’s Years of 
Service shall exclude any period of time during which the Participant is on an Authorized Leave of 
Absence without salary or on military leave.  Provided, however, notwithstanding any provision of 



2135543_9 II-9 

this Plan to the contrary, contributions, benefits and service credit with respect to qualified military 
service will be provided in accordance with Section 414(u) of the Code. 

2.2 Construction.  The masculine gender, where appearing in the Plan, shall be deemed 
to include the feminine gender, unless the context clearly indicates to the contrary.  Any word 
appearing herein in the plural shall include the singular, where appropriate, and likewise the 
singular shall include the plural, unless the context clearly indicates to the contrary. 



2135543_9 III-1 

ARTICLE III 

Participation 

3.1 Eligibility for Participation. 

(a) Existing Employees.   Effective January 1, 2010, every Employee who was 
a Participant in the Plan immediately prior to January 1, 2010, shall continue to be a Participant in 
this Plan.  Every other Employee shall become a Participant as provided in Subsection 3.1(b) 
herein.  Any employee who is a DC Plan Participant shall not be eligible to participate in this Plan. 

(b) New Participants.  An Employee shall be eligible to participate in the Plan 
if the Employee earns two consecutive Years of Service prior to the Entry Date set forth in Section 
3.2 below.  Provided, however, effective July 1, 2006, any Employee employed on such date and 
who was not yet eligible to participate in the Plan shall be eligible to participate in the Plan on July 
1, 2006.  Further, effective July 1, 2006, any Employee hired on or after July 1, 2006 shall be 
eligible to participate in the Plan upon his employment commencement date.  Further provided, 
effective January 1, 2010, no Employee hired or rehired on or after January 1, 2010 shall be eligible 
to participate in the Plan. 

(c) Exclusions.  Notwithstanding the foregoing provisions to the contrary, the 
following Employees shall not be eligible to participate in the Plan: 

(i) An Employee hired after July 5, 1988, who is a commissioned 
member of the police department, or a uniformed member of the fire department, 

(ii) An Employee who participates in either the Oklahoma Police 
Pension and Retirement System or the Oklahoma Fire Pension and Retirement System,  

(iii) A Leased Employee, 

(iv) Effective for periods prior to October 1, 2024, an Employee who is 
in the position of City Manager and prior to October 1, 2024, was accruing benefits under another 
retirement system which has been approved by the City Council, 

(v) The City Attorney and the City Judge, 

(vi) An Employee who is a nonresident alien within the meaning of 
Section 401(b)(3)(C) of the Code, or a person who is an alien and not in the United States legally, 

(vii) Any person who has been classified by the Employer as an 
independent contractor and has had his compensation reported to the Internal Revenue Service on 
Form 1099 but who has been reclassified as an “employee” (other than by the Employer) shall not 
be considered as an eligible Employee who can participate under this Plan; provided, if the 
Employer does reclassify such worker as an “Employee,” for purposes of this Plan, such 
reclassification shall only be prospective from the date that the Employee is notified by the 
Employer of such reclassification, 



2135543_9 III-2 

(viii)  Effective January 1, 2010, any Employee hired before January 1, 
2010 and who elected to become a DC Plan Participant, or 

(ix)  Effective January 1, 2010, any Employee hired on or after January 
1, 2010. 

3.2 Entry Date.  An Employee shall commence actual participation as of the July 1 
coinciding with or next following the date the eligibility requirements in the foregoing Subsection 
3.1 have been met.  Provided, however, effective July 1, 2006, any Employee employed on such 
date and who was not yet eligible to participate in the Plan shall commence participation in the 
Plan on July 1, 2006.  Further, effective July 1, 2006, any Employee hired on or after July 1, 2006 
shall commence actual participation in the Plan upon his employment commencement date. 

3.3 Eligibility of a Former Participant Upon Reemployment.   Effective January 1, 2010, 
a former Participant who terminates employment with the Employer and who is rehired on or after 
January 1, 2010, shall not be an active Participant in the Plan after the date of rehire and will not 
be given the option to re-enroll in the Plan. 

 



2135543_9 IV-1 

ARTICLE IV 

Contributions 

4.1 Contributions by the Employer.  The Employer shall contribute to the Plan from 
time to time such sums as are required by the Actuary for the Plan, in accordance with actuarial 
practices acceptable to the Internal Revenue Service.  Actual payment of a Contribution may be 
made at any time permitted by law and regulations.  Any forfeitures resulting from deaths or 
terminations of employment of any Participant shall be used to decrease the future Contributions 
to the Plan and shall not be applied or used in any manner whatsoever to increase the benefits 
otherwise payable to a Participant. 

4.2 Contributions by Participants. 

(a) Picked-Up Contributions.  Contributions by a Participant are neither 
permitted nor required under this Plan prior to July 1, 2006.  Effective July 1, 2006, an Employee 
shall contribute to the cost of providing benefits under this Plan while he remains an Employee.  
Such annual contributions shall be three percent (3%) of the Employee’s Basic Monthly Salary.  
Provided, however, effective January 1, 2010, no annual contributions to this Plan shall be required 
for a DC Plan Participant for periods on or after January 1, 2010. 

Any required contributions by Employees shall be made by payroll deductions for each pay 
period, or any series of pay periods as the Employer may deem most convenient.  If an Employee is 
granted an unpaid leave of absence for any reason, he will not be required to make contributions for 
such period.  Effective July 1, 2006, each Participant who became employed by the Employer prior 
to July 1, 2006 and who is employed on July 1, 2006 shall, as a condition of continued employment, 
sign a written notice of participation agreeing to be bound by the terms and conditions hereof, and 
authorizing the Employer to deduct from his Compensation any contributions required of him, and 
he shall be subject to all other provisions of the Plan. 

Further, effective July 1, 2006, each Employee who becomes employed on or after July 1, 
2006 shall, as a condition of employment, become a Participant in the Plan as of the date on which he 
is first eligible by signing a written notice of participation agreeing to be bound by the terms and 
conditions hereof, and authorizing the Employer to deduct from his Compensation any contributions 
required of him, and he shall be subject to all other provisions of the Plan beginning on such date. 

(b) After-Tax Contributions.  Effective January 1, 2010, a Participant who is not a DC 
Plan Participant shall contribute to the cost of providing benefits under this Plan while he remains 
an Employee with after-tax annual contributions in the amount of three percent (3%) of the 
Employee’s Basic Monthly Salary. 

Any required contributions by Employees shall be made by payroll deductions for each pay 
period, or any series of pay periods as the Employer may deem most convenient.  If an Employee is 
granted an unpaid leave of absence for any reason, he will not be required to make contributions for 
such period.  Each Participant who is not a DC Plan Participant shall, as a condition of continued 
employment, sign a written notice of participation agreeing to be bound by the terms and 
conditions hereof, and authorizing the Employer to deduct from his after-tax Compensation any 
contributions required of him, and he shall be subject to all other provisions of the Plan. 



2135543_9 IV-2 

Such Employee contributions shall be fully vested in the contributor Employee at all times.  
Upon retirement, death or termination of employment of an Employee for any reason, the retired or 
terminated Employee, or his Beneficiary as the case may be, shall have the option to receive, in lieu 
of any and all other benefits provided herein, his Contribution Accumulation.  Furthermore, the value 
of the total benefits payable to the Employee and/or his Beneficiary shall in no event be less than his 
Contribution Accumulation as of the time of his termination of employment.  However if any benefit 
of any other kind is paid under this Plan, to or on behalf of an Employee, no Contribution 
Accumulation shall be paid, but shall be deemed to have been included in the value of the benefit so 
paid, unless the total value of such other benefit payments finally paid shall be less than such 
Contribution Accumulation as of the time of the Employee’s termination of employment, in which 
case the difference shall be paid in a lump sum to the Employee and/or his Beneficiary. 

4.3 Pick-up Contributions.  The Employee contributions described in Section 4.2(a) 
above shall be picked up and assumed by the Employer and paid to the Trust Fund in lieu of 
contributions by the Participant.  Such contributions shall be designated as Employer contributions 
for federal income tax purposes.  Each Participant’s Compensation will be reduced by the amount 
paid to the Fund by the Employer in lieu of the required contribution by the Participant.  These 
contributions shall be excluded from the Participant’s gross income for federal income tax 
purposes and from wages for purposes of withholding under Sections 3401 through 3404 of the 
Code in the taxable year in which contributed.  No Participant shall have the option of receiving 
the contributed amounts directly as compensation.  Contributions made by the Employer under 
this election shall be designated as Employee contributions for purposes of vesting, and 
determining Employee rights and the Employee’s Contribution Accumulation. 

4.4 Contributions Under Mistake of Fact and Disallowance of Deductions.  In the case of 
a Contribution which is made by the Employer under a bona fide mistake of fact or a Contribution, 
such Contribution attributable to such mistake of fact or denial of deduction, within one year of 
the mistaken payment or the date of disallowance of the deduction, whichever is later, shall be 
returned by the Trustee to the Employer who made such Contribution.  Any refund made pursuant 
to this Section 4.4 shall be automatic and irrevocable with no further action necessary to be taken 
by the Employer.  Upon such withdrawal of such portion of the Contribution by the Employer, the 
rights of the Participants to such portion of the Contribution shall cease and come to an end with 
the same effect as if such portion of the Contribution had never been made. 

4.5 Payments to Plan.  All payments made pursuant to this Article shall be paid to the 
Plan.  All such payments and increments thereon shall be held and disbursed in accordance with 
the provisions of the Plan.  No person shall have any interest in, or right to, any part of the funds, 
so held in the Plan, except as expressly provided in the Plan. 

4.6 Use of Plan Assets.  Except as provided by law or in the Plan, the assets of the Plan 
shall never inure to the benefit of the Employer and shall be held for the exclusive purposes of 
providing benefits to Participants and/or their joint annuitants and Beneficiaries, and for defraying 
the reasonable expenses of administering the Plan. 



2135543_9 V-1 

ARTICLE V 

Normal Retirement 

5.1 Normal Retirement Income.  The Normal Retirement Income to which a Participant 
is entitled for life (on a single life basis) shall be the aggregate of the Past Service Benefit and 
Normal Retirement Benefit described below: 

(i) “Past Service Benefit” shall mean, with respect to Employees who 
became Participants prior to July 1, 1978, a monthly income commencing on the Participant’s 
Normal Retirement Date equal to two percent (2%) of the Participant’s Basic Monthly Salary in 
effect on July 1, 1978, multiplied by the number of full Years of Service between the date the 
Participant last entered employment with the Employer and ending on July 1, 1978.  No Employee 
who becomes a Participant on or after July 1, 1978, shall be entitled to a Past Service Benefit.  
Provided, however, effective July 1, 2006, “two and one-half percent (2.5%)” shall be substituted 
for “two percent (2%)” in the first sentence of this Subsection (i), and that this increased formula 
of two and one-half percent (2.5%) shall only apply to persons employed by the Employer and 
participating in the Plan on or after July 1, 2006, except as otherwise provided in Section 12.2 with 
respect to reemployment of retired employees.   

(ii) “Normal Retirement Benefit” shall mean a monthly income equal to 
the aggregate of two percent (2%) of the Participant’s Basic Monthly Salary in effect each July 1 
during the period which the Participant is receiving his Basic Monthly Salary and the Plan is in 
effect.  Provided, a Participant shall not earn a Normal Retirement Benefit during the two year 
eligibility waiting period described under Section 3.1.  Provided, however, effective July 1, 2006, 
“two and one-half percent (2.5%)” shall be substituted for “two percent (2%)” in the first sentence 
of this Subsection (ii), and that this increased formula of two and one-half percent (2.5%) shall 
only apply to persons employed by the Employer and participating in the Plan on or after July 1, 
2006, except as otherwise provided in Section 12.2 with respect to reemployment of retired 
employees. 

5.2 Payment of Normal Retirement Income.  The Normal Retirement Income benefits 
to which a Participant shall be entitled hereunder shall commence on a monthly basis as of his 
Normal Retirement Date, unless deferred under other provisions of this Article V. 

5.3 Postponed Retirement Date.  If a Participant continues his employment with the 
Employer to a date after his Normal Retirement Date (“Postponed Retirement Date”), pension 
benefits shall be deferred until his Postponed Retirement Date.  If a Participant continues his 
employment beyond his Normal Retirement Date he will be notified at such time that his benefits 
will not commence until such Participant retires at their Postponed Retirement Date.  Such 
notification shall include the requirements listed in Subsection 10.4 hereof.  Benefits to which he 
will be entitled as of his benefit commencement date shall be computed on the basis of his Normal 
Retirement Income as of his Postponed Retirement Date.  Provided, all benefits must commence 
no later than the time specified in Section 10.2 hereof. 

5.4 Deferral of Normal Retirement Income.  Upon actual retirement, payment of any 
Normal Retirement Income may be deferred beyond a Participant’s Normal Retirement Date by 
filing the written election.  Benefits to which he shall be entitled as of his benefit commencement 



2135543_9 V-2 

date shall be the Actuarial Equivalent of his Normal Retirement Income; provided, all benefits 
must commence no later than the time specified in Section 10.2 hereof. 



2135543_9 VI-1 

ARTICLE VI 

Death of a Participant 

6.1 Death Benefits.  The provisions of this Section 6.1 shall apply with respect to 
Participants dying on or after July 1, 1997. 

(a) Upon the death of a vested Participant who has not yet begun 
commencement of his Normal Retirement Income payments and who is married on the date of his 
death, the Eligible Spouse of the Participant shall be paid a Death Benefit in the form of a Pension.  
The amount of the Death Benefit Pension shall be equal to fifty percent (50%) of the monthly 
amount of the Normal Retirement Income, as determined in Section 5.1 which the deceased 
Participant would have been eligible to receive at the time of his death considering the Participant’s 
Basic Monthly Salary and Years of Service with the Employer prior to the date of his death.  
Payment of the Death Benefit Pension under this Subsection shall commence as of the first day of 
the month coincident with or next following the Participant’s death and shall continue until the 
earlier of the death or remarriage of the Eligible Spouse, except that if the total benefits paid shall 
be less than the Participant’s Contribution Accumulation at the time of the Participant’s death, the 
difference shall be paid to the Eligible Spouse if living, or if deceased, to his estate.   

(b) Upon the death of a vested Participant who has not yet begun commencement 
of his Normal Retirement Income payment and who is not married on the date of his death, the 
Beneficiary of the Participant shall be paid a Death Benefit in the form of a Pension.  The amount of 
the Death Benefit Pension shall be equal to fifty percent (50%) of the monthly amount of the Normal 
Retirement Income, as determined in Section 5.1, which the deceased Participant would have been 
eligible to receive at the time of his death considering the Participant’s Basic Monthly Salary and 
Years of Service with the Employer prior to the date of his death.  Payment of the Death Benefit 
Pension under this Subsection shall commence as of the first day of the month coincident with or next 
following the Participant’s death and shall consist of 120 monthly payments made in accordance with 
this Subsection, except that if the total benefits paid shall be less than the Participant’s Contribution 
Accumulation at the time of the Participant’s death, the difference shall be paid to the Beneficiary if 
living, or if deceased, to his estate. 

(c) Upon the death of a non-vested Participant, the Beneficiary of the Participant 
shall be paid a Death Benefit equal to the Participant’s Contribution Accumulation at the time of the 
Participant’s death. 

6.2 Designation of Beneficiary.  Each active or retired Employee may designate a 
primary Beneficiary or Beneficiaries and, in addition, may name a contingent Beneficiary or 
Beneficiaries to receive any benefit that may become payable under the Plan.  If an Employee 
designates more than one Beneficiary, each shall share equally unless the Employee specifies a 
different allocation or preference.  Such designation shall be made upon forms furnished by the 
Employer and may be revoked or changed at any time and from time to time without notice to any 
Beneficiary, and shall not be effective unless and until filed with the Committee.  If an Employee 
fails to designate a Beneficiary, or if no designated Beneficiary survives the Employee, the Death 
Benefit shall be paid to the Employee’s spouse, if living, or otherwise, to the estate of the 
Employee. 



2135543_9 VI-2 

For the purpose of this Plan, the production of a certified copy of the death certificate of any Employee 
or other person shall be sufficient evidence of death, and the Committee shall be fully protected in 
relying thereon.  In the absence of such proof, the Committee may rely upon such other evidence of 
death as it deems necessary or advisable. 

6.3 HEART Act Provision.  In the case of a death occurring on or after January 1, 2007, 
if the Participant dies while performing qualified military service (as defined in Code §414(u)), the 
survivors of the Participant are entitled to any additional benefits (other than benefit accruals 
relating to the period of qualified military service) provided under the Plan as if the Participant had 
resumed employment on the day preceding the Participant’s death and then terminated 
employment on account of death. 



2135543_9 VII-1 

ARTICLE VII 

Early Retirement 

7.1 Early Retirement Income.  A Participant may elect to retire early and apply for an 
Early Retirement Income.  The monthly amount of an Early Retirement Income to which a 
Participant shall be entitled for life (on a single life basis) shall be based on his Accrued Benefit 
as follows: 

(a) If the total of the Participant’s age (in years and completed months) and 
number of Years of Service equal eighty (80) or more the Participant shall be entitled to a monthly 
life income equal to the Participant’s Accrued Benefit payable at his Normal Retirement Date, 
reduced by three percent (3%) for each year by which the Early Retirement Date precedes the 
Participant’s Normal Retirement Date.  Provided, however, effective July 1, 1997, the reduction 
referred to in the prior sentence shall be two percent (2%) rather than three percent (3%) with respect 
to Participants who retire on or after July 1, 1997.  Provided further, effective July 1, 2004, the 
reduction referred to in the prior two sentences shall be eliminated with respect to Participants who 
retire on or after July 1, 2004. 

(b) If the total of the Participant’s age and number of Years of Service equal less 
than eighty (80), but the Participant has attained age fifty-five (55) and completed at least ten (10) 
Years of Service, the Participant shall be entitled to receive a reduced amount of monthly life income 
that is the Actuarial Equivalent of the Participant’s Accrued Benefit payable at his Normal Retirement 
Date.  Provided, effective July 1, 1997, “seven (7)” shall be substituted for “ten (10)” in the preceding 
sentence.  A Participant’s Early Retirement Income shall commence as of such Participant’s Early 
Retirement Date, unless deferred under Section 7.2 hereof. 

7.2 Deferral of Early Retirement Income.  Payment of any Early Retirement Income may 
be deferred to any subsequent Plan Year and up to the date a retiring Participant would otherwise 
reach his Normal Retirement Date if he had continued in the employ of the Employer by filing the 
written election.  An Early Retirement Income shall be based on his Accrued Benefit in the manner 
described in Section 7.1 herein. 



2135543_9 VIII-1 

ARTICLE VIII 

Disability 

8.1 Disability Retirement. 

(a) If a Participant’s employment is terminated on his Disability Retirement Date, 
the Participant shall be entitled to receive a Disability Retirement Income which is a monthly income 
payable for as long as the Participant has a Disability, but not extending beyond the Participant’s 
Normal Retirement Date, that is equal to the Participant’s vested Accrued Benefit payable at his 
Normal Retirement Date.  At Normal Retirement Date, the Participant shall then be entitled to receive 
his Normal Retirement Income. 

(b) If a Participant’s employment is terminated due to Disability after attaining 
age 55, but such Participant has less than ten (10) Years of Service, the Participant shall be 100% 
vested and nonforfeitable in his Accrued Benefit at the time and due to the incurrence of Disability.  
Such Participant may then elect to receive a Disability Retirement Income which is a reduced amount 
of monthly life income that is the Actuarial Equivalent of the Normal Retirement Income payable at 
his Normal Retirement Date.  Provided, effective July 1, 1997, “seven (7)” shall be substituted for 
“ten (10)” in the preceding sentence. 

8.2 Proof of Disability.  After a Participant’s Disability Retirement Date, if the 
Committee so decides, the Committee may require that the Participant’s continuing Disability be 
verified by medical examination by a physician designated by the Committee at a location 
convenient to the Participant; provided, he shall not be required to submit to more than one 
examination in a 12 month period. 



2135543_9 IX-1 

ARTICLE IX 

Termination of Employment 

9.1 Termination of Employment - Vesting of Benefits. 

(a) General.  When a Participant ceases to be an Employee for any reason other 
than death, Disability or retirement on his Normal Retirement Date, his vested interest in his 
Accrued Benefit shall be determined in accordance with the following Subsections. 

(b) Vesting.  A Participant shall have vested and nonforfeitable rights in all or 
part of his Accrued Benefit, as set forth by the percentages in the table hereafter. 

(i) After July 1, 1987 but Prior to July 1, 1997. 

YEARS OF SERVICE PERCENTAGE OF ACCRUED 
BENEFIT VESTED 

Less than: 10 0% 
At least: 10 100% 

 
(ii) On or After July 1, 1997. 

YEARS OF SERVICE PERCENTAGE OF ACCRUED 
BENEFIT VESTED 

Less than: 7 0% 
At least: 7 100% 

 
(c) No Forfeitures for Cause.  The vested and nonforfeitable portion of an 

Accrued Benefit shall not be forfeited for any cause whatsoever, except as provided in Section 
9.1(d)(iii). 

(d) Deferred Vested Pension.  To the extent that a Participant has any vested 
rights in his Accrued Benefit upon his termination of employment, and, if he is not otherwise 
entitled to an Early Retirement Income, he shall be entitled to a Deferred Vested Pension as of one 
of the dates set forth in Subsections (i) or (ii) hereafter, whichever applies. 

(i) At Normal Retirement Date.  If the Participant has not met both the 
age and service requirements for an Early Retirement Date at the time he terminates his 
employment with the Employer, payment of his Deferred Vested Pension shall begin on the date 
which would otherwise be his Normal Retirement Date if he had continued in the employ of the 
employer to the Participant’s projected Normal Retirement Date.  Benefits to which such 
Participant shall be entitled as of his benefit commencement date shall be (1) calculated on a single 
life basis, (2) based on his vested Accrued Benefit (determined as of the date such employment 
terminated) and (3) paid as provided in Article X hereof if an optional form of benefit is selected. 



2135543_9 IX-2 

(ii) Prior to Normal Retirement Date.  If the Participant has met the 
service requirement but not the age requirement to retire on his Early Retirement Date at the time 
he terminates his employment with the Employer, payment of his Deferred Vested Pension shall 
commence as of his projected Normal Retirement Date unless he elects in writing to the Committee 
to commence receipt of his Deferred Vested Pension at an earlier date.  The Participant may elect 
to commence receipt of his Deferred Vested Pension on or after his Earliest Retirement Age.  
Benefits to which such Participant shall be entitled as of his benefit commencement date shall be 
based on his vested Accrued Benefit (determined as of the date such employment terminated) 
which shall be reduced on an Actuarially Equivalent basis if his benefit commencement date is 
prior to his projected Normal Retirement Date. 

(iii) Death.  If a Participant dies prior to commencement of receipt of a 
Deferred Vested Pension, any entitlement to benefits under this Plan shall be governed by Article 
VI herein. 

(e) Full Vesting at Normal Retirement Date.  Unless sooner vested as provided 
herein, a Participant who remains in the employment of the Employer until his Normal Retirement 
Age shall be 100% vested and nonforfeitable in his Accrued Benefit as of such Participant’s 
Normal Retirement Date. 

(f) Severance Benefit.  Upon termination of an Employee’s employment with 
the Employer prior to his Retirement, for a reason other than death, his contributions to the Trust 
shall cease and he shall be entitled to receive a Severance Benefit equal in amount to the 
Employee’s Contribution Accumulation, which shall be in lieu of all other benefits under this Plan.  
Payment of such benefit shall be made in a lump sum as soon as administratively feasible after the 
date of termination of the Employee’s employment and the Employee’s request for payment.  If 
such termination of employment occurs after the Employee has met the requirements for Deferred 
Vested Pension, he may receive in lieu of such Contribution Accumulation, the Pension for which 
he is eligible under the provisions of Section 9.1(d) above, unless the Employee elects to receive 
such Contribution Accumulation. 

If any benefit of any other kind is paid under this Plan to or on behalf of an Employee, no 
Severance Benefit shall be paid, but shall be deemed to have been included in the value of the 
other benefit, unless the total of such other benefit payments finally made shall be less than his 
Contribution Accumulation at the time of the Employee’s termination of employment, in which 
case the difference shall be paid to the terminated Employee if living, or if deceased, to his 
Beneficiary. 

9.2 Re-employment:  If a Participant (a) terminates employment, (b) receives a 
distribution of all or a portion of his vested Accrued Benefit and (c) is later re-employed prior to 
January 1, 2010, the Participant’s Normal Retirement Benefit (and therefore his Accrued Benefit) 
will be reduced by the Actuarial Equivalent value of the benefit which was previously distributed. 

9.3 Loss of Benefits.  A Participant’s retirement benefits shall be subject to forfeiture 
upon the conviction of or plea of guilty or nolo contendere to certain crimes as set forth hereinafter. 



2135543_9 IX-3 

(a) Any Participant upon final conviction of, or pleading guilty or nolo 
contendere in a state or federal court of competent jurisdiction to, a felony for bribery, corruption, 
forgery or perjury or any other crime related to the duties of his or her employment shall forfeit 
their retirement benefits. The forfeiture of benefits shall not occur if any such Participant received 
a deferred sentence, but retirement benefits shall not commence prior to completion of the deferred 
sentence. The forfeiture of retirement benefits required by this Section shall not include the 
Participant’s contributions to the retirement system or retirement benefits that are vested as of 
August 26, 2011. 

(b) The forfeiture of retirement benefits as provided for in this Section shall 
also apply to any such Participant who, after leaving employment, is convicted of, or pleads guilty 
or nolo contendere in a state or federal court of competent jurisdiction to, a felony committed while 
in such employment, where the felony is for bribery, corruption, forgery or perjury or any other 
crime related to the duties of his or her employment. 

(c) The forfeiture shall continue until such time as the conviction or guilty plea 
is reversed by the highest appellate court to which the officer or employee may appeal. 

(d) The attorney responsible for prosecuting the Participant shall notify the Plan 
if the Participant is convicted of or upon entering a plea of guilty or nolo contendere to any of the 
crimes set forth in Section 9.3.  Upon receiving notice of a conviction, plea of guilty or plea of 
nolo contendere, the Plan shall immediately suspend all benefits of the Participant, and shall notify 
the Participant of his or her right to a hearing before the Committee to review whether the 
conviction or plea qualifies for forfeiture of benefits under this Section.  If the notice of a 
conviction, plea of guilty or plea of nolo contendere is not forthcoming but there is reason to 
suspect a conviction and/or plea may have occurred, the Plan may, in the discretion of the 
Committee, investigate and gather court documents and contact prosecutors to determine whether 
the conviction or plea qualifies under this Section.  Upon obtaining sufficient documentation of 
the conviction or plea, the Plan shall immediately suspend all benefits of the Participant and notify 
the Participant of his or her right to a hearing to review whether the conviction or plea qualifies 
for forfeiture of benefits under this Section.  A Participant shall have thirty (30) days from the date 
of notification to request a hearing before the Committee.  Requests for such a hearing shall be 
made in writing to the city clerk. 

 



2135543_9 X-1 

ARTICLE X 

Manner of Payment and Optional Benefits 

10.1 Optional Forms of Retirement Income. 

(a) Forms of Options.  In lieu of any other method of payment of pension 
benefits under this Plan, a Participant may submit written application to the Committee, electing 
the Actuarial Equivalent of any alternate method of payment or combination thereof, as set forth 
hereafter.  Regardless of the Option chosen, the minimum benefit payable to or on behalf of any 
Employee shall be the Employee’s Contribution Accumulation as of the earlier of 1) the date which 
the Pension commenced, or 2) the date of the Participant’s death.      

OPTION 1.  Payment of a Normal Retirement Income, Early Retirement 
Income, Deferred Vested Pension or Disability Retirement Income, whichever applies, on a single 
life basis. 

OPTION 2.  A period certain option, providing a retirement income payable 
during a Participant’s life, but guaranteed for a period of 5, 10, 15 or 20 years, as specified by the 
Participant.  If the Participant dies before the expiration of the specified period, payment shall be 
continued to his designated Beneficiary, provided that in no event shall the period certain exceed 
the life expectancy of the Participant as determined by generally accepted actuarial principles. 

OPTION 3.  A joint and survivor annuity option, providing a retirement 
income benefit during the Participant’s life with the provision that after his death, a percentage 
(effective July 1, 2002, 100%, 75%, or 50%) of the benefit shall continue during the life of, and 
be paid to, his designated joint annuitant, if he shall survive such Participant.  This Option 3 shall 
only be available to a Participant who designates his Eligible Spouse as a “joint annuitant.” 

OPTION 4.  A joint and survivor annuity option as in OPTION 3 above but 
guaranteed for a period of 5, 10, 15 or 20 years, as specified by the Participant.  If both the 
Participant and his Eligible Spouse die before the expiration of the specified period, payment shall 
be continued to the designated Beneficiary, provided that in no event shall the period certain 
exceed the joint life expectancy of the Participant and his Eligible Spouse as determined by 
generally accepted actuarial principles. 

OPTION 5.   Effective January 1, 2010, a lump sum distribution option in 
the event that the Normal Retirement Income monthly benefit on a single life basis would be less 
than $200.  The calculation of the amount payable under this Option shall be based on the Lump 
Sum Factors set forth on Appendix A to this Plan.  This Option 5 is not available in combination 
with any other Option and is not available if benefit payments have commenced under another 
Option.  Further, this Option is not available to an Eligible Spouse for purposes of a Death Benefit 
Pension. 

The Committee shall, if it deems appropriate, require an Employee (or contingent 
pensioner) to submit evidence of good health as a condition to receipt of this lump sum payment 
option. 



2135543_9 X-2 

 (b) Restrictions.  The provisions of this Subsection are effective January 1, 2010.  In 
the event an Employee dies after he has begun to receive benefits under this Plan, his Beneficiary 
or contingent pensioner shall not be entitled to change the form of payment of the benefit.  An 
employee receiving a Disability Retirement Income pension is not concurrently eligible for any of 
the Optional Forms of Retirement Income. 

An election made pursuant to Option 3 or Option 4 shall become inoperative in the event that 
no contingent pensioner is surviving upon the Employee’s Retirement Date. 

If an Employee who makes an election under Option 3 or Option 4 pursuant to the 
requirements of this Article continues in the Employer’s employ after his Normal Retirement Date, 
no Pension payments shall be made during the period of continued employment.  If the Employee 
dies during such continued employment and the contingent pensioner survives him, the election shall 
become operative so that the contingent pensioner shall receive a Pension in accordance with the 
option elected commencing on the first day of the month coinciding with or next following the death 
of the Employee.  In the event the contingent pensioner predeceases the Employee during such 
continued employment, the election shall not become operative. 

If a Participant who makes an election pursuant to the requirements of this Section 
continues in the Employer’s employ after his Normal Retirement Date, no Pension payments shall 
be made during the period of continued employment.  If the Participant dies during such continued 
employment and the contingent pensioner survives him, the election shall become operative so 
that the contingent pensioner shall receive a Pension in accordance with the option elected 
commencing on the first day of the month coinciding with or next following the death of the 
Participant.  In the event the contingent pensioner predeceases the Participant during such 
continued employment, the election shall not become operative. 

10.2 Minimum Distribution Requirements: 

(a) General Rules: 

(i) Effective Date.  The provisions of this Section will apply for 
purposes of determining required minimum distributions for calendar years beginning with the 
2003 calendar year.  

(ii) Precedence.  The requirements of this Section will take precedence 
over any inconsistent provisions of the Plan. 

(iii) Requirements of Regulations Incorporated.  All distributions required 
under this Section will be determined in accordance with Section 401(a)(9) of the Internal Revenue 
Code, including the incidental death benefit requirement of Section 401(a)(9)(G), and the Income 
Tax Regulations thereunder. 

(iv) TEFRA Section 242(b)(2) Elections.  Notwithstanding the other 
provisions of this Section, other than Subsection (iii), distributions may be made under a designation 
made before January 1, 1984, in accordance with Section 242(b)(2) of the Tax Equity and Fiscal 



2135543_9 X-3 

Responsibility Act (TEFRA) and the provisions of the Plan that relate to Section 242(b)(2) of 
TEFRA. 

(b) Time and Manner of Distribution: 

(i) Required Beginning Date.  The Participant’s entire interest will be 
distributed, or begin to be distributed, to the Participant no later than the Participant’s Required 
Beginning Date.  

(ii) Death of Participant Before Distributions Begin.  If the Participant 
dies before distributions begin, the Participant’s entire interest will be distributed, or begin to be 
distributed, no later than as follows:  

(1) If the Participant’s surviving spouse is the Participant’s sole 
Designated Beneficiary, then, except as provided in the adoption agreement, distributions to the 
surviving spouse will begin by December 31 of the calendar year immediately following the 
calendar year in which the Participant died, or by December 31 of the calendar year in which the 
Participant would have attained the Applicable Age, if later.  Effective for calendar years beginning 
after December 31, 2023, the Designated Beneficiary surviving Spouse may elect to be treated as 
if the surviving Spouse were the Employee for purposes of the required minimum distribution 
rules under the Code.  In the case of such an election, the applicable distribution period for 
Distribution Calendar Years after the Distribution Calendar Year including the Employee’s date 
of death is determined under the Uniform Lifetime Table. 

(2) If the Participant’s surviving spouse is not the Participant’s 
sole Designated Beneficiary, then, distributions to the Designated Beneficiary will begin by 
December 31 of the calendar year immediately following the calendar year in which the Participant 
died. 

(3) If there is no Designated Beneficiary as of September 30 of 
the year following the year of the Participant’s death, the Participant’s entire interest will be 
distributed by December 31 of the calendar year containing the fifth anniversary of the Participant’s 
death.  

(4) If the Participant’s surviving spouse is the Participant’s sole 
Designated Beneficiary and the surviving spouse dies after the Participant but before distributions to 
the surviving spouse begin, this Subsection (b)(ii), other than Subsection (b)(ii)(1), will apply as if 
the surviving spouse were the Participant. 

For purposes of this Subsection (ii) and Subsection (e), distributions are considered to begin on 
the Participant’s Required Beginning Date (or, if Subsection (b)(ii)(4) applies, the date 
distributions are required to begin to the surviving spouse under Subsection (b)(ii)(1)).  If annuity 
payments irrevocably commence to the Participant before the Participant’s Required Beginning 
Date (or to the Participant’s surviving spouse before the date distributions are required to begin to 
the surviving spouse under Subsection (b)(ii)(1), the date distributions are considered to begin is 
the date distributions actually commence.  



2135543_9 X-4 

(iii) Form of Distribution.  Unless the Participant’s interest is distributed 
in the form of an annuity purchased from an insurance company or in a single sum on or before the 
Required Beginning Date, as of the first Distribution Calendar Year distributions will be made in 
accordance with Subsections (c), (d) and (e) of this Section.  If the Participant’s interest is distributed 
in the form of an annuity purchased from an insurance company, distributions thereunder will be 
made in accordance with the requirements of Section 401(a)(9) of the Code and the Treasury 
regulations. 

(c) Determination of Amount to be Distributed Each Year: 

(i) General Annuity Requirements.  If the Participant’s interest is paid in 
the form of annuity distributions under the Plan, payments under the annuity will satisfy the 
following requirements: 

(1) the annuity distributions will be paid in periodic payments 
made at intervals not longer than one year; 

(2) the distribution period will be over a life (or lives) or over a 
period certain not longer than the period described in Section (d) or (e); 

(3) once payments have begun over a period certain, the period 
certain will not be changed even if the period certain is shorter than the maximum permitted; 

(4) payments will either be nonincreasing or increase only as 
follows: 

a. by an annual percentage increase that does not 
exceed the annual percentage increase in a cost-of-
living index that is based on prices of all items and 
issued by the Bureau of Labor Statistics; 

b. to the extent of the reduction in the amount of the 
Participant’s payments to provide for a survivor 
benefit upon death, but only if the beneficiary whose 
life was being used to determine the distribution 
period described in Section (d) dies or is no longer 
the Participant’s beneficiary pursuant to a qualified 
domestic relations order within the meaning of 
Section 414(p); 

c. to provide cash refunds of employee contributions 
upon the Participant’s death; or 

d. to pay increased benefits that result from a plan 
amendment. 

(ii) Amount Required to be Distributed by Required Beginning Date.  
The amount that must be distributed on or before the Participant’s Required Beginning Date (or, if 



2135543_9 X-5 

the Participant dies before distributions begin, the date distributions are required to begin under 
Subsection (b)(ii)(1) or (2)) is the payment that is required for one payment interval.  The second 
payment need not be made until the end of the next payment interval even if that payment interval 
ends in the next calendar year.  Payment intervals are the periods for which payments are received, 
e.g., bi-monthly, monthly, semi-annually, or annually.  All of the Participant’s benefit accruals as of 
the last day of the first Distribution Calendar Year will be included in the calculation of the amount 
of the annuity payments for payment intervals ending on or after the Participant’s Required 
Beginning Date. 

(iii) Additional Accruals After First Distribution Calendar Year.  Any 
additional benefits accruing to the Participant in a calendar year after the first Distribution Calendar 
Year will be distributed beginning with the first payment interval ending in the calendar year 
immediately following the calendar year in which such amount accrues. 

(d) Requirements For Annuity Distributions That Commence During 
Participant’s Lifetime: 

(i) Joint Life Annuities Where the Beneficiary Is Not the Participant’s 
Spouse.  If the Participant’s interest is being distributed in the form of a joint and survivor annuity 
for the joint lives of the Participant and a nonspouse beneficiary, annuity payments to be made on 
or after the Participant’s Required Beginning Date to the Designated Beneficiary after the 
Participant’s death must not at any time exceed the applicable percentage of the annuity payment 
for such period that would have been payable to the Participant using the table set forth in Q&A-
2 of Section 1.401(a)(9)-6 of the Treasury regulations.  If the form of distribution combines a joint 
and survivor annuity for the joint lives of the Participant and a nonspouse beneficiary and a period 
certain annuity, the requirement in the preceding sentence will apply to annuity payments to be 
made to the Designated Beneficiary after the expiration of the period certain. 

(ii) Period Certain Annuities.  Unless the Participant’s spouse is the sole 
Designated Beneficiary and the form of distribution is a period certain and no life annuity, the period 
certain for an annuity distribution commencing during the Participant’s lifetime may not exceed the 
applicable distribution period for the Participant under the Uniform Lifetime Table set forth in 
Section 1.401(a)(9)-9 of the Treasury regulations for the calendar year that contains the annuity 
starting date.  If the annuity starting date precedes the year in which the Participant reaches age 70, 
the applicable distribution period for the Participant is the distribution period for age 70 under the 
Uniform Lifetime Table set forth in Section 1.401(a)(9)-9 of the Treasury regulations plus the excess 
of 70 over the age of the Participant as of the Participant’s birthday in the year that contains the 
annuity starting date.  If the Participant’s spouse is the Participant’s sole Designated Beneficiary and 
the form of distribution is a period certain and no life annuity, the period certain may not exceed the 
longer of the Participant’s applicable distribution period, as determined under this Section (d)(ii), or 
the joint life and last survivor expectancy of the Participant and the Participant’s spouse as 
determined under the Joint and Last Survivor Table set forth in Section 1.401(a)(9)-9 of the Treasury 



2135543_9 X-6 

regulations, using the Participant’s and spouse’s attained ages as of the Participant’s and spouse’s 
birthdays in the calendar year that contains the annuity starting date. 

(e) Requirements For Minimum Distributions After the Participant’s Death: 

(i) Death After Distributions Begin.  If the Participant dies after 
distribution of his or her interest begins in the form of an annuity meeting the requirements of this 
Article, the remaining portion of the Participant’s interest will continue to be distributed over the 
remaining period over which distributions commenced. 

(ii) Death Before Distributions Begin. 

(1) Participant Survived by Designated Beneficiary.  If the 
Participant dies before the date distribution of his or her interest begins and there is a Designated 
Beneficiary, the Participant’s entire interest will be distributed, beginning no later than the time 
described in Subsection (b)(ii)(1) or (2), over the life of the Designated Beneficiary or over a period 
certain not exceeding: 

a. unless the annuity starting date is before the first 
Distribution Calendar Year, the life expectancy of 
the Designated Beneficiary determined using the 
beneficiary’s age as of the beneficiary’s birthday in 
the calendar year immediately following the calendar 
year of the Participant’s death; or 

b. if the annuity starting date is before the first 
Distribution Calendar Year, the life expectancy of the 
Designated Beneficiary determined using the 
beneficiary’s age as of the beneficiary’s birthday in 
the calendar year that contains the annuity starting 
date. 

(2) No Designated Beneficiary.  If the Participant dies before the 
date distributions begin and there is no Designated Beneficiary as of September 30 of the year 
following the year of the Participant’s death, distribution of the Participant’s entire interest will be 
completed by December 31 of the calendar year containing the fifth anniversary of the Participant’s 
death. 

(3) Death of Surviving Spouse Before Distributions to Surviving 
Spouse Begin.  If the Participant dies before the date distribution of his or her interest begins, the 
Participant’s surviving spouse is the Participant’s sole Designated Beneficiary, and the surviving 
spouse dies before distributions to the surviving spouse begin, this Subsection (3) will apply as if the 
surviving spouse were the Participant, except that the time by which distributions must begin will be 
determined without regard to Subsection (b)(ii)(1). 

(f) Definitions (effective January 1, 2023): 

(i) Applicable Age. 



2135543_9 X-7 

(1) In the case of an individual who attains age 70 before July 1, 
2019, the Applicable Age is 70 ½.  

(2) In the case of an individual who attains age 70 on or after 
July 1, 2019, the Applicable Age is 72. 

(3) In the case of an individual who attains age 72 after 
December 31, 2022, and age 73 before January 1, 2033, the Applicable Age is 73. 

(ii) Designated Beneficiary.  The individual who is designated as the 
beneficiary under Section 6.2 of the Plan and is the Designated Beneficiary under Section 401(a)(9) 
of the Internal Revenue Code and Section 1.401(a)(9)-4 of the Treasury regulations. 

(iii) Distribution Calendar Year.  A calendar year for which a minimum 
distribution is required.  For distributions beginning before the Participant’s death, the first 
Distribution Calendar Year is the calendar year immediately preceding the calendar year which 
contains the Participant’s Required Beginning Date.  For distributions beginning after the 
Participant’s death, the first Distribution Calendar Year is the calendar year in which distributions 
are required to begin pursuant to Subsection (b)(ii). 

(iv) Eligible Designated Beneficiary.  An Eligible Designated 
Beneficiary is the individual designated by the Participant (or the Participant’s surviving Spouse) 
and who will receive the Participant’s interest under the plan and who is: 

(1) The surviving Spouse of the Participant, 

(2) A child of the Participant who has not reached majority, 

(3) Disabled, 

(4) A chronically ill individual, or 

(5) An individual not described above who is not more than 10 
years younger 

(v) Life Expectancy.  Life expectancy as computed by use of the Single 
Life Table in Section 1.401(a)(9)-9 of the Treasury regulations. 

(vi) Required Beginning Date.  The April 1 of the calendar year following 
the later of the calendar year in which the Participant attains the Applicable Age, or the calendar year 
in which the Participant retires. 

 

10.3 Payments Under a Qualified Domestic Relations Order. 

(a) General.  The Employer shall follow the terms of any “Qualified Domestic 
Relations Order” as defined in Subsection (b) below issued with respect to a Participant where 



2135543_9 X-8 

such Qualified Domestic Relations Order grants to an “Alternate Payee” rights in the benefit of 
the Participant. 

(b) The term “Qualified Domestic Relations Order” means an order issued by 
the District Court of the State of Oklahoma pursuant to the domestic relations laws of the State of 
Oklahoma which relates to the provision of marital property rights to a spouse or former spouse 
of a Participant and which creates or recognizes the existence of an Alternate Payee’s right to, or 
assigns to an Alternate Payee the right to receive a portion of the benefits payable with respect to 
a Participant of the Plan. 

(c) To qualify as an Alternate Payee, a spouse or former spouse must have been 
married to the Participant for a period of not less than thirty (30) continuous months immediately 
preceding the commencement of the proceedings from which the Qualified Domestic Relations 
Order issues. 

(d) A Qualified Domestic Relations Order is valid and binding on the Trustees 
and the Participant only if it meets the requirements of this Section. 

(e) A Qualified Domestic Relations Order shall clearly specify: 

(1) the name, social security number, and last-known mailing address 
(if any) of the Participant, and the name and mailing address of the alternative payee covered by 
the order; 

(2) the amount or percentage of the Participant’s benefits to be paid by 
the Plan to the Alternate Payee; 

(3) the characterization of the benefit as to marital property rights, and 
whether the benefit ceases upon the death or remarriage of the Alternate Payee; and, 

(4) each plan to which such order applies. 

(f) A Qualified Domestic Relations Order meets the requirements of this 
Section only if such order: 

(1) does not require the Plan to provide any type or form of benefit, or 
any option not otherwise provided under the Plan; 

(2) does not require the Plan to provide increased benefits; and, 

(3) does not require the payment of benefits to an Alternate Payee which 
are required to be paid to another Alternate Payee pursuant to another order previously determined 
to be a Qualified Domestic Relations Order, or an order recognized by the Plan as a valid order 
prior to the effective date of the Plan. 

(g) A Qualified Domestic Relations Order shall not require payment of benefits 
to an Alternate Payee prior to the actual retirement date of the Participant. 



2135543_9 X-9 

(h) The obligation of the Plan to pay an Alternate Payee pursuant to a Qualified 
Domestic Relations Order shall cease upon the death of the Participant. 

(i) In the event a Qualified Domestic Relations Order requires the benefits 
payable to an Alternate Payee to terminate upon the remarriage of said Alternate Payee, the Plan 
shall terminate said benefit only upon the receipt of a certified copy of a marriage license, or a 
copy of a certified order issued by the Court that originally issued said Qualified Domestic 
Relations Order declaring the remarriage of said Alternate Payee. 

(j) This Section of the Plan shall not be subject to the provisions of the 
Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (ERISA), 29 U.S.C.A. Section 1001, et seq., 
as amended from time to time, or rules and regulations promulgated thereunder, and court cases 
interpreting ERISA. 

(k) The Board of Trustees of the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund shall 
promulgate such rules as are necessary to implement the provisions of this Section. 

(l) An Alternate Payee who has acquired beneficiary rights pursuant to a valid 
Qualified Domestic Relations Order must fully comply with all provisions of the rules promulgated 
by the Trustees pursuant to this Section in order to continue receiving his or her benefits. 

(m) Nothing in this Section shall grant a spouse or former spouse of a Participant 
any property rights in the benefits of any Participant except as specifically authorized for Qualified 
Domestic Relations Orders, and no spousal consent shall be required for a Participant to elect or 
change elections pertaining to a benefit payable under this Plan. 

10.4 Suspension of Benefits After Participant’s Retirement Date.  If a Participant 
receiving a benefit under Articles VII, VIII, IX or X is re-employed by an Employer before he 
attains age 70, then the benefit otherwise payable to that Participant for that month shall be 
suspended.  The Plan may deduct, from any later benefit payments to be made under the Plan, any 
payments made earlier by the Plan for those calendar months when payments should have been 
suspended.  In any one month, however, this deduction may not exceed 25% of the benefit that 
otherwise would be payable for that month.  No payment shall be suspended after the Participant 
attains age 70.  No payment shall be suspended before age 70 until the Committee provides proper 
notification of suspension, which shall include: 

(a) the reason benefits are being suspended; 

(b) a copy of the Suspension of Benefits Plan provisions; 

(c) a statement that applicable Labor Department Regulations are in Section 
2530.203-3 of the Code of Federal Regulations; 

(d) the Plan’s procedure for reviewing any claim regarding the suspension; 

(e) a statement that the Participant must retire for benefits to resume but that no 
special procedure or forms are required; and 



2135543_9 X-10 

(f) a determination of the benefit amount which will be paid at later retirement. 

On the Participant’s later termination of employment, the Normal Retirement Income shall be 
recomputed. 

10.5 Applicable Benefit Provisions.  The determination of the Accrued Benefit to which 
any Participant is entitled shall be governed by the Plan in effect on the date of the Participant’s 
termination of employment. 



2135543_9 XI-1 

ARTICLE XI 

Employment Transfers 

11.1 Transfers From This Plan. 

(a) To Another Category With This Employer:  Effective January 1, 2007, if an 
Employee is employed by the Employer under this Plan and is transferred to employment with this 
Employer but under another department, classification or category, so that he is no longer eligible 
to participate in this Plan, such participation shall thereupon cease and he shall be subject to the 
following rules and requirements relating to this Plan and his rights and benefits hereunder: 

(1) If he is not eligible for a Pension under this Plan as of the date of such 
employment transfer, his Contribution Accumulation shall remain in the Trust Fund and will continue 
to accrue interest but he will not continue to accrue Service for the purpose of meeting eligibility 
requirements for benefits under this Plan, and shall not be entitled to credit for Service while not a 
member under this Plan for the purpose of computing the amount of any benefit under this Plan.   

(b) To Another Municipality:  Effective January 1, 2007, if an Employee’s 
employment by the Employer under this Plan is terminated by virtue of his transfer to employment 
with another Municipality, his participation in this Plan shall thereupon cease and he shall be 
subject to the following rules and requirements relating to this Plan and his right and benefits 
hereunder: 

(1) If he is eligible for a Pension under this Plan as of the date of such 
employment transfer, such transfer shall be treated as his Retirement and thereupon he shall be entitled 
to his Pension; or 

(2) If he is not eligible for a Pension under this Plan as of the date of such 
employment transfer, and he is, upon such transfer of employment, covered by the retirement plan 
under which such other Municipality participates in the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund, his 
Contribution Accumulation shall remain in the Fund and will continue to accrue interest, and he will 
continue to accrue Service for the purpose of meeting eligibility requirements for benefits under this 
Plan, but shall not be entitled to credit for Service while not a member under this Plan for the purpose 
of computing the amount of any benefit under this Plan and upon so meeting such eligibility 
requirements for benefits, he or his Beneficiaries shall be entitled to such benefits. 

11.2 Transfers to This Plan. 

(a) From Another Category with This Employer:  Effective January 1, 2007, if 
a person becomes an Employee and a Participant under this Plan upon his transfer from full-time, 
regular employment with this Employer under another department, classification or category 
where he is ineligible for membership only because of the type of such employment, his Service 
accrued by virtue of such prior employment shall not be counted in determining his eligibility for 
benefits hereunder and not in computing the amount of such benefits, and he shall also be subject 



2135543_9 XI-2 

to all the other provisions of this Plan, provided such transfer occurred prior to the adoption of this 
Plan. 

(b) From Another Municipality for all Employees Hired After January 1, 2007:  
If a person becomes an Employee and a Participant under this Plan after January 1, 2007 and upon 
his transfer from full-time, regular employment with a Municipality other than this Employer, his 
Service accrued by virtue of such prior employment shall be counted in determining his eligibility 
and vesting for benefits hereunder, but not in computing the amount of such benefits, and he shall 
also be subject to all the other provisions of this Plan.  Provided, however, no such Service shall 
be counted if the Participant was not 100% vested in the other Municipality’s qualified retirement 
plan and the Participant received a distribution of his benefit under such Plan. 

(c) From Another Municipality for All Current Employees as of January 1, 
2007:  If a person was an employee as of January 1, 2007, and became an Employee immediately 
upon his transfer from full-time, regular employment with a Municipality other than this Employer, 
his Service accrued by virtue of such prior employment shall be counted in determining his 
eligibility and vesting for benefits hereunder, but not in computing the amount of such benefits, 
and he shall also be subject to all the other provisions of this Plan.   

(d) Previously Fully Vested With Another Municipality:  Effective January 1, 
2007, with respect to a Participant who was previously 100% vested in any Municipality’s 
qualified retirement plan prior to becoming a Participant in this Plan, such Participant’s “Service” 
for purposes of determining years of service for eligibility and vesting under this Plan shall include 
the Participant’s last continuous period during which the Participant was an employee of the 
Municipality. 

11.3 Notice of Transfers.  After any transfer of employment referred to in Sections 11.1 
or 11.2, the transferred Employee shall give written notice of such transfer to the Committee.  Such 
Employee shall not be penalized, however, for failure to give such notice. 



2135543_9 XII-1 

ARTICLE XII 

General Benefit Provisions 

12.1 Re-employment of Former Employees.  If an Employee’s employment is 
terminated before he is eligible for a Pension and the Employee is subsequently re-employed by 
the Employer, the Employee shall not receive any credit for his previous period of employment. 

12.2 Re-employment of Retired Employees.  If a former Employee who retired under 
this Plan is re-employed before January 1, 2010 by the Employer, and again becomes an Employee 
under the Plan, no pension payments shall be made during the period of such re-employment.  
Upon the subsequent termination of employment by such an Employee the Employee shall be 
entitled to receive a Pension the amount of which is computed on the basis of his Basic Monthly 
Salary and Service with the Employer prior to the date of his previous Retirement, as well as his 
Basic Monthly Salary and Service with the Employer during the period of his re-employment.  In 
this event, and notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, the Employee’s Pension 
computation shall be based on two percent (2%) of Basic Monthly Salary for any Service prior to 
July 1, 2006, and two and one-half percent (2.5%) of Basic Monthly Salary for Service on or after 
July 1, 2006.  In the case of re-employment of a retired Employee who received any Pension 
payments prior to his reemployment, the Pension payable upon his subsequent Retirement shall be 
reduced by the Actuarial Equivalent of any Pension payments, except Disability Pension 
payments, he received prior to his Normal Retirement Date during his previous period of 
Retirement.  

12.3 Rights of Previously Retired Participants.  Participants and Beneficiaries who have 
been receiving pension benefits prior to the Effective Date hereof shall continue to receive the 
same amount of pension benefits such Participants or Beneficiaries were receiving under the 
Predecessor Plan prior to such Effective Date. 

12.4 Benefits Payable Only Upon Retirement, Death, Disability or Other Termination of 
Employment.  Benefits shall become payable only at the date(s) expressly and specifically 
provided for in this Plan upon a Participant’s retirement, Disability, death or other termination of 
employment.  Accordingly, no payment of benefits beyond the scope of the previous sentence shall 
be permissible under the Plan. 

 



2135543_9 XIII-1 

ARTICLE XIII 

Limitations 

13.1 Limitations on Benefits Relating to Section 415 of Internal Revenue Code of 1986: 

(a) Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein to the contrary, the 
benefits payable to a Participant from the Plan provided by employer contributions (including 
contributions picked up by the employer under Code Section 414(h)) shall be subject to the 
limitations of Code Section 415 in accordance with the provisions of this Article.  The limitations 
of this Article shall apply in limitation years beginning on or after July 1, 2007, except as otherwise 
provided below. 

(b) Except as provided below, effective for limitation years ending after 
December 31, 2007, any accrued retirement benefit otherwise payable to a Participant under the 
Plan at any time shall not exceed the Maximum Permissible Benefit.  If the benefit the Participant 
would otherwise accrue in a Limitation Year would produce an Annual Benefit in excess of the 
Maximum Permissible Benefit, the benefit shall be limited (or the rate of accrual reduced) to a 
benefit that does not exceed the Maximum Permissible Benefit. 

(c) If the Participant is, or has ever been, a Participant in another qualified 
defined benefit plan (without regard to whether the Plan has been terminated) maintained by the 
Employer or a predecessor employer, the sum of the Participant’s Annual Benefits from all such 
plans may not exceed the Maximum Permissible Benefit.  Where the Participant’s Employer-
provided benefits under all such defined benefit plans (determined as of the same age) would 
exceed the Maximum Permissible Benefit applicable at that age, the Employer will apply the 
benefit accrual limit first to the plan that is not a broad-based participation plan.  

(d) The application of the provisions of this Article shall not cause the 
Maximum Permissible Benefit for any Participant to be less than the Participant’s accrued benefit 
under all the defined benefit plans of the Employer or a predecessor employer as of the end of the 
last Limitation Year beginning before July 1, 2007 under provisions of the plans that were both 
adopted and in effect before April 5, 2007.  The preceding sentence applies only if the provisions 
of such defined benefit plans that were both adopted and in effect before April 5, 2007 satisfied 
the applicable requirements of statutory provisions, regulations, and other published guidance 
relating to Code Section 415 in effect as of the end of the last Limitation Year beginning before 
July 1, 2007, as described in Treas. Reg. Section 1.415(a)-1(g)(4). 

(e) The limitations of this Article shall be determined and applied taking into 
account the rules in Section 13.6.  

13.2 Definitions:   For purposes of calculating the limitations which are otherwise 
applicable to a Participant pursuant to Section 415 of the Code and this Plan, the following 
definitions shall apply. 

(a) Annual Benefit:  A benefit that is payable annually in the form of a straight 
life annuity.  Except as provided below, where a benefit is payable in a form other than a straight 
life annuity, the benefit shall be adjusted to an actuarially equivalent straight life annuity that 



2135543_9 XIII-2 

begins at the same time as such other form of benefit and is payable on the first day of each month 
before applying the limitations of this Article.  For a Participant who has or will have distributions 
commencing at more than one annuity starting date, the Annual Benefit shall be determined as of 
each such annuity starting date (and shall satisfy the limitations of this Article as of each such 
date), actuarially adjusting for past and future distributions of benefits commencing at the other 
annuity starting dates.  For this purpose, the determination of whether a new starting date has 
occurred shall be made without regard to Treas. Reg. Section 1.401(a)-20, Q&A 10(d), and with 
regard to Treas. Reg. Section 1.415(b)-1(b)(1)(iii)(B) and (C).  

No actuarial adjustment to the benefit shall be made for (a) survivor benefits payable to a surviving 
spouse under a qualified joint and survivor annuity to the extent such benefits would not be payable 
if the Participant’s benefit were paid in another form; (b) benefits that are not directly related to 
retirement benefits (such as a qualified disability benefit, preretirement incidental death benefits, 
and postretirement medical benefits); or (c) the inclusion in the form of benefit of an automatic 
benefit increase feature, provided the form of benefit is not subject to Code Section 417(e)(3) and 
would otherwise satisfy the limitations of this Article, and the Plan provides that the amount 
payable under the form of benefit in any Limitation Year shall not exceed the limits of this Article 
applicable at the annuity starting date, as increased in subsequent years pursuant to Code Section 
415(d).  For this purpose, an automatic benefit increase feature is included in a form of benefit if 
the form of benefit provides for automatic, periodic increases to the benefits paid in that form.  

The determination of the Annual Benefit shall take into account Social Security supplements 
described in Code Section 411(a)(9) and benefits transferred from another defined benefit plan, 
other than transfers of distributable benefits pursuant to Treas. Reg. Section 1.411(d)-4, Q&A-
3(c), but shall disregard benefits attributable to employee contributions or rollover contributions.  
Effective for distributions in Plan Years beginning after December 31, 2003, the determination of 
actuarial equivalence of forms of benefit other than a straight life annuity shall be made in 
accordance with Section 13.2(a)(1) or Section 13.2(a)(2).  

(1) Benefit Forms Not Subject to §417(e)(3):  The straight life annuity that is 
actuarially equivalent to the Participant’s form of benefit shall be determined under this Section 
10.2(a)(1) if the form of the Participant’s benefit is either (1) a nondecreasing annuity (other than 
a straight life annuity) payable for a period of not less than the life of the Participant (or, in the 
case of a qualified pre-retirement survivor annuity, the life of the surviving spouse), or (2) an 
annuity that decreases during the life of the Participant merely because of (a) the death of the 
survivor annuitant (but only if the reduction is not below 50% of the benefit payable before the 
death of the survivor annuitant), or (b) the cessation or reduction of Social Security supplements 
or qualified disability payments (as defined in Code Section 401(a)(11)).  

(i) Limitation Years beginning before July 1, 2007.  For Limitation Years 
beginning before July 1, 2007, the actuarially equivalent straight life annuity is equal to the annual 
amount of the straight life annuity commencing at the same annuity starting date that has the same 
actuarial present value as the Participant’s form of benefit computed using whichever of the 
following produces the greater annual amount:  (I) the interest rate specified in Section 2.1(b) of 
the Plan and the mortality table (or other tabular factor) specified in Section 2.1(b) of the Plan for 
adjusting benefits in the same form; and (II) a 5 percent interest rate assumption and the applicable 
mortality table defined in Section 2.1(b) of the Plan for that annuity starting date.  



2135543_9 XIII-3 

(ii) Limitation Years beginning on or after July 1, 2007.  For Limitation Years 
beginning on or after July 1, 2007, the actuarially equivalent straight life annuity is equal to the 
greater of (1) the annual amount of the straight life annuity (if any) payable to the Participant under 
the Plan commencing at the same annuity starting date as the Participant’s form of benefit; and (2) 
the annual amount of the straight life annuity commencing at the same annuity starting date that 
has the same actuarial present value as the Participant’s form of benefit, computed using a 5 
percent interest rate assumption and the applicable mortality table defined in Section 2.1(b) of the 
Plan for that annuity starting date.  

(2) Benefit Forms Subject to Code Section 417(e)(3):  The straight life annuity that is 
actuarially equivalent to the Participant’s form of benefit shall be determined under this paragraph 
if the form of the Participant’s benefit is other than a benefit form described in Section 13.2(a)(1).  
In this case, the actuarially equivalent straight life annuity shall be determined as follows:  

(i) Annuity Starting Date in Plan Years Beginning After 2005.  Except as 
provided in Section 13.2(a)(2)(iii), if the annuity starting date of the Participant’s form of benefit 
is in a Plan Year beginning after December 31, 2005, the actuarially equivalent straight life annuity 
is equal to the greatest of: 

(a) The annual amount of the straight life annuity commencing at the 
same annuity starting date that has the same actuarial present value as the Participant’s 
form of benefit, computed using the interest rate and the mortality table (or other tabular 
factor) specified in the Plan for adjusting benefits in the same form;  
 

(b)  The annual amount of the straight life annuity commencing at the 
same annuity starting date that has the same actuarial present value as the Participant’s 
form of benefit, computed using a 5.5 percent interest rate assumption and the applicable 
mortality table for the distribution under Regulations Section 1.417(e)-1(d)(2) (determined 
in accordance with Section 13.2(a)(2)(v) for Plan Years after the effective date specified 
below); and 
 

(c)  The annual amount of the straight life annuity commencing at the 
same annuity starting date that has the same actuarial present value as the Participant’s 
form of benefit, computed using the applicable interest rate for the distribution under 
Regulations Section 1.417(e)-1(d)(3) (determined in accordance with Section 13.2(a)(2)(v) 
for Plan Years on or after January 1, 2008 and the applicable mortality table for the 
distribution under Regulations Section 1.417(e)-1(d)(2) (determined in accordance with 
Section 10.2(a)(2)(v) for Plan Years after the effective date specified below), divided by 
1.05. 
 
The effective date of the applicable mortality table above is for years beginning after 
December 31, 2008. 
 

(ii) Annuity Starting Date in Plan Years Beginning in 2004 or 2005.  If the 
annuity starting date of the Participant’s form of benefit is in a Plan Year beginning in 2004 or 
2005, the actuarially equivalent straight life annuity is equal to the annual amount of the straight 
life annuity commencing at the same annuity starting date that has the same actuarial present value 



2135543_9 XIII-4 

as the Participant’s form of benefit, computed using whichever of the following produces the 
greater annual amount:  (I) the interest rate specified in Section 2.1(b) of the Plan and the mortality 
table (or other tabular factor) specified in Section 2.1(b) of the Plan for adjusting benefits in the 
same form; and (II) a 5.5 percent interest rate assumption and the applicable mortality table for the 
distribution under Treas. Reg. Section 1.417(e)-1(d)(2).  

However, this Section does not supersede any prior election to apply the transition rule of section 
101(d)(3) of PFEA as described in Notice 2004-78. 
 

(iii) Annuity Starting Date in small plans for Plan Years Beginning in 2009 and 
later.  If the annuity starting date of the Participant’s form of benefit is in a Plan Year beginning 
in or after 2009, and if the Plan is maintained by an eligible employer as defined Code Section 
408(p)(2)(C)(i), the actuarially equivalent straight life annuity is equal to the annual amount of the 
straight life annuity commencing at the same annuity starting date that has the same actuarial 
present value as the Participant’s form of benefit, computed using whichever of the following 
produces the greater annual amount:  

(a)  The interest rate and the mortality table (or other tabular factor) 
specified in the Plan for adjusting benefits in the same form; and  
 

(b)  A 5.5 percent interest rate assumption and the applicable mortality 
table described in Section 13.2(a)(2)(iv). 
 

(iv) Definition of “Applicable Mortality Table.”  Effective for annuity starting 
dates in a Plan Year beginning on or after January 1, 2008, for purposes of this Article, the 
“applicable mortality table” means the applicable mortality table within the meaning of Code 
Section 417(e)(3)(B) as described in Revenue Ruling 2007-67. 

(v) Applicable interest rate.  For purposes of the Plan’s provisions relating to 
the calculation of the present value of a benefit payment that is subject to Code Section 417(e), as 
well as any other Plan provision referring directly or indirectly to the “applicable interest rate” or 
“applicable mortality table” used for purposes of Code Section 417(e), any provision prescribing 
the use of the annual rate of interest on 30-year U.S. Treasury securities shall be implemented by 
instead using the rate of interest determined by applicable interest rate described by Code Section 
417(e) after its amendment by PPA. Specifically, the applicable interest rate shall be the adjusted 
first, second, and third segment rates applied under the rules similar to the rules of Code Section 
430(h)(2)(C) for the calendar month (lookback month) before the first day of the Plan Year in 
which the annuity starting date occurs (stability period).  For this purpose, the first, second, and 
third segment rates are the first, second, and third segment rates which would be determined under 
Code Section 430(h)(2)(C) if: 

(a) Code Section 430(h)(2)(D) were applied by substituting the average 
yields for the month described in the preceding paragraph for the average yields for the 24-
month period described in such section, and 
 

(b) Code Section 430(h)(2)(G)(i)(II) were applied by substituting 
“Section 417(e)(3)(A)(ii)(II) for “Section 412(b)(5)(B)(ii)(II),” and 



2135543_9 XIII-5 

 
(c) The applicable percentage under Code Section 430(h)(2)(G) is 

treated as being 20% in 2008, 40% in 2009, 60% in 2010, and 80% in 2011.  
 

(b) Compensation:  Compensation is defined as wages, differential wage payments 
under Code Section 3401(h) made after December 31, 2008, salaries, and fees for professional 
services and other amounts received (without regard to whether or not an amount is paid in cash) 
for personal services actually rendered in the course of employment with the employer maintaining 
the Plan to the extent that the amounts are includible in gross income (including, but not limited 
to, commissions paid salespersons, compensation for services on the basis of a percentage of 
profits, commissions on insurance premiums, tips, bonuses, fringe benefits, and reimbursements, 
or other expense allowances under a nonaccountable plan (as described in Treas. Reg. Section § 
1.62-2(c), and excluding the following:  

(i) Employer contributions (other than elective contributions described in Code 
Sections 402(e)(3), 408(k)(6), 408(p)(2)(A)(i), or 457(b)) to a plan of deferred compensation 
(including a simplified employee pension described in Code Section 408(k) or a simple retirement 
account described in Code Section 408(p), and whether or not qualified) to the extent such 
contributions are not includible in the employee’s gross income for the taxable year in which 
contributed, and any distributions (whether or not includible in gross income when distributed) 
from a plan of deferred compensation (whether or not qualified); 

(ii) Amounts realized from the exercise of a nonstatutory stock option (that is, 
an option other than a statutory stock option as defined in Treas. Reg. Section  1.421-1(b)), or 
when restricted stock (or property) held by the employee either becomes freely transferable or is 
no longer subject to a substantial risk of forfeiture:  

(iii) Amounts realized from the sale, exchange or other disposition of stock 
acquired under a statutory stock option;  

(iv) Other amounts that receive special tax benefits, such as premiums for 
group-term life insurance (but only to the extent that the premiums are not includible in the gross 
income of the employee and are not salary reduction amounts that are described in Code Section 
125);  

(v) Other items of remuneration that are similar to any of the items listed in (i) 
through (iv).  

For Limitation Years beginning more than 90 days after the close of the first regular legislative 
session of the legislative body with authority to amend the Plan that begins on or after July 1, 2007, 
compensation for a Limitation Year shall also include compensation paid by the later of 2½ months 
after an employee’s severance from employment with the employer maintaining the Plan or the 
end of the Limitation Year that includes the date of the employee’s severance from employment 
with the employer maintaining the Plan, if the payment is regular compensation for services during 
the employee’s regular working hours, or compensation for services outside the employee’s 
regular working hours (such as overtime or shift differential), commissions, bonuses, or other 



2135543_9 XIII-6 

similar payments, and, absent a severance from employment, the payments would have been paid 
to the employee while the employee continued in employment with the employer. 

Any payments not described above shall not be considered compensation if paid after severance 
from employment, even if they are paid by the later of 2½ months after the date of severance from 
employment or the end of the Limitation Year that includes the date of severance from 
employment, except, payments to an individual who does not currently perform services for the 
employer by reason of qualified military service (within the meaning of Code Section 414(u)(1)) 
to the extent these payments do not exceed the amounts the individual would have received if the 
individual had continued to perform services for the employer rather than entering qualified 
military service.  

Back pay, within the meaning of Treas. Reg. Section 1.415(c)-2(g)(8), shall be treated as 
compensation for the Limitation Year to which the back pay relates to the extent the back pay 
represents wages and compensation that would otherwise be included under this definition.  

For Limitation Years beginning after December 31, 1997, or Compensation paid or made available 
during such Limitation Year shall include amounts that would otherwise be included in 
compensation but for an election under Code Sections 125(a), 402(e)(3), 402(h)(1)(B), 402(k), or 
457(b). 

For Limitation Years beginning after December 31, 2000, Compensation shall also include any 
elective amounts that are not includible in the gross income of the employee by reason of Code 
Section 132(f)(4).  

For Limitation Years beginning after December 31, 2001, Compensation shall also include deemed 
Code Section 125 Compensation.  Deemed Code Section 125 compensation is an amount that is 
excludable under Code Section 106 that is not available to a Participant in cash in lieu of group 
health coverage under a Code Section 125 arrangement solely because the Participant is unable to 
certify that he or she has other health coverage. Amounts are deemed Code Section 125 
compensation only if the employer does not request or otherwise collect information regarding the 
Participant’s other health coverage as part of the enrollment process for the health plan.  

(c) Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation:  Effective for Limitation Years ending after 
December 31, 2001, the Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation is $160,000, automatically adjusted 
under Code Section 415(d) for increases in the cost-of-living, effective January 1 of each year, as 
published in the Internal Revenue Bulletin, and payable in the form of a straight life annuity.  The 
new limitation shall apply to Limitation Years ending with or within the calendar year of the date 
of the adjustment, but a Participant’s benefits shall not reflect the adjusted limit prior to January 1 
of that calendar year. 

(d) Employer:  For purposes of this Article, employer shall mean the employer that 
adopts this plan, and all members of a controlled group of corporations, as defined in Code Section 
414(b), as modified by Code Section 415(h)), all commonly controlled trades or businesses (as 
defined in Code Section 414(c), as modified, except in the case of a brother-sister group of trades 
or businesses under common control, by Code Section 415(h)), or affiliated service groups (as 



2135543_9 XIII-7 

defined in Code Section 414(m)) of which the adopting employer is a part, and any other entity 
required to be aggregated with the employer pursuant to Code Section 414(o).  

(e) Formerly Affiliated Plan of the Employer:  A plan that, immediately prior to the 
cessation of affiliation, was actually maintained by the employer and, immediately after the 
cessation of affiliation, is not actually maintained by the employer.  For this purpose, cessation of 
affiliation means the event that causes an entity to no longer be considered the employer, such as 
the sale of a member controlled group of corporations, as defined in Code Section 414(b), as 
modified by Code Section 415(h), to an unrelated corporation, or that causes a plan to not actually 
be maintained by the employer, such as transfer of plan sponsorship outside a controlled group.  

(f) Limitation Year: The Plan Year:  All qualified plans maintained by the employer 
must use the same Limitation Year.  If the Limitation Year is amended to a different 12-
consecutive month period, the new Limitation Year must begin on a date within the Limitation 
Year in which the amendment is made.  

(g) Maximum Permissible Benefit:  The Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation (adjusted 
where required, as provided below).  

(1) Adjustment for Less Than 10 Years of Participation:  If the Participant has 
less than 10 years of participation with the Employer, the Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation shall 
be multiplied by a fraction -- (i) the numerator of which is the number of Years (or part thereof, 
but not less than one year) of Participation in the Plan, and (ii) the denominator of which is 10. 

(2) Adjustment of Defined-Benefit-Dollar Limitation for Benefit 
Commencement Before Age 62 or after Age 65:  Effective for benefits commencing in Limitation 
Years ending after December 31, 2001, the Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation shall be adjusted if 
the annuity starting date of the Participant’s benefit is before age 62 or after age 65.  If the annuity 
starting date is before age 62, the Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation shall be adjusted under 
Subsection (g)(2)(i), as modified by (g)(2)(iii).  If the annuity starting date is after age 65, the 
Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation shall be adjusted under Subsection (g)(2)(ii), as modified by, 
Subsection (g)(2)(iii),  

(i) Adjustment of Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation for Benefit 
Commencement Before Age 62. 

I. Limitation Years Beginning Before July 1, 2007.  If the annuity 
starting date for the Participant’s benefit is prior to age 62 and occurs in a Limitation Year 
beginning before July 1, 2007, the Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation for the Participant’s annuity 
starting date is the annual amount of a benefit payable in the form of a straight life annuity 
commencing at the Participant’s annuity starting date that is the actuarial equivalent of the Defined 
Benefit Dollar Limitation (adjusted under Subsection (g)(1) above for years of participation less 
than 10, if required)  with actuarial equivalence computed using whichever of the following 
produces the smaller annual amount:  (1) the interest rate specified in Section 2.1(b) of the Plan 
and the mortality table (or other tabular factor) specified in Section 2.1(b) of the Plan; or (2) a 5-
percent interest rate assumption and the applicable mortality table as defined in Section 2.1(b) of 
the Plan. 



2135543_9 XIII-8 

II. Limitation Years Beginning on or After July 1, 2007. 

A. Plan Does Not Have Immediately Commencing Straight 
Life Annuity Payable at Both Age 62 and the Age of Benefit Commencement.  If the annuity 
starting date for the Participant’s benefit is prior to age 62 and occurs in a Limitation Year 
beginning on or after July 1, 2007, and the Plan does not have an immediately commencing straight 
life annuity payable at both age 62 and the age of benefit commencement, the Defined Benefit 
Dollar Limitation for the Participant’s annuity starting date is the annual amount of a benefit 
payable in the form of a straight life annuity commencing at the Participant’s annuity starting date 
that is the actuarial equivalent of the Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation (adjusted under Section 
13.2(g)(1) for years of participation less than 10, if required)  with actuarial equivalence computed 
using a 5 percent interest rate assumption and the applicable mortality table for the annuity starting 
date as defined in Section 2.1(b) of the Plan (and expressing the Participant’s age based on 
completed calendar months as of the annuity starting date).  

B. Plan Has Immediately Commencing Straight Life Annuity 
Payable at Both Age 62 and the Age of Benefit Commencement.  If the annuity starting date for 
the Participant’s benefit is prior to age 62 and occurs in a Limitation Year beginning on or after 
July 1, 2007, and the Plan has an immediately commencing straight life annuity payable at both 
age 62 and the age of benefit commencement, the Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation for the 
Participant’s annuity starting date is the lesser of the limitation determined under Section 
13.2(g)(2)(i)(II)(A), and the Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation (adjusted under Section 13.2(g)(1) 
for years of participation less than 10, if required) multiplied by the ratio of the annual amount of 
the immediately commencing straight life annuity under the Plan at the Participant’s annuity 
starting date to the annual amount of the immediately commencing straight life annuity under the 
Plan at age 62, both determined without applying the limitations of this Article.  

(ii) Adjustment of Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation for Benefit 
Commencement After Age 65:  

I. Limitation Years Beginning Before July 1, 2007.  If the annuity 
starting date for the Participant’s benefit is after age 65 and occurs in a Limitation Year beginning 
before July 1, 2007, the Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation for the Participant’s annuity starting 
date is the annual amount of a benefit payable in the form of a straight life annuity commencing at 
the Participant’s annuity starting date that is the actuarial equivalent of the Defined Benefit Dollar 
Limitation (adjusted under subsection (g)(1) above for years of participation less than 10, if 
required)  with actuarial equivalence computed using whichever of the following produces the 
smaller annual amount:  (1) the-interest rate specified in Section 2.1(b) of the Plan and the 
mortality table (or other tabular factor) specified in Section 2.1(b) of the Plan; or (2) a 5-percent 
interest rate assumption and the applicable mortality table as defined in Section 2.1(b) of the Plan.  

II. Limitation Years Beginning On or After July 1, 2007. 

A. Plan Does Not Have Immediately Commencing Straight Life Annuity Payable at 
Both Age 65 and the Age of Benefit Commencement.  If the annuity starting date for the 
Participant’s benefit is after age 65 and occurs in a Limitation Year beginning on or after July 1, 
2007, and the Plan does not have an immediately commencing straight life annuity payable at both 



2135543_9 XIII-9 

age 65 and the age of benefit commencement, the Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation at the 
Participant’s annuity starting date is the annual amount of a benefit payable in the form of a straight 
life annuity commencing at the Participant’s annuity starting date that is the actuarial equivalent 
of the Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation (adjusted under Subsection (g)(1) for years of 
participation less than 10, if required)with actuarial equivalence computed using a 5 percent 
interest rate assumption and the applicable mortality table for that annuity starting date as defined 
in Section 2.1(b) of the Plan (and expressing the Participant’s age based on completed calendar 
months as of the annuity starting date).  

B. Plan Has Immediately Commencing Straight Life Annuity Payable at Both Age 65 
and the Age of Benefit Commencement.  If the annuity starting date for the Participant’s benefit 
is after age 65 and occurs in a Limitation Year beginning on or after July 1, 2007, and the Plan has 
an immediately commencing straight life annuity payable at both age 65 and the age of benefit 
commencement, the Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation at the Participant’s annuity starting date is 
the lesser of the limitation determined under Subsection (g)(2)(ii)II.A., and the Defined Benefit 
Dollar Limitation (adjusted under Subsection (g)(1) for years of participation less than 10, if 
required) multiplied by the ratio of the annual amount of the adjusted immediately commencing 
straight life annuity under the Plan at age 65, both determined without applying the limitations of 
this Article.  For this purpose, the adjusted immediately commencing straight life annuity under 
the Plan at the Participant’s annuity starting date is the annual amount of such annuity payable to 
the Participant, computed disregarding the Participant’s accruals after sixty-five (65) years of age 
but including actuarial adjustments even if those actuarial adjustments are used to offset accruals; 
and the adjusted immediately commencing straight life annuity under the Plan at sixty-five (65) 
years of age is the annual amount of such annuity that would be payable under the Plan to a 
hypothetical member who is sixty-five (65) years of age and has the same accrued benefit as the 
Participant. 

(iii) Notwithstanding the other requirements of this Subsection (g)(2), in 
adjusting the Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation for the Participant’s annuity starting date under 
Subsections (g)(2)(i)I. and (g)(2)(i)II.A., (g)(2)(ii)I., (g)(2)(ii)II.A., no adjustment shall be made 
to the Defined Benefit Dollar Limitation to reflect the probability of a Participant’s death between 
the annuity starting date and age 62, or between age 65 and the annuity starting date, as applicable, 
if benefits are not forfeited upon the death of the Participant prior to the annuity starting date.  To 
the extent benefits are forfeited upon death before the annuity starting date, such an adjustment 
shall be made.  For this purpose, no forfeiture shall be treated as occurring upon the Participant’s 
death if the Plan does not charge Participants for providing a qualified preretirement survivor 
annuity, as defined in Code Section 417(c), upon the Participant’s death.  

(iv) Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary, for limitation years 
beginning on or after January 1, 1997, if payment begins before the Participant reaches sixty-two 
(62) years of age, the reductions in the limitations in this subsection shall not apply to a Participant 
who is a “qualified participant” as defined in Section 415(b)(2)(H) of the Code. 

(3) Minimum benefit permitted:  Notwithstanding anything else in this section to the 
contrary, the benefit otherwise accrued or payable to a Participant under this plan shall be deemed 
not to exceed the Maximum Permissible Benefit if:  



2135543_9 XIII-10 

(i) the retirement benefits payable for a Limitation Year under any form of 
benefit with respect to such Participant under this plan and under all other defined benefit plans 
(without regard to whether a plan has been terminated) ever maintained by the employer do not 
exceed $10,000 multiplied by a fraction — (I) the numerator of which is the Participant’s number 
of Years (or part thereof, but not less than one year) of Service (not to exceed 10) with the 
employer, and (II) the denominator of which is 10; and  

(ii) the employer (or a predecessor employer) has not at any time maintained a 
defined contribution plan in which the Participant participated (for this purpose, mandatory 
employee contributions under a defined benefit plan, individual medical accounts under Code 
Section 401(h), and accounts for postretirement medical benefits established under Code Section 
419A(d)(1) are not considered a separate defined contribution plan).  

(4) For limitation years beginning on or after January 1, 1995, subsection (g)(1) of this 
Section, subsection (g)(1)(i) of this Section, and the proration provided under  subsection (g)(3)(i) 
of this Section, shall not apply to a benefit paid under the Plan as a result of the Participant 
becoming disabled by reason of personal inquiries or sickness or amounts received by the 
beneficiaries, survivors or estate of the Participant as a result of the death of the Participant. 

(5) Effective for years beginning after December 31, 1997, if a member repays to the 
Plan any amounts received because of the Participant’s prior termination pursuant to Section 10.11 
of this Plan, such repayment shall not be taken into account for purposes of Section 415 of the 
Code pursuant to Code Section 415(k)(3). 

(6) For distributions made in limitation years beginning on or after January 1, 2000, 
the combined limit of repealed Code Section 415(e) shall not apply. 

13.3 Predecessor Employer:  If the employer maintains a plan that provides a benefit 
which the Participant accrued while performing services for a former employer, the former 
employer is a predecessor employer with respect to the Participant in the Plan.  A former entity 
that antedates the employer is also a predecessor employer with respect to a Participant if, under 
the facts and circumstances, the employer constitutes a continuation of all or a portion of the trade 
or business of the former entity.  

13.4 Severance from Employment:  An employee has a severance from employment 
when the employee ceases to be an employee of the employer maintaining the Plan.  An employee 
does not have a severance from employment if, in connection with a change of employment, the 
employee’s new employer maintains the Plan with respect to the employee.  

13.5 Year of Participation:  The Participant shall be credited with a Year of Participation 
(computed to fractional parts of a year) for each accrual computation period for which the 
following conditions are met:  (1) the Participant is credited with the period of service for benefit 
accrual purposes, required under the terms of the Plan in order to accrue a benefit for the accrual 
computation period, and (2) the Participant is included as a Participant under the eligibility 
provisions of the Plan for at least one day of the accrual computation period.  If these two 
conditions are met, the portion of a year of participation credited to the Participant shall equal the 
amount of benefit accrual service credited to the Participant for such accrual computation period.  



2135543_9 XIII-11 

A Participant who is permanently and totally disabled within the meaning of Code 
Section 415(c)(3)(C)(i) for an accrual computation period shall receive a Year of Participation 
with respect to that period.  In addition, for a Participant to receive a Year of Participation (or part 
thereof) for an accrual computation period, the Plan must be established no later than the last day 
of such accrual computation period.  In no event shall more than one Year of Participation be 
credited for any 12-month period.  

13.6 Other Rules: 

(a) Benefits Under Terminated Plans:  If a defined benefit plan maintained by the 
employer has terminated with sufficient assets for the payment of benefit liabilities of all plan 
Participants and a Participant in the Plan has not yet commenced benefits under the Plan, the 
benefits provided pursuant to the annuities purchased to provide the Participant’s benefits under 
the terminated plan at each possible annuity starting date shall be taken into account in applying 
the limitations of this Article.  If there are not sufficient assets for the payment of all Participants’ 
benefit liabilities, the benefits taken into account shall be the benefits that are actually provided to 
the Participant under the terminated plan.  

(b) Benefits Transferred From the Plan:  If a Participant’s benefits under a defined 
benefit plan maintained by the employer are transferred to another defined benefit plan maintained 
by the employer and the transfer is not a transfer of distributable benefits pursuant Treas. Reg. 
Section 1.411(d)-4, Q&A-3(c), the transferred benefits are not treated as being provided under the 
transferor plan (but are taken into account as benefits provided under the transferee plan).  If a 
Participant’s benefits under a defined benefit plan maintained by the employer are transferred to 
another defined benefit plan that is not maintained by the employer and the transfer is not a transfer 
of distributable benefits pursuant to Treas. Reg. Section 1.411(d)-4, Q&A-3(c), the transferred 
benefits are treated by the employer’s plan as if such benefits were provided under annuities 
purchased to provide benefits under a plan maintained by the employer that terminated 
immediately prior to the transfer with sufficient assets to pay all Participants’ benefit liabilities 
under the Plan.  If a Participant’s benefits under a defined benefit plan maintained by the employer 
are transferred to another defined benefit plan in a transfer of distributable benefits pursuant Treas. 
Reg. Section 1.411(d)-4, Q&A-3(c), the amount transferred is treated as a benefit paid from the 
transferor plan.  

(c) Formerly Affiliated Plans of the Employer:  A formerly affiliated plan of an 
employer shall be treated as a plan maintained by the employer, but the formerly affiliated plan 
shall be treated as if it had terminated immediately prior to the cessation of affiliation with 
sufficient assets to pay Participants’ benefit liabilities under the Plan and had purchased annuities 
to provide benefits.  

(d) Plans of a Predecessor Employer:  If the employer maintains a defined benefit plan 
that provides benefits accrued by a Participant while performing services for a predecessor 
employer, the Participant’s benefits under a plan maintained by the predecessor employer shall be 
treated as provided under a plan maintained by the employer.  However, for this purpose, the Plan 
of the predecessor employer shall be treated as if it had terminated immediately prior to the event 
giving rise to the predecessor employer relationship with sufficient assets to pay Participants’ 
benefit liabilities under the Plan, and had purchased annuities to provide benefits; the employer 



2135543_9 XIII-12 

and the predecessor employer shall be treated as if they were a single employer immediately prior 
to such event and as unrelated employers immediately after the event; and if the event giving rise 
to the predecessor relationship is a benefit transfer, the transferred benefits shall be excluded in 
determining the benefits provide under the Plan of the predecessor employer.  

(e) Special Rules:  The limitations of this Article shall be determined and applied 
taking into account the rules in Treas. Reg. Section 1.415(f)-1(d), (e) and (h).  

(f) Aggregation with Multiemployer Plans:  If the employer maintains a multiemployer 
plan, as defined in Code Section 414(f), and the multiemployer plan so provides, only the benefits 
under the multiemployer plan that are provided by the employer shall be treated as benefits 
provided under a plan maintained by the employer for purposes of this Article.  



2135543_9 XIV-1 

ARTICLE XIV 

Provisions Relating to Participants 

14.1 Information Required of Participants.  Payment of benefits shall begin as of the 
payment date(s) provided in this Plan and no formal claim shall be required therefor; provided, in 
the interests of orderly administration of the Plan, the Committee may make reasonable requests 
of Participants and Beneficiaries to furnish information which is reasonably necessary and 
appropriate to the orderly administration of the Plan, and, to that limited extent, payments under 
the Plan are conditioned upon the Participants and Beneficiaries promptly furnishing true, full and 
complete information as the Committee may reasonably request. 

14.2 Participants’ Right in the Plan.  No Participant or other person shall have any 
interest in, or right to, any part of the earnings of the Plan or any part of the assets thereof, except 
as and to the extent expressly provided in the Plan.  No Participant may sell, assign, discount or 
pledge as collateral for a loan or as security for the performance of an obligation or for any other 
purpose his interest in the Contract to any other person other than the issuer thereof. 

14.3 Abandonment of Benefits. 

(a) If, anytime following the date either of a Participant, Eligible Spouse or 
Beneficiary of a deceased Participant becomes entitled to receive any non-deferred benefits under 
the Plan, then, if the whereabouts of such Participant, Eligible Spouse or Beneficiary is unknown, 
the benefits may be forfeited in certain limited circumstances as provided hereafter.  If the 
Committee has mailed to the Participant, Eligible Spouse or Beneficiary on or about any 
Anniversary Date notice of the present right to receive benefits, and the Committee continues to 
mail such notice for two following consecutive Anniversary Dates (for a total of three consecutive 
Anniversary Dates), then, upon the fourth consecutive Anniversary Date, if no claim has been 
received, the amount representing unclaimed benefits (including those holding Employee 
contributions) can be forfeited. 

(b) Each Participant, Eligible Spouse and Beneficiary shall file with the 
Committee, from time to time in writing, their post office address and each change of post office 
address, if any, and the Committee shall not be obliged to search for or ascertain the whereabouts 
of any Participant, Eligible Spouse or Beneficiary.  Any communication addressed to a Participant, 
Eligible Spouse or Beneficiary at their last post office address filed with the Committee, or if no 
such address was filed, then at their last post office address as shown on the Employer’s records, 
shall be binding on the Participant, the Eligible Spouse and Beneficiary for all purposes of the Plan 
and Trust. 

(c) In the event that the whereabouts of a lost Participant, lost Eligible Spouse 
or lost Beneficiary of a deceased Participant, ever becomes known to the Committee, and either of 
such parties makes a claim for benefits, the Committee shall, if the Plan is in existence, reinstate 
any benefits which have been previously forfeited to satisfy such claim; provided, the amount 
reinstated shall, in any event, be equal to the amount of the forfeited benefit.  For purposes of this 
Subsection (c), the limitations under Section 415 of the Code shall not apply. 



2135543_9 XIV-2 

14.4 Benefits Payable to Incompetents.  Any pension benefits payable hereunder to a 
minor or other person under legal disability may be made to a valid power of attorney, a court 
appointed guardian, or any other person authorized under state law to receive the benefit.  The 
Committee shall not be required to see to the application of any such payment, and the payee’s 
receipt shall be a full and final discharge of the Employer’s or Committee’s responsibility 
hereunder. 

14.5 Conditions of Employment Not Affected by Plan.  The establishment and 
maintenance of the Plan shall not be construed as conferring any legal rights upon any Participant 
to the continuation of employment with the Employer, nor shall the Plan interfere with the rights 
of the Employer to discharge any Participant with or without cause. 

 



2135543_9 XV-1 

ARTICLE XV 

Administration 

15.1 Allocation of Responsibility Among Fiduciaries for Plan Administration.  The 
fiduciaries shall have only those specific powers, duties, responsibilities and obligations as are 
specifically given them under the Plan.  In general, the City shall have the sole responsibility for 
(i) appointing and removing Committee members, as provided in Section 15.2 herein, (ii) making 
Contributions and (iii) amending (except as expressly delegated herein to the City) or terminating, 
in whole or in part, this Plan or the Trust.  The Committee shall have the sole responsibility for the 
administration of the Plan which responsibility is specifically described in this Plan and the 
agreement governing the Plan.  The Trustees shall have the sole responsibility for (i) the 
administration of the Plan and (ii) the management of the assets held under the Plan, all as 
specifically provided in the Agreement governing the Plan.  Each fiduciary warrants that any 
directions given, information furnished, or action taken by it shall be in accordance with the 
provisions of the Plan or the Agreement governing the Plan, as the case may be, authorizing or 
providing for such direction, information or action.  Furthermore, each fiduciary may rely upon 
any such direction, information or action or another fiduciary as being proper under this Plan or 
the Plan, and is not required to inquire into the propriety of any such direction, information or 
action.  It is intended that each fiduciary shall be responsible for the proper exercise of its own 
powers, duties, responsibilities and obligations under this Plan and Trust and to the extent 
permitted by law shall not be responsible for any act or failure to act of another fiduciary.  No 
fiduciary guarantees the assets of the Plan in any manner against investment loss or depreciation 
in asset value. 

15.2 Appointment of Committee.  The Plan shall be administered by a Committee 
consisting of the vice-mayor, city manager and the city attorney of the City.  The members of the 
Committee shall not be required to make bond, nor shall they be entitled to any compensation or 
fee for their services as members of the Committee.  All usual and reasonable expenses of the 
Committee may be paid in whole or in part by the City, and any expenses not paid by the City 
shall be paid by the Trustee out of the principal or income of the Plan. 

15.3 Claims Procedure.  The Committee shall make all determinations as to the right of 
any person to pension benefits.  If any request for a pension benefit is wholly or partially denied, 
the Committee shall notify the person requesting the pension benefits, in writing, of such denial, 
including in such notification the following information: 

(a) the specific reason or reasons for such denial; 

(b) the specific references to the pertinent Plan provisions upon which the 
denial is based; 

(c) a description of any additional material and information which may be 
needed to clarify the request, including an explanation of why such information is required; and 

(d) an examination of this Plan’s review procedure with respect to denial of 
pension benefits. 



2135543_9 XV-2 

Provided, that any such notice to be delivered to any Participant, Eligible Spouse or Beneficiary 
shall be mailed by certified or registered mail and shall be written to the best of the Committee’s 
ability in a manner that may be understood without legal counsel. 

15.4 Review Procedure.  Any Participant, Eligible Spouse or Beneficiary whose claim 
has been denied in accordance with Section 15.3 herein may appeal to the Committee for review 
of such denial by making a written request therefor within 60 days of receipt of the notification of 
such denial.  Such Participant, Eligible Spouse or Beneficiary may examine documents pertinent 
to the review and may submit to the Committee written issues and comments.  Within 60 days 
after receipt of the request for review, the Committee shall communicate to the claimant, in writing, 
its decision, and the communication shall set forth the reason or reasons for the decision and 
specific reference to those Plan provisions upon which the decision is based. 

15.5 Other Committee Powers and Duties.  The Committee in its sole discretion shall 
have such duties and powers as may be necessary to discharge its duties hereunder, including, but 
not by way of limitation, the following: 

(a) to construe and interpret the Plan, decide all questions of eligibility and 
determine the amount, manner and time of payment of any pension benefits hereunder; 

(b) to prescribe procedures to be followed by Participants, Eligible Spouses or 
Beneficiaries filing applications for pension benefits; 

(c) to prepare and distribute, in such manner as the Committee determines to 
be appropriate, information explaining the Plan; 

(d) to receive from the Employer and from Participants, Eligible Spouses and 
Beneficiaries such information as shall be necessary for the proper administration of the Plan; 

(e) to furnish the Employer, upon request, such annual reports with respect to 
the administration of the Plan as are reasonable and appropriate; 

(f) to receive, review and keep on file (as it deems convenient or proper) reports 
of the financial condition, and of the receipts and disbursements, of the Plan from the Trustees; 

(g) to appoint and employ individuals and any other agents it deems advisable, 
including legal counsel, to assist in the administration of the Plan and to render advice with respect 
to any fiduciary responsibility of the Committee, or any of its individual members, under the Plan; 

(h) to appoint or employ investment advisors, including an “investment 
manager”; 

(i) to allocate among themselves who shall be responsible for specific fiduciary 
duties and to designate fiduciaries (other than Committee members) to carry out fiduciary 
responsibilities (other than Trustee responsibilities) under the Plan; provided that any such 
allocations shall be reduced to writing, signed by all Committee members, and filed in a permanent 
Committee minute book; and 



2135543_9 XV-3 

(j) to maintain continuing review of the Plan, and suggest changes and 
modifications to the Employer in connection with delegations of responsibility, as appropriate, and 
amendments to the Plan.  The Committee shall have no power to add to, subtract from or modify 
any of the terms of the Plan, or to change or add to any pension benefits provided by the Plan, or 
to waive or fail to apply any requirements of eligibility for pension benefits under the Plan. 

15.6 Rules and Decisions.  The Committee may adopt such rules as it deems necessary, 
desirable, or appropriate.  All rules and decisions of the Committee shall be uniformly and 
consistently applied to all Participants and Beneficiaries in similar circumstances.  When making 
a determination or calculation, the Committee shall be entitled to rely upon information furnished 
by a Participant, Eligible Spouse or Beneficiary, the Employer, the legal counsel of the Employer, 
or the Trustee. 

15.7 Committee Procedures.  The Committee may act at a meeting or in writing without 
a meeting.  The Committee may elect one of its members a chairman, appoint a secretary, who 
may or may not be a Committee member, and advise the Trustee of such actions in writing.  The 
secretary shall keep a record of all meetings in a permanent Committee minute book and forward 
all necessary communications to the Employer or the Trustee.  The Committee may adopt such 
bylaws and regulations as it deems desirable for the conduct of its affairs.  All decisions of the 
Committee shall be made by the vote of the majority including actions in writing taken without a 
meeting.  A dissenting Committee member who, within a reasonable time after he has knowledge 
of any action or failure to act by the majority, registers his dissent in writing delivered to the other 
Committee members, to the extent permitted by law, shall not be responsible for any such action 
or failure to act. 

15.8 Authorization of Benefit Payments.  The Committee shall issue directions to the 
Trustees concerning all pension benefits which are to be paid from the Plan pursuant to the 
provisions of the Plan, and warrants that all such directions are in accordance with this Plan. 

15.9 Application and Forms for Benefits.  The Committee may make reasonable 
requirements upon Participants, Eligible Spouses and Beneficiaries to complete and file with the 
Committee applications for pension benefits and all other forms approved by the Committee, and 
to furnish all pertinent information requested by the Committee.  The Committee may rely upon 
all such information so furnished it, including the Participant’s, Eligible Spouse’s and 
Beneficiary’s, current mailing addresses. 

15.10 Serving in More Than One Capacity.  An individual person may serve in more than 
one capacity as a fiduciary, and specifically without limitation, an individual person may serve as 
a member of an employee benefits committee of any other pension plan of the Employer. 

15.11 Funding Policy.  Based on reasonably anticipated needs, including retirements and 
other terminations of employment, the Committee shall at least annually review Plan investments 
and the current list of Participants under the Plan and determine, the short-term liquidity needs of 
the Plan which are reasonably necessary to pay any pension benefits or pay any costs and expenses 
which may be required in the foreseeable near future.  The Committee shall communicate such 
needs to the Trustees, or other person responsible for investments, so that investment policy can 



2135543_9 XV-4 

be coordinated with the Plan’s short and long term liquidity needs.  All decisions and policy 
declarations shall be recorded in writing. 



2135543_9 XVI-1 

ARTICLE XVI 

Amendment and Termination 

16.1 Right to Amend Plan.  The Plan may be amended by the City Council of the City 
from time to time in any respect whatsoever by an ordinance adopted by the City Council in 
accordance with the City’s ordinances, subject to the following limitations:  

(a) Under no condition shall such amendment result in or permit the return or 
repayment to the City of any property held or acquired by the Trustee or the proceeds hereof, or 
result in or permit the distribution of any such property for the benefit of anyone other than the 
Participants and their Eligible Spouses, Beneficiaries, or joint pensioners, except to the extent 
specifically provided herein with respect to expenses of administration and termination of the Plan, 
respectively. 

(b) Under no condition shall such amendment change the duties or 
responsibilities of the Trustee hereunder without the written consent of the Trustee. 

Subject to the foregoing limitations, any amendments may be made retroactively, which in the 
judgment of the Committee is necessary or advisable, provided that such retroactive amendment 
does not deprive a Participant, without his consent, of a right to receive benefits hereunder which 
have already accrued and matured to such Participant, except such modification or amendment as 
shall be necessary to comply with any laws or regulations of the United States or of any state to 
qualify this as a tax exempt plan and trust. 

16.2 No Reduction of Accrued Benefit.  No amendment to the Plan (including a change 
in the actuarial basis for determining optional or early retirement benefits) shall be effective to the 
extent that it has the effect of decreasing a Participant’s Accrued Benefit.  Notwithstanding the 
preceding sentence, Participant’s Accrued Benefit may be reduced to the extent permitted under 
Section 412(c)(8) of the Code.  For purposes of this Section, an amendment to the Plan which has 
the effect of (1) eliminating or reducing an early retirement benefit or a retirement-type subsidy, 
or (2) eliminating an optional form of benefit, with respect to benefits attributable to service before 
the amendment shall be treated as reducing Accrued Benefits.  In the case of a retirement-type 
subsidy, the preceding sentence shall apply only with respect to a Participant who satisfies (either 
before or after the amendment) the preamendment conditions for the subsidy.  In general, a 
retirement-type subsidy is a subsidy that continues after retirement, but does not include a qualified 
disability benefit, a medical benefit, a social security supplement, a death benefit (including life 
insurance), or a plant shutdown benefit (that does not continue after the Participant’s Normal 
Retirement Age).  Furthermore, no amendment to the plan shall have the effect of decreasing a 
Participant’s vested Accrued Benefit determined without regard to such amendment as of the later 
of the date such amendment is adopted, or becomes effective. 

16.3 Right to Terminate Plan. 

(a) City Reserves Right to Terminate Plan.  The City expressly reserves the 
right to terminate this Plan in whole or in part at any time.  If the City elects to terminate the Plan, 



2135543_9 XVI-2 

the City Council of the City shall adopt a resolution in accordance with its applicable ordinances 
and other law approving such termination. 

(b) Payment to Participants.  If this Plan is terminated or if there is a complete 
discontinuance of Contributions under this Plan, the Plan will be liquidated after payment of 
expenses of such liquidation, by the order of priority and the sequence hereinafter set forth. 

(1) The Contribution Accumulation of each Employee or former 
Employee entitled thereto under Article IV, as of the date of such Plan termination, or earlier date 
of death or Retirement, less other benefit payments, if any, previously received in each case by or 
on behalf of each such Employee, former Employee, or other eligible Beneficiary.  Any such 
withdrawals on the part of such persons will reduce their interests in distributions under categories 
(2), (3), and (4) below, on a proportionate basis, as determined by the actuary.  Any such person 
may elect not to take such withdrawals, and have the value thereof included in the actuary’s 
determination of his distributions under categories (2), (3), and (4)  below. 

(2) Pension benefits with respect to Participants whose active 
retirement date preceded the date of termination of the Plan. 

(3) Pension benefits with respect to Participants whose Normal 
Retirement Date preceded the date of termination of the Plan but had not actually retired. 

(4) Accrued pension benefits with respect to Participants (a) 
who have terminated employment with a nonforfeitable interest and (b) who are actively employed 
with a nonforfeitable interest. 

If there is any balance remaining in the Trust Fund after the provision for payment of benefits in 
the preceding provisions of this Section 16.3, such balance will be reallocated among the 
Participants in the Plan in the ratio that each Participant’s Accrual Benefit bears to the total of the 
Accrued Benefits of all Participants in the Plan.  If the balance in the fund is insufficient to provide 
in full the benefit in accordance with the provisions of this Section 16.3, the amount of such benefit 
to be provided in accordance with such provisions will be prorated in a nondiscriminatory manner 
so that the application of such benefits will exhaust the Trust Fund.  The Committee shall 
determine the method of distribution of the assets value, that is, whether distribution shall be made 
by payment in cash or maintenance of another substantive trust fund, or the purchase of insured 
annuities or in kind based on the then market value for each class of Participants and other persons 
entitled to a benefit under the Plan. 

(c) Full Vesting.  In the event the Employer terminates the Plan or in the event 
there is a partial termination of the Plan or in the event of a complete discontinuance of required 
Contributions (but not a temporary suspension), then, in such event, the Participants shall be 100% 
vested in their respective Accrued Benefits to the extent then funded. 

(d) Termination Subject to Rules in Plan.  In the event of any termination of the 
Plan, and distribution of Benefits are made from the Plan, all such distributions will satisfy the 
rules for distribution as contained in Article X hereof. 



2135543_9 XVI-3 

16.4 Rollover to Another Plan or IRA.  Notwithstanding any provision of the Plan to the 
contrary that would otherwise limit a Distributee’s election under this Section, a Distributee may 
elect, at the time and in the manner prescribed by the Committee, to have any portion of an Eligible 
Rollover Distribution paid directly to an Eligible Retirement Plan specified by the Distributee in a 
Direct Rollover.  The Committee shall establish procedures for implementing such Direct Rollover 
distribution. 

(a) Definitions.  For purposes of this Section 16.4, the following definitions 
shall apply: 

(i) “Eligible Rollover Distribution”:  An “Eligible Rollover 
Distribution” is any distribution of all or any portion of the balance to the credit of the Distributee, 
except that an Eligible Rollover Distribution does not include: any distribution that is one of a 
series of substantially equal periodic payments (not less frequently than annually) made for the life 
(or life expectancy) of the Distributee or the joint lives (or joint life expectancies) of the Distributee 
and the Distributee’s designated Beneficiary, or for a specified period of ten years or more; any 
distribution to the extent such distribution is required under Section 401(a)(9) of the Code; and the 
portion of any distribution that is not includable in gross income.  With respect to distributions 
made after December 31, 2001, a portion of a distribution shall not fail to be an eligible rollover 
distribution merely because the portion consists of after-tax employee contributions which are not 
includible in gross income.  However, such portion may be paid only to an individual retirement 
account or annuity described in Section 408(a) or (b) of the Code (a “traditional IRA”) or a Roth 
individual account or annuity described in Section 408A of the Code (a “Roth IRA”), or to a 
qualified defined contribution, defined benefit or annuity plan described in Section 401(a) or 
403(a) of the Code, or to an annuity contract described in Section 403(b) of the Code, if such plan 
or contract provides for separate accounting for amounts so transferred (including interest thereon), 
including separately accounting for the portion of such distribution which is includible in gross 
income and the portion of such distribution which is not so includible.  

(ii) “Eligible Retirement Plan”:  An “Eligible Retirement Plan” is an 
individual retirement account described in Section 408(a) of the Code, an individual retirement 
annuity described in Section 408(b) of the Code, an annuity plan described in Section 403(a) of 
the Code, a qualified trust described in Section 401(a) of the Code, an annuity contract described 
in Section 403(b) of the Code, an eligible plan under Section 457(b) of the Code which is 
maintained by a state, political subdivision of a state, or any agency or instrumentality of a state 
or political subdivision of a state and which agrees to separately account for amounts transferred 
into such plan from this Plan, or, effective January 1, 2008, a Roth IRA described in Code Section 
408A(b), that accepts the Distributee’s Eligible Rollover Distribution.  However, in the case of an 
Eligible Rollover Distribution to the surviving spouse or the Participant’s surviving Beneficiary, 
an Eligible Retirement Plan is an individual retirement account or individual retirement annuity.  
The definition of Eligible Retirement Plan shall also apply in the case of a distribution to a 
surviving spouse, or to a spouse or former spouse who is the alternate payee under a qualified 
domestic relation order, as defined in Section 414(p) of the Code.  If any portion of an Eligible 
Rollover Distribution is attributable to payments or distributions from a designated Roth account, 
an Eligible Retirement Plan with respect to such portion shall include only another designated 
Roth account of the individual from whose account the payments or distributions were made, or a 
Roth IRA of such individual.  In the case of a nonspouse beneficiary, the direct rollover may be 



2135543_9 XVI-4 

made only to an individual retirement account or annuity described in Code Section 408(a) or 
408(b) (“IRA”) that is established on behalf of the designated Beneficiary and that will be treated 
as an inherited IRA pursuant to the provisions of Code Section 402(c)(ii).  Further, the 
determination of any required minimum distribution under Code Section 401(a)(9) that is 
ineligible for rollover shall be made in accordance with IRS Notice 2007-7, Q&A 17 and 18, 2007-
5 I.R.B. 395.  

(iii) “Distributee”:  A “Distributee” includes the Participant or former 
Participant.   In addition, the employee's or former employee's surviving spouse and the employee's 
or former employee's spouse or former spouse who is the alternate payee under a qualified 
domestic relations order, as defined in § 414(p) of the Code, are distributees with regard to the 
interest of the spouse or former spouse. For distributions occurring in plan years beginning after 
December 31, 2009 (or in any earlier plan year beginning after December 31, 2006 as may be 
specified in the adoption agreement), a distributee also includes the participant’s nonspouse 
designated beneficiary under Section 2.1(f) of the Plan. In the case of a nonspouse beneficiary, the 
direct rollover may be made only to a traditional IRA or Roth IRA that is established on behalf of 
the designated beneficiary and that will be treated as an inherited IRA pursuant to the provisions 
of Section 402(c)(11) of the Code. Also, in this case, the determination of any required minimum 
distribution under Section 401(a)(9) that is ineligible for rollover shall be made in accordance with 
Notice 2007-7, Q&A 17 and 18, 2007-5 I.R.B. 395. 

(iv) “Direct Rollover”:  A “Direct Rollover” is a payment by the Plan 
directly to the Eligible Retirement Plan specified by the Distributee. 



2135543_9 XVII-1 

ARTICLE XVII 

Miscellaneous Provisions 

17.1 Articles and Section Titles and Headings.  The titles and headings at the beginning 
of each Article and Section shall not be considered in construing the meaning of any provisions in 
this Plan. 

17.2 Laws of Oklahoma to Govern.  The provisions of this Plan shall be construed, 
administered and enforced according to the Laws of the State of Oklahoma.  All Contributions to 
the Plan shall be deemed to take place in the State of Oklahoma. 

17.3 No Contract Between Employer and Participant.  Neither the creation of this Plan, 
nor any amendment to it, nor the creation of any fund, nor the payment of benefits hereunder shall 
be construed as giving any legal or equitable right to any Participant against the Employer or 
against the Oklahoma Municipal Retirement Fund, except as provided herein, and all liabilities 
under this Plan shall be satisfied, if at all, only out of the Fund held by the Oklahoma Municipal 
Retirement Fund.  Participation in the Plan shall not give any Participant any right to be retained 
in the employ of the Employer, and the Employer hereby expressly retains the right to hire and 
discharge any Participant at any time with or without cause, as if this Plan had not been adopted, 
and any such discharged Participant shall have only such rights or interests in the Trust Fund as 
may be specified herein. 

 



2135543_9 XVIII-1 

ARTICLE XVIII 

Medical Benefits for Certain Eligible Retirees 

The provisions of this Article XVIII shall be effective as of July 1, 2006.  This Article XVIII, 
in accordance with Section 401(h) of the Code, sets forth the terms and conditions under which 
Eligible Retirees may be entitled to receive Medical Benefits hereunder.  Unless the context indicates 
to the contrary, or the provisions of this Article XVIII provide otherwise, all provisions and definitions 
contained in the Plan shall apply under this Article XVIII. 

18.1 Definitions and Construction.  For purposes of this Article XVIII, the following 
terms shall have the meaning set forth below when used in the capitalized form and shall supersede 
any similar or inconsistent terms or provisions which appear in the body of the Plan.  

(a) “Eligible Retiree” means any terminated Participant who meets each of the 
following requirements:  

(i) the Participant has completed at least twenty (20) Years of Service 
with the Employer; 

(ii) the Participant is eligible for Normal Retirement Income or Early 
Retirement Income under the Plan; and 

(iii) the Participant terminated employment on or after July 1, 2006. 

A Participant whose employment has been terminated by reason of Disability shall be deemed to be 
an Eligible Retiree if the participant has completed at least fifteen (15) Years of Service with the 
Employer at the time of the commencement of the Disability. 

(b) “Medical Benefits Effective Date” shall be July 1, 2006. 

(c) Effective January 1, 2010, “Medical Benefits” means the premiums for 
medical (including dental and vision) insurance coverage of the Participant, his spouse and eligible 
dependents under the terms of the Medical Plan applicable to an Eligible Retiree.   The amount of 
payments to or on behalf of an Eligible Retiree shall not exceed $10 per month for each whole 
Year of Service with the Employer completed on or before December 31, 2009.  For this purpose, 
Years of Service with the Employer prior to the Medical Benefit Effective Date shall be limited to 
50 years. 

(d) “Medical Plan” means the medical benefits provided under the City of 
Bartlesville Health Insurance Plan. 

18.2 Eligibility for Payment of Medical Benefits.  Eligible Retirees, their spouses and 
eligible dependents are eligible to receive payment of Medical Benefits hereunder on or after the 
Medical Benefit Effective Date solely to the extent (i) they would be eligible to receive such 
Medical Benefits under the Medical Plan, but for the payment of the same under this Article XVIII, 
and (ii) the amount of assets allocated to the separate account under the Trust are sufficient for the 
payment of such Medical Benefits.  Furthermore, in the event that if the Participant dies while still 



2135543_9 XVIII-2 

employed by the Employer, the Participant’s surviving spouse and dependents who are covered by 
the Medical Plan will be eligible to receive payment of Medical Benefits under this Section if the 
Participant would have been an Eligible Retiree if he or she had retired on the date of his or her 
death.  In this regard, the aggregate amount of all payments to or on behalf of an Eligible Retiree 
and his or her covered spouse and dependents shall be subject to all terms and conditions of the 
Medical Plan and shall not exceed the lesser of the amount specified in Section 18.1(c) of the Plan 
or the actual aggregate premium cost for the Eligible Retiree and covered spouse and dependents.  
If the Medical Plan is amended to increase or decrease the Medical Benefits of any Eligible Retiree, 
then such increase or decrease shall automatically be incorporated herein.  Notwithstanding any 
other provision of the Plan, the Employer, in its sole and absolute discretion, may amend or 
terminate the Medical Plan and/or this Article XVIII at any time. 

18.3 Termination of Medical Benefits.  Payment of Medical Expenses hereunder shall 
terminate hereunder as follows: 

(a) With respect to the Eligible Retiree, the earlier of the date of the Eligible 
Retiree’s death or the date on which the Eligible Retiree becomes eligible for Medicare. 

(b) With respect to the spouse or eligible dependent of an Eligible Retiree, the 
earlier of (i) the date on which the Eligible Retiree becomes eligible for Medicare (ii) the date on 
which the spouse or eligible dependent becomes eligible for Medicare, or, in the event that the 
Eligible Retiree dies before becoming eligible for Medicare, the earliest of (x) the date on which 
the Eligible Retiree would have been eligible for Medicare if he or she had survived, (y) the date 
of the spouse or eligible dependent’s death, or (z) the date on which the spouse or eligible 
dependent becomes eligible for Medicare. 

18.4 Funding of Medical Benefits.  Subject to the right reserved to the Employer to 
amend or terminate this Article XVIII (which may result in Medical Benefits provided hereunder 
again becoming primary obligations under the Medical Plan), the Employer in its discretion, may 
make actuarially determined contributions to fund the Medical Benefits provided hereunder or if 
necessary, contributions required to fund projected current year benefits.  Nothing herein shall be 
construed as requiring the Employer to make contributions to fund Medical Benefits under this 
Article XVIII.  The Committee is expressly authorized to cause to be allocated to the separate 
account described in Section 18.5 below a portion of the Employer contributions for each Plan 
Year not to exceed the amount determined by the Plan Actuary to be necessary to fund fully the 
Medical Benefits.  The Medical Benefits so allocated shall be subordinate to the retirement benefits 
provided by the Plan.  In this regard, contributions by the Employer shall be deemed subordinate 
if the aggregate actual contributions credited to such separate account, when added to any amounts 
contributed with respect to any life insurance protection provided under the Plan, do not at any 
time exceed 25% of the total actual contributions to the Plan (other than contributions to fund past 
service credits) for Plan Years during which this Article XVIII is in effect. 

18.5 Separate Account – Recordkeeping.  All contributions for Medical Benefits shall 
be credited to a separate account which shall be maintained under the Trust solely for 
recordkeeping purposes.  At the time the Employer makes any contribution to the Plan, the 
Committee shall designate the portion of such contribution allocable to the funding of Medical 
Benefits.  However, all funds accounted for in the separate account may, but need not be, invested 



2135543_9 XVIII-3 

together with all other assets of the Trust.  When so invested, the gains/losses of such investments 
shall be proportionately allocated between this separate account and the other assets of the Trust.  
In addition, the separate account shall be charged with any payment of Medical Benefits under the 
terms of this Article XVIII. 

18.6 Expenses.  All reasonable expenses of administering the separate account, 
including but not limited to reasonable expenses and compensation of trustees, actuaries, attorneys, 
auditors, investment advisors, investment managers and other consultants, shall be paid out of the 
separate account of the Trust, unless the Employer, in its discretion, elects to pay such amounts on 
behalf of the Plan. 

18.7 Non-Diversion of Separate Account Assets.  Plan assets allocated to the separate 
account for payment of Medical Benefits may not be used for, or diverted to, any other purpose 
(including payment of pension benefits) prior to the satisfaction of all liabilities under this Article 
XVIII to provide for the payment of Medical Benefits.  In this regard, if (i) the Plan is terminated, 
(ii) the requirement that Medical Benefits be provided under this Article XVIII is eliminated by 
amendment, or (iii) the Medical Plan is terminated, Medical Benefits incurred prior to such 
termination or amendment shall be payable under this Article XVIII to the extent then funded.  
Any amounts remaining in the separate account after the satisfaction of all liabilities for such 
Medical Benefits shall be returned to the Employer. 

18.8 Forfeiture.  In the event an individual’s interest in the separate account established 
pursuant to this Article XVIII is forfeited prior to termination of the Plan, an amount equal to the 
amount of such forfeiture shall be applied as soon as practicable thereafter to reduce the Employer 
contributions to fund Medical Benefits provided under this Article XVIII. 

 



 

2135543_9  

EXECUTED as of the ____ day of ________, 2025. 

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA, a 
governmental entity 

By  
 Mayor 

“CITY” 



Agenda Item ___ 
July 7, 2025 

Prepared by Robin Betts, HR Director 
Human Resources Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Discuss and take action to renew our contract with HCC Life Insurance Company.  
 
Attachments: 

Stop loss renewal proposal for 07/01/2025 
HCC Life Insurance Company – Business Associate Agreement  
Stealth Services Contract 

 
II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 

 
The City of Bartlesville uses stop loss insurance to protect the City against large claims on the 
medical insurance plan. The current stop loss limit per individual is $100,000. For example, if a 
covered employees medical claims reach or become more than $100,000 during that fiscal year 
then the stop loss coverage would reimburse the City for any expenses beyond $100,000.  
 
The City’s current stop loss carrier is HCC Life Insurance Company. The contract for the carrier 
is renewed every fiscal year.  
 
This agreement was vetted and approved by Hub International, the City’s benefit consultants. 
The agreement was also sent to Jess Kane for review to approved as to form. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
The budget impact will be a 12.79% increase over last year.  
 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends approval and execution of agreement with HCC Life Insurance Company. 
 

7.d.iii.



Sold Plan 7.1.2025

$33.20
Net

$3.25
$2.06

lncluded
$1.19
$3.1 5

$34.28
Net

$3.25
$2.06

lncluded
$1.19
$3.15

$34.28
Net

$3.25
$2.06

lncluded
$1.19
$3.1 5

$0.s1

146
150

296

296

146
150
296

146
150
296

296

Revised Renewal
UMR

UHC Choice Plus
Optum RX / RX Benefits

Administration Fees -PEPM
Medical

Commission
UM
Complex Conditiona CARE
Network Access Fee
COBRA administration
Extemal PBM lnterface
Medical & Pharmacy inteqration

Estimated Monthly Administration
Estimated Annual Administration

$12,834.56
J1il,014.72

$13,154.24
3157.850.88

$13,154.24
s157.850.88

t Change
% Chanoe

03,E36.{6
2.4*h

$3,8:16.16
2.1*A

Specific Stop Loss Deductible
Aggregating Specific
Contract Type
Covered

Lasers

No New Laser Provision
Rate Cap @ Renewal
Soecific Stoo Loss Premium

Specific Single
Specific Family
Composite

$100,000
125%
24t12

Medical & RX

lncluded
50%

$94.01
$2s4.51
$175.34

$100,000
12504

Paid 36/12
Medical & RX

lncluded
5006

$139.25
$383.48
$263.02

$100,000
125%

Paid 36112
Medical & RX

lncluded
50%

$105.86
$291.52
$199.94

Monthly ISL Premium
Annualized ISL Premium

$51 ,901.96
J622.823.52

$77,852.50
$934,230.00

$59,183.56
s710,202.72

Amwins Gene TheraoY (GTS)

Composite
Monthly GTS Premium
Annual GTS Premium
Total Annualized lSL dGTS Prsmium

$1.99
$s89.04

$7,068.48
3629.892.00

$4.7s
gl,'106.00

tt6,E72.00
39s1.102.00

$4.75
St,'f06.00

$16,872.00
8727.071.72

Aggregate Contract Basis
Annual Maximum Reimbursement
Covered
Aoqrooate PrEmium

24t12
$1,000,000

Medical & RX
$5.90

Paid 36/12
$1,000,000

Medical & RX
$6.41

24t12
$1,000,000

Medical & RX
$6.41

Monthly Agg. Premium
Annualized Aoo. Premium

$1,746.40
$20.9s6.80

$1,897.36
922.768.32

$1,897.36
122.768.32

Total Stoploss 2IGTS Premlum
I Change
% Change
Annuallzed Flred Gost
I Change
% Ghanoe

s650,848.80

$804,863.s2

$973,870.32
$323,021.52

tl9.63cr

11,131,721.20
$it26,857.68

4.61c/o

$2t9,843.04
$98,994.24

15.210h

$sr7,693.92
sr02,E30.$

12.7th
ExDected Claims ('100%) 3s.026.413.63 33.807.491.52 $3,807,491.52

EE
Fam

Composite

$501.42
$1 ,I 93.30
$852.03

$625.16
$1,506.78
$1,071.93

$625.'r6
$1,506.78
$1,071.93

Maxlmum Claims al2S%l t3,783,0r7.04 $,f.759,364.40 $4.759.364.'10
EE Only

Fam
Composite

$626.77
$1,491.62
$1,065.04

$781.45
$1,883.48
$1.339.91

$781.45
$1,883.48
$1,339.91

Total Exoected Annual CosE 33.E31.277 34.939.213 34.7{5.185
$ Change
% Chanqe

$r,107,936
28.920/o

$883,908
23.07%

Total Maximum Annual Costs $4,587.881 $5.89r.086 $5.667.058
$ Change
% Chanoe

$r,303,205
28.41o/o

$1,079,1 78
23.52Yo

Administrator
Network
PBM (Rx)
Stop Loss

Current
UMR

UHC Choice Plus
Optum RX / RX Benefits

HCC

Renewal
UTI,lR

UHC Choice Plus
Optum RX / RX Bensfits

HCC



STOP LOSS INSURANCE
HCC LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY

Three Town Park Commons, 225 TownPark Drive, Suite 350
Kennesaw, Georgia 30144 (800447-0460)

APPLICATION

1. Full Legal Name of Applicant and Address: 2. Applicant is a/an (check one):
Crty of Bartlesville E Single Employer Plan tr Student Plan
401 S Johnstone Ave tr Union or Taft Hartley Plan
Barflesville, OK 74003 tr Association Plan or MEWA
Telephone No.: (918)3384221 tr Other:

3. Policy Period: Efiective Date: 0710112025 Expiration Date:06/3012026
4. Full Legal Name of Affiliates, Subsidiaries and other major locations to be included in coverage:

Address of Afftliates or Subsidiaries:
I None ! See attached listing

5. Nature of Business of the Applicant to be 6. Contact Person at Applicant:
lnsured:
GeneralGovemment, NEC

7. Enter full name of the Medical Benefit Plan(s): City of Barflesville Group Benefit Plan
A signed copy of such Medical Benefit Plan(s) will form part of this contract.

8. Name and Address of Claims Administrator: UMR, lnc. 115 W. Wausau Ave Wausau, Wl 54401

9. Agent of Record: Stealth Partner Group, LLC

10. Estimated lnitial Enrollment: Single: 146 Family: 150 Total Covered Units: 296

11. Retirees Covered: EIYes tr No

12. The Utilization Review vendor will be: CARE - UR

13. Deposit Premium (Minimum of first month's estimated premium): $ 61,080.92
Please review the deposit premium on the Monthly Premium Accounting Worksheet.

14. SPECIFIC STOP LOSS INSURANCE: EIYes tr No
A. Covered Expenses Paid under the Medical Benefit Plan for the following Plan Benefib are covered for

Specffic Stop Loss lnsurance (not included unless checked):
tr Medical E Prescription Drug Card tr Presoiption Drugs Under Medical tr CIher:

B. Specific Deductible in each Policy Period per Covered Person: $100,000
Separate lndividual Specifi c Deductible:

Name Amount per Policy Period
Hudson Hollander $600,000
Alan Gentges $250,000

C. Contract Basis: 36/12
Covered Expenses lncuned trom0710112023 through0613012026, and Paid fom 0710112025 through
06t30t2026.

lf a claim is eligible under two different Contract Bases, it may only be filed for reimbursement in
the earliest Contract Basis under which it is eligible.

D. Specific Policy Period Reimbursement Maximum per Covered Person: Unlimited

E. Monthly Specific Premium Rates:
Single: $105.86 Family: $291.52

F. Specific Percentage Reimbursable. 100o/o

HCCL MSL-2020 APP OK Applicant's lnitials: Page 1 cf4



G. Specific Terminal Liability Option: tr Yes I No
Specific Terminal Liability Option premium per Covered Person per month:

15. AGGREGATE STOP LOSS INSURANCE: tr Yes tr No
A. Covered Expenses Paid under the Medical Benefrt Plan for the following Plan Benefits are mvered for

Aggregate Stop Loss lnsurance (not induded unless checked):
I Medical tr Dental tr Weekly lncome tr Vision tr Presoiption Drug Card
tr Prescription Drugs Under Medical tr Other:

B. Minimum Annual Aggregate Deductible: $4,759,364.40
(Subject to the Definition of Minimum AnnualAggregate Deductible in the Poliry)

C. Contact Basis: 36/12
Covered Expenses lncuned trom0710112023 through06l30l2026, and Paid fom 0710112025 through
06t30t2026.

lf a claim is eligible under two different Contract Bases, it may only be filed for reimbursement in the
earliest Contract Basis under which it is eligible.

D. Aggregate Policy Period Reimbursement Maximum: $'1,000,000

E. Monthly Aggregate Factors:

Monthly
Factors

Single

Family

Combined Medical Dental

$781.45

$1,883.48

Vision PrescriptionWeekly
!ncome

HCCL MSL-2020 APP OK Applicant's lnitials: Page 2 of 4



SPECIAL LIMITATIONS:

HCCL MSL.2OT APP OK Applicant's lnitials: Page 3 of4

F. Aggregate Percentage Reimbursable: 100o/o

G. Loss Limit $100,000
For the purposes of Aggregate Stop Loss lnsurance, the Loss Limit is the maximum amount of Covered
Expenses lncurred by each Covered Person, which can be used to satisfl the AnnualAggregate Deductible.

H. Monthly Deductible Advance Reimbursement Option: D Yes I No

l. Aggregate Terminal Liability Option: tr Yes E No

J. Aggregate Premium:
1. tr Annual Premium payable in advance for Policy Period:
2. E Monthly Premium rate per Covered Unit: Composite:$6.41
3. tr Monthly Deductible Advance Reimbursement premium per Covered Unit per month:
4. tr Aggregate Terminal Liability Option premium per Covered Unit per month:



It is understood and agreed by the Applicant that:

't. The Applicant is financially sound, with sufftcient capital and cash flow to accept the risks inherent in a "self-
funded" health care plan, and

2. The Claims Administrator retained by the Applicant will be considered the Applicant's agent, and not the
Company's agent, and

3. All documentation requested by the Company must be received within 90 days of the Policy effective date,
is subject to review by the Company and may require adjustrnent of rates, factors, and / or Special Limitations
to accommodate for abnormal risks, and

4. The Stop Loss lnsurance applied for herein will not become effective until accepted by the Company, and
5. Premiums are not considered paid untilthe premium check is received by the Company, is paid according

to the rates set forth in the Application, and all items required to issue the Policy have been retumed to the
Company. Premiums are subject to refund should any outstianding poliry requirement not be met within 90
days of the Policy's effective date, and

6. This Application will be attached to and made a part of the Policy issued by the Company, and
7. The Medical Benefit Plan(s) attached shall be the basis of any Stop Loss lnsurance provided by the

Company and such Medical Beneft Plan(s) conforms with allapplicable State and Federal statutes, and
8. Any reimbursement under the Stop Loss lnsurance provided by the Company shall be based on Covered

Expenses Paid by the Applicant in accordance with the Medical Benefit Plan(s) attached hereto, and
9. After diligent and mmplete review, the representations made in this Application, the disclosures made, and

allof the information provided for underwriters to evaluate the risk, are true and complete.

FRAUD STATEMENT:
Any person who knowingly, and with intent to injure, defraud or deceive any insurer, makes any claim for the
proceeds of an insurance policy containing any false, incomplete or misleading information is guilty of a felony.

Full Legal Name of Applicant: City of Barflesville

Dated at this _ day of _, 20-.

fficer / Parher Signature (print name) Licensed Agent Signature

For HCC Life lnsurance Company Use Only: ACCEPTANCE

(print name)

Accepted on behalf of the Company, this _ day of _, 20-
Tite

Policy No.

HCCL MSL.2MO APP OK Page 4 of4



HCC LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
STOP LOSS POLICY

CONTRACT ADVANTAGE PLAN (CAP) ENDORSEMENT

Policy Number: HC141394 Endorsement Number: 1

Policyholder: City of Bartlesville

Effective Date of Endorsemenl: 07 101 12025

You and We agree that the above Policy is amended as follows:

ln exchange for premium considerations provided for on the Application, We guarantee that if You renew Your
Specific Stop Loss lnsurance with Us for the next Policy Period, Your renewal Policy will not contain any additional
Covered Persons with a Separate lndividual Specific Deductible. We reserve the right to cany over to the renewal
Policy any or all Covered Persons that already have a Separate lndividual Specific Deductible shown on the
attached Application.

Additionally, We guarantee that the Specific Monthly Premium Rates on Your renewal Policy will not be increased
more than 50% over the Specific Monthly Premium Rates shown on the Application.

lf You purchase a Split Funded Endorsement, the Splil Funded Liability on Your renewal Policy will increase by
this same percentage.

We may decide not to offer this Endorsement, at our discretion, upon Your next renewal or upon any subsequent
renewal of Your Policy. We also reserye the right to change, modfy or cancel this Endorsement should You
amend or change Your Medical Benefit Plan in any way that materially affects Our risk or liability with regards to
the Policy or this Endorsement, or if Your renewal Policy:

Contains coverage options for Covered Expenses related to Plan Benefits that are different than
those selected on the Application, or
Contains a Policy Period that is longer in duration than the Policy Period shown on the attached
Application, or
Contains coverage for Retirees, if coverage for Retirees was not purchased with the Policy, or
Contains a Specific Deductible that is not equal to the Specific Deductible shown on the attached
Application, or
Contains a Contract Basis that is not identical to the Contract Basis shown on the Application, or
Contains a Specific Percentage Reimbursable that is higher than the Specific Percentage
Reimbursable shown on the Application, or
Contains a Specific Policy Period Reimbursement Maximum that is higherthan the Specffic Policy
Period Reimbursement Maximum shown on the Application.

lf you purchase a Split Funded Endorsement, We reserve the right to change, modify or cancel this Endorsement
if You:

Cancel the Split Funded Endorsement on any renewal Policy, or
Request the Split Funded Liability be decreased on any renewal Policy, or
Request the Split Funded Liability be increased by a percentage less than the increase of the
Specific Monthly Premium Rates as stated in this Endorsement.

2.

3.
4.

5.
6.

7.

1

2
3

HCCL MSL-2020 CAP Page t of 2



HCC LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY
STOP LOSS POLICY

CONTRACT ADVANTAGE PLAN (CAP) ENDORSEMENT

THERE ARE NO POLICY CHANGES UNDER THIS ENDORSEMENT OTHER THAN STATED ABOVE.

City of Bartlesville
Full Legal Name of ApplicanUPolicyholder Signed At / Date Signed

Officer/Parher Signature (print name) Witnessed (Licensed Agent) Signature

FOR HCC LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY USE ONLY:

ACCEPTANCE

Accepted on behalf of the Company, this day of , 20

By:

Title:

HCCL MSL.2O2O CAP Page2ol2



7.d.iv.

















7.d.v.

















,,flilt citYof
tUF hsfJls.sville

Agenda Item _
July 7, 2025

Prepared by Deputy Chief Troy Newell
Police Department

L SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND

Discuss and take possible action to approve a service and lease agreement between Tri County
Technology Center and the Banlesville Police Department, a department of the City of Bartlesville, an

Oklahoma municipal corporation, and a charter city organized and existing pursuant to the Oklahoma
State Constitution ("City of Bartlesville").

Attachments:

Service Agreement
Lease Agreement

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSN

The Bartlesville Police Department believes that this service and lease agreement is necessary to
provide a satellite office/substation and training classroom on the east side of the City of Bartlesville
The Bartlesville Police Department agrees to pay $120.00, annually ($10.00 per month) and provide

one school resource officer annually at no cost to Tri County Technology Center.

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION

Staff recommends that Council review and approve the service and lease agreement between Tri County
Technology Center and the Bartlesville Police Department, a department of the City of Bartlesville, an

Oklahoma municipal corporation. and a charter city organized and existing pursuant to the Oklahoma
State Constitution ("City of Bartlesville").

7.d.vi.



SERVTCE AGREEMENT
2025-2026

Tri County Tech snd CITY OF BARTLESVILLE

This AGREEMENT, by and between the Tri County Tech (hereinafter "TCT") and the CITY

OF BARTLESVILLE, OKIAHOMA, a municipal corporation, (hereinafter "City'')

WHEREAS, TCT is a technology center agreeing to share the cost of policing services

specifically addressing law enforcement and community oriented policing services on

TCT property, and

WHEREAS, TCT is desirous of contractin8 with the City to provide policin8 services in the
interest of public and school safety throuBh promotion of positive influences and

mentorship of the youth in an educational environment.

WHEREAS, TCT and the City are desirous of having one (1) uniformed police officer
(hereinafter referred to as School Resource Officer, or SRO) assigned to the described

policing duties on TCT property during those days/times when TCT is in session and/or
any other days/times agreed upon through TCT and City.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration ofthe mutual covenants and promises

contained herein, the parties agree as follow:

Section I SERVICE AND RESPONSIBILITIES

A, The City shall:

1. Provide one uniformed officer to work as their primary assi8nment /duties in SRO capacity

on TCT property during date/times that TCT is in session (year-round) unless the SRO is

absent due to illness, or other leave time deemed unavailable without prior notice.

2. Provide other routine policing services to TCT as needed in the absence of, or during

dates/times an SRO is unavailable, or as required for policing assistance to the SRO'5.

a. SRO will make every effort to schedule vacation/holiday time off in conjunction with
those dates/times that school is not in session. However, if such time off is Eranted
by the City to an SRO every effort will be made to Bive advanced notification to TCT.

b. DurinB dates/times of illness andlor other unavailable leave time the City, through
the Bartlesville Police Department Patrol Division will assume any routine policing

seNices in the absence of the SRO. During such dates/times a uniformed police

officers will Oqlbc-specifically assigned to the SRO position unless otherwise-

deemed necessary by the police department administration.
3. The City shall equip the one SRO appropriately as deemed necessary by the City for policing

duties to include police vehicle, weapons, uniforms, police badge, other required police

cred€ntials, etc.

4. The City reserves the right to recall the SRO in cases of emergency, natural disaster, or other
manpower shorta8e and make available for assiBnment elsewhere as deemed appropriate
and at the discretion of the Bartlesville Police Department administration.

a. The City will resume sRO duties as described herein once the emergency, natural
disaster, or othea manpower shortage has been resolved and/or ended.



SERVICE AGREEMENT
2025-2026

Tri County Tech rnd CITY OF BARTLESVILLE

5. The City reserves the ri8ht to end this contractual agreement with TCT at anytime with at

least 90 days advanced notice.

B. TCT shall:

1. TCT will provide office space/equipment as deemed necessary for one SRO and at the
discretion of TCT.

2. TCT Shall give at least 90 days advanced notice of intent to end this contractual aBreement with
the city.

Section II TERM OF AGREEMENT

This A8reement shall be in effect as of luly 1, 2025 and shall remain in full force and effect until

June 30, 2026.

This ASreement shall automatically renew upon the same terms and conditions set out h€rein

unless either party notifies the other in writin8 on or before ninety days prior to the expirttio

date that it intends to terminate this aBreement, or that amendment of the same if desired.

Section lll FEE5

ln payment for providinS one School Resource Officer (SROI by the City pursua nt to section I of
this aBreement, TCT aBrees:

A. Lease the StrateBy center BuildinB to the City the sum of 5120.00, annually (S10.m per

monthl and providin8 one (11 School Resource Officer annually at no cost to TCT.

1. BPOwill pay TCT annually the sum due for the lease agreement and one (1) SRO services

provided unless either party desires to end the contractual agreement as set forth
herein.

2. Annual payment will be made usinB the City fiscal year every July through the following

lune.
3. lt is understood bybothTCTandCitythatthe SRO position will be filled atthebe8innins

of this agreement.

rntered into this /ry ot Jl,(.lt{ , zozs

Tri County Te nology Center

25 7V/7n "-- b,n.zr
Cle rk

Attest, City of Ba rtlesville

School Boarffresident

Vice.
Date Date

City Clerk Signature

City Seal

Mayor Signature Date



LEASE AGREEMENT

This LEASE AGREEMENT ("Agreement") is made this l2th day of June,2025, by and
between TRI COUNTY TECHNOLOGY CENTER ("Landlord") and the CITY OF
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA ("Tenant").

RECITALS:

A. Landlord is the owner of the Tri County Technology Center Bartlesville Campus located
at 6l 0l Nowata Road, Bartlesville, Oklahoma ("Campus"). Tenant desires to lease office space on
the Campus from the Landlord for the purpose of providing a satellite office to the Bartlesville
Police Department. The total space to be leased shall consist of 8 offices, one storage room, 2
classrooms, and access to the building's common areas and parking lots (the "Leased Premises").
The Leased Premises are further described and depicted on the floor plan attached hereto as Exhibit
..Arr.

B. Upon the terms and conditions herein stated, Landlord desires to lease existing office
space to Tenant and Tenant desires to lease the office space from Landlord.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and agreements herein
contained, and intending to be legally bound, the parties hereto agree as follows:

l. Lease. Upon the terms and conditions hereinafter stated, Landlord hereby leases the
Leased Premises described above to Tenant and Tenant hereby leases the Leased Premises from
the Landlord. The Landlord reserves the right to relocate the Leased Premises to comparable
space on the Campus, provided the Landlord pays any expenses associated with relocation.

2. Term and Renewal. The term of this Agreement begins on the date of execution and
ends on June 30, 2026, unless terminated at an earlier date as provided herein. Upon the
termination of this Agreement, by lapse of time or otherwise, Tenant agrees to surrender
possession of the Leased Premises to Landlord in good condition and repair, subject to ordinary
wear and tear and subject to damage caused*y fire or other casualties. This Agreement may be

renewed for additional one (l) year periods (running from July I to June 30) by mutual
ratification of renewal by the governing boards of Landlord and Tenant.

3. Rental. For the use and possession of the Leased Premises, Tenant agrees to pay
Landlord rent in the amount $10 per month. The rental amount is subject to change upon mutual
agreement for any renewal period. The Landlord will invoice the Tenant for the rent on a semi-
annual basis at the end of each six-month period and Tenant agrees to pay such invoice promptly
upon receipt. Invoicing and payment schedule may be changed by mutual agreement between the
parties. As additional consideration for the lease of the Leased Premises, Tenant agrees to provide
a regular police presence on the Campus and to park its marked police cars on the Campus' East
and Bartlesville Development Center parking lots.



5. Alterations, Additions or ImDrovements. Landlord agrees to provide reasonable
office fumiture for the Leased Premises. Landlord shall have no other obligation to provide
equipment or to perform other work ofany nature to make the Leased Premises ready for
Tenant's use at any time during the Term of this Agreement. Tenant has inspected the Leased
Premises with these considerations in mind and accepts the same in its present condition.

No alterations, additions, or improvements to the office space may be made by Tenant
without the written consenl ofthe Landlord. Tenant must submit a written proposal to the Landlord
and receive written approval from the Landlord before beginning any alteration, addition, or
improvement.

6. Utilities and Custodial Services. [-andlord shall provide, at Landlord's expense,
normal utility services, including water, heating and air conditioning, sewer, refuse disposal, and

electricity. Routine custodial services will be provided by l,andlord, at Landlord's expense, for
the Leased Premises on a daily basis after normal operation hours.

7. Liabilitv Insurance. Tenant shall furnish Landlord with a certificate ofpublic liability
insurance providing at least One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) of combined single limit coverage.
Tenant's insurance will be primary over any liability insurance of Landlord. The certificate shall
provide for at least ten (10) days'written notice to Landlord before cancellation ofthe policy or
reduction ofthe coverage for any reason, including nonpayment ofthe premium. Tenant agrees
to maintain the above insurance coverage in force and effect during the entire term of this
Agreement. All property of Tenant at the office space shall be there at Tenant's sole risk and
Landlord will not be liable for any loss, theft, damage, destruction ol, vandalism to, or
disappearance ofTenant's property at the office space from any cause or event.

2

4. Use. The space will be used by Tenant for the purpose ofproviding office and meeting
space for Tenant's police officers and for no other purpose. Tenant specifically agrees that it will
not use the Leased Premises for the detention of prisoners or for the storage of weapons and

ammunition. Tenant agrees that its operations in the office space will be in full and strict
compliance with the requirements of applicable state, municipal, and federal laws, rules, and
regulations. ln the event that Landlord reasonably determines that Tenant is not complying with
the provisions of this Agreement conceming the nature and character ofthe operation, Landlord
shall give Tenant written notice. If Tenant fails to correct deficiencies in the operation within
fifteen ( I 5) days after receipt of Landlord's notice, Landlord shall have the right to terminate this
Agreement; provided, however, if the deficiency is of a nature which cannot be reasonably
expected to be cured within fifteen (15) days, Tenant shall commence appropriate curative action
within such fifteen (15) day period and carry such curative action forward diligently until
completing such curing, and in the event ofsuch curing, in accordance with the provisions ofthis
sentence, Landlord shall not have the right to terminate except as otherwise provided in this
Agreement.



8. Indemnification. T'enant shall, to the extent permifted by law, indemnify and hold the
Landlord harmless from and against all liabilities, obligations, damages, claims or actions, and
from all associated costs, including reasonable attorneys'fees, arising from or related to the
Tenant's use and occupancy of the Leased Premises, whether or not created by the Tenant. If
any such action or proceeding is brought against the Landlord, the Tenant, upon written notice
from the Landlord, shall at l'enant's sole cost and expense, resist or defend the same through
counsel satisfactory to Landlord. This indemnity is supplemental to, and not in lieu of, the
insurance required of Tenant. 'l'he parties acknowledge that each are subject to the provisions of
the Government Tort Claims Act (Okla. Stat. tit. 5 l, Sec I 5 I et. seq.).

9. Damase bv Fire or Other Casualty. If the l,eased Premises are destro yed or
substantially damaged by fire or other casualty, either Tenant or Landlord can terminate this Lease.

The office space shall be deemed to be "substantially damaged" ifTenant's use and occupancy is

adversely affected and if, by the exercise ofreasonable diligence on the part ofthe contractor or
contractors involved, such damage could not be reasonably expected to be repaired within one (l)
month after the occurence ofsuch damage.

If to the District: Tammie Strobel, Superintendent
Tri County Tech
6l0l Nowata Road
Bartlesville. OK

If to the Tenant: Jason Muninger, City Clerk
City of Bartlesville
401 S. Johnstone
Bartlesville, OK 74003

All notices shall be sent certified mail, retum receipt requested. Notices mailed rn

accordance with the foregoing shall be deemed to have been delivered five (5) days after deposit
in the U.S. Mail.

I I . Tenant's Default. Tenant's failure to perform any obligation to Landlord arising
under this Agreement within thirty (30) days after notice from Landlord, specifying with
particularity the obligation in which Landlord claims that Tenant is in default. Upon the
occurrence olan uncorrected event ofdefault, after notice and opportunity to cure aforesaid,
Landlord shall have the right to terminate this Agreement and Tenant's rights hereunder,
including the right to occupy the olTice space. Tenant may terminate this Agreement for any
reason upon thirty (30) days'written notice to Landlord.

12. Non-Discrimination. Tenant agrees that it will not discriminate on the basis of race,

color, religion, age, national origin, genetic information, gender, sexual orientation, or
handicapped condition in the conduct of Tenant's programs conducted on the Landlord's property
and in the office space.

3

10. Notices. Any notices required or contemplated under this Agreement shall be

addressed to the parties as follows:



13. Risk of Loss. Landlord shall have no responsibility for any loss of, damage to, or
destruction or disappearance of any of Tenant's property, whether on Landlord premises or in the
Leased Premises, and Tenant assumes the risk of any and all such loss. Tenant understands that
Landlord does not and will not maintain any insurance covering Tenant's property. Tenant waives
any right of subrogation on behalf of its insurance carrier against Landlord for any loss of, damage
to, or destruction or disappearance of Tenant's property, whether occurring on Landlord's premises
or in the Leased Premises.

14. Venue / Governins Law. The laws of the State of Oklahoma shall govern this
Agreement. Any dispute between the parties arising out of this Agreement shall be brought in the
Landlord Court of Washington County, Oklahoma or the United States District Court for the
Northern District of Oklahoma, if federal court jurisdiction exists.

15. Approvals and Consents. In all instances in this Agreement in which any matter is

subject to the agreement of both parties or to the approval or consent of either party, both parties
agree that such approval or consent will not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or delayed.

16. Miscellaneous. This instrument represents the entire understanding between the parties
hereto concerning the subject matter hereof and may be modified only by the mutual written

agreement of the parties. This Agreement shall be binding upon the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. Time is the essence of the obligations of the parties herein. Tenant shall

not advertise or represent that Tenant is sponsored by or affiliated with Landlord.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Lease Agreement as of
the date first above written.

TRI COUNTY TECHNOLOGY CENTER CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA

Vice-
By President, Board of Education

% rtz,",*

By Mayor, "Landlord", "Tenant",

4

Attest

Clerk



esDe I u! +ou
sDero pepD qs :elo N

7

7

,v, +!qlqxl

7

7



7.d.vii.













Agenda Item ___ 
June 26, 2025 

Prepared by Steve Roper 
Engineering 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Review and approval of Right-of-Way Donation Agreements with Sheltre Farms, LLC., Orlina 
and Jeffrey Andrews, and Lansdown Family Trust for additional public right-of-way along both 
sides of Sunset Boulevard. 
 
Attachments: 
 
Sheltre Right-of-Way Donation Agreement 
Sheltre Right-of-Way Deed 
Sheltre Exhibit A – Location Map 
 
Andrews West Right-of-Way Donation Agreement 
Andrews West Right-of-Way Deed 
Andrews West Exhibit A – Location Map 
 
Andrews East West Right-of-Way Donation Agreement 
Andrews East Right-of-Way Deed 
Andrews East Exhibit A – Location Map 
 
Lansdown Right-of-Way Donation Agreement 
Lansdown Right-of-Way Deed 
Lansdown Exhibit A – Location Map 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
One of the priority projects included in the 2020 General Obligation Bond (GO Bond) is the 
rehabilitation of the Sunset Blvd bridge over Butler Creek.  The project will replace the existing 
bridge deck and rehabilitate substructure of the bridge.  The project will also include an add. 
Alternate that would construct a pedestrian bridge, if selected.  Currently right of way is 
insufficient on both sides of the roadway for the project.  Additional right of way is required on 
both sides of Sunset Blvd to accommodate the slopes on the bridge approaches.  Additional right 
of way on the east side of the project is needed to accommodate the proposed pedestrian bridge.   
 
Staff have worked with the property owners to come to agreements.  The City will compensate 
the current owners for actual property assessed value and provide compensation for existing 
property improvements that will be removed for construction and will need to be replaced.  These 
improvements include fences, gates, and trees. 
 

7.d.viii.



The total cost associated with the Sheltre Farms LLC. property is $20,000.00.  This includes 
compensation for the land, fencing, and owner provided clearing and excavation for the relocated 
fence. 
 
The total cost associated with the Lansdown Family Trust property is $14,012.00.  This includes 
compensation for the land, fencing, and custom gate. 
 
The total cost associated with the west Orlina and Jeffrey Andrews property is $15,000.00.  This 
includes compensation for the land, fencing, and owner provided clearing and excavation for the 
relocated fence. 
 
The total cost associated with the east Orlina and Jeffrey Andrews property is $81,149.00.  This 
includes compensation for the land, fencing, and owner provided clearing and excavation for the 
relocated fence.  Also included in this cost is replacement value for 60 trees as compensation for 
the loss of over 80 trees. 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
The Sunset Bridge Rehabilitation Project is currently being advertised, but cannot be completed 
without this additional right of way.  Funding will be from multiple sources.  The primary source 
of funds for the base bid of the project will be GO bond street funds.  Additional funding for the 
pedestrian bridge will be provided from Parks funds.  A total of $130,161.00 will be used for 
Right of Way acquisition for the project. 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends approval of the Right-of-Way Donation Agreements with Sheltre Farms, 
LLC., Orlina and Jeffrey Andrews, and the Lansdown Family Trust. 
 



  Page 1 of 4 

Right-of-Way Donation Agreement 
 
This Right-of-Way Donation Agreement (this “Agreement”) made this ____ day of ____________, 
2025, by, between and among Sheltre Farms, LLC, and their successors and assigns ("Sheltre 
Farms") and City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, a municipal corporation ("City"), 
 

WHEREAS, The City has plans to rehabilitate the bridge and approaches of Sunset Boulevard 
at Butler Creek; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City currently has a 16.5’ wide statutory Right-of-Way along the east side of 

the Sheltre Farms property described in and recorded in Book 1772, Page 38 in the office of the County 
Clerk of Osage County, Oklahoma, and requires a total of 65 feet of right-of-way west of the section 
line to facilitate the Sunset Boulevard bridge rehabilitation project; and 

 
WHEREAS, Sheltre Farms has fences, a gate, and other improvements on their property 

recorded in said Book and Page and desire the City to compensate for existing improvements to said 
property in return for deeding an additional 65 feet of right-of-way that includes the 16.5 Feet of 
statutory right-of-way; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City has identified the necessary fence and gate quantities necessary enclose 

the remaining Sheltre Farms property; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the performance of the agreements, premises and 

covenants herein set forth, the parties to this Agreement hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. Sheltre Farms agrees to deed to the City public right-of-way with a width of 65 feet that 
includes the 16.5 feet of statutory right-of-way on the west side of the east section line of Section 34, 
Township 26 North, Range 13 East,  said right-of-way being more particularly described in the Right-
of-Way Deed included with this agreement. 

 
2. The City will pay Sheltre Farms $20,000.00 to help with the replacement cost of installing 

fencing and a gate.  Payment shall be made to Sheltre Farms within 30 days of filing of the Right-of-
Way Deed. 

 
3. The City shall not be responsible to install any portion of the fence or gate. 

 
4. The City shall not be responsible for future maintenance of the fence or gate installed.  

 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 
 

 
 

 
 



  Page 2 of 4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Right-of-Way Donation Agreement 
as of the date first written above. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

City Clerk 

City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma 
 

By  
James S. Curd Jr., Mayor 

 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 
STATE OF OKLAHOMA  ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF     ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ______________, 20____, by 
James S. Curd Jr., as Mayor of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma.  

 
 
________________________________________  
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 
  

My Commission Number: 
  
 
 (SEAL) 
 



  Page 3 of 4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Amended and Restated Right of Way 
Donation Agreement as of the date first written above. 
 
 

Sheltre Farms, LLC 
 

By  
Trevor Sutterfield, Trustee 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 
STATE OF OKLAHOMA  ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF     ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ______________, 20____, by 
Mike Quinn, as Manager of TMP Properties LLC, an Oklahoma limited liability company.  

 
 
________________________________________  
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 
  

My Commission Number: 
  
 
 (SEAL) 
 



  Page 4 of 4 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

[TO BE ATTACHED] 



 
 
 
 
 
 

RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION DEED 
 
 
KNOWN ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
That Sheltre Farms, LLC of Washington County, State of Oklahoma, herein called The Grantors (whether 
one or more), for consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good, valuable and sufficient 
consideration, do hereby grant, bargain, sell, convey and dedicate unto the CITY OF BARTLESVILLE, 
the following described lots or parcels of land for the purpose of establishing thereon a public roadway or 
facilities necessary and incidental thereto, including all right, title and interest in and to the airspace, light 
and view above the surface of the lands, described herein: 

 
 
 
 
A PART OF THE SOUTH HALF (S/2) OF SECTION THIRTY-FOUR (34), TOWNSHIP TWENTY-
SEVEN (27) NORTH, RANGE TWELVE (12) EAST OF THE INDIAN MERIDIAN, OSAGE 
COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, ACCORDING TO THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT 
SURVEY THEREOF, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 34; THENCE NORTH 
01°16'11" WEST AND ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 34, FOR A DISTANCE OF 
1079.29 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°43'49" WEST AND PERPENDICULAR TO SAID EAST LINE, 
FOR A DISTANCE OF 16.5 FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH BANK OF BUTLER CREEK, 
SAME BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE NORTH 55°04'59" WEST AND ALONG 
SAID SOUTH BANK, FOR A DISTANCE OF 60.09 FEET; NORTH 01°16'11" WEST AND 
PARALLEL WITH SAID EAST LINE, FOR A DISTANCE 435.23 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°43'49" 
EAST AND PERPENDICULAR TO SAID EAST LINE, FOR A DISTANCE OF 48.50 FEET; THENCE 
SOUTH 01°16'11" EAST AND PARALLEL WITH SAID EAST LINE, FOR A DISTANCE OF 470.71 
FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
CONTAINING 21,967.55 SQUARE FEET OR 0.50 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 
 
BASIS OF BEARINGS: BASED ON OKLAHOMA STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, 
NORTH ZONE (3501) NAO 83 (1993). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 For the same considerations hereinbefore recited, said Grantors hereby waive, relinquish and 
release any and all right, title or interest in and to the above granted and dedicated tract of land and the 
appurtenances thereunto belonging, including any and all dirt, rock, gravel, sand and other materials. 

 To have and to hold said above described premises unto the said City of Bartlesville, free, clear 
and discharged from any and all claims of damages or injury that may be sustained directly or indirectly 
to the remaining lands of the Grantors by reason of the construction and maintenance of public roadway 
and all roadway excavations, embankments, structures, bridges, drains, utilities, sight distance or safety 
areas and other facilities that may now or hereafter be, in the discretion of the grantee, necessary for the 
construction and maintenance of a public roadway and incidental facilities over, across, along or under 
the above described real estate; the supervision and control of said public roadway to be in such 
municipality, county or other agency of the State of Oklahoma as has or may have jurisdiction thereof by 
the laws of the State of Oklahoma; and said City of Bartlesville, its officers, agents, contractors and 
employees are hereby granted free access to said property for the purpose of entering upon, constructing, 
maintaining, or regulating the use of said public roadway and incidental facilities. 

 Said Grantor hereby covenant and warrant that at the time of the delivery of these presents they 
are the owners in fee simple of the above-described premises and that same are free and clear of all liens 
and claims whatsoever, except, none. 

 

 

 

 

 



 The undersigned Grantors hereby designate and appoint themselves as agent to execute the claim 
and receive the compensation herein named. 
IN WITNESS WHERE OF, the Grantors herein named have hereunto set their hands and seals this the  

________ day of  ___________________________________, ___________. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF  ) 
  ) ss. 
COUNTY OF  ) 
 
 
Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for said County as State, on this  day of 
 , 20  , personally appeared  
 , to me known to be the identical person(s) who executed the within and  
Foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he (they) executed the same as his (their) free and 
voluntary act and deed for thee uses and purposes therein set fourth. 
 
(SEAL)  
 Notary Public 
  
My Commission Expires  
  
  
 

 
 
Trevor Sutterfield, Trustee 
 





  Page 1 of 4 

Right-of-Way Donation Agreement 
 
This Right-of-Way Donation Agreement (this “Agreement”) made this ____ day of ____________, 
2025, by, between and among Andrews, Jeffrey A & Orlina R H-W, and their successors and assigns 
("Andrews") and City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, a municipal corporation ("City"), 
 

WHEREAS, The City has plans to rehabilitate the bridge and approaches of Sunset Boulevard 
at Butler Creek; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City currently has a 16.5’ wide statutory Right-of-Way along the east side of 

the Andrews’ property described in and recorded in Book 1755, Page 668 in the office of the County 
Clerk of Osage County, Oklahoma, and requires a total of 65 feet of right-of-way west of the section 
line to facilitate the Sunset Boulevard bridge rehabilitation project; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Andrews have fences, a gate, and other improvements on their property 

recorded in said Book and Page and desire the City to compensate for existing improvements to said 
property in return for deeding an additional 65 feet of right-of-way that includes the 16.5 Feet of 
statutory right-of-way; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City has identified the necessary fence and gate quantities necessary to 

adequately contain livestock on the remaining Andrews property; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the performance of the agreements, premises and 

covenants herein set forth, the parties to this Agreement hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. The Andrews agree to deed to the City public right-of-way with a width varying from 35.0 feet 
to 65 feet that includes the 16.5 feet of statutory right-of-way on the west side of the east section line of 
Section 34, Township 26 North, Range 13 East,  said right-of-way being more particularly described in 
the Right-of-Way Deed included with this agreement. 

 
2. The City will pay the Andrews $15,000.00 to help with the replacement cost of installing 

fencing and a gate.  Payment shall be made to the Andrews within 30 days of filing of the Right-of-
Way Deed. 

 
3. The City shall not be responsible to install any portion of the fence or gate. 

 
4. The City shall not be responsible for future maintenance of the fence or gate installed.  

 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 
 

 
 

 
 



  Page 2 of 4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Right-of-Way Donation Agreement 
as of the date first written above. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

City Clerk 

City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma 
 

By  
James S. Curd Jr., Mayor 

 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 
STATE OF OKLAHOMA  ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF     ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ______________, 20____, by 
James S. Curd Jr., as Mayor of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma.  

 
 
________________________________________  
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 
  

My Commission Number: 
  
 
 (SEAL) 
 



  Page 3 of 4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Amended and Restated Right of Way 
Donation Agreement as of the date first written above. 
 
 

Andrews, Jeffrey A & Orlina R H-W 
 

By  
Jeffrey A Andrews 

 
 
 

By  
Orlina R Andrews 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 
STATE OF OKLAHOMA  ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF     ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ______________, 20____, by 
Mike Quinn, as Manager of TMP Properties LLC, an Oklahoma limited liability company.  

 
 
________________________________________  
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 
  

My Commission Number: 
  
 
 (SEAL) 
 



  Page 4 of 4 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

[TO BE ATTACHED] 



 
 
 
 
 
 

RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION DEED 
 
 
KNOWN ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
That Andrews, Jeffrey A & Orlina R H-W of Washington County, State of Oklahoma, herein called The 
Grantors (whether one or more), for consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good, 
valuable and sufficient consideration, do hereby grant, bargain, sell, convey and dedicate unto the CITY 
OF BARTLESVILLE, the following described lots or parcels of land for the purpose of establishing 
thereon a public roadway or facilities necessary and incidental thereto, including all right, title and 
interest in and to the airspace, light and view above the surface of the lands, described herein: 

 
 
 
 
 
A tract of land in the South Half (S/2) of Section 34, Township 27 North, Range 12 East Osage County, 
Oklahoma, being more particularly described as follows: 
 
 
 
 
COMMENCING AT THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 34; THENCE NORTH 
01°16'11" WEST AND ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID SECTION 34, FOR A DISTANCE OF 
815.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°43'49" WEST AND PERPENDICULAR TO SAID EAST LINE, 
FOR A DISTANCE OF 16.5 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING 
SOUTH 88°43'49" WEST AND PERPENDICULAR TO SAID EAST LINE, FOR A DISTANCE OF 
18.50 FEET; THENCE NORTH 10°00'57" WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 197.29 FEET; THENCE 
NORTH 01°16'11" WEST AND PARALLEL WITH SAID EAST LINE, FOR A DISTANCE OF 104.77 
FEET TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH BANK OF BUTLER CREEK; THENCE SOUTH 55°04'59" 
EAST AND ALONG SAID SOUTH BANK, FOR A DISTANCE OF 60.09 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
01°16'11" EAST AND PARALLEL WITH SAID EAST LINE, FOR A DISTANCE OF 264.29 FEET 
TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
CONTAINING 10,752.85 SQUARE FEET OR 0.25 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 
 
BASIS OF BEARINGS: BASED ON OKLAHOMA STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, 
NORTH ZONE (3501) NAO 83 (1993). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 For the same considerations hereinbefore recited, said Grantors hereby waive, relinquish and 
release any and all right, title or interest in and to the above granted and dedicated tract of land and the 
appurtenances thereunto belonging, including any and all dirt, rock, gravel, sand and other materials. 

 To have and to hold said above described premises unto the said City of Bartlesville, free, clear 
and discharged from any and all claims of damages or injury that may be sustained directly or indirectly 
to the remaining lands of the Grantors by reason of the construction and maintenance of public roadway 
and all roadway excavations, embankments, structures, bridges, drains, utilities, sight distance or safety 
areas and other facilities that may now or hereafter be, in the discretion of the grantee, necessary for the 
construction and maintenance of a public roadway and incidental facilities over, across, along or under 
the above described real estate; the supervision and control of said public roadway to be in such 
municipality, county or other agency of the State of Oklahoma as has or may have jurisdiction thereof by 
the laws of the State of Oklahoma; and said City of Bartlesville, its officers, agents, contractors and 
employees are hereby granted free access to said property for the purpose of entering upon, constructing, 
maintaining, or regulating the use of said public roadway and incidental facilities. 

 Said Grantor hereby covenant and warrant that at the time of the delivery of these presents they 
are the owners in fee simple of the above-described premises and that same are free and clear of all liens 
and claims whatsoever, except, none. 

 



 The undersigned Grantors hereby designate and appoint themselves as agent to execute the claim 
and receive the compensation herein named. 
IN WITNESS WHERE OF, the Grantors herein named have hereunto set their hands and seals this the  

________ day of  ___________________________________, ___________. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF  ) 
  ) ss. 
COUNTY OF  ) 
 
 
Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for said County as State, on this  day of 
 , 20  , personally appeared  
 , to me known to be the identical person(s) who executed the within and  
Foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he (they) executed the same as his (their) free and 
voluntary act and deed for thee uses and purposes therein set fourth. 
 
(SEAL)  
 Notary Public 
  
My Commission Expires  
  
  
 

 
 
Jeffrey A Andrews, Owner 
 
 
Orlina R Andrews, Owner 





  Page 1 of 4 

Right-of-Way Donation Agreement 
 
This Right-of-Way Donation Agreement (this “Agreement”) made this ____ day of ____________, 
2025, by, between and among Andrews, Orlina R & Jeffrey A, and their successors and assigns 
("Andrews") and City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, a municipal corporation ("City"), 
 

WHEREAS, The City has plans to rehabilitate the bridge and approaches of Sunset Boulevard 
at Butler Creek; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City currently has a 30’ wide statutory Right-of-Way along the east side of 

the Andrews’ property described in and recorded in Book 1160, Page 1643 in the office of the County 
Clerk of Washington County, Oklahoma, and requires a total of 65 feet of right-of-way west of the 
section line to facilitate the Sunset Boulevard bridge rehabilitation project; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Andrews have fences, trees, and other improvements on their property 

recorded in said Book and Page and desire the City to compensate for existing improvements to said 
property in return for deeding an additional 65.0 feet of right-of-way that includes the 30.0 Feet of 
statutory right-of-way; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City has identified the necessary fence and gate quantities necessary to 

adequately contain livestock on the remaining Andrews property; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the performance of the agreements, premises and 

covenants herein set forth, the parties to this Agreement hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. The Andrews agree to deed to the City public right-of-way with a width of 65.0 feet that 
includes the 30.0 feet of statutory right-of-way on the east side of the west section line of Section 2, 
Township 26 North, Range 12 East, said right-of-way being more particularly described in the Right-
of-Way Deed included with this agreement. 

 
2. The City will pay the Andrews $86,149.00 to help with the replacement cost of installing 

fencing and replacing trees.  Payment shall be made to the Andrews within 30 days of filing of the 
Right-of-Way Deed. 

 
3. The City shall not be responsible to install any portion of the fence or trees. 

 
4. The City shall not be responsible for future maintenance of the fence or trees installed.  

 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 
 

 
 

 
 



  Page 2 of 4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Right-of-Way Donation Agreement 
as of the date first written above. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

City Clerk 

City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma 
 

By  
James S. Curd Jr., Mayor 

 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 
STATE OF OKLAHOMA  ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF     ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ______________, 20____, by 
James S. Curd Jr., as Mayor of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma.  

 
 
________________________________________  
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 
  

My Commission Number: 
  
 
 (SEAL) 
 



  Page 3 of 4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Amended and Restated Right of Way 
Donation Agreement as of the date first written above. 
 
 

Andrews, Orlina R & Jeffrey A 
 

By  
Orlina R Andrews 

 
 
 

By  
Jeffrey A Andrews 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 
STATE OF OKLAHOMA  ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF     ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ______________, 20____, by 
Mike Quinn, as Manager of TMP Properties LLC, an Oklahoma limited liability company.  

 
 
________________________________________  
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 
  

My Commission Number: 
  
 
 (SEAL) 
 



  Page 4 of 4 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

[TO BE ATTACHED] 



 
 
 
 
 
 

RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION DEED 
 
 
KNOWN ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
That Andrews, Orlina R & Jeffrey A of Washington County, State of Oklahoma, herein called The 
Grantors (whether one or more), for consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good, 
valuable and sufficient consideration, do hereby grant, bargain, sell, convey and dedicate unto the CITY 
OF BARTLESVILLE, the following described lots or parcels of land for the purpose of establishing 
thereon a public roadway or facilities necessary and incidental thereto, including all right, title and 
interest in and to the airspace, light and view above the surface of the lands, described herein: 

 
 
 
 
 
A PART OF GOVERNMENT LOT 3 OF SECTION TWO (2), TOWNSHIP TWENTY-SIX (26) 
NORTH, RANGE TWELVE (12) EAST OF THE IN0IAN BASE AND MERIDIAN, WASHINGTON 
COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, ACCORDING TO THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT 
SURVEY THEREOF, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:  

COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 2; THENCE SOUTH 
01°16'11" EAST AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 2, FOR A DISTANCE OF 
16.50 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°56'30" EAST AND PARALLEL WITH THE NORTH LINE OF 
SAID SECTION 2, FOR A DISTANCE OF 30.00 FEET TO A POINT ON THE STATUTORY RIGHT 
OF WAY, SAME BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING NORTH 88°56'30" 
EAST AND ALONG SAID STATUTORY RIGHT OF WAY, FOR A DISTANCE OF 35.00 FEET; 
THENCE SOUTH 01°16'11" EAST AND PARALLEL WITH THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 2, 
FOR A DISTANCE OF 501.33 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°47'42" WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 
35.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01°16'11" WEST AND PARALLEL WITH SAID WEST LINE, FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 501.42 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  

CONTAINING 17,548.25 SQUARE FEET OR 0.40 ACRES, MORE OR LESS.  

BASIS OF BEARINGS: BASED ON OKLAHOMA STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, 
NORTH ZONE {3501) NAD 83 {1993). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 For the same considerations hereinbefore recited, said Grantors hereby waive, relinquish and 
release any and all right, title or interest in and to the above granted and dedicated tract of land and the 
appurtenances thereunto belonging, including any and all dirt, rock, gravel, sand and other materials. 

 To have and to hold said above described premises unto the said City of Bartlesville, free, clear 
and discharged from any and all claims of damages or injury that may be sustained directly or indirectly 
to the remaining lands of the Grantors by reason of the construction and maintenance of public roadway 
and all roadway excavations, embankments, structures, bridges, drains, utilities, sight distance or safety 
areas and other facilities that may now or hereafter be, in the discretion of the grantee, necessary for the 
construction and maintenance of a public roadway and incidental facilities over, across, along or under 
the above described real estate; the supervision and control of said public roadway to be in such 
municipality, county or other agency of the State of Oklahoma as has or may have jurisdiction thereof by 
the laws of the State of Oklahoma; and said City of Bartlesville, its officers, agents, contractors and 
employees are hereby granted free access to said property for the purpose of entering upon, constructing, 
maintaining, or regulating the use of said public roadway and incidental facilities. 

 Said Grantor hereby covenant and warrant that at the time of the delivery of these presents they 
are the owners in fee simple of the above-described premises and that same are free and clear of all liens 
and claims whatsoever, except, none. 

 

 

 



 The undersigned Grantors hereby designate and appoint themselves as agent to execute the claim 
and receive the compensation herein named. 
IN WITNESS WHERE OF, the Grantors herein named have hereunto set their hands and seals this the  

________ day of  ___________________________________, ___________. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF  ) 
  ) ss. 
COUNTY OF  ) 
 
 
Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for said County as State, on this  day of 
 , 20  , personally appeared  
 , to me known to be the identical person(s) who executed the within and  
Foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he (they) executed the same as his (their) free and 
voluntary act and deed for thee uses and purposes therein set fourth. 
 
(SEAL)  
 Notary Public 
  
My Commission Expires  
  
  
 

 
 
Orlina R Andrews, Owner 
 
 
Jeffrey A Andrews, Owner 





  Page 1 of 4 

Right-of-Way Donation Agreement 
 
This Right-of-Way Donation Agreement (this “Agreement”) made this ____ day of ____________, 
2025, by, between and among the Lansdown Family Trust, and their successors and assigns 
("Lansdown") and City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma, a municipal corporation ("City"), 
 

WHEREAS, The City has plans to rehabilitate the bridge and approaches of Sunset Boulevard 
at Butler Creek; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City currently has a 30.0’ wide statutory Right-of-Way along the west side 

of the Lansdown’ property described in and recorded in Book 1125, Pages 3022 in the office of the 
County Clerk of Washington County, Oklahoma, and requires a variable width total of between 40.0 to 
75.0 feet of right-of-way east of the section line to facilitate the Sunset Boulevard bridge rehabilitation 
project; and 

 
WHEREAS, The Lansdowns have fences, a gate, and other improvements on their property 

recorded in said Book and Page and desire the City to compensate for existing improvements to said 
property in return for deeding an additional said right-of-way that includes the 30.0 Feet of statutory 
right-of-way; and 

 
WHEREAS, The City has identified the fence and gate quantities necessary to replace existing 

fencing on the remaining Andrews property; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the performance of the agreements, premises and 

covenants herein set forth, the parties to this Agreement hereby agree as follows: 
 

1. The Lansdowns agree to deed to the City public right-of-way with a width varying from 40.0 
feet to 75.0 feet that includes the 30.0 feet of statutory right-of-way on the east side of the wet section 
line of Section 2, Township 26 North, Range 12 East, said right-of-way being more particularly 
described in the Right-of-Way Deed included with this agreement. 

 
2. The City will pay the Lansdowns $14,012.00 to help with the replacement cost of installing 

fencing and a gate.  Payment shall be made to the Lansdowns within 30 days of filing of the Right-of-
Way Deed. 

 
3. The City shall not be responsible to install any portion of the fence or gate. 

 
4. The City shall not be responsible for future maintenance of the fence or gate installed.  

 
 

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW] 
 

 
 

 
 



  Page 2 of 4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Right-of-Way Donation Agreement 
as of the date first written above. 
 

 
 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 

City Clerk 

City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma 
 

By  
James S. Curd Jr., Mayor 

 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 
STATE OF OKLAHOMA  ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF     ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ______________, 20____, by 
James S. Curd Jr., as Mayor of the City of Bartlesville, Oklahoma.  

 
 
________________________________________  
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 
  

My Commission Number: 
  
 
 (SEAL) 
 



  Page 3 of 4 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Amended and Restated Right of Way 
Donation Agreement as of the date first written above. 
 
 

Lansdown Family Trust 
 

By  
Robert Lansdown, Trustee 

 
 
 

By  
Cheryl Lansdown, Trustee 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

ACKNOWLEDGMENT 
 
 
STATE OF OKLAHOMA  ) 
     ) SS: 
COUNTY OF     ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on this ____ day of ______________, 20____, by 
Mike Quinn, as Manager of TMP Properties LLC, an Oklahoma limited liability company.  

 
 
________________________________________  
Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 
  

My Commission Number: 
  
 
 (SEAL) 
 



  Page 4 of 4 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 

RIGHT-OF-WAY LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
 

[TO BE ATTACHED] 



 
 
 
 
 
 

RIGHT-OF-WAY DEDICATION DEED 
 
 
KNOWN ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS: 
That the Lansdown Family Trust of Washington County, State of Oklahoma, herein called The Grantors 
(whether one or more), for consideration of the sum of Ten Dollars ($10.00) and other good, valuable and 
sufficient consideration, do hereby grant, bargain, sell, convey and dedicate unto the CITY OF 
BARTLESVILLE, the following described lots or parcels of land for the purpose of establishing thereon a 
public roadway or facilities necessary and incidental thereto, including all right, title and interest in and to 
the airspace, light and view above the surface of the lands, described herein: 

 
 
 
 
A PART OF GOVERNMENT LOT 3 OF SECTION TWO (2), TOWNSHIP TWENTY-SIX (26) 
NORTH, RANGE TWELVE (12) EAST OF THE INDIAN BASE MERIDIAN, WASHINGTON 
COUNTY, STATE OF OKLAHOMA, ACCORDING TO THE UNITED STATES GOVERNMENT 
SURVEY THEREOF, AND BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: 
 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID SECTION 2; THENCE SOUTH 
01°16'11" EAST AND ALONG THE WEST LINE OF SAID SECTION 2, FOR A DISTANCE OF 
518.03 FEET; THENCE NORTH 88°43'49" EAST AND PERPENDICULAR TO SAID WEST LINE, 
FOR A DISTANCE OF 30.0 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE CONTINUING 
NORTH 88°47'42" EAST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 45.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 1°16'11" EAST 
AND PARALLEL WITH SAID WEST LINE, FOR A DISTANCE OF 89.96 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 
07°29'45" WEST, FOR A DISTANCE OF 229.68 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 88°47'42" WEST, FOR A 
DISTANCE OF 10.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 01°16'11" WEST AND PARALLEL WITH SAID 
EAST LINE, FOR A DISTANCE OF 317.00 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
CONTAINING 10,292.42 SQUARE FEET OR 0.24 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. 
 
BASIS OF BEARINGS: BASED ON OKLAHOMA STATE PLANE COORDINATE SYSTEM, 
NORTH ZONE (3501) NAO 83 (1993). 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 For the same considerations hereinbefore recited, said Grantors hereby waive, relinquish and 
release any and all right, title or interest in and to the above granted and dedicated tract of land and the 
appurtenances thereunto belonging, including any and all dirt, rock, gravel, sand and other materials. 

 To have and to hold said above described premises unto the said City of Bartlesville, free, clear 
and discharged from any and all claims of damages or injury that may be sustained directly or indirectly 
to the remaining lands of the Grantors by reason of the construction and maintenance of public roadway 
and all roadway excavations, embankments, structures, bridges, drains, utilities, sight distance or safety 
areas and other facilities that may now or hereafter be, in the discretion of the grantee, necessary for the 
construction and maintenance of a public roadway and incidental facilities over, across, along or under 
the above described real estate; the supervision and control of said public roadway to be in such 
municipality, county or other agency of the State of Oklahoma as has or may have jurisdiction thereof by 
the laws of the State of Oklahoma; and said City of Bartlesville, its officers, agents, contractors and 
employees are hereby granted free access to said property for the purpose of entering upon, constructing, 
maintaining, or regulating the use of said public roadway and incidental facilities. 

 Said Grantor hereby covenant and warrant that at the time of the delivery of these presents they 
are the owners in fee simple of the above-described premises and that same are free and clear of all liens 
and claims whatsoever, except, none. 

 

 

 

 



 The undersigned Grantors hereby designate and appoint themselves as agent to execute the claim 
and receive the compensation herein named. 
IN WITNESS WHERE OF, the Grantors herein named have hereunto set their hands and seals this the  

________ day of  ___________________________________, ___________. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF  ) 
  ) ss. 
COUNTY OF  ) 
 
 
Before me, the undersigned, a Notary Public, in and for said County as State, on this  day of 
 , 20  , personally appeared  
 , to me known to be the identical person(s) who executed the within and  
Foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that he (they) executed the same as his (their) free and 
voluntary act and deed for thee uses and purposes therein set fourth. 
 
(SEAL)  
 Notary Public 
  
My Commission Expires  
  
  
 

 
 
Jeffrey A Andrews, Owner 
 
 
Orlina R Andrews, Owner 





Agenda Item ___ 
June 26, 2025 

Prepared by Jason Muninger. CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND

Take action to approve the sixth Amendment to the tower/ground lease agreement 
between the City of Bartlesville and New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC for a portion of 
property located in Washington County named SE Water Tower Bartlesville. 

Attachments:

Sixth Amendment to the Tower/Ground Lease Agreement

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS

The City entered into an agreement with Cingular Wireless on May 20th 1996. The City 
and Cingular are now on the sixth Amendment of the original contract.  This 
Amendment is only for the removal of 4 pieces of equipment and the addition of one 
piece of equipment.

III. BUDGET IMPACT

N/A

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION

Staff recommends approval of the agreement. 

7.d.ix.



2021 Amendment Form 
Streamline Limited Review 

  

 
Market:    ROAR      
Cell Site Number:   OKL00137 
Cell Site Name:  SE W/T BARTLESVILLE 
Fixed Asset Number:  1001066 

 
SIXTH AMENDMENT TO TOWER/GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT 

 
 

THIS SIXTH AMENDMENT TO TOWER/GROUND LEASE AGREEMENT (“Sixth Amendment”), is 
dated to be effective as of the latter of the signature dates below, by and between City of Bartlesville, a Municipal 
corporation, having a mailing address of 401 S. Johnstone, Bartlesville, OK 74003 (“Landlord”) and New Cingular 
Wireless PCS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, having a mailing address of 1025 Lenox Park Blvd NE, 
3rd Floor, Atlanta, GA 30319 (“Tenant”). 

 
 WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant entered into a Tower/Ground Lease Agreement dated May 20, 1996, First 
Amendment dated October 24, 2006, Second Amendment dated April 4, 2016, Third Amendment dated February 27, 
2020, Fourth Amendment dated November 2, 2020, and as further amended by the Fifth Amendment dated August 
29, 2023, by which Landlord leased to Tenant certain Premises, therein described, that are a portion of the Property 
located at Washington County, Oklahoma, more particularly described on Exhibit “B-1”; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Landlord and Tenant desire to amend the Agreement to permit Tenant to add, modify and/or 
replace equipment in order to comply with any current or future federal, state or local mandated application, including 
but not limited to emergency 911 communication services; and  
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt 
and sufficiency of which are acknowledged, Landlord and Tenant agree as follows: 
 
1. Additional Antennas. In addition to the other antennas permitted in the Agreement, Landlord consents to the 
installation and operation of additional antennas, associated cables and equipment as more completely described on 
attached Exhibit “1-D”. Landlord’s execution of this Amendment will signify Landlords approval of Exhibit “1-D”. 
Exhibit “1-D” hereby replaces Exhibit “1-C” to the Agreement. 
 
2. No Additional Rent. The parties agree that no addition rent shall be due from Tenant to Landlord hereunder.  
 
3. Memorandum of Lease. Either party will, at any time upon fifteen (15) days prior written notice from the other, 
execute, acknowledge, and deliver to the other a recordable Memorandum of Lease substantially in the form of the 
Attachment 1. Either party may record this memorandum at any time, in its absolute discretion. 
 
4.  Capitalized Terms.  All capitalized terms used but not defined herein shall have the same meanings as defined in 
the Agreement.   
 
NOTICES.  All notices, requests, demands and communications hereunder shall be given by first class certified or 
registered mail, return receipt requested, or by a nationally recognized overnight courier, postage prepaid, to be 
effective when properly sent and received, refused or returned undelivered.  Notices shall be addressed to the parties 
as follows.   
 
 



2021 Amendment Form 
Streamline Limited Review 

  

If to LANDLORD: City of Bartlesville  If to TENANT: New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC 
 401 S. Johnstone   Attn: TAG – LA  
 Bartlesville, OK 74003   Re: Cell Site # _ OKL00137___________ 
    Cell Site Name:  SE W/T Bartlesville (OK) 
    Fixed Asset #:  _10001066____________ 
    1025 Lenox Park Blvd NE 
    3rd Floor 
    Atlanta, GA 30319 
     
   With copy to: New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC 
    Attn: Legal Department 
    Re: Cell Site # _OKL00137____________ 
    Cell Site Name: SE W/T Bartlesville (OK) 
    Fixed Asset #:  _10001066 ____________ 
    208 S. Akard Street 
    Dallas, Texas, 75202-4206 

 
The copy sent to the Legal Department is an administrative step which alone does not constitute legal notice.  Either 
party hereto may change the place for the giving of notice to it by thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other as 
provided in this Section. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Amendment to be effective as of the latter of the signature 
dates below. 
 

LANDLORD: TENANT: 
 New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, 
City of Bartlesville, a Municipal corporation a Delaware limited liability company 
  
 By:  AT&T Mobility Corporation 
 Its:  Manager 
  
  
By:       By:       
Print Name:      Print Name:      
Its:       Its:       
Date:       Date:       

  



2021 Amendment Form 
Streamline Limited Review 

  

LANDLORD REPRESENTATIVE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
STATE OF  ) 
  )ss. 
COUNTY OF   ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of     201__, by  
   , the       of ______________________________. 
 

Notary Seal 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
        
(Signature of Notary) 
 
My Commission Expires:      

 
 
 
TENANT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
STATE OF   ) 
  )ss. 
COUNTY OF   ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of     201__, by  
   , the       of AT&T Mobility Corporation. 
 

Notary Seal 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
        
(Signature of Notary) 
 
My Commission Expires:      

 
 



2021 Amendment Form 
Streamline Limited Review 

  

EXHIBIT 1-D 
 

DESCRIPTION OF SCOPE OF WORK 
 
 

Removing: 
(3) 80010891m 
(6) LGP 17502 
(6) 1 5/8" COAX 
(1) 3/8" RET 
 
Adding: 
(3) AIR6472 B77G B77M w/integrated RRUS 
 
Final Configurations:  
(6) TPA65R-BU6D 
(3) AIR6472 B77G B77M w/integrated RRUS 
(3) RRUS-32 B30 
(3) 4478 B14 
(3) RRUS-32 B66A  
(3) 8843 B2/B66A  
(2) DC6-48-60-18-8F 
(1) DC6-48-60-18-8C-EV 
(2) .96" POWER 
(4) 3/4" POWER 
(3) 1/2" FIBER 
  
 
 
 
 
Notes: 
 
1. This Exhibit may be replaced by a land survey and/or construction drawings of the Premises once received by Tenant. 
2. Any setback of the Premises from the Property’s boundaries shall be the distance required by the applicable governmental authorities. 
3. Width of access road shall be the width required by the applicable governmental authorities, including police and fire departments. 
4. The type, number and mounting positions and locations of antennas and transmission lines are illustrative only. Actual types, numbers and 

mounting positions may vary from what is shown above. 
 
  



2021 Amendment Form 
Streamline Limited Review 

  

ATTACHMENT 1 
 
 

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE 
 
 
 

Prepared by: 
CRB Companies, LLC 
Stormi Sanchez 
825 N. Broadway, Suite 400 
Oklahoma City, OK 73102 
 
 
Return to: 
New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC 
1025 Lenox Park Blvd NE 
3rd Floor 
Atlanta, GA 30319 
 
RE: Cell Site# OKL00137 

Cell Site Name: SE W/T Bartlesville 
Fixed Asset Number: 10001066 
State: Oklahoma 
County: Washington 

 
 

MEMORANDUM OF LEASE 
 
 

 This Memorandum of Lease is entered into on this ___ day of ________, 20__, by and 
between City of Bartlesville, OK, having a mailing address of 401 S. Johnstone, Bartlesville, OK 
740036 (“Landlord”) and New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability 
company, having a mailing address of 1025 Lenox Park Blvd NE, 3rd Floor, Atlanta, GA 30319 
(“Tenant”). 
 

1. Landlord and Tenant entered into a Tower/Ground Lease Agreement dated May 20, 
1996, First Amendment dated October 24, 2006, Second Amendment dated April 4, 
2016, Third Amendment dated February 27, 2020, Fourth Amendment dated November 
2, 2020, and as further amended by the Fifth Amendment dated August 29, 2023, for the 
purpose of installing, operating, and maintaining a communications facility and other 
improvements. All the foregoing is set forth in the Agreement. 

 
2. The initial lease term will be five (5) years (“Initial Term”) commencing on the 

Effective Date of the Agreement, with two (2) successive five (5) year options to renew. 
 



2021 Amendment Form 
Streamline Limited Review 

  

3. The portion of the land being leased to Tenant (the “Premises”) is described in Exhibit 
B-1 annexed hereto. 
 

4. This Memorandum of Lease is not intended to amend or modify and shall not be deemed 
or construct as amending or modifying, any of the terms, condition, or provisions of the 
Agreement, all of which are hereby ratified and affirmed. In the event of a conflict 
between the provisions of this Memorandum of Lease and the provision of the 
Agreement, the provisions of the Agreementshall control. The Agreement shall be 
binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties and their respective heirs, successors, 
and assigns, subject to the provisions of the Agreement. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Memorandum of Lease as of the day and year first above 
written. 
 

LANDLORD: TENANT: 
 New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, 
City of Bartlesville, a Municipal corporation a Delaware limited liability company 
  
 By:  AT&T Mobility Corporation 
 Its:  Manager 
  
  
By:       By:       
Print Name:      Print Name:      
Its:       Its:       
Date:       Date:       

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2021 Amendment Form 
Streamline Limited Review 

  

LANDLORD REPRESENTATIVE ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
STATE OF  ) 
  )ss. 
COUNTY OF   ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of     201__, by  
   , the       of ______________________________. 
 

Notary Seal 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
        
(Signature of Notary) 
 
My Commission Expires:      

 
 
 
TENANT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
STATE OF   ) 
  )ss. 
COUNTY OF   ) 
 
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this ____ day of     201__, by  
   , the       of AT&T Mobility Corporation. 
 

Notary Seal 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
        
(Signature of Notary) 
 
My Commission Expires:      

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



2021 Amendment Form 
Streamline Limited Review 

  

EXHIBIT B-1 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PREMISES 
Page 1 of 1 

 
 
To the Memorandum of Lease dated _____________ __, 20__, by and between City of Bartlesville, OK as 
Landlord, and New Cingular Wireless PCS, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company, as Tenant. 
 
 

ADDITIONAL PREMISES AREA 
 
 

 



1 
 

Agenda Item ___ 
June 26, 2025 

Prepared by Greg Collins, Special Projects Manager 
Community Development Department 

 
 

 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Accept conveyance of 15 properties from the Washington County Treasurer’s Office, such properties 
having not received a minimum reserve bid covering the amount of City liens on the properties, at the 
annual Washington County Tax Resale auction held on June 9, 2025, said City liens to be released on 
these properties: 
 
1. 1408 SW Armstrong Ave.   6. 812 E. 8th St. 11. 129 NW Santa Fe Ave. 
2. 117 NW Cheyenne Ave.   7. 322 SW Penn Ave. 12. 127 NW Santa Fe Ave. 
3. 405 NW Theodore Ave.   8. 712 NW Lupa St. 13. 213 NW Margarite Ave. 
4. 115 NW Virginia Ave.   9. 501 SW Morton Ave. 14. 1724 W. 4th St. 
5. 1714 SW Jennings Ave. 10. 920 SW Maple Ave. 15. 513 SW Morton Ave. 

 
Exhibit A:  County Treasurer’s Deeds. 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
Municipalities now have an optional procedure to recover city code enforcement abatement liens on 
certain property tax-delinquent properties that go to the annual county tax resale auction, pursuant to 
recent state legislation, HB 2361, effective November 1, 2023, amending Title 68 O.S. Section 3129 B.  
This amendment allows cities to require a reserve minimum bid in an amount covering the city’s 
abatement costs, penalties and interest on such property.1  In the event the reserve minimum bid is not 
met at the auction, the property is bid off in the name of the municipality, for the amount of the forgone 
city liens that would have been paid to the City (special assessments), and the amount of delinquent real 
estate ad valorem taxes that would have been paid to the County (plus interest and penalties), had the 
reserve minimum been met.  The back taxes and the special assessments for the city liens are written off.  
There is no money payment from the City to the County, or from the County to the City.  The property is 
conveyed to the City by the County Treasurer by a county treasurer’s deed.  The City may then sell the 
property to recover all or part of the city’s past abatement expense, or the City may hold the property for 
other purposes. 
 
This year, the City requested a reserve minimum bid for 30 properties out of the 48 tax-delinquent 
properties at the auction held on June 19, 2025.  Out of the 30 properties, 15 properties did not receive 
the City’s required minimum bid.  The Washington County Treasurer has provided Treasurer’s Deeds to 
the City for those 15 properties, listed in Exhibit A.  The Treasurer has deleted the real estate back taxes 
and the City lien amounts due (special assessments).  After acceptance of these properties by City Council 
and recordation of the Treasurer’s Deeds at the County Clerk’s office, the City would release its liens on 
these properties. 
 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Staff recommends acceptance of the properties by the Treasurer’s Deeds that are listed and compiled in 
Exhibit A, and the release of the City’s liens on these properties. 

 
1  The normal minimum required bid is 2/3 of the assessed value of such real estate, or the total amount of taxes, penalties, 
interest and costs due, whichever is less.  68 O.S. § 3129 B. 

7.e.i.



2 
 

EXHIBIT A—List of Properties with Treasurer’s Deeds to be Conveyed to the City 
 

   Street Name Legal Description Zoning 
1. 1408 SW Armstrong Ave LOT 18, BLOCK 7, 

GRANDVIEW ADDN 
Vacant Lot Single-Family 

Residential RS-5 
2. 117 NW Cheyenne Ave LOT 8, BLOCK 2, OVERLEES 

ADDN 
Vacant Lot Single-Family 

Residential RS-5 
3. 405 NW Theodore Ave LOTS 4 & 5, BLOCK 3, 

PEMBERTON PLACE 
Vacant Lot Single-Family 

Residential RS-5 
4. 115 NW Virginia Ave LOTS 8 & 9, BLOCK 4, GEO B 

KEELER 2ND 
Vacant Lot Single-Family 

Residential RS-5 
5. 1714 SW Jennings Ave LOT 16, BLOCK 8, W.W. JONES 

ADDN 
Vacant Lot Single-Family 

Residential RS-5 
6. 812 E 8th St. LOT 7, BLOCK 7, GILKEY’S 

ADDN 
Vacant Lot Single-Family 

Residential RS-5 
7. 322 SW Penn Ave LOT 10, BLOCK 4, TAYLOR’S 

ADDN 
Vacant Lot Single-Family 

Residential RS-5 
8. 712 NW Lupa St. LOT 9, BLOCK 3, FEDERAL 

HOMES ADDN 
Vacant Lot Single-Family 

Residential RS-5 
9. 501 SW Morton Ave N 100’ LOT 1, BLOCK 4, 

TERRAPIN ADDN 
Vacant Lot Single-Family 

Residential RS-5 
10. 920 SW Maple Ave LOT 6, BLOCK 20, GILKEY’S 

ADDN 
Vacant Lot Single-Family 

Residential RS-5 
11. 129 NW Santa Fe Ave LOT 3, BLOCK 1, OVERLEES 2ND Vacant Lot Single-Family 

Residential RS-5 
12. 127 NW Santa Fe Ave LOT 4, BLOCK 1, OVERLEES 2ND  Vacant Lot Single-Family 

Residential RS-5 
13. 213 NW Margarite Ave LOT 5, BLOCK 3, 

BARTLESVILLE ZINC 
Vacant Lot Single-Family 

Residential RS-5 
14. 1724 W 4th St LOT 14, BLOCK 1, 

COMMERCIAL CLUB 
Vacant Lot Single-Family 

Residential RS-5 
15. 513 SW Morton Ave LOT 6, BLOCK 4, TERRAPIN 

ADDN 
Vacant Lot Single-Family 

Residential RS-5 
 



jntucker
Text Box
1408 S. Armstrong Ave





jntucker
Text Box
117 NW Cheyenne Ave





jntucker
Text Box
405 NW Theodore Ave





jntucker
Text Box
115 NW Virginia Ave





jntucker
Text Box
1714 SW Jennings Ave





jntucker
Text Box
812 E. 8th St.





jntucker
Text Box
322 SW Penn Ave





jntucker
Text Box
712 NW Lupa St.





jntucker
Text Box
501 SW Morton Ave





jntucker
Text Box
920 SW Maple Ave





jntucker
Text Box
129 NW Santa Fe Ave





jntucker
Text Box
127 SW Santa Fe Ave





jntucker
Text Box
213 NW Margarite Ave





jntucker
Text Box
1724 W. 4th St.





jntucker
Text Box
513 SW Morton Ave





7.f.i.











Progress Report
Bartlesville NEXT

Current Reporting Date: Jun 01, 2025 - Jun 30, 2025

Report Created On: Jun 26, 2025

Agenda Item 7.g.i.



Page 1

5
Strategic Priority

13
Objective

40
Goal

Executive Summary

Report Legend  Priority   No Update   Overdue

Overall Summary

%
 Some Disruption 8
 Major Disruption 3
 Completed 90

Status
0 100

Summary:

The Bartlesville NEXT plan is approaching completion, with 96% of objectives achieved. The strategic framework encompasses
community character, financial strength, economic vitality, infrastructure, and emerging issues. More than 90% of goals have been
finalized, resulting in significant advancements in governance, civic engagement, infrastructure, and quality of life. Ongoing

coordination and partnerships with community groups, enhancements in city communication and surveys, and the successful
modernization of internal processes have fostered an environment conducive to sustainable growth and operational excellence.
Remaining projects primarily concern integration, continued evaluation, and fine-tuning of programs already established.

Accomplishments:

Key achievements include the update and launch of the city’s website, completion of the Parks Masterplan and multiple city plans,

implementation of annual community and employee feedback systems, and execution of several community-inclusive events.
Infrastructure assets, such as water utilities, have been catalogued and training initiated, with improvements in road conditions
also attained. Formal policies regarding debt, capital planning, and utility rates have been adopted. Programs to improve city

workplace culture, staff recruitment, evaluation, and recognitions are in place, and various community partnerships, including
those supporting economic development and public safety, have met targets. Surveys, digital reports, and outreach efforts have

expanded transparency and citizen engagement.

Roadblocks:

Although progress is substantial, some initiatives experienced disruption, notably the initial overlap of city events affecting

attendance. Certain projects, such as the asset management program, require further testing and training to ensure
comprehensive adoption. Collaboration in areas like homelessness support faces delays outside city control, such as those posed

by regulatory agencies. The establishment of combined or streamlined events is under consideration to optimize impact and
participation. Other ongoing challenges involve refining integration of new technologies and feedback from ongoing surveys and
committee findings for process optimization.

Recommendations:

To sustain momentum and optimize outcomes, it is recommended to combine standalone initiatives with larger city events where

feasible, maximizing reach and resource efficiency. Continuous review of digital assets and feedback systems should be
institutionalized to maintain effectiveness and meet evolving community needs. For projects with external dependencies,
proactive communication and collaborative problem-solving with regulatory bodies and partners are advised. Ongoing training in

asset management tools and a phased approach to integrating new operational procedures will ensure effective adoption. Finally,
regular evaluation of engagement and incentive programs will help maintain strong staff morale and community satisfaction.

#

Progress

96%



Page 2

Accounting & Finance Department City of Bartlesville 

Communications Community Development Department 

Engineering Department History Museum 

Human Resources IT Department 

Library Police Department 

Public Works Department 

Department Summary

Progress 100%

Status

%
 Completed 100

Progress 96%

Status

%
 Some Disruption 8
 Major Disruption 3
 Completed 90

Progress 92%

Status

%
 Some Disruption 11
 Completed 89

Progress 90%

Status

%
 Some Disruption 13
 Major Disruption 13
 Completed 75

Progress 98%

Status

%
 Some Disruption 50
 Completed 50

Progress 100%

Status

%
 Completed 100

Progress 100%

Status

%
 Completed 100

Progress 100%

Status

%
 Completed 100

Progress 100%

Status

%
 Completed 100

Progress 100%

Status

%
 Completed 100

Progress 100%

Status

%
 Completed 100



Page 3

% #
 Completed 100 17

Strategic Priority 1  

Financial Strength & Operational Excellence

% #
 Some Disruption 50 1
 Completed 50 1

Strategic Priority 2  

Effective Infrastructure Network

% #
 Some Disruption 11 1
 Major Disruption 11 1
 Completed 78 7

Strategic Priority 3  

Economic Vitality

% #
 Some Disruption 11 1
 Completed 89 8

Strategic Priority 4  

Community Character

% #
 Completed 100 3

Strategic Priority 5  

Emerging Issues

Plan Summary

Progress 100%

Status

Progress 98%

Status

Progress 88%

Status

Progress 94%

Status

Progress 100%

Status



Page 4

 

Financial Strength & Operational Excellence % #
 Completed 100 17

 

Focus on staff recruitment, retention, development, department collaborations, and safety programs to
improve workplace culture and morale.

% #
 Completed 100 5

 

Improve and modernize our workplace including seeking accreditations for operational excellence, developing
a performance and reward-based evaluation process, and furthering integration of IT systems into our operating
departments.

% #
 Completed 100 4

 

Investigate programs to recruit non-traditional employees and
within schools. 

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Sep 30, 2023 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed.

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Within six months of adoption of Strategic plan, investigate
potential vacation buyback program.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Nov 30, 2023 06:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed.

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Implement a job swap program for employees. 

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Sep 30, 2023 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed.

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Hold employee appreciation luncheons twice yearly.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Apr 30, 2024 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed. 

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Investigate ways to implement a flex-hours or work from home
program for applicable employees.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Sep 30, 2024 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed.

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Develop a committee to research best practices and
accreditation programs.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Mar 31, 2024 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed. Committee has met and is
gathering data.

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Develop and implement a performance and reward-based
evaluation process for general employees by July 1, 2023 with
intent to negotiate this process for uniformed groups in the
future.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Sep 30, 2023 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed.

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Re-evaluate 311 and Enterprise Asset Management (E.A.M.) to
determine how we can integrate these systems into our
operating departments.

Update provided by Matt McCollough on Apr 03, 2025 17:09:27

Accomplishments: 

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

Strategic Priority 1 Progress 100%

Objective: 4  Goal: 17

Objective 1.1 Progress 100%

Goal: 5

Goal 1.1.1

Ongoing - Oct 31, 2023 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 1.1.2

Ongoing - Oct 31, 2023 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 1.1.3

Ongoing - Oct 31, 2023 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 1.1.4

Ongoing - Jul 31, 2024 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 1.1.5

Ongoing - Apr 30, 2024 Completed Progress 100%

Objective 1.2 Progress 100%

Goal: 4

Goal 1.2.1

Ongoing - Oct 31, 2023 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 1.2.2

Ongoing - Jul 31, 2023 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 1.2.3

Ongoing - Apr 30, 2024 Completed Progress 100%



Page 5

 

Develop annual communications and feedback systems to include a standard report to citizens, community
survey, and employee survey.

% #
 Completed 100 5

 

Adopt governance best practices relating to debt, financial targets, multi-year plans, and a comprehensive
Council handbook.

% #
 Completed 100 3

 

Revise and update our website using newest technologies and
integrations to improve citizen satisfaction and e-gov
capabilities.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Mar 28, 2025 13:35:46

Accomplishments: Redesigned website launched to the public on March 19.

Next Steps: Staff will continue to routinely monitor the website to assess if
further changes are needed in the future.

 

Create and publish annual digital report on overall City and
departmental achievements, progress, and goals. Summary of
report to be circulated in utility bill.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Sep 30, 2024 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed. 

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Create and distribute an annual survey to obtain citizen
feedback and requests for all City departments. Individual
departments may also be surveyed individually as part of a
larger survey plan.

Update provided by Kelli Williams on Apr 25, 2025 14:43:13

Accomplishments: Post cards were mailed as planned and the online portion of
the survey opened April 14. This portion will end April 28, officially ending the
survey. The Communications Department has consistently publicized both the
randomized and online survey options and will release the results when they are
made available by Polco, the consultant.

Challenges: 

Next Steps: Results will be analyzed by the consultant and presented to the City
Council in July.

 

Create and distribute survey for employees to rate their
department and the City as an overall employer by July 1, 2023.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Sep 30, 2023 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed.

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Develop feedback cards for golf course, library and other City
services as appropriate.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on May 31, 2024 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed.

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Continue to enhance, improve, and promote City Beat and grow
subscription base by 10%.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Aug 31, 2023 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been compelted.

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Develop and adopt formal policies pertaining to:

Debt Policy
Utility Rate Studies
Capital Planning Policy

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Dec 31, 2023 06:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed,

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Future budgets should include 5-year projections of revenue
and expenditures for major operating funds to assist the
Council and Staff in better planning for the future.

Update provided by Jason Muninger on May 01, 2025 15:01:48

Accomplishments: 

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

Goal 1.2.4

Ongoing - Oct 31, 2024 Completed Progress 100%

Objective 1.3 Progress 100%

Goal: 5

Goal 1.3.1

Ongoing - Sep 30, 2024 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 1.3.2

Ongoing - Apr 30, 2024 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 1.3.3

Ongoing - Jul 31, 2023 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 1.3.4

Ongoing - Oct 31, 2023 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 1.3.5

Ongoing - Apr 30, 2024 Completed Progress 100%

Objective 1.4 Progress 100%

Goal: 3

Goal 1.4.1

Ongoing - Oct 31, 2023 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 1.4.2

Ongoing - Jul 31, 2025 Completed Progress 100%



Page 6

 

City Council will adopt a City Council Handbook that will help
to guide current and future City Councils. City Manager will
work with Mayor to schedule a Council workshop to discuss this
item within one year of adoption of Strategic Plan.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Dec 31, 2023 06:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed.

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

Goal 1.4.3

Ongoing - Apr 30, 2024 Completed Progress 100%



Page 7

 

Effective Infrastructure Network % #
 Some Disruption 50 1
 Completed 50 1

 

Develop Asset Management Program for infrastructure. % #
 Some Disruption 100 1

 

Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition Index (PCI). % #
 Completed 100 1

 

The intent of the asset management program is to compile age,
material, condition, and service life of the City’s infrastructure
(facilities, airport, streets, storm drain, wastewater, water,
signals, signs, etc.) into ESRI’s GIS software to aid in planning
improvement priority and capital needs.

Update provided by Micah Siemers on May 22, 2025 22:06:28

Accomplishments: Set up water utilities assets and working on inventory.  Have
had admin and supervisor training

Challenges: 

Next Steps: continue to test out the functionality of the software and learn how
to use it before training technicians

 

Improve road conditions as captured by Pavement Condition
Index (PCI).

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Aug 31, 2023 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed. 

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

Strategic Priority 2 Progress 98%

Objective: 2  Goal: 2

Objective 2.1 Progress 95%

Goal: 1

Goal 2.1.1

Ongoing - Oct 31, 2025 Some Disruption Progress 95%

Objective 2.2 Progress 100%

Goal: 1

Goal 2.2.1

Ongoing - Jun 30, 2023 Completed Progress 100%



Page 8

 

Economic Vitality % #
 Some Disruption 11 1
 Major Disruption 11 1
 Completed 78 7

 

Reevaluate our development regulatory policies to ensure all rules, regulations, and processes align with best
practices and reflect the character of our community.

% #
 Major Disruption 50 1
 Completed 50 1

 

Collaborate with economic development partners and experts to optimize development. % #
 Completed 100 3

 

Develop and implement strategies to retain and attract young professionals and families to Bartlesville. % #
 Some Disruption 25 1
 Completed 75 3

 

Update the city’s comprehensive plan and other long-range
plans utilizing accepted best practices (i.e. transportation,
storm drainage, utilities, etc.).

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on May 23, 2025 14:59:29

Council took no action on the proposed update. As such, this project is now
complete. 

 

Update zoning, subdivision, and other ordinances and codes
which regulate private development and land use following the
updated comprehensive land use plan.

Update provided by Larry Curtis on Jun 25, 2025 16:45:50

Accomplishments: We have received a number of submittals. Council has has
established a working group to review these submittals and will make a
recommendation to council in their August meeting for contract.   

Challenges: None of note at this time. 

Next Steps: Review and contract with a consultant. 

 

Identify economic development partners and assign City
employee to act as economic development liaison. Liaison shall
act as conduit between economic development partners,
developer, and City departments. 

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Jun 30, 2023 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed. 

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Convene a meeting with all economic development partners to
determine how best to support their efforts and to define the
expectations for all parties.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Aug 31, 2023 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed. 

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Ongoing coordination between liaison and economic
development partners.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Dec 31, 2023 06:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed.

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Identify community partners who employ and recruit young
professionals. 

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Sep 30, 2023 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed. 

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Engage with community partners to learn how the City can
attract young professionals and families.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on May 23, 2025 16:11:54

Meetings have been conducted.

Strategic Priority 3 Progress 88%

Objective: 3  Goal: 9

Objective 3.1 Progress 85%

Goal: 2

Goal 3.1.1

Ongoing - Oct 31, 2024 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 3.1.2

Ongoing - Jun 30, 2025 Major Disruption Progress 70%

Objective 3.2 Progress 100%

Goal: 3

Goal 3.2.1

Ongoing - Ongoing Completed

Goal 3.2.2

Ongoing - Dec 31, 2023 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 3.2.3

Ongoing - Ongoing Completed

Objective 3.3 Progress 81%

Goal: 4

Goal 3.3.1

Ongoing - Sep 30, 2023 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 3.3.2

Ongoing - Jan 31, 2024 Completed Progress 100%



Page 9

 

Examine ways to make the community more enticing for
businesses and restaurants that attract young professionals
and families.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on May 23, 2025 16:12:49

 

 

Work closely with BDA and Visit Bartlesville to promote their
efforts and accomplishments.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Jun 30, 2024 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed. 

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

Goal 3.3.3

Ongoing - Jan 01, 2024 Some Disruption Progress 25%

Goal 3.3.4

Ongoing - Jan 31, 2024 Completed Progress 100%



Page 10

 

Community Character % #
 Some Disruption 11 1
 Completed 89 8

 

Explore opportunities to embrace the unique cultures of our community. % #
 Completed 100 2

 

Develop and maintain healthy lifestyle options as a segment of our parks, recreation and transportation
systems.

% #
 Some Disruption 50 1
 Completed 50 1

 

Ensure and maintain clean, bright, vibrant community spaces. % #
 Completed 100 5

 

Coordinate a multi-cultural group to highlight the diverse
cultures in our community.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Nov 30, 2023 06:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed.

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Allocate city resources for support group (such as facilities,
properties, venues, etc.)

Update provided by Kiley Roberson on Mar 26, 2025 15:24:08

Accomplishments: Successfully completed the event planning and execution of
CommUNITY Fest to support various groups in our city.

Challenges: Encountered challenges with planning around all the other events
the city and various groups offer. The event ended up overlapping with
OctoberFest as well which did impact attendance.

Next Steps: The planning team has decided that it would be better going
forward to combine this event with another preexisting event to capitalize on
attendance numbers and just make the unity part a piece of theme for the
event.

 

As part of the update to the City’s comprehensive and other
plans identified in Economic Vitality, update the Parks
Masterplan to ensure that lifestyle options and parks and
recreation systems are meeting the needs of the public.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on May 23, 2025 14:59:53

As this project was waiting for council action on the comprehensive plan, we can
now state that this project is complete. 

 

Create a Trails/Multi-model plan that incorporates existing
assets and plans such as bicycle plan.

Update provided by Larry Curtis on Jun 25, 2025 16:48:21

Accomplishments: 

Continuing to work on this project and the development of Draft Goals and
Priorities 

Challenges: 

No significant challenges encountered during the formatting process.

Next Steps: 

Continuing to work on goals and draft plan. Establishment of a sub committee
for review and approval through the Park Board. 

 

Address vandalism and criminal activities in our community
spaces, including destruction or defacement of public
restrooms, violations of park curfews, etc.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Sep 30, 2024 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal is complete. 10 of 10 bathrooms installed.

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

✓Improve security measures at public restrooms using automatic locks
combined with motion and smoke detectors

✓Police to respond to all calls at public restrooms generated by new systems

✓Offenders, especially repeat offenders, will be prosecuted for vandalism,
arson, trespassing, etc.

Strategic Priority 4 Progress 94%

Objective: 3  Goal: 9

Objective 4.1 Progress 100%

Goal: 2

Goal 4.1.1

Ongoing - Jan 01, 2024 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 4.1.2

Ongoing - Jan 31, 2025 Completed Progress 100%

Objective 4.2 Progress 75%

Goal: 2

Goal 4.2.1

Ongoing - Oct 31, 2024 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 4.2.2

Ongoing - Oct 31, 2024 Some Disruption Progress 50%

Objective 4.3 Progress 100%

Goal: 5

Goal 4.3.1

Ongoing - Apr 30, 2024 Completed Progress 100%



Page 11

 

Coordinate citizen
volunteer efforts to
supplement our
maintenance
efforts and to
improve the
appearance of our
City. These could
include periodic
clean up days,
adopt a mile
programs, adopt a
path programs, etc.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Jun 26, 2025 14:18:19

Committee is established and had completed working on the projects as established by council. 

 

Establish Neighborhood Watch and Sentinel Program.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Mar 31, 2024 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed. 

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Finalize implementation of and launch Software 311 and City
App.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Apr 30, 2024 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed.

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Create a list of minimum maintenance intervals for our parks
and rights-of-way.

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Mar 31, 2024 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed.

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

Goal 4.3.2

Ongoing - Oct 31,
2024

Completed

Progress 100%

Goal 4.3.3

Ongoing - Oct 31, 2023 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 4.3.4

Ongoing - Apr 30, 2024 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 4.3.5

Ongoing - Jul 31, 2023 Completed Progress 100%



Page 12

 

Emerging Issues % #
 Completed 100 3

 

Partner with community groups to discuss, evaluate and report on existing needs and potential solution that
address: Child Care, Housing, Homelessness, and Others to be Determined.

% #
 Completed 100 3

 

Child Care

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on May 23, 2025 16:14:02

New task force established and meeting regularly.

Proposed regulations presented to council 10/24.

 

Housing

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Sep 30, 2024 05:00:01

Accomplishments: Goal has been completed. 

Challenges: 

Next Steps: 

 

Homelessness

Update provided by Kelsey Walker on Jun 30, 2024 05:00:01

Accomplishments: 

Challenges: 

Next Steps: Collaboration with "B the Light" will continue.  Their construction
currently delayed by ODEQ.

Strategic Priority 5 Progress 100%

Objective: 1  Goal: 3

Objective 5.1 Progress 100%

Goal: 3

Goal 5.1.1

Ongoing - Apr 30, 2024 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 5.1.2

Ongoing - Apr 30, 2024 Completed Progress 100%

Goal 5.1.3

Ongoing - Apr 30, 2024 Completed Progress 100%



Agenda Item ___ 
July 7th, 2025 

Prepared by Captain Daniel Elkins 
Police Department 

 
 

I. Subject: Monthly ALPR (Flock Cameras) report per Chapter 15 Ordinance 3600 

 

II. Background: 
a. The City of Bartlesville recently passed a new ordinance pertaining to ALPR 

technology such as Flock Safety Cameras with guidelines on implementation and a 
report on monthly activity. Attached is a detailed report for the month of June 2025.  

 

III. Staff Comments and Analysis: 
a. Staff has conducted an organizational audit and found no discrepancy for June 2025.   

 

IV. Recommended Action: 
a. Review Attached reports.  

7.h.i.



 
Bartlesville Police Department 
Chief of Police, Kevin Ickleberry – Deputy Chief of Police, Troy Newell 
615 S. Johnstone Ave.  Non-Emergency 918.338.4001 
Bartlesville, OK  74003 Administration 918.338.4050 
 

 
To: DC A. Ward # 

From: Capt. D. Elkins #2350 

Subject: Monthly Flock Report -June 2025- 

Date: 06/25/2025.  

 

1. System Overview 
- Total ALPR Cameras Installed: 10 

- Current Locations:  

# Location Distance from City Limit 
1 Frank Phillips & Western-

Eastbound 
Approx. 300’- Straight east of west city limit. 

2 3700 block of Frank 
Phillips Blvd. 

Approx. 3,590’ straight west of east city limit. 

3 Hillcrest Dr. & Caney 
River-Northbound 

Approx. 3,000’ SW to city limit on Kane Hill. 

4 Madison Blvd. & Tuxedo 
Blvd.-Southbound 

Approx. 5,300’ west of east city limit at Bison Rd. 

5 Adams Blvd & Adams 
Rd-Eastbound 

Approx. 9, 520’ east of east city limit at Bison Rd.  

6 14th Street & Texas 
Circle-Eastbound 

Approx. 50’ south or north (SW) city limit. 

7 Frank Phillips Blvd & 
Cherokee 

Approx. 2,400’ south of the north city limit. 

8 Silver Lake Rd. & Price 
Rd.-Northbound 

Approx. 1,700” north of the south city limit at Hampden. 

9 Virginia Ave. & Herrick-
Southbound 

Approx. 105” south of north west city limit. 

10 Bison Rd. & Adams 
Blvd.-Westbound 

Approx. 570’ east of the east city limit. 

 

- System Manufacturer/Provider: Flock Safety  

- Retention Period: 30 days 

- Data Storage Location: AWS Cloud (encrypted) (FBI CJIS compliant) 

 



2. System Activity Summary 
Report Dates May 26th to June 25th     
Total License Plates Captured 780623 
Unique License Plates Captured 514221 
Total Hotlist Entered 3 
Alerts Matched Against Hotlists 1 
Searches Conducted by Personnel 123 total, on 21 cases 

3. Hotlist Monitoring 
- Hotlists Used: 
  - [e.g., NCIC Stolen Vehicle List, Amber Alert, Custom Local Lists] 

- Hotlist Updates Verified: [Yes/No] 

4. User Access & Searches 
- Total Authorized Users: 27 

- New User Accounts Created: 0 

- Search Audit Logs Reviewed: [Yes/No] 

First 
Name Last Name Title Role Last Login 
Alison Pittman Dispatcher User  05/20/2025 

Andrew Ward 
Deputy Chief -
Operations Admin 04/2/2025 

Chad McCarty D.A. Investigator  User 12/16/2024 
Daniel Elkins CID Captain Admin 06/25/2025 
Daniel Mains Patrol Lieutenant Admin 06/20/2025 
Gina Kennedy Dispatcher User  06/20/2025 
Glenn McClintock CID Lieutenant  Admin 06/24/2025 
Greg Oates LEAD Admin 06/23/2025 
Hannah Harbour LEAD Admin 06/17/2025 
Jakaya Barker Dispatcher User 4/23/2025 
Jamie Tennell Dispatcher User  04/26/2025 
Jasie Mercier Dispatcher User 06/21/2025 
Jay Hastings Service Captain Admin 12/19/2024 
Jennifer Hart Dispatcher User 06/24/2025 
Joshua  Johnson  Patrol Lieutenant Admin 05/29/2025 
Kevin Ickleberry Chief Admin 02/20/2025 
Keylee Johnson LEAD Admin 06/24/2025 
Lauren Holland Dispatcher User 06/16/2025 
Lisa Duncan Dispatcher User 06/14/2025 
Makinze Powell Dispatcher User  06/23/2025 
Mike Stokes Dispatcher Admin 05/21/2025 
Rudy Brooklyn Dispatcher User  06/24/2025 
Sarah Barajas Dispatcher User  04/28/2025 
Sarah Vigil Dispatcher  User 04/24/2025 
Tanya Yates Dispatcher User 06/24/2025 
Travis Martinez Patrol Captain Admin   



Tyler Diedrich Patrol Lieutenant Admin 3/18/2025 
 

5. System Maintenance & Uptime 
Camera Location Uptime % Maintenance 

Performed 
Notes 

#1 Frank Phillips 
Blvd @ Hwy 123 

99% Device Operating 
Normally  

 

#2 3700 block of 
Frank Phillips 
Blvd. 

100% Device Operating 
Normally 

 

#3 Hillcrest Dr. & 
Caney River-
Northbound 

100% Device Operating 
Normally 

 

#4 Madison Blvd. 
& Tuxedo Blvd.-
Southbound 

100% Device Operating 
Normally 

 

#5 Adams Blvd & 
Adams Rd-
Eastbound 

100% Device Operating 
Normally 

 

#6 14th Street & 
Texas Circle-
Eastbound 

100% Device Operating 
Normally 

 

#7 Frank Phillips 
Blvd & Cherokee  

100% Device Operating 
Normally 

 

#8 Silver Lake Rd. 
& Price Rd.-
Northbound 

100% Device Operating 
Normally 

 

#9 Virginia Ave. & 
Herrick-
Southbound 

100% Device Operating 
Normally 

 

#10 Bison Rd. & 
Adams Blvd.-
Westbound 

100% Device Operating 
Normally 

 

6. Privacy & Compliance 
- Data Retention Policy Enforced: [Yes/No] 

- Compliance Review Completed: [Yes/No] 

7. Comments/Recommendations 
 

See attached excel reports for greater detail. 

      



Name Total Netw  Time FrameLicense Pla Reason Case # Filters Search Tim Search Type
Joshua  Joh 1 5/26/202 LSA975 Stolen vehicle All Images 5/27/2025,   search
Joshua  Joh 1 5/20/202 LSA975 Stolen vehicle All Images 5/27/2025,   search
Joshua  Joh 1 5/20/202 Stolen vehicle Dodge Pick     5/27/2025,   search
Joshua  Joh 110 5/20/202 Stolen vehicle Dodge Whi      5/27/2025,   search
Daniel Main 1 5/28/202 DUAW63 2025-00021860 5/28/2025,   search
Joshua  Joh 1 5/28/202 N664353 Suspect vehicle All Images 5/29/2025,   search
Daniel Main 1 3/2/2025, XE1B1L 2025-00022039 5/30/2025,   search
Daniel Main 1 3/2/2025, XE1B1L 2025-00022039 Missouri 5/30/2025,   search
Greg Oates 1 6/1/2025, 0990ABM STOLEN Kansas 6/1/2025, 0   search
Greg Oates 1 5/31/202 0990ABM STOLEN Kansas 6/1/2025, 0   search
Daniel Elkin 110 4/29/202 GZV523 OSBI ICAC Child Porn 5/29/2025,   search
Daniel Elkin 1 4/29/202 GZV523 OSBI ICAC Child Porn 5/29/2025,   search
Daniel Elkin 1 4/29/202 GZV523 OSBI ICAC Child Porn 5/29/2025,   search
Daniel Elkin 1 4/29/202 GZV523 OSBI ICAC Child Porn 5/29/2025,   search
Daniel Elkin 1 4/29/202 GZV523 OSBI ICAC Child Porn 5/29/2025,   search
Daniel Elkin 1 4/29/202 GZV523 OSBI ICAC Child Porn 5/29/2025,   search
Daniel Elkin 1 4/29/202 GZV523 OSBI ICAC Child Porn 5/29/2025,   search
Daniel Elkin 1 4/29/202 GZV523 OSBI ICAC Child Porn 5/29/2025,   search
Daniel Elkin 1 4/29/202 GZV523 OSBI ICAC Child Porn 5/29/2025,   search
Daniel Elkin 1 4/29/202 GZV523 OSBI ICAC Child Porn 5/29/2025,   search
Daniel Elkin 1 4/29/202 GZV523 OSBI ICAC Child Porn 5/29/2025,   search
Daniel Elkin 1 4/29/202 GZV523 OSBI ICAC Child Porn 5/29/2025,   search
Daniel Elkin 1 4/29/202 GZV523 OSBI ICAC Child Porn 5/29/2025,   search
Daniel Elkin 1 4/29/202 GZV523 OSBI ICAC Child Porn 5/29/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 5/31/202 2025-00022361 Cadillac Bla    5/31/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 5/31/202 2025-00022361 Cadillac Bla    5/31/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 5/31/202 2025-00022361 Cadillac Me     5/31/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 5/31/202 2025-00022361 Black All Im  5/31/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 5/31/202 LWF919 2025-00022361 Black All Im  5/31/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 5/31/202 LWF919 2025-00022361 Black All Im  5/31/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 5/31/202 LWF919 2025-00022361 Black All Im  5/31/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 5/31/202 2025-00022361 Mercedes B    5/31/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 5/31/202 2025-00022361 Mercedes B    5/31/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 5/31/202 2025-00022361 Mercedes B    5/31/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 5/31/202 2025-000222025-00022Mercedes B    5/31/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 5/31/202 2025-000222025-00022Mercedes B    5/31/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 5/31/202 2025-000222025-00022Mercedes B    5/31/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 5/31/202 2025-000222025-00022Mercedes B    5/31/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 5/31/202 2025-000222025-00022Mercedes B    5/31/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 5/31/202 2025-000222025-00022Mercedes B    5/31/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 5/31/202 2025-000222025-00022Mercedes B    5/31/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 5/31/202 2025-000222025-00022Mercedes B    5/31/2025,   search
Daniel Main 1 6/3/2025, JAA543 2025-00023056 6/5/2025, 0   search
Daniel Main 1 6/1/2025, JAA543 2025-00023056 6/5/2025, 0   search
Jasie Merci 1 6/6/2025, LSA975 STOLEN VE 2025-0002 Oklahoma 6/6/2025, 0   search
Jasie Merci 1 5/7/2025, LSA975 STOLEN VE 2025-0002 Oklahoma 6/6/2025, 0   search



Greg Oates 1 6/9/2025, STOLEN Ford White   6/9/2025, 0   search
Greg Oates 1 6/9/2025, STOLEN Ford White   6/9/2025, 0   search
Greg Oates 1 6/9/2025, STOLEN Ford White   6/9/2025, 0   search
Greg Oates 1 6/9/2025, STOLEN Ford White   6/9/2025, 0   search
Greg Oates 1 6/9/2025, STOLEN Ford White   6/9/2025, 0   search
Greg Oates 1 6/9/2025, 697SBF STOLEN Kansas 6/9/2025, 0   search
Glenn McC 104 6/11/202 EVX880 2025-00023834 Oklahoma 6/11/2025,   search
Greg Oates 1 6/9/2025, 697SBF STOLEN Kansas 6/9/2025, 0   search
Greg Oates 1 6/9/2025, 697SBF STOLEN 6/9/2025, 0   search
Greg Oates 1 6/9/2025, 697SBF STOLEN Kansas 6/9/2025, 0   search
Glenn McC 1 5/17/202 2025-0002119 Ford White   6/13/2025,   search
Glenn McC 1 5/17/202 2025-0002119 Ford White   6/13/2025,   search
Daniel Main 1 5/23/202 2025-00022119 Ford White    6/11/2025,   search
Daniel Main 1 5/13/202 2025-0002219 6/11/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/14/202 2025-00024314 Oklahoma 6/15/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/14/202 2025-00024314 Chevrolet B       6/15/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/14/202 2025-00024314 Chevrolet B       6/15/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/14/202 2025-00024314 Chevrolet B       6/15/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/14/202 2025-00024314 Chevrolet B       6/15/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/14/202 2025-00024314 Chevrolet B       6/15/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/14/202 2025-00024314 Chevrolet B       6/15/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/14/202 2025-00024314 Blue Pickup     6/15/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/14/202 2025-00024314 Blue Pickup     6/15/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/14/202 2025-00024314 Blue Pickup     6/15/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/14/202 2025-00024314 Blue Pickup     6/15/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/14/202 2025-00024314 Blue Pickup    6/15/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/14/202 2025-00024314 Blue Pickup    6/15/2025,   search
Daniel Main 1 6/19/202 8t3316 2025-00024953 6/19/2025,   search
Daniel Main 1 6/18/202 8t3316 2025-00024953 6/19/2025,   search
Daniel Main 1 6/18/202 8t3316 2025-00024953 6/19/2025,   search
Keylee John 110 6/8/2025, GZV568 2025-00024314 Blue Pickup    6/15/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/14/202 2025-00024314 Ford Silver_    6/15/2025,   search
Daniel Main 1 6/20/202 RAU533 2025-00025178 6/20/2025,   search
Daniel Main 1 6/18/202 RAU533 2025-00025178 6/20/2025,   search
Daniel Main 104 6/9/2025, DBW090 2025-00023795 6/11/2025,   search
Daniel Elkin 1 4/27/202 Missing Per2025-00018465 5/27/2025,   search
Daniel Main 1 6/4/2025, VT1729 2025-00023203 6/6/2025, 1   search
Greg Oates 1 6/21/202 STOLEN Ford Green   6/22/2025,   search
Greg Oates 1 6/21/202 STOLEN Ford Green   6/22/2025,   search
Greg Oates 1 6/21/202 STOLEN Ford Green   6/22/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/23/202 2025-00025639 Chevrolet W      6/23/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/23/202 2025-00025639 Chevrolet W      6/23/2025,   search
Joshua  Joh 1 5/25/202 LSA975 Stolen vehicle All Images 5/26/2025,   search
Joshua  Joh 1 5/19/202 LSA975 Stolen vehicle All Images 5/26/2025,   search
Joshua  Joh 1 5/25/202 Stolen vehicle Gmc Black      5/26/2025,   search
Joshua  Joh 1 5/25/202 LSA975 Stolen vehicle All Images 5/26/2025,   search
Joshua  Joh 1 5/19/202 LSA975 Stolen vehicle All Images 5/26/2025,   search



Greg Oates 1 5/28/202 YAMHD2B7STOLEN 5/28/2025,   search
Greg Oates 1 5/28/202 YAMHD2B7STOLEN 5/28/2025,   search
Joshua  Joh 1 5/26/202 LSP814 Stolen vehicle All Images 5/27/2025,   search
Joshua  Joh 1 5/20/202 LSP814 Stolen vehicle All Images 5/27/2025,   search
Joshua  Joh 110 5/20/202 LSP814 Stolen vehicle All Images 5/27/2025,   search
Joshua  Joh 110 5/20/202 LSP814 Stolen vehicle All Images 5/27/2025,   search
Greg Oates 1 6/9/2025, QVU933 STOLEN Oklahoma 6/9/2025, 0   search
Greg Oates 1 6/9/2025, QVU933 STOLEN Oklahoma 6/9/2025, 0   search
Daniel Main 1 6/11/202 CW9247 2025-00024044 All Images 6/12/2025,   search
Glenn McC 1 6/11/202 2025-00023834 Honda Whi  6/11/2025,   search
Greg Oates 1 6/21/202 STOLEN Ford Green   6/22/2025,   search
Greg Oates 1 6/21/202 STOLEN Ford Green   6/22/2025,   search
Greg Oates 1 6/21/202 KJC085 stolen Oklahoma 6/22/2025,   search
Hannah Ha 5814 6/10/202 DBW090 Missing Per2025-00023Oklahoma 6/11/2025,   search
Hannah Ha 1 6/10/202 Missing Per2025-00023Gmc Blue P    6/11/2025,   search
Glenn McC 104 6/11/202 AE2658 2025-00023952 Oklahoma 6/12/2025,   search
Glenn McC 104 6/11/202 AE2658 2025-00023952 6/12/2025,   search
Daniel Main 1 6/2/2025, 2025-00023934 Hyundai Re   6/12/2025,   search
Hannah Ha 1 6/16/202 Missing Per2025-0000 Honda Blue  6/17/2025,   search
Hannah Ha 1 6/16/202 Missing Per2025-0000 Honda Blue  6/17/2025,   search
Greg Oates 1 6/21/202 KJC085 stolen Oklahoma 6/22/2025,   search
Greg Oates 1 6/22/202 KJC085 STOLEN 6/22/2025,   search
Glenn McC 1 6/11/202 EVX880 2025-00023834 Honda Whi  6/11/2025,   search
Glenn McC 5805 5/10/202 LSA975 Stolen vehi 2025-0002 Oklahoma 6/9/2025, 0   search
Glenn McC 110 6/9/2025, DBW090 Missing per2025-00023Oklahoma 6/12/2025,   search
Glenn McC 1 6/9/2025, DBW090 Missing per2025-00023Oklahoma 6/12/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/22/202 2025-00025447 Ford Green     6/22/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/22/202 2025-00025447 Ford Green    6/22/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/22/202 2025-00025447 Ford Green      6/22/2025,   search
Keylee John 1 6/22/202 2025-00025447 Green Blue     6/22/2025,   search



 e



Average Days Visited by Role, by Service, Last 30 Days
Expand role to see individual user data; average includes only users who visited service

Service

All 
FlockOS

Hotlist 
Page

Search 
Page

Sharing 
Page

VMS Page Web App

Role/User Days 
Visited

Days 
Visited

Days 
Visited

Days 
Visited

Days 
Visited

Days 
Visited

Admin 8.13 3.83 3.5 1 4.86

Andrew Ward

Daniel Elkins 3 1 3

Daniel Mains 9 8 8

Glenn McClintock 7 3 3 4

Greg Oates 7 5 5

Hannah Harbour 9 4 4

Jay Hastings

Joshua  Johnson 2 2

Kevin Ickleberry

Keylee Johnson 16 7 1 1 7

Mike Stokes 12 3 1 3

Travis Martinez

Tyler Diedrich

Dispatch



Alison Pittman

No Assigned Role

Chris Neal

Sarah Barajas

Troy Newell

Warren Morrow

User 6.75 4 4

Chad McCarty

Gina Kennedy 2

Jakaya Barker

Jamie Tennell

Jasie Mercier 10 6 6

Jennifer Hart 9 4

Lauren Holland 2 1 1

Lisa Duncan 1 1 1

Makinze Powell 9 9 9

Rudy Brooklyn 6 3 3

Sarah Vigil

Tanya Yates 15 4 4



Agenda Item ___ 
June 19, 2025 

Prepared by Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
Accounting and Finance 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND

Receipt of Interim Financials for the eleven months ending May 30, 

2025. Attachments:

Interim Financials for May 30, 2025 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS

Staff has prepared the condensed Interim Financial Statements for May 2025; these should
provide sufficient information for the City Council to perform its fiduciary responsibility. All
supplementary, detailed information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request.
All information is subject to change pending audit.

III. BUDGET IMPACT

N/A

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION

Staff recommends the approval the Interim Financials for May 30, 2025.

7.i.i.



Ward 1 - Tim Sherrick
Ward 2 - Larry East
Ward 3 - Jim Curd, Mayor
Ward 4 - Aaron Kirkpatrick
Ward 5 - Trevor Dorsey, Vice Mayor

Jason Muninger
Finance Director

Alicia Shelton
Finance Supervisor

Mike Bailey

Prepared by:

REPORT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

For The Eleven Months Ended May 31, 2025

CITY COUNCIL

City Manager



TABLE OF CONTENTS

HIGHLIGHTS

MAJOR FUNDS:
GENERAL FUND
WASTEWATER OPERATING/BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
WATER OPERATING/BMA WATER FUNDS
SANITATION

OTHER FUNDS:
REVENUE BUDGET STATUS
EXPENDITURE BUDGET STATUS
CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE

EXPLANATORY MEMO



FINANCIAL STATEMENT REVENUE HIGHLIGHTS
(Dashed line represents average percent of year for 4 preceding fiscal years)

 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

86.0%
88.0%
90.0%
92.0%
94.0%
96.0%
98.0%
100.0%
102.0%
104.0%
106.0%

 13,000,000
 13,500,000
 14,000,000
 14,500,000
 15,000,000
 15,500,000
 16,000,000
 16,500,000
 17,000,000

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

GENERAL FUND SALES TAX

YTD

% OF YR

82.0%
84.0%
86.0%
88.0%
90.0%
92.0%
94.0%
96.0%
98.0%
100.0%
102.0%

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

 7,000,000

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

WASTEWATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

75.0%

80.0%

85.0%

90.0%

95.0%

100.0%

105.0%

 8,600,000
 8,800,000
 9,000,000
 9,200,000
 9,400,000
 9,600,000
 9,800,000

 10,000,000
 10,200,000

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

WATER FEES

YTD

% OF YR

90.0%

91.0%

92.0%

93.0%

94.0%

95.0%

96.0%

97.0%

 -

 1,000,000

 2,000,000

 3,000,000

 4,000,000

 5,000,000

 6,000,000

 7,000,000

FY 2021 FY 2022 FY 2023 FY 2024 FY 2025

SANITATION FEES

YTD

% OF YR



Page 4

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Sales Tax 17,869,148$  16,380,052$  16,713,814$  -$                   16,713,814$  93.5% 16,629,133$  92.0%
Use Tax 4,513,154       4,137,058       4,510,735       -                     4,510,735       99.9% 4,482,543       93.0%
Gross Receipt Tax 1,656,600       1,518,550       1,424,391       -                     1,424,391       86.0% 1,424,076       92.7%
Licenses and Permits 260,000          238,333          228,958          -                     228,958          88.1% 250,841          96.5%
Intergovernmental 629,000          576,583          1,102,012       -                     1,102,012       175.2% 655,445          89.9%
Charges for Services 539,900          494,908          484,361          -                     484,361          89.7% 535,202          93.0%
Court Costs 193,900          177,742          137,907          -                     137,907          71.1% 175,315          94.8%
Police/Traffic Fines 393,300          360,525          246,668          -                     246,668          62.7% 319,646          94.2%
Parking Fines 45,300            41,525            46,117            -                     46,117            101.8% 47,085            91.6%
Other Fines 66,000            60,500            52,787            -                     52,787            80.0% 58,791            93.1%
Investment Income 150,000          137,500          2,142,335       -                     2,142,335       1428.2% 2,788,917       131.8%
Miscellaneous Income 868,824          796,422          1,282,602       -                     1,282,602       147.6% 1,106,595       97.1%
Transfers In 6,549,579       6,003,781       6,003,784       -                     6,003,784       91.7% 6,014,460       91.7%

Total 33,734,705$  30,923,479$  34,376,471$  -$                   34,376,471$  101.9% 34,488,049$  94.6%

Expenditures:
General Government 10,805,842$  9,905,355$     8,530,031$     485,386$      9,015,417$     83.4% 7,883,564$     87.6%
Public Safety 18,458,736     16,920,508     16,883,414     203,068        17,086,482     92.6% 15,697,900     92.0%
Street 2,264,849       2,076,112       1,795,617       60,284          1,855,900       81.9% 1,675,249       86.6%
Culture and Recreation 3,867,881       3,545,558       3,136,146       74,693          3,210,839       83.0% 3,132,146       87.6%
Transfers Out 4,787,466       4,388,511       4,388,514       -                     4,388,514       91.7% 3,840,012       91.7%
Reserves 1,225,200       1,123,100       -                       -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 41,409,974$  37,959,144$  34,733,722$  823,431$      35,557,152$  85.9% 32,228,871$  90.1%

Changes in Fund Balance:

Fund Balance 7/1 5,555,372$     

Net Revenue (Expense) (357,251)         

Ending Fund Balance 5,198,121$    

92% of Year Lapsed

2024-25 Fiscal Year 2023-24 Fiscal Year

GENERAL FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 5

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Wastewater Fees 6,742,581$     6,180,699$     5,985,628$  -$                   5,985,628$     88.8% 5,605,216$     91.9%
Investment Income -                        -                        185,706        -                      185,706          N.A. -                        0.0%
Debt Proceeds 83,000,000     76,083,333     -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.
Miscellaneous 30,000             27,500             109,200        -                      109,200          364.0% 136,001          99.9%

Total 89,772,581$  82,291,532$  6,280,534$  -$                   6,280,534$    7.0% 5,741,217$    90.0%

Expenditures:
Wastewater Plant 3,179,670$     2,914,698$     2,820,307$  293,777$      3,114,084$     97.9% 2,935,599$     99.4%
Wastewater Maint 999,237          915,967          822,750        3,201             825,951          82.7% 767,409          92.3%
BMA Expenses 1,500,000       1,375,000       -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.
Transfers Out 1,836,183       1,683,168       1,683,169     -                      1,683,169       91.7% 1,509,728       91.7%
Reserves 97,138             89,043             -                      -                      -                        0.0% -                        N.A.

Total 7,612,228$    6,977,876$    5,326,225$  296,978$      5,623,203$    73.9% 5,212,736$    95.9%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 2,925,118$  

Net Revenue (Expense) 954,308        

Ending Fund Balance 3,879,426$  

92% of Year Lapsed

2024-25 Fiscal Year 2023-24 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WASTEWATER OPERATING & BMA WASTEWATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 6

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Water Fees 11,091,140$  10,166,878$  10,134,521$  -$                    10,134,521$  91.4% 9,636,717$     91.6%
Investment Income -                       -                       155,051          -                       155,051          N.A. -                       0.0%
Debt Proceeds 7,500,000       6,875,000       -                       -                       -                       0.0% -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous -                       -                       8,856               -                       8,856               N.A. 749,416          100.0%

Total 18,591,140$  17,041,878$  10,298,428$  -$                    10,298,428$  55.4% 10,386,133$  90.9%

Expenditures:
Water Plant 4,240,410$     3,887,043$     3,258,740$     344,343$       3,603,082$     85.0% 3,149,371$     85.4%
Water Administration 478,954          439,041          392,608          50,971            443,579          92.6% 369,191          89.5%
Water Distribution 2,405,156       2,204,726       1,850,588       90,342            1,940,930       80.7% 1,631,014       84.8%
BMA Expenses 10,775,784     9,877,802       3,000,135       306,009         3,306,144       30.7% 3,037,112       75.0%
Transfers Out 2,878,743       2,638,848       2,638,849       -                       2,638,849       91.7% 2,369,841       91.7%
Reserves 252,659          231,604          -                       -                       -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 21,031,706$  19,279,064$  11,140,919$  791,665$       11,932,584$  56.7% 10,556,529$  83.4%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 7,688,787$     

Net Revenue (Expense) (842,491)         

Ending Fund Balance 6,846,296$    

92% of Year Lapsed

2024-25 Fiscal Year 2023-24 Fiscal Year

COMBINED WATER OPERATING & BMA WATER FUNDS
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



Page 7

 Total Budget  YTD Budget  YTD Actual  YTD Encum  YTD Total 
% of 

Budget  YTD Total 
% Total 

Year

Revenue:
Collection Fees 6,626,914$     6,074,671$     6,209,070$       -$                   6,209,070$     93.7% 5,676,059$     91.7%
Investment Income -                       -                       6,695                 -                     6,695               N.A. -                       N.A.
Miscellaneous 56,334            45,669            36,705               -                     36,705            65.2% 128,288          92.8%
Transfers In -                       -                       -                          -                     -                       N.A. -                       N.A.

Total 6,683,248$    6,120,340$    6,252,470$       -$                   6,252,470$    93.6% 5,804,347$    91.7%

Expenditures:
Sanitation 3,911,821$     3,585,836$     3,285,158$       153,486$      3,438,644$     87.9% 3,065,787$     86.8%
Transfers Out 2,684,272       2,460,583       2,460,584         -                     2,460,584       91.7% 2,428,920       91.7%
Reserves 140,718          128,992          -                          -                     -                       0.0% -                       N.A.

Total 6,736,811$    6,175,411$    5,745,742$       153,486$     5,899,228$    87.6% 5,494,707$    88.9%

Changes in Fund Balance:  

Fund Balance 7/1 261,319$          

Net Revenue (Expense) 506,728             

Ending Fund Balance 768,047$          

92% of Year Lapsed

2024-25 Fiscal Year 2023-24 Fiscal Year

SANITATION FUND
Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 
Special Revenue Funds:

Economic Development Fund 1,881,469     1,969,545    105%
E-911 Fund 1,366,836     1,371,805    100%
Special Library Fund 88,000          193,891       220%
Special Museum Fund -                     12,942          N/A
Municipal Airport Fund 737,000        1,629,366    221%
Harshfield Library Donation Fund -                     32,365          N/A
Restricted Revenue Fund 91,320          31,096          34%
Golf Course Memorial Fund 30,000          33,739          112%
CDBG-COVID 485,000        111,977       23%
ARPA -                     -                    N/A
Justice Assistance Grant Fund -                     -                    N/A
Opioid Settlement Fund 364,814        334,814       92%
Neighborhood Park Fund -                     3,973            N/A
Cemetery Care Fund 2,400            2,343            98%

Debt Service Fund 4,940,770     4,861,812    98%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 3,371,537     4,385,144    130%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                    N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund -                     33,060          N/A
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund -                     38,586          N/A
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 47,880          61,689          129%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund -                     6,466            N/A
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                     -                    N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2019B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2021A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2022 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A
2023 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                    N/A

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 1,155,714     1,044,253    90%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 71,179          67,436          95%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 95,013          90,525          95%
Municipal Airport Operating 526,200        563,437       107%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 132,951        121,026       91%
Health Insurance Fund 5,859,409     6,024,542    103%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 75,000          121,954       163%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 1,550,943     1,421,698    92%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 8,057,005     7,941,624    99%

Mausoleum Trust Fund -                     538               N/A

92% of Year Lapsed

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Revenue Budget Report - Budget Basis



 Budget  Actuals  Percent of Budget 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 5,708,341     2,929,749    51%
E-911 Fund 1,487,474     1,211,385    81%
Special Library Fund 207,463        130,711        63%
Special Museum Fund 25,100           16,702          67%
Municipal Airport Fund 1,986,719     1,753,378    88%
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 375,994        22,165          6%
Restricted Revenue Fund 398,679        92,705          23%
Golf Course Memorial Fund 79,913           43,315          54%
CDBG-COVID 970,378        597,355        62%
ARPA 500,000        458,334        92%
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 14,804           -                     0%
Opioid Settlement Fund 364,814        120,000        33%
Neighborhood Park Fund 62,723           -                     0%
Cemetery Care Fund 15,009           175               1%

Debt Service Fund 4,940,770     4,877,295    99%

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 9,787,749     6,891,398    70%
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                     -                     N/A
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 87,205           10,037          12%
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 584,032        39,863          7%
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 227,358        -                     0%
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 55,093           -                     0%
Community Development Block Grant Fund -                     -                     N/A
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,885             -                     0%
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 31,386           -                     0%
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                     -                     N/A
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 327,431        326,564        100%
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 350,641        19,182          5%
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 526,494        503,306        96%
2022 G.O. Bond Fund 3,438,895     2,532,865    74%
2023 G.O. Bond Fund 6,454,534     2,041,615    32%

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 1,303,857     1,072,707    82%
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 80,880           76,038          94%
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 94,560           83,257          88%
Municipal Airport Operating 709,086        664,651        94%

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 430,000        124,428        29%
Health Insurance Fund 6,055,446     6,023,166    99%
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 443,559        99,683          22%
Stabilization Reserve Fund 14,776,368   -                     0%
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 22,197,887   11,653,974  53%

Mausoleum Trust Fund 8,515             -                     0%

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Expenditure Budget Report - Budget Basis

92% of Year Lapsed



 Beginning of Year  Change  Current 

Special Revenue Funds:
Economic Development Fund 3,982,024                 (960,204)      3,021,820     
E-911 Fund 212,689                    161,862        374,551        
Special Library Fund 338,451                    75,423          413,874        
Special Museum Fund 163,780                    (3,760)           160,020        
Municipal Airport Fund -                                 -                     -                     
Harshfield Library Donation Fund 435,622                    10,360          445,982        
Restricted Revenue Fund 259,665                    (58,600)         201,065        
Golf Course Memorial Fund 49,914                       (460)              49,454           
CDBG-COVID -                                 -                     -                     
ARPA 1,732,952                 (458,334)      1,274,618     
Justice Assistance Grant Fund 14,804                       -                     14,804           
Opioid Settlement Fund -                                 334,814        334,814        
Neighborhood Park Fund 64,343                       3,973            68,316           
Cemetery Care Fund 13,038                       2,168            15,206           

Debt Service Fund 3,610,645                 (15,483)         3,595,162     

Capital Project Funds:
Sales Tax Capital Improvement Fund 6,360,355                 460,771        6,821,126     
Park Capital Improvement Fund -                                 -                     -                     
Wastewater Capital Improvement Fund 140,792                    23,023          163,815        
Wastewater Regulatory Capital Fund 397,676                    (1,277)           396,399        
City Hall Capital Improvement Fund 180,119                    61,689          241,808        
Storm Drainage Capital Improvement Fund 59,177                       6,466            65,643           
Community Development Block Grant Fund 211,387                    -                     211,387        
2008B G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2009 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2010 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2012 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2014 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2014B G.O. Bond Fund 3,885                         -                     3,885             
2015 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2017 G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2018A G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2018B G.O. Bond Fund 31,386                       -                     31,386           
2018C G.O. Bond Fund -                                 -                     -                     
2019A G.O. Bond Fund 327,431                    (326,564)      867                
2019B G.O. Bond Fund 350,641                    (6,938)           343,703        
2021A G.O. Bond Fund 526,494                    (353,582)      172,912        
2022A G.O. Bond Fund 3,112,203                 (1,520,176)   1,592,027     
2023 G.O. Bond Fund 6,564,913                 (1,564,864)   5,000,049     

Proprietary Funds:
Adams Golf Course Operating Fund 136,622                    71,904          208,526        
Sooner Pool Operating Fund 40,167                       (329)              39,838           
Frontier Pool Operating Fund 54,603                       16,788          71,391           
Municipal Airport Operating 431,254                    (93,744)         337,510        

Internal Service Funds:
Worker's Compensation Fund 321,209                    (1,552)           319,657        
Health Insurance Fund 3,001                         1,376            4,377             
Auto Collision Insurance Fund 496,502                    26,793          523,295        
Stabilization Reserve Fund 13,225,425               1,421,698    14,647,123   
Capital Improvement Reserve Fund 21,349,355               3,588,260    24,937,615   

Mausoleum Trust Fund 8,709                         538               9,247             

ALL OTHER FUNDS
Fund Balance Report - Modified Cash Basis

92% of Year Lapsed



 

 
 
 
 

 
 
FROM: Jason Muninger, CFO/City Clerk 
 
SUBJECT: Financial Statement Explanatory Information 
 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
The purpose of this memo is to provide some insight as to the construction of the attached financial 
statements and to provide some guidance as to their use. 
 
The format of the attached financial statements is intended to highlight our most important revenue 
sources, provide sufficient detail on major operating funds, and provide a high level overview of all other 
funds. The level of detail presented is sufficient to assist the City Council in conducting their fiduciary 
obligations to the City without creating a voluminous document that made the execution of that duty 
more difficult. 
 
This document provides three different types of analyses for the Council’s use. The first is an analysis 
of revenue vs budgeted expectations. This allows the Council to see how the City’s revenues are 
performing and to have a better idea if operational adjustments are necessary.  
 
The second analysis compares expenditures to budget. This allows the Council to ensure that the 
budgetary plan that was set out for the City is being followed and that Staff is making the necessary 
modifications along the way.  
 
The final analysis shows the fund balance for each fund of the City. This is essentially the “cash” balance 
for most funds. However, some funds include short term receivables and payables depending on the 
nature of their operation. With very few exceptions, all funds must maintain positive fund balance by 
law. Any exceptions will be noted where they occur. 
 
These analyses are presented in the final manner: 
 

Highlights: 
The Highlights section presents a 5 year snap shot of the performance of the City’s 4 most 
important revenue sources. Each bar represents the actual amounts earned in each year through 
the period of the report. Each dash represents the percent of the year’s revenue that had been 
earned through that period. The current fiscal year will always represent the percent of the budget 
that has been earned, while all previous fiscal years will always represent the percent of the actual 
amount earned. This analysis highlights and compares not only amounts earned, but gives a better 
picture of how much should have been earned in order to meet budget for the year. 
 

  



Major Operating Funds: 
The City’s major operating funds are presented in greater detail than the remainder of the City’s 
funds. These funds include the General, Wastewater Operating, BMA – Wastewater, Water 
Operating, BMA – Water, and Sanitation. Due to the interrelated nature of the Wastewater 
Operating/BMA – Wastewater and the Water Operating/BMA – Water funds, these have been 
combined into Wastewater Combined and Water Combined funds. This should provide a better 
picture of the overall financial condition of these operating segments by combining revenues, 
operating expenses, and financing activities in a single report. 
 
Other Funds: 
All other funds of the City are reported at a high level. These funds are often created for a limited 
purpose, limited duration, and frequently contain only a one-time revenue source. This high level 
overview will provide Council with sufficient information for a summary review. Any additional 
information that is required after that review is available. 
 

These condensed financial statement should provide sufficient information for the City Council to 
perform its fiduciary responsibility while simplifying the process. All supplementary, detailed 
information is available for the Council’s use at any time upon request. Additionally, any other funds 
that the Council chooses to classify as a Major Operating fund can be added to that section to provide 
greater detail in the future. 



Published in the Examiner Enterprise 
 
 
May 17th, 21st, & 24th, 2025 
 
 
NOTICE TO BIDDERS 
 
The City of Bartlesville will accept sealed bids for the purchase of the following described items 
at the office of the City Clerk, 401 S. Johnstone Ave, Bartlesville, Oklahoma until the hour of 
2:00 p.m. on Monday, June 16, 2025. 
 
  2025-2026-001 WATER & WASTE WATER LINE MATERIALS 
 
  2025-2026-002 WATER TREATMENT CHEMICALS 
 
 
 
All bids must be placed in a sealed envelope for each bid submitted.  All bids must indicate the 
following on the outside of each sealed envelope: 
 
NAME AND ADDRESS OF BIDDER 
BID NUMBER 
 
Bids may be mailed, but must reach the City Clerk’s office before the deadline to be considered.  
Address bids to: 
 
City of Bartlesville 
City Clerk 
401 S. Johnstone Ave. 
Bartlesville, OK 74003-6619 
 
The City reserves the right to make the final determination as to what constitutes the best bid 
and it reserves the right to reject or accept any or all bids or portions thereof. 
 
Dated this 2nd day of May 2025. 
 
 

          Terry L. Lauritsen   
                                                                                       Terry L. Lauritsen                                           

                                                                                         Director of Water Utilities 
 

Agenda Item 7.j.i. and ii.



Agenda Item 7.j.iii.



Agenda Item 7.j.iv.





8.



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2025-2026-001

TIE BID

Item # Description

 CONSOLIDATED 
PIPE & SUPPLY                  
Troy McCamish           

539-476-4727              
or                               

Tyler Lyles              
479-431-7750  

 CORE & MAIN                                            
Kenzie                   

918-586-7100  

 FORTILINE            
Joshua Long           
918-445-0005  

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340            or                               
Nicole Gorbert          
918-203-0183 

 UTILITY 
SUPPLY  

Brandon Epps           
918-266-0209  

A-1 3/4" PE Pipe   C.T.S. 1000 ft NO BID 0.28$                    NO BID NO BID 0.35$                  

A-2 1" PE Pipe  C.T.S. 500 ft NO BID 0.45$                    NO BID NO BID 0.65$                  

A-3 1-1/2" PE Pipe  C.T.S 600 ft NO BID 0.90$                    NO BID NO BID 1.25$                  

A-4 2" PE Pipe  C.T.S. 3000 ft NO BID 1.48$                    NO BID NO BID 2.00$                  

A-5 4" C-900 DR 18 200 ft NO BID 4.75$                    4.72$                  4.73$                           4.63$                  

A-6 6" C-900 DR 18 200 ft NO BID 9.70$                    9.60$                  9.61$                           9.41$                  

A-7 4" SCH 40 PVC 400 ft NO BID 2.16$                    1.52$                  2.76$                           NO BID

A-8 6" PVC SDR 26 500 ft NO BID 5.95$                    5.71$                  5.72$                           5.85$                  

A-9 8" PVC SDR 26 1000 ft NO BID 10.65$                  10.34$                10.35$                         9.95$                  

A-10 10" PVC SDR 26 100 ft NO BID 17.50$                  16.11$                16.12$                         15.44$                

A-11 Poly Wrap (bid per roll   200'  per roll)       
Core & Main = 200'  UTS = 440' 10 rl NO BID 57.00$                  NO BID NO BID NO BID

A-12 Caution Tape (bid per roll 1,000' per roll)  10 rl NO BID 7.95$                    NO BID NO BID 15.00$                

A-13 Detectable Locator Tape (bid per roll  
1,000' per roll) 5 rl NO BID 21.50$                  NO BID NO BID 40.00$                

A-14 Poly Tape (bid per roll  100' per roll) 5 rl NO BID 5.25$                    NO BID NO BID 11.55$                

A-15 #12 Solid Wire THHN 500' roll (bid per 
roll) 12 rl NO BID 62.00$                  NO BID NO BID 125.00$              

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION A:  PIPE & TUBING

1



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2025-2026-001

TIE BID

Item # Description

 CONSOLIDATED 
PIPE & SUPPLY                  
Troy McCamish           

539-476-4727              
or                               

Tyler Lyles              
479-431-7750  

 CORE & MAIN                                            
Kenzie                     

918-586-7100  

 FORTILINE            
Joshua Long           
918-445-0005  

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340                      
or                               

Nicole Gorbert          
918-203-0183  

 UTILITY SUPPLY    
Brandon Epps       
918-266-0209 

B-1 4" Mega Lugs (DIP) 8 ea NO BID 47.45$                  27.34$                     NO BID 29.75$                     

B-2 4" Mega Lugs (PVC) w/ 4 wedge 8 ea NO BID 53.25$                  33.87$                     NO BID 36.00$                     

B-3 6" Mega Lugs (DIP) 30 ea NO BID 54.75$                  31.83$                     NO BID 34.50$                     

B-4 6" Mega Lugs (PVC) w/ 6 wedge 100 ea NO BID 62.49$                  40.81$                     NO BID 44.00$                     

B-5 8" Mega Lugs (DIP) 10 ea NO BID 75.15$                  47.75$                     NO BID 51.00$                     

B-6 8" Mega Lugs (PVC) w/ 6 wedge 100 ea NO BID 86.50$                  60.40$                     NO BID 64.00$                     

B-7 14" Mega Lugs (DIP) w/10 wedge 2 ea NO BID 199.45$                136.73$                   NO BID 145.00$                   

B-8 14" Mega Lugs (PVC) w/10 wedge 2 ea NO BID 259.00$                193.06$                   NO BID 210.00$                   

B-9 6" MJ 11 1/4° Bend 2 ea 111.65$               102.00$                103.57$                   NO BID 106.50$                   

B-10 8" MJ 11 1/4° Bend 2 ea 151.21$               138.85$                140.26$                   NO BID 144.50$                   

B-11 6" MJ 22 1/2° Bend 2 ea 106.55$               97.84$                  98.38$                     NO BID 101.50$                   

B-12 8" MJ 22 1/2° Bend 2 ea 166.52$               152.90$                154.46$                   NO BID 159.00$                   

B-13 4" MJ 45° Bend 2 ea 74.01$                 68.30$                  68.25$                     NO BID 70.50$                     

B-14 6" MJ 45° Bend 15 ea 117.39$               107.75$                108.89$                   NO BID 112.00$                   

Estimated 
Quantity

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

SECTION B:  DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS

2



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2025-2026-001

TIE BID

Item # Description

 CONSOLIDATED 
PIPE & SUPPLY                  
Troy McCamish           

539-476-4727              
or                               

Tyler Lyles              
479-431-7750  

 CORE & MAIN                                            
Kenzie                     

918-586-7100  

 FORTILINE            
Joshua Long           
918-445-0005  

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340                      
or                               

Nicole Gorbert          
918-203-0183  

 UTILITY SUPPLY    
Brandon Epps       
918-266-0209 

Estimated 
Quantity

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

SECTION B:  DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS

B-15 8" MJ 45° Bend 5 ea 170.98$               157.00$                158.62$                   NO BID 163.50$                   

B-16 6" MJ 90° Bend 6 ea 144.83$               133.60$                134.34$                   NO BID 138.00$                   

B-17 8" MJ 90° Bend 3 ea 208.63$               191.55$                193.53$                   NO BID 199.00$                   

B-18 4" MJ Bolt Pack 24 ea 23.61$                 22.35$                  21.89$                     NO BID 22.60$                     

B-19 4" MJ Plug 2 ea 41.47$                 38.45$                  38.46$                     NO BID 39.50$                     

B-20 6" MJ Plug 2 ea 77.84$                 71.45$                  72.20$                     NO BID 74.25$                     

B-21 8" MJ Plug 2 ea 114.84$               105.95$                106.53$                   NO BID 109.50$                   

B-22 4 x 2 MJ Plug 2 ea 76.56$                 69.90$                  71.02$                     NO BID 73.00$                     

B-23 8 x 6 MJ Reducer 2 ea 122.50$               111.55$                113.63$                   NO BID 117.00$                   

B-24 6 x 6 x 6 MJ Swivel Tee 6 ea 238.61$               219.00$                221.34$                   NO BID 225.00$                   

B-25 8 x 8 x 6 MJ Swivel Tee 4 ea 299.22$               277.00$                281.65$                   NO BID 285.00$                   

B-26 6 x 6 x 6 MJ Straight Tee 6 ea 207.35$               191.00$                192.34$                   NO BID 198.00$                   

B-27 8 x 8 x 6 MJ Straight Tee 4 ea 257.11$               238.00$                238.51$                   NO BID 245.00$                   

B-28 8 x 8 x 8 MJ Straight Tee 4 ea 310.71$               286.75$                288.22$                   NO BID 295.00$                   

3



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2025-2026-001

TIE BID

Item # Description

 CONSOLIDATED 
PIPE & SUPPLY                  
Troy McCamish           

539-476-4727              
or                               

Tyler Lyles              
479-431-7750  

 CORE & MAIN                                            
Kenzie                     

918-586-7100  

 FORTILINE            
Joshua Long           
918-445-0005  

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340                      
or                               

Nicole Gorbert          
918-203-0183  

 UTILITY SUPPLY    
Brandon Epps       
918-266-0209 

Estimated 
Quantity

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

SECTION B:  DUCTILE IRON FITTINGS

B-29 4 x 2 MJ Tapped Plug 2 ea 76.56$                 70.65$                  71.02$                     NO BID 73.25$                     

B-30 6 x 2 MJ Tapped Plug 4 ea 111.65$               102.50$                103.57$                   NO BID 106.50$                   

B-31 8 x 2 MJ Tapped Plug 2 ea 149.29$               137.75$                138.48$                   NO BID 142.50$                   

B-32 4" Solid Sleeves (12" Length) 8 ea 78.47$                 72.05$                  72.79$                     NO BID 75.00$                     

B-33 6" Solid Sleeves (12" Length) 24 ea 131.43$               120.60$                121.91$                   NO BID 225.00$                   

B-34 8" Solid Sleeves (12"Length) 8 ea 210.54$               193.00$                195.30$                   NO BID 201.00$                   

B-35 10" Solid Sleeves (12" Length) 2 ea 252.01$               231.40$                233.77$                   NO BID 240.00$                   

B-36 3/4"x 4" T Bolts 100 ea 3.19$                   2.99$                    2.95$                       NO BID 4.00$                       

4



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2025-2026-001

TIE BID

Item # Description

 CONSOLIDATED 
PIPE & SUPPLY                  
Troy McCamish           

539-476-4727              
or                               

Tyler Lyles              
479-431-7750  

 CORE & MAIN                                            
Kenzie                     

918-586-7100  

 FORTILINE            
Joshua Long           
918-445-0005 

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340                 
or                               

Nicole Gorbert          918-
203-0183 

 UTILITY 
SUPPLY    

Brandon Epps       
918-266-0209 

C-1 3" Fire Hydrant Meter 3 ea 1,291.82$                  1,925.00$             NO BID NO BID NO BID

C-2 5 1/4" Fire Hydrant Main Valve, Mueller 8 ea NO BID 770.00$                NO BID NO BID NO BID

C-3 5 1/4" Fire Hydrant Main Valve, Kennedy, 
KB-10 8 ea NO BID 690.00$                NO BID NO BID NO BID

C-4 5 1/4" Fire Hydrant Repair Kit, Kennedy, 
KB-10 4 ea NO BID 690.00$                NO BID NO BID NO BID

C-5 5 1/4" Fire Hydrant Repair Kit, U.S. 6 ea NO BID 685.00$                NO BID NO BID NO BID

C-6 Fire Hydrant, 3' Bury 3 ea 2,612.69$                  2,650.00$             NO BID 2,381.25$                        2,628.77$          

C-7 Fire Hydrant, 3.5' Bury 2 ea 2,676.34$                  2,690.25$             NO BID 2,439.04$                        2,695.42$          

C-8 Fire Hydrant, 4' Bury 2 ea 2,739.98$                  2,775.00$             NO BID 2,496.81$                        2,762.06$          

C-9 Fire Hydrant, 4.5 Bury 3 ea 2,803.63$                  2,826.75$             NO BID 2,554.60$                        2,828.89$          

C-10 Fire Hydrant, 5' Bury 3 ea 2,867.28$                  2,890.90$             NO BID 2,629.11$                        2,895.04$          

C-11 Traffic Repair Kits for Mueller Centruian 
022MUA301 3 ea NO BID 650.00$                NO BID NO BID NO BID

C-12 Large Meter Boxes Complete with Lids 
(Carson 1730-18 HDPE) 15 ea 304.50$                     314.00$                312.41$             310.23$                           NO BID

C-13 Small Meter Boxes Complete with Lids 
(Carson 2200-18) 150 ea. 125.50$                     126.00$                126.16$             126.00$                           NO BID

C-14 Small Meter Boxes (Carson 2200-18) 300 ea 58.50$                       55.00$                  55.41$               55.14$                             NO BID

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION C:  VALVES, HYDRANTS, METERS & BOXES

5



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2025-2026-001

TIE BID

Item # Description

 CONSOLIDATED 
PIPE & SUPPLY                  
Troy McCamish           

539-476-4727              
or                               

Tyler Lyles              
479-431-7750  

 CORE & MAIN                                            
Kenzie                     

918-586-7100  

 FORTILINE            
Joshua Long           
918-445-0005 

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340                 
or                               

Nicole Gorbert          918-
203-0183 

 UTILITY 
SUPPLY    

Brandon Epps       
918-266-0209 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION C:  VALVES, HYDRANTS, METERS & BOXES

C-15 Small Meter Box Lids 50 ea 74.75$                       73.00$                  72.76$               72.40$                             NO BID

C-16 Thru the lid flange & nut (Nepune) for 
attaching AMI antennas 200 ea NO BID 52.15$                  NO BID NO BID NO BID

C-17 5 1/4" x 2 1/4" Valve Box Extension 24 ea 32.27$                       32.00$                  NO BID NO BID 26.00$               

C-18 5 1/4" x 4" Valve Box Extension 20 ea 39.45$                       37.35$                  NO BID NO BID 36.00$               

C-19 Valve Box, Short Adj. 10"-Top 16"-Bottom 
COMPLETE 36 ea 67.24$                       63.05$                  NO BID NO BID 70.00$               

C-20 Valve Box, Tall Adj. 16"-Top, 24"-Bottom 
COMPLETE 50 ea 89.65$                       84.00$                  NO BID NO BID 94.00$               

C-21 10" Valve Box Tops 10 ea NO BID 23.15$                  NO BID NO BID 27.50$               

C-22 16" Valve Box Tops 10 ea NO BID 32.00$                  NO BID NO BID 41.00$               

C-23 16" Valve Box Bottoms 10 ea NO BID 38.50$                  NO BID NO BID 36.00$               

C-24 24" Valve Box Bottoms 10 ea NO BID 44.05$                  NO BID NO BID 48.50$               

C-25 3" RW MJ Gate Valve 3 ea 609.77$                     600.00$                NO BID 536.72$                           561.45$             

C-26 4" RW MJ Gate Valve 6 ea 681.41$                     682.00$                NO BID 596.36$                           653.88$             

C-27 6" RW MJ Gate Valve 25 ea 869.52$                     890.00$                NO BID 750.84$                           848.26$             

C-28 8" RW MJ Gate Valve 5 ea. 1,384.95$                  1,350.00$             NO BID 1,208.95$                        1,350.16$          

6



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2025-2026-001

TIE BID

Item # Description

 CONSOLIDATED 
PIPE & SUPPLY                  
Troy McCamish           

539-476-4727              
or                               

Tyler Lyles              
479-431-7750  

 CORE & MAIN                                            
Kenzie                     

918-586-7100  

 FORTILINE            
Joshua Long           
918-445-0005 

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340                 
or                               

Nicole Gorbert          918-
203-0183 

 UTILITY 
SUPPLY    

Brandon Epps       
918-266-0209 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION C:  VALVES, HYDRANTS, METERS & BOXES

C-29 4" RW Flange x MJ Tapping Valve 1 ea. 650.54$                     645.00$                NO BID 776.50$                           762.09$             

C-30 6" RW Flange x MJ Tapping Valve 10 ea. 869.52$                     870.00$                NO BID 1,083.15$                        1,118.74$          

C-31 8" RW Flange x MJ Tapping Valve 5 ea. 1,358.74$                  1,450.00$             NO BID 1,611.38$                        1,690.52$          

C-32 Water Sample Stations Eclipse #88 5 ea. NO BID 1,450.00$             1,211.74$          1,212.64$                        NO BID

7



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2025-2026-001

TIE BID

Item # Description

 CONSOLIDATED 
PIPE & SUPPLY                  
Troy McCamish           

539-476-4727              
or                               

Tyler Lyles              
479-431-7750  

 CORE & MAIN                                            
Kenzie                     

918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE            
Joshua Long           
918-445-0005 

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340            
or                               

Nicole Gorbert          
918-203-0183 

 UTILITY SUPPLY    
Brandon Epps       
918-266-0209 

Couplings (Stainless Steel Nuts & Bolts)

D-1 1" Bolted Coupling 20 ea NO BID 38.45$                  36.29$                     NO BID 39.50$                  

D-2 1.5" Bolted Coupling 12 ea NO BID 43.45$                  41.22$                     NO BID 45.00$                  

D-3 2"x5" Bolted Coupling #411 24 ea NO BID 46.15$                  44.50$                     NO BID 48.50$                  

D-4 3" Bolted Coupling #461 OD 3.46-4.21 2 ea NO BID 128.45$                121.15$                   NO BID 130.00$                

D-5 4" Bolted Coupling #461 OD 4.20-5.33 6 ea NO BID 159.65$                150.41$                   NO BID NO BID

D-6 6" Bolted Coupling #461 OD 6.54-7.65 20 ea NO BID 219.75$                208.74$                   NO BID 125.00$                

D-7 8" Bolted Coupling #461 8.54 x 9.90 15 ea NO BID 263.50$                250.77$                   NO BID 275.00$                

D-8 10" Bolted Coupling #462 OD 10.65-12.20 4 ea NO BID 458.00$                441.05$                   NO BID 480.00$                

D-9 12" Bolted Coupling #462 OD 12.75 - 14.40 4 ea NO BID 544.75$                517.04$                   NO BID 550.00$                

D-10 3/4" Galv. Comp Coupling #522 36 ea NO BID 19.75$                  NO BID NO BID NO BID

D-11 1" Galv. Comp Coupling #522 30 ea NO BID 20.15$                  NO BID NO BID NO BID

D-12 2" Galv. Comp. Coupling #522 24 ea NO BID 39.20$                  NO BID NO BID NO BID

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION D: COUPLINGS, CLAMPS, TAPPING SLEEVES

8



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2025-2026-001

TIE BID

Item # Description

 CONSOLIDATED 
PIPE & SUPPLY                  
Troy McCamish           

539-476-4727              
or                               

Tyler Lyles              
479-431-7750  

 CORE & MAIN                                            
Kenzie                     

918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE            
Joshua Long           
918-445-0005 

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340            
or                               

Nicole Gorbert          
918-203-0183 

 UTILITY SUPPLY    
Brandon Epps       
918-266-0209 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION D: COUPLINGS, CLAMPS, TAPPING SLEEVES

# 248 Clamps

D-13 1-1/2" x 3" Clamp #248 SB OD 1.88-1.90 6 ea NO BID 21.00$                  20.49$                     NO BID 22.00$                  

D-14 1-1/2" x 6" Clamp #248 SB OD 1.88-1.90 15 ea NO BID 41.00$                  39.38$                     NO BID 42.00$                  

# 261 Clamps (Single Band)

D-15 2"x 7-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 2.35-2.63 5 ea NO BID 49.00$                  47.32$                     NO BID 50.00$                  

D-16 4" x 7-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 4.74-5.41 5 ea NO BID 62.00$                  59.45$                     NO BID 65.00$                  

D-17 4" x 12" Clamp #261 OD 4.74-5.14 5 ea NO BID 95.00$                  91.24$                     NO BID 99.00$                  

D-18 4" x 15" Clamp #261 OD 4.74-5.14 5 ea NO BID 110.00$                101.34$                   NO BID 110.00$                

D-19 6" x 7-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 6.56-6.96 2 ea NO BID 70.00$                  68.57$                     NO BID 73.00$                  

D-20 6" x 7-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 6.84-7.24 36 ea NO BID 72.25$                  69.32$                     NO BID 75.00$                  

D-21 6" x 7-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 7.05-7.45 5 ea NO BID 73.65$                  70.36$                     NO BID 75.00$                  

D-22 6" x 12-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 6.84-7.24 20 ea NO BID 115.80$                111.12$                   NO BID 120.00$                

D-23 6" x 12-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 7.05-7.45 10 ea NO BID 116.35$                112.14$                   NO BID 121.00$                

D-24 6" x 15" Clamp #261 OD 6.56-6.96 2 ea NO BID 126.45$                121.13$                   NO BID 133.00$                

9



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2025-2026-001

TIE BID

Item # Description

 CONSOLIDATED 
PIPE & SUPPLY                  
Troy McCamish           

539-476-4727              
or                               

Tyler Lyles              
479-431-7750  

 CORE & MAIN                                            
Kenzie                     

918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE            
Joshua Long           
918-445-0005 

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340            
or                               

Nicole Gorbert          
918-203-0183 

 UTILITY SUPPLY    
Brandon Epps       
918-266-0209 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION D: COUPLINGS, CLAMPS, TAPPING SLEEVES

D-25 6" x 15" Clamp #261 OD 6.84-7.24 20 ea NO BID 127.50$                122.34$                   NO BID 134.00$                

D-26 6" x 15" Clamp #261 OD 7.05-7.45 2 ea NO BID 127.50$                123.38$                   NO BID 135.00$                

D-27 8" x 7-1/2"  Clamp #261 OD 8.54-8.94 2 ea NO BID 83.95$                  82.21$                     NO BID 88.00$                  

D-28 8" x 7-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 8.99-9.39 15 ea NO BID 83.95$                  82.74$                     NO BID 89.00$                  

D-29 8" x 7-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 9.05-9.39 (Part 
#90507) 4 ea NO BID 83.95$                  NO BID NO BID NO BID

D-30 8" x 12-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 8.54-8.94 10 ea NO BID 130.00$                128.98$                   NO BID 141.00$                

D-31 8" x 12-1/2" Clamp #261 OD 8.99-9.39 10 ea NO BID 130.00$                132.15$                   NO BID 142.00$                

D-32 8" x 15" Clamp #261 OD 8.54-8.94 2 ea NO BID 154.00$                147.83$                   NO BID 162.00$                

D-33 8" x 15" Clamp #261 OD 8.99-9.39 10 ea NO BID 155.00$                148.48$                   NO BID 160.00$                

D-34 10" x 15" Clamp #261 OD 11.04-11.44 2 ea NO BID 198.10$                191.68$                   NO BID 210.00$                

# 262 Clamps (Double Band)

D-35 6" x 7-1/2" Clamp #262 OD 6.84-7.64 2 ea NO BID 110.00$                108.19$                   NO BID 115.00$                

D-36 6" x 15" Clamp #262 OD 6.84-7.64 2 ea NO BID 202.00$                199.66$                   NO BID 215.00$                

D-37 8" x 7-1/2" Clamp #262 OD 8.99-9.79 2 ea NO BID 125.00$                120.86$                   NO BID 130.00$                

10



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2025-2026-001

TIE BID

Item # Description

 CONSOLIDATED 
PIPE & SUPPLY                  
Troy McCamish           

539-476-4727              
or                               

Tyler Lyles              
479-431-7750  

 CORE & MAIN                                            
Kenzie                     

918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE            
Joshua Long           
918-445-0005 

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340            
or                               

Nicole Gorbert          
918-203-0183 

 UTILITY SUPPLY    
Brandon Epps       
918-266-0209 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION D: COUPLINGS, CLAMPS, TAPPING SLEEVES

D-38 8" x 15" Clamp #262 OD 8.99-9.79 2 ea NO BID 236.00$                227.88$                   NO BID 250.00$                

D-39 10" x 15" Clamp #262 OD 11.10-11.90 2 ea NO BID 290.00$                283.34$                   NO BID 310.00$                

D-40 10"x20" Clamp #262 OD 11.10-11.90 2 ea NO BID 385.00$                377.07$                   NO BID 400.00$                

# 264 Clamps

D-41 6"x7.5"x1" CC Clamp #264 OD 6.84-7.24 20 ea NO BID 101.00$                94.55$                     NO BID 104.00$                

D-42 6"x12.5"x1" CC Clamp #264 OD 6.56-6.96 20ea. NO BID 155.00$                135.35$                   NO BID 148.00$                

D-43 6"x15"x1" CC Clamp #264 OD 6.84-7.24 20 ea NO BID 170.00$                147.55$                   NO BID 160.00$                

# 662 Wet Tap Saddles

D-44 6"x4" Wet Tap Saddle CIOD #662 2 ea NO BID 358.00$                NO BID NO BID 365.00$                

D-45 6"x6" Wet Tap Saddle Transite Pipe #662 2 ea NO BID 385.00$                NO BID NO BID 393.00$                

D-46 6"x6" Wet Tap Saddle CIOD #662 5 ea NO BID 386.95$                NO BID NO BID 394.00$                

D-47 8"x6" Wet Tap Saddle CIOD #662 2 ea NO BID 455.00$                NO BID NO BID 462.00$                

D-48 8"x8" Wet Tap Saddle CIOD #662 2 ea NO BID 550.00$                NO BID NO BID 562.00$                

11



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2025-2026-001

TIE BID

Item # Description

 CONSOLIDATED 
PIPE & SUPPLY                  
Troy McCamish           

539-476-4727              
or                               

Tyler Lyles              
479-431-7750  

 CORE & MAIN                                            
Kenzie                     

918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE            
Joshua Long           
918-445-0005  

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340                    
or                               

Nicole Gorbert          
918-203-0183 

 UTILITY SUPPLY    
Brandon Epps       
918-266-0209 

E-1 3/4" Angle Ball Meter Stop                     
BA13-232W 100 ea NO BID 41.75$                  41.94$                  41.31$                        40.67$                  

E-2 3/4" Angle Ball Meter Valve,                 
BA23-332-W 50 ea NO BID 81.00$                  81.80$                  80.56$                        79.35$                  

E-3 3/4" Angle Ball Meter Valve,                                 
BA43-232-W 50 ea NO BID 49.00$                  49.27$                  48.53$                        47.76$                  

E-4 3/4" Angle Ball Meter Valve                        
BA-43-332-W 50 ea NO BID 83.75$                  84.13$                  82.85$                        81.63$                  

E-5 1" Angle Ball Meter Valve                        
BA43-444-W 50 ea NO BID 121.45$                126.25$                124.33$                      122.48$                

E-6 1" Angle Key Meter Valve (Female) 
KV13-444W (Stops) 50 ea NO BID 51.30$                  52.88$                  52.08$                        51.34$                  

E-7 1" Angle Key Meter Valve (Flare) KV23-
444 W 50 ea NO BID 54.80$                  56.48$                  55.53$                        55.03$                  

E-8 1" Angle Key Meter Valve 
(Compression) KV43-444W (Stops) 50 ea NO BID 58.36$                  60.37$                  59.45$                        58.60$                  

E-9 1 1/2" Ball Valve Curb Stop                 
B11-666W 6 ea NO BID 180.20$                184.15$                187.07$                      178.42$                

E-10 2" Ball Valve Curb Stop                       
B11-777-W 6 ea 261.34$                     260.15$                268.13$                264.04$                      259.90$                

E-11 3/4" Ball Corp Stop   FB-1000-3 100 ea NO BID 52.15$                  53.62$                  52.81$                        52.04$                  

E-12 1" Ball Corp Stop         FB-1000-4 50 ea NO BID 68.50$                  70.52$                  69.45$                        68.43$                  

E-13 1 1/2" Ball Corp Stop   FB-1000-6 10 ea NO BID 154.00$                158.08$                160.58$                      153.36$                

E-14 2" Ball Corp Stop         FB-1000-7 15 ea NO BID 253.90$                261.46$                257.46$                      253.66$                

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION E:  BRASS, COPPER, SERVICE SADDLES

12



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2025-2026-001

TIE BID

Item # Description

 CONSOLIDATED 
PIPE & SUPPLY                  
Troy McCamish           

539-476-4727              
or                               

Tyler Lyles              
479-431-7750  

 CORE & MAIN                                            
Kenzie                     

918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE            
Joshua Long           
918-445-0005  

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340                    
or                               

Nicole Gorbert          
918-203-0183 

 UTILITY SUPPLY    
Brandon Epps       
918-266-0209 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION E:  BRASS, COPPER, SERVICE SADDLES

E-15 3/4" Insert, #51 500 ea NO BID 1.56$                    2.02$                    2.06$                          1.54$                    

E-16 1" Insert, #52 500 ea NO BID 1.66$                    2.15$                    2.19$                          1.63$                    

E-17 1.5" Insert #54 300 ea NO BID 2.25$                    2.96$                    3.02$                          2.23$                    

E-18 2" Insert #55 300 ea NO BID 2.25$                    2.31$                    2.35$                          2.23$                    

E-19 3/4"x1" A-24 Adapters 50 ea 13.46$                       26.80$                  13.81$                  14.04$                        26.75$                  

E-20 3/4" Pack Joint Coupling    C-14-33 75 ea 17.04$                       17.01$                  17.48$                  17.22$                        16.96$                  

E-21 3/4" Pack Joint Coupling    C-84-33 100 ea 16.20$                       16.15$                  16.62$                  16.37$                        16.12$                  

E-22 3/4" Pack Joint Coupling    L-84-33 100 ea 17.73$                       17.65$                  18.18$                  17.91$                        17.66$                  

E-23 3/4" Pack Joint Coupling    C-44-33 75 ea 19.73$                       19.75$                  20.23$                  19.93$                        19.64$                  

E-24 3/4" Pack Joint Coupling    L-14-33 50 ea 23.00$                       23.25$                  23.59$                  23.24$                        22.88$                  

E-25 1" Pack Joint Coupling      C-14-44 50 ea 23.12$                       23.45$                  23.72$                  23.36$                        23.01$                  

E-26 1" Pack Joint Coupling       C-84-44 50 ea 19.20$                       19.45$                  19.75$                  19.40$                        19.09$                  

E-27 1" Pack Joint Coupling       C-44-44 50 ea 22.56$                       22.90$                  23.15$                  22.80$                        22.46$                  

E-28 1" Pack Joint Coupling       L-14-44 50 ea 37.47$                       37.30$                  38.44$                  37.86$                        37.30$                  

13



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2025-2026-001

TIE BID

Item # Description

 CONSOLIDATED 
PIPE & SUPPLY                  
Troy McCamish           

539-476-4727              
or                               

Tyler Lyles              
479-431-7750  

 CORE & MAIN                                            
Kenzie                     

918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE            
Joshua Long           
918-445-0005  

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340                    
or                               

Nicole Gorbert          
918-203-0183 

 UTILITY SUPPLY    
Brandon Epps       
918-266-0209 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION E:  BRASS, COPPER, SERVICE SADDLES

E-29 1" Pack Joint Coupling       L-84-44 50 ea 29.52$                       29.45$                  30.29$                  29.83$                        29.30$                  

E-30 1 1/2" Pack Joint Coupling  C-14-66 12 ea NO BID 68.28$                  68.99$                  67.94$                        66.91$                  

E-31 1 1/2" Pack Joint Coupling  C-44-66 12 ea NO BID 76.70$                  77.46$                  76.28$                        75.17$                  

E-32 1 1/2" Pack Joint Coupling  C-84-66 12 ea NO BID 53.35$                  53.92$                  53.11$                        52.31$                  

E-33 1 1/2" Pack Joint Coupling  L-84-66 12 ea NO BID 87.08$                  87.95$                  89.35$                        85.32$                  

E-34 2" Pack Joint Coupling        C-14-77 12 ea 80.03$                       81.30$                  82.11$                  80.86$                        79.68$                  

E-35 2" Pack Joint Coupling        C-44-77 12 ea 101.96$                     103.55$                104.61$                103.02$                      101.47$                

E-36 2" Pack Joint Coupling        C-84-77 18 ea 76.58$                       77.00$                  78.56$                  77.73$                        76.22$                  

E-37 2" Pack Joint Coupling        L-14-77 12 ea 135.74$                     136.35$                139.17$                137.05$                      135.01$                

E-38 2" Pack Joint Coupling        L-44-77 12 ea 212.90$                     213.00$                218.32$                214.98$                      211.79$                

E-39 2" Pack Joint Coupling           L-84-77 12 ea 122.86$                     123.50$                126.05$                124.13$                      122.28$                

E-40 3/4"x3/4"x3/4" Comp Tee   T-444-333 12 ea 47.76$                       47.60$                  49.00$                  48.26$                        47.53$                  

E-41 1"x1"x1" Comp Tee          T-444-444 12 ea 51.07$                       51.55$                  52.39$                  51.60$                        50.86$                  

E-42 1" x 3/4" Brass Bushing CC Thread 100 ea NO BID 18.00$                  17.92$                  17.66$                        NO BID

14



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2025-2026-001

TIE BID

Item # Description

 CONSOLIDATED 
PIPE & SUPPLY                  
Troy McCamish           

539-476-4727              
or                               

Tyler Lyles              
479-431-7750  

 CORE & MAIN                                            
Kenzie                     

918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE            
Joshua Long           
918-445-0005  

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340                    
or                               

Nicole Gorbert          
918-203-0183 

 UTILITY SUPPLY    
Brandon Epps       
918-266-0209 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION E:  BRASS, COPPER, SERVICE SADDLES

E-43 1-1/2" x 1" Brass Bushing CC Thread 12 ea NO BID 47.50$                  48.52$                  47.79$                        NO BID

E-44 2" x 1-1/2" Brass Bushing 12 ea NO BID 62.15$                  59.05$                  58.16$                        NO BID

E-45 3/4" x 3" Brass Nipple 12 ea NO BID 4.75$                    NO BID NO BID NO BID

E-46 1"x 3" Brass Nipple 12 ea NO BID 7.35$                    NO BID NO BID NO BID

E-47 1-1/2" x 3" Brass Nipple 12 ea NO BID 12.20$                  NO BID NO BID NO BID

E-48 2" x 3" Brass Nipple 12 ea NO BID 16.00$                  NO BID NO BID NO BID

E-49 2" x 6" Brass Nipple 12 ea NO BID 27.00$                  NO BID NO BID NO BID

E-50 3/4" Copper Setter                                
VB72-12W-44-33 50 ea NO BID 121.35$                122.58$                124.52$                      118.92$                

E-51 1" Copper Setter                                    
VB74-12W-44-44 50 ea NO BID 336.60$                242.07$                245.90$                      234.86$                

E-52 1 1/2" Copper Setter                          
VBB76-15B-44-66 12 ea NO BID 1,113.05$             1,111.38$             1,128.94$                   1,078.20$             

E-53 2" Copper Setter                                  
VBB77-15B-44-77 12 ea 1,269.27$                  1,305.00$             1,302.27$             1,322.85$                   1,263.42$             

E-54 Service Saddle 2"x1" CC 12 ea NO BID 50.15$                  48.28$                  NO BID 52.00$                  

E-55 Service Saddle 4"x3/4" CC 6 ea NO BID 48.00$                  46.40$                  NO BID 50.00$                  

E-56 Service Saddle 4" x 1" CC 6 ea NO BID 48.00$                  46.40$                  NO BID 50.00$                  

15



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2025-2026-001

TIE BID

Item # Description

 CONSOLIDATED 
PIPE & SUPPLY                  
Troy McCamish           

539-476-4727              
or                               

Tyler Lyles              
479-431-7750  

 CORE & MAIN                                            
Kenzie                     

918-586-7100 

 FORTILINE            
Joshua Long           
918-445-0005  

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340                    
or                               

Nicole Gorbert          
918-203-0183 

 UTILITY SUPPLY    
Brandon Epps       
918-266-0209 

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION E:  BRASS, COPPER, SERVICE SADDLES

E-57 Service Saddle 4"x 1-1/2" CC 6 ea NO BID 52.00$                  50.51$                  NO BID 44.50$                  

E-58 Service Saddle 4" x 2" CC 6 ea NO BID 58.00$                  55.88$                  NO BID 60.50$                  

E-59 Service Saddle 6"x 3/4" CC 12 ea NO BID 55.30$                  53.30$                  NO BID 57.50$                  

E-60 Service Saddle 6"x1" CC 50 ea NO BID 55.30$                  53.30$                  NO BID 57.50$                  

E-61 Service Saddle 6"x 1-1/2" CC 6 ea NO BID 60.05$                  57.89$                  NO BID 62.50$                  

E-62 Service Saddle 6"x2" CC 6 ea NO BID 66.25$                  63.88$                  NO BID 69.00$                  

E-63 Service Saddle 8"x 3/4" CC 6 ea NO BID 67.00$                  62.97$                  NO BID 68.00$                  

E-64 Service Saddle 8"x1" CC 50 ea NO BID 67.00$                  62.98$                  NO BID 68.00$                  

E-65 Service Saddle 8"x 1-1/2" CC 6 ea NO BID 71.00$                  68.15$                  NO BID 73.00$                  

E-66 Service Saddle 8"x2"CC 6 ea NO BID 78.00$                  74.36$                  NO BID 80.00$                  

16



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2025-2026-001

TIE BID

Item # Description

 CONSOLIDATED 
PIPE & SUPPLY                  
Troy McCamish           

539-476-4727              
or                               

Tyler Lyles              
479-431-7750  

 CORE & MAIN                                            
Kenzie                     

918-586-7100  

 FORTILINE            
Joshua Long           
918-445-0005 

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340            
or                               

Nicole Gorbert          
918-203-0183 

 UTILITY SUPPLY    
Brandon Epps       
918-266-0209  

Manhole Frames, Covers & Gasket

F-1 8" Manhole Frame & Lid #R1687 5 ea NO BID 476.00$                NO BID 401.25$                      327.00$                

F-2 7" Manhole Frame & Lid #R1797 10 ea NO BID 347.30$                NO BID 292.47$                      327.00$                

F-3 5" Manhole Frame & Lid #R300-24A 10 ea 343.33$                  344.55$                NO BID 344.57$                      385.00$                

F-4 Manhole Frame & Lid #280-24 10 ea NO BID 345.00$                NO BID 344.10$                      385.00$                

F-5 Lamp Hole Box & Lid 10 ea 163.02$                  185.25$                204.05$                207.28$                      167.00$                

Sewer Couplings   (Hubs) INDIANA SEAL ONLY

F-6 4" Rubber Sewer Coupling PVC to PVC 25 ea NO BID 5.60$                    5.49$                    6.92$                          5.90$                    

F-7 4" Rubber Sewer Coupling Clay to PVC 50 ea NO BID 5.60$                    5.49$                    6.92$                          5.90$                    

F-8 6" Rubber Sewer Coupling PVC to PVC 20 ea NO BID 12.00$                  11.65$                  14.81$                        11.90$                  

F-9 6" Rubber Sewer Coupling Clay to PVC 40 ea NO BID 12.00$                  11.65$                  14.81$                        11.90$                  

F-10 8" Rubber Sewer Coupling PVC to PVC 30 ea NO BID 18.45$                  18.10$                  22.77$                        18.30$                  

F-11 8" Rubber Sewer Coupling Clay to PVC 100 ea NO BID 18.45$                  18.10$                  22.77$                        18.30$                  

F-12 10" Rubber Sewer Coupling PVC to PVC 12 ea NO BID 27.75$                  27.17$                  34.19$                        27.50$                  

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION F:  MANHOLES, COUPLINGS, FITTINGS 

17



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2025-2026-001

TIE BID

Item # Description

 CONSOLIDATED 
PIPE & SUPPLY                  
Troy McCamish           

539-476-4727              
or                               

Tyler Lyles              
479-431-7750  

 CORE & MAIN                                            
Kenzie                     

918-586-7100  

 FORTILINE            
Joshua Long           
918-445-0005 

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340            
or                               

Nicole Gorbert          
918-203-0183 

 UTILITY SUPPLY    
Brandon Epps       
918-266-0209  

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION F:  MANHOLES, COUPLINGS, FITTINGS 

F-13 10" Rubber Sewer Coupling Clay to PVC 24 ea NO BID 27.75$                  27.17$                  34.19$                        27.50$                  

F-14 12" Rubber Sewer Coupling PVC to PVC 12 ea NO BID 32.40$                  31.71$                  39.90$                        32.00$                  

F-15 12" Rubber Sewer Coupling Clay to PVC 12 ea NO BID 32.40$                  31.71$                  39.90$                        32.00$                  

Fittings & Tap Saddles

F-16 4" PVC 45˚ Elbow SCH 40 DWV 100 ea NO BID 9.45$                    9.26$                    12.79$                        10.00$                  

F-17 4" PVC 22 1/2˚ Elbow SCH 40 DWV 24 ea NO BID 14.70$                  14.49$                  19.99$                        11.50$                  

F-18 6" PVC 45° Elbow w/gasket SDR 26 12 ea NO BID 46.50$                  44.11$                  60.81$                        48.50$                  

F-19 8" PVC 45° Elbow w/gasket SDR 26 12 ea NO BID 113.10$                109.60$                151.10$                      124.00$                

F-20 6x4 SDR 35 Saddle Tee,  Gasket Skirt 20 ea. NO BID 43.80$                  40.79$                  56.24$                        46.25$                  

     with SS Straps, Sch 40 SW Branch

F-21 8x4 SDR 35 Saddle Tee,  Gasket Skirt 40 ea. NO BID 58.80$                  54.30$                  74.88$                        61.50$                  

     with SS Straps, Sch 40 SW Branch

18



WATER WASTEWATER REPAIR MATERIALS - BID TABULATION
2025-2026-001

TIE BID

Item # Description

 CONSOLIDATED 
PIPE & SUPPLY                  
Troy McCamish           

539-476-4727              
or                               

Tyler Lyles              
479-431-7750  

 CORE & MAIN                                            
Kenzie                     

918-586-7100  

 FORTILINE            
Joshua Long           
918-445-0005 

 TULSA WINWATER                              
Zach Wolfe                               

580-370-6340            
or                               

Nicole Gorbert          
918-203-0183 

 UTILITY SUPPLY    
Brandon Epps       
918-266-0209  

LOW BIDDER - RECOMMEND AWARD

Estimated 
Quantity

SECTION F:  MANHOLES, COUPLINGS, FITTINGS 

F-22 10x4 SDR 35 Saddle Tee,  Gasket Skirt 20 ea. NO BID 80.75$                  79.00$                  108.91$                      89.50$                  

     with SS Straps, Sch 40 SW Branch

F-23 12x4 SDR 35 Saddle Tee,  Gasket Skirt 12 ea. NO BID 105.60$                98.00$                  93.75$                        111.50$                

     with SS Straps, Sch 40 SW Branch

F-24 1 1/2" Preformed Flex Plastic - 10 bxs. NO BID 155.00$                NO BID NO BID NO  BID

   Gasket (Ram-Nek)

F-25 Romac Tap Saddle CB 4" 12 ea. NO BID 120.00$                NO BID 131.39$                      NO  BID

      Outlet Fits 6" to 12" Pipe

F-26 Romac Tap Saddle CB 6" 12 ea. NO BID 156.16$                NO BID 175.16$                      NO  BID

       Outlet Fits 6" to 12" Pipe

F-27 4" Rubber Test Cap 20 ea. NO BID 3.05$                    2.73$                    3.38$                          3.75$                    

F-28 5" Rubber Test Cap 20 ea. NO BID 4.45$                    3.66$                    4.53$                          4.50$                    

F-29 3" PVC Pop Up Clean Out Caps 20 ea. NO BID 10.50$                  NO BID NO BID NO  BID

F-30 4" PVC Pop Up Clean Out Caps 20 ea. NO BID 11.25$                  NO BID NO BID NO  BID

19



9.



SHADED AREA - RECOMMEND AWARD

CHEMICAL: Chlorine Gas Hydrofluorosilicic 
Acid

Potassium 
Permanganate Coagulant ACH Coagulation 

Aid
Drying Bed 

Polymer Polyphosphate Sodium 
Hydroxide

Aqueous 
Ammonia

Powdered Activated 
Carbon

Est. Quantity 60 TON 15,000 GALLONS 50,000 LBS 720 TON 12 TOTES 6,000 LBS 15,000 LBS 60,000 LBS 450,000 LBS 60 TON 46,000 LBS

Net Cost Difference from Last Year
$1,058,400.00 Price Last FY
$1,191,907.00 Price this FY - utilizing the higher unit price for coagulation aid and drying bed polymer (if we are able to utlize the Solenis products, this will save $9,750) 
$133,507.00 Cost Difference from last FY 12.61% Percent increase

Notes:

2) Solenis is a new bidder for the City, and while their product appears to meet the specification, it is a product unfamiliar to staff and we have not conducted any testing or trials on it.  Staff 
recommends awarding the bid to both Solenis and Polydyne, the current vendor for this product.  This will allow staff to conduct trials with the Solenis product to evaluate its compatibility and 
effectiveness before utilizing the product in full scale.

$2.52

$0.877

$2.90 $4.96

2.13  2

$3.77

Solenis, LLC

Shannon Chemical Corp.

$278.80

$0.2313

$2.38

Recommended Bid Award 

Airgas Specialties 

$1.140

3) Solenis is a new bidder for the City, and while their product appears to meet the specification, staff has not conducted any testing or trials with their product.  Staff recommends awarding the bid to 
both Solenis and Water Tech, the current vendor for this product.  This will allow staff to conduct trials with the Solenis product to evaluate its compatibility and effectiveness before utilizing the 
product in full scale.

2.10  3

2.53  2

$1.060

$710

$0.2338

$1,756.42

1.61  3

$860  1

$1.020

$0.8167

$4.99

$2.64

Pennco, Inc. $2.780

$1,911.25

$2.68

$1,484.00

$1.350

$2.46

$1,736.00

$2,779.50

USALCO, LLC

Chemtrade Cemicals US 
LLC

Hawkins Inc.

Polydyne Inc.

Chemrite Inc.

Jacobi Carbons, Inc.

Univar Solutions USA 
LLC

Carus LLC

City of Bartlesville
Water Treatment Chemical Bid #2025-2026-002 

Baker Services, Inc.

LEGEND:       

Brenntag Southwest, 
Inc.

$278

1) Based on previous bench testing and trials conducted between the Chemtrade and USALCO products, the Chemtrade product consistently produced effective results at a dosage approximately 
25% lower than that of USALCO. Although the unit price for the Chemtrade product is higher, the overall annual cost would be lower due to the reduced dosage requirements.

Water Tech, Inc.

$2,380



Agenda Item #___ 

6/24/2025 

Prepared by Chuck Collins 

      Engineering Department 

 

 

 

BID REVIEW RECOMMENDATION 
 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
A. SUBJECT: 

Discuss and take action to award Bid No. 2025-2026-003 for the Highland, Wilshire, Waverly, 

and Oakdale Concrete Panel Replacement Project. 

 
B. ATTACHMENTS: 

Bid Tabulation 

 

II. PROJECT DESCRIPTION, STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS, AND BUDGET 

AMOUNT. 

 
A.  PROJECT DESCRIPTION: 

The 2023 issuance of the 2020 General Obligation Bond (GO Bond) included concrete street 

rehabilitation projects on four different streets.  The streets included are Highland from Sunset to 

Aledo, Wilshire and Waverly from Frank Phillips to State, and Oakdale from Brookside Parkway 

to Woodland.  Staff has chosen to design, bid and construct these projects as one larger concrete 

street rehabilitation package.  All projects were identified as priority projects except for Highland 

which is a discretionary project.  Each project consists of replacing 80% to 90% of the concrete 

panels within the project limits. Minor amounts of curb and gutter will be replaced as needed.  

All items of work were included in the Base Bid with no Bid Alternates.  

 

B.  COMMENTS: 

In addition to advertising in the local newspaper, Dodge Reports, E-Plan Bidding, and Southwest 

Construction News, nine (9) contractors obtained copies of the bid documents and three (3) 

contractors attended the mandatory pre-bid meeting.  Two (2) contractors submitted a bid.  The 

base bids were as follows: 

 

    R & L Construction, LLC. (Sapulpa, OK)    $847,000.00 

Tri-Star Construction, LLC. (Tulsa, OK)    $877,000.00 

   

The bids were evaluated for addendums, bid bonds, line-item prices, and arithmetic.  Each bid 

had all of the necessary components and was mathematically correct.    

 

 

 

10.



C.  BUDGET AMOUNT: 

$1,200,000.00 was originally budgeted for the project in the 2023 issuance of the 2020 GO 

Bond.  $30,500.00 of these funds has been used to date for design services leaving 

$1,169,500.00 for the construction portion of the project.  The lowest compliant bid by R & L 

Construction, LLC of $847,000.00 is within the remaining budgeted amount. 

 

III. RECOMMENDED ACTION 

R & L Construction, LLC is a construction firm specializing in concrete.  They have recently 

completed the Airport Taxi-lane Extension the City of Bartlesville and have provided 

information confirming they have the bonding capacity and technical expertise to complete this 

project. 

Staff recommends awarding the base bid to R & L Construction, LLC in the amount of 

$847,000.00.   

 

 
 

              

                        Council Member      Date 

 

                    /s/ Larry East             June 24, 2025



DATE: SHEET

PROJECT NO.:

5/15/2025

064598212
1COVER SHEET

1437 SOUTH BOULDER AVE,
STE. 930, TULSA, OK 74119

P: 918-209-3191
FIRM NO. 2740

5/15/2025

SHEET NO. SHEET TITLE

1 COVER SHEET
2 PAY ITEMS & NOTES
3 DETAIL SHEET
4 R-18
5 R-22
6 KEYMAP

        7-14 PLAN SHEETS

123A

123A

60

60
123

123

75

60

60

75

60

60

BARTLESVILLE CITY LIMITS

75

75

SAND

CREEK

RI
VE

R

CA
NE

Y

CREEK
COON

CREEK

BUTLER

BARTLESVILLE CITY LIMITS

BARTLESVILLE CITY LIMITS

DEWEY CITY LIMITS

W
AS

HI
NG

TO
N 

CO
UN

TY

OS
AG

E 
CO

UN
TY

BARTLESVILLE CITY LIMITS

PROJECT
LOCATION

(HIGHLAND DR)

PROJECT
LOCATION

(WAVERLY AVE)
(WILSHIRE AVE)

PROJECT
LOCATION

(OAKDALE DR)

HIGHLAND DRIVE, WILSHIRE AVENUE, WAVERLY AVENUE,
AND OAKDALE DRIVE CONCRETE PANEL REPLACEMENTS

CONSTRUCTION  DRAWINGS FOR

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE

BID NO 2025-2026-003

NORTH

SCALE IN FEET

0-2000' 2000' 4000'

FINAL SUBMITTAL

UTILITY COMPANY CONTACT INFORMATION

WATER - CITY OF BARTLESVILLE TELEPHONE - SBC COMMUNICATIONS
401 S JOHNSTONE AVENUE 119 EAST SIXTH STREET
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74003 BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74003
CONTACT: TERRY LAURITSEN CONTACT: JAY HALFERTY
(918) 338-4107 (918) 662-3033

ELECTRIC - AEP/PSO SEWER - CITY OF BARTLESVILLE
310 S COMANCHE AVE. 401 S JOHNSTONE AVENUE
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74003 BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74003
CONTACT: TIEN CHAO CONTACT: TERRY LAURITSEN
(918) 337-1216 (918) 338-4107

CABLE - CABLE ONE GAS - OKLAHOMA NATURAL GAS
4127 S.E. NOWATA ROAD 3601 NE INDIANA
BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74006 BARTLESVILLE, OKLAHOMA 74006
CONTACT: DENNIS ANDERSON CONTACT: JOLEEN CHULEEWAH
(918) 335-0332 (918) 335-5701

NOTE:

CURRENT CITY OF BARTLESVILLE STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS
AND STANDARD DETAILS GOVERN. ALL OTHER CONSTRUCTION
AND MATERIALS SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE 2019
OKLAHOMA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION STANDARD
SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION.

STANDARD O.D.O.T. DRAWINGS

ROADWAY TRAFFIC CONTROL
TFL-0

SSS-2-1
LECS-5-2
LTU-5-1
PCPR-4

TCS1-1

Agenda item 10. Attachemnt



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE
CONCRETE PANEL
REPLACEMENTS

PROJECT NUMBER DATE SHEETDESCRIPTION BYDATE#

DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CGP

CGP

1437 SOUTH BOULDER AVE,
STE. 930, TULSA, OK 74119

P: 918-209-3191
FIRM NO. 2740

CHECKED BY: CDS
5/15/2025

GENERAL CONSTRUCTION NOTES:

1. PROJECT WILL BE CONSTRUCTED UNDER CURRENT ODOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR HIGHWAY CONSTRUCTION. PROJECT SHALL BE
CONSTRUCTED WITHOUT CLOSING ANY ROADS TO LOCAL OR THROUGH TRAFFIC. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE PLACEMENT OF
TEMPORARY PAVEMENT MARKINGS.

2. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL UTILIZE THE CALL OKIE SYSTEM (1-800-522-6543) 48 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF ANY EXCAVATION.

3. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING WATER AND SEWER SERVICE CONNECTIONS TO HOMES IN WORKING ORDER AT ALL TIMES
EXCEPT FOR BRIEF INTERRUPTIONS IN SERVICE. IN NO CASE SHALL SERVICES BE ALLOWED TO REMAIN OUT OF SERVICE OVERNIGHT.

4. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAKE ALL NECESSARY PROVISIONS DURING CONSTRUCTION FOR THE SUPPORT AND PROTECTION OF ALL UTILITY POLES, GAS
MAINS, TELEPHONE CABLES, SANITARY SEWER LINES, ELECTRIC CABLES, DRAINAGE PIPES, UTILITY SERVICE LINES, AND ALL OTHER STRUCTURES
BOTH ABOVE AND BELOW GROUND. CONTRACTOR IS LIABLE FOR ALL DAMAGES DONE TO SUCH EXISTING FACILITIES AS A RESULT OF CONTRACTOR'S
OPERATIONS.

5. CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT A WRITTEN REQUEST TO THE CITY ENGINEER FOR APPROVAL OF ALL AREAS TO BE USED FOR STAGING, MOBILIZATION,
EQUIPMENT AND MATERIAL STORAGE, AND GENERAL PROJECT CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT. REQUEST SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO THE CITY
ENGINEER WITHIN 5 DAYS OF THE NOTICE TO PROCEED.

6. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR MAINTAINING GENERAL SAFETY AT AND ADJACENT TO THE PROJECT AREA, INCLUDING THE PERSONAL
SAFETY OF THE CONSTRUCTION CREW AND THE GENERAL PUBLIC AND THE SAFETY OF PUBLIC AND PRIVATE PROPERTY.

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR KEEPING STREETS AND SIDEWALKS ADJACENT TO PROJECT FREE OF MUD AND DEBRIS CAUSED BY
CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.

8. NO EQUIPMENT OR MATERIAL SHALL BE DEPOSITED ON PRIVATE PROPERTY WITHOUT WRITTEN PERMISSION. THE CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE
FOR ALL DAMAGES RESULTING FROM SUCH ACTS AND SHALL REMOVE THE MATERIAL AND RESTORE THE PROPERTY AT THE EXPENSE OF THE
CONTRACTOR.

9. THE LOCATIONS OF ALL DRIVEWAYS, SIDEWALKS, CURBS, UTILITIES, AND OTHER ITEMS SHOWN ON PLANS ARE APPROXIMATE. ACCURATE LOCATIONS
SHALL BE VERIFIED AT THE TIME OF CONSTRUCTION AFTER CONSULTATION WITH PROPERTY OWNERS AND UTILITY COMPANIES.

10. THE CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL SHALL WEAR IDENTIFYING CLOTHING OR HATS AT ALL TIMES.

11. CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES SHALL BE LIMITED TO THE HOURS OF 7:00 A.M. AND 7:00 P.M.

12. CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS SUCH AS BROKEN CONCRETE, EXCESS FILL, ETC., SHALL BECOME THE PROPERTY OF THE CONTRACTOR. MATERIALS SHALL
BE COMPLETELY REMOVED FROM THE SITE PRIOR TO ACCEPTANCE OF THE PROJECT. ALL MATERIALS SHALL BE DISPOSED OF IN A MANNER THAT IS
IN COMPLIANCE WITH ALL LOCAL, STATE, & FEDERAL REGULATIONS.

13. OPERATION OF ALL WATER VALVES SHALL BE PERFORMED BY THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE WATER UTILITIES DEPARTMENT. WORK TO BE DISCUSSED
WITH WATER UTILITIES DIRECTOR, TERRY LAURISEN, 72 HOURS IN ADVANCE OF THE NEED TO COMMENCE SUCH WORK.

14. CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR PROPER BARRICADES, LIGHTING, AND SIGNAGE WITHIN THE CONSTRUCTION AREA. ALL CONSTRUCTION
SIGNAGE SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE STANDARDS SET FORTH IN THE FEDERAL HIGHWAY ADMINISTRATION'S "MANUAL ON UNIFORM TRAFFIC
CONTROL DEVICES," LATEST EDITION.

15. CONTRACTOR SHALL FULL-DEPTH SAWCUT EXISTING PAVEMENT, DRIVEWAYS, AND SIDEWALKS AT AREAS WHERE EACH IS TO BE REMOVED. COSTS
OF SAWCUTS ARE SUBSIDIARY TO OTHER ITEMS OF WORK.

16. CONTRACTOR SHALL PRESERVE AND PROTECT OR REMOVE AND REPLACE (WITH PRIOR APPROVAL OF LANDOWNER), ALL TREES, SHRUBS, HEDGES,
RETAINING WALLS, LANDSCAPING, BUILDINGS, SIDEWALKS, ETC, IN OR NEAR THE PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION AREA. THIS WORK SHALL BE
CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL AND NOT A SEPARATE PAY ITEM.

17. CONTRACTOR SHALL CLEAN AND RESTORE THE AREA OF OPERATIONS AND CONSTRUCTION TO A CONDITION AS GOOD OR BETTER THAN EXISTED
PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

18. CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN POSITIVE DRAINAGE AND SHALL NOT ALLOW OBSTRUCTION TO REMAIN THAT CAUSES WATER DAMAGE TO ADJACENT
PROPERTIES.

19. THE PAVING CONTRACTOR SHALL ADJUST ALL MANHOLES, VALVE BOXES, AND METER BOXES TO GRADE AFTER PAVING OF STREETS HAS BEEN
COMPLETED.  NO SEPARATE PAY.

SELECT BACKFILL NOTES:

1. SELECT BACKFILL SHALL BE BACKFILLED AND COMPACTED TO 95% STANDARD PROCTOR DENSITY.

2. SELECT BACKFILL MAY INCLUDE EITHER SELECT BORROW MATERIAL THAT MEETS THE REQUIREMENTS OF ODOT SPECIFICATION SUBSECTION
705.01 AND/OR SELECTIVELY EXCAVATED MATERIAL.

3. SELECT BACKFILL SHALL BE REPRESENTATIVE OF SOILS IN THE VICINITY AND BE REASONABLY FREE OF CLAY LUMPS, OBJECTIONABLE WEEDS,
RUBBLE, LITTER, BRUSH, GRADING, OR MAINTENANCE OPERATIONS. SELECT BACKFILL SHALL NOT CONTAIN MORE THAN 95% BY VOLUME OF
STONES, STUMPS, OR OTHER OBJECTS LARGER THAN ONE INCH (1") IN ANY DIMENSION. SELECT BACKFILL SHALL NOT BE PLACED WHEN THE
SUBGRADE IS FROZEN, EXCESSIVELY WET, EXTREMELY DRY, OR IN A CONDITION OTHERWISE DETRIMENTAL TO PROPER GRADING

PAY ITEM NOTES:

P-1. OVERLAPS AND WRAP-AROUNDS IN SEPARATOR FABRIC SHALL NOT BE MEASURED FOR PAYMENT.

P-2. DOWELING, EPOXY, AND JOINT REINFORCEMENTS SHALL BE SUBSIDIARY TO THE CONCRETE BID ITEMS.

P-3. CONCRETE SHALL BE 7" DOWEL JOINTED P.C.C. WITH FINISHED SURFACE.

P-4. REMOVAL OF PAVEMENT INCLUDES ALL SAWCUTTING, WHICH SHALL BE FULL DEPTH, REMOVAL OF ASPHALT, REMOVAL OF CONCRETE, AND
REMOVAL OF CURB & GUTTER.

P-5. CONSTRUCTION SIGNING AND STRIPING SHALL BE INSTALLED IN A MANNER APPROVED BY THE ENGINEER, IN ACCORDANCE WITH CHAPTER VI
OF THE MUTCD, CURRENT EDITION, AND ALL APPLICABLE ODOT STANDARD DRAWINGS. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE A PROPOSED TRAFFIC
CONTROL PLAN FOR APPROVAL BY THE CITY ENGINEER PRIOR TO BEGINNING WORK. AMOUNT BID FOR THIS ITEM SHALL BE PAYMENT IN FULL
FOR THE INSTALLATION, MAINTENANCE, AND SUBSEQUENT REMOVAL OF ALL NECESSARY CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES AND
PAVEMENT MARKINGS REQUIRED FOR THE COMPLETION OF THIS PROJECT.

P-6. THIS PAY ITEM SHALL COVER ITEMS THAT WERE UNFORSEEN DURING DESIGN AND MAY ONLY BE USED WITH WRITTEN PERMISSION OF THE
CITY ENGINEER.

P-7. ALL SAWCUTS NECESSARY FOR THE PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE SUBSIDIARY TO THE REMOVAL OF CONCRETE PAVEMENT BID ITEM.
SAWCUTS SHALL BE FULL DEPTH OF PAVEMENT.

P-8. REMOVAL ITEMS BECOME THE PROPERTY OF THE CONTRACTOR UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED IN THE PLANS. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL
REMOVE FROM THE PROJECT AREA ALL SURPLUS MATERIALS. THIS SHALL BE INCIDENTAL AND NOT A SEPARATE PAY ITEM. SURPLUS
MATERIALS FROM THE EXCAVATION INCLUDING DIRT, CONCRETE, MILLINGS, TRASH, ETC. SHALL BE PROPERLY DISPOSED OF IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GENERAL CONSTRUCTION NOTE 12.

P-9. DURING CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS TWO-WAY TRAFFIC MUST BE MAINTAINED AT ALL TIMES. ONE LANE OF TRAFFIC AROUND
CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS IN PROGRESS WITH ADEQUATE SAFEGUARDS WILL BE ACCEPTABLE UNLESS OTHERWISE DIRECTED BY THE
CITY ENGINEER. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT AN ACCEPTABLE TRAFFIC PLAN AT THE PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING.

P-10. CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE TEMPORARY CENTERLINE AND LANE STRIPING ANYTIME EXISTING MARKINGS ARE OBLITERATED. ALL
MARKINGS TO BE IN PLACE AT THE CLOSE OF EACH DAY'S WORK.

P-11. MUCK EXCAVATION:

P-11.1. THERE ARE NO ITEMS OF THIS TYPE KNOWN TO BE IN NEED OF ADJUSTMENT AT THE TIME OF BID. THIS ITEMS ESTABLISHES A PRICE
IF UNKNOWN ITEMS ARE ENCOUNTERED DURING CONSTRUCTION.

P-11.2. WORK UNDER THIS SECTION MAY ONLY BE PERFORMED AT THE WRITTEN DIRECTION OF THE CITY ENGINEER OR HIS DESIGNATED
REPRESENTATIVE.

P-11.3. UNDER THIS ITEM CONTRACTOR SHALL FURNISH ALL EQUIPMENT, MATERIAL, LABOR, TOOLS, AND INCIDENTALS NECESSARY TO
EXCAVATE SOFT SPOTS. THE EXCAVATION SHALL BE TO A DEPTH DESIGNATED BY THE INSPECTOR OR CITY ENGINEER. THE AREA
WILL BE FILLED WITH SURGE ROCK (2" TO 6" GRADATION) PLACED AND COMPACTED TO ODOT SPECIFICATIONS. THE WORK INCLUDES
BUT IS NOT LIMITED TO COMPACTING, ROLLING AND PREPARING THE WORK SUBGRADE, BACKFILL AS REQUIRED, AGGREGATE
PLACEMENT, SHAPING, AND COMPACTION.

P-11.4. MEASUREMENT FOR WORK UNDER THIS ITEM WILL BE PER CUBIC YARD. CONTRACTOR AND CITY MUST AGREE TO QUANTITY PRIOR
TO PLACEMENT OF SURGE ROCK.

P-11.5. PAYMENT FOR ALL WORK UNDER THIS ITEM SHALL BE MADE AT THE CONTRACT UNIT PRICE PER CUBIC YARD ACTUALLY
CONSTRUCTED AND ACCEPTED. SAID PAYMENT SHALL BE FULL COMPENSATION FOR ALL EQUIPMENT, MATERIAL, LABOR, AND
INCIDENTALS NECESSARY TO COMPLETE THE WORK.

P-12. SUBGRADE METHOD "B" PER ODOT 2019 STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS, SUBSECTION 310.04.B.

P-13. PAY ITEM INCLUDES NEW CONCRETE APRON, EXTENDING FROM GUTTER LINE TO FIRST JOINT IN DRIVE, PLUS TAPERED CURB TIE-INS ON
BOTH SIDES. SUBGRADE TO BE COMPACTED TO 95% STANDARD PROCTOR DENSITY.

P-14. PAY ITEM INCLUDES REMOVAL OF CONCRETE PAVEMENT AND DRIVEWAY BASE MATERIALS UP TO 13" THICK.

P-15. PAY ITEM INCLUDES EXCAVATION, SAWCUTTING, SELECT BACKFILL, TOPSOIL, SOLID SLAB SOD, FABRIC, AND AGGREGATE BASE.

P-16. EROSION PROTECTION SHALL BE PLACED AROUND DRAINAGE INLETS AS REQUIRED TO PREVENT ENTRANCE OF EROSION MATERIAL.
EROSION PROTECTION SHALL BE PLACED AS NECESSARY TO PREVENT EROSION WASH TO ADJACENT PROPERTY. ALL EROSION PROTECTION
INSTALLED MUST BE MAINTAINED BY THE CONTRACTOR FOR THE DURATION OF THE PROJECT. EROSION PROTECTION SHALL BE REMOVED AT
THE END OF THE PROJECT AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER, COST TO BE INCLUDED IN THE PRICE BID. THIS ITEM TO INCLUDE ALL COST FOR
SEDIMENT REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL AS REQUIRED AND DIRECTED BY THE CONTRACT ADMINISTRATOR.

P-17. ANY ITEMS REQUIRED TO COMPLETE THE CONSTRUCTION OF THIS BID ITEM THAT IS SPECIFICALLY NOT ADDRESSED WILL BE CONSIDERED
INCIDENTAL AND BE INCLUDED IN OTHER ITEMS BID.

P-18. SOLID SLAB SODDING SHALL BE U3 BERMUDA.

P-19. THE PAY ITEM FOR SOLID SLAB SODDING INCLUDES THE QUANTITIES FOR PLACEMENT AND COMPACTION OF SUITABLE BACKFILL MATERIAL
AND TOPSOIL. SOD ALL AREAS WHICH MAY BE DAMAGED DURING CONSTRUCTION OF CURBS, SIDEWALKS, AND OTHER MISCELLANEOUS
ITEMS. THE QUANTITIES ARE BASED ON UTILIZING A 2 FOOT WIDE STRIP IN THESE AREAS. THE CONTRACTOR WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE
REPAIR OR REPLACEMENT OF DAMAGE TO EXISTING GRASS THAT  EXCEEDS THESE LIMITS.

P-20. THERE ARE NO ITEMS OF THIS TYPE KNOWN TO BE IN NEED OF ADJUSTMENT AT THE TIME OF BID. THIS ITEM ESTABLISHES A PRICE IF
UNKNOWN ITEMS ARE ENCOUNTERED DURING CONSTRUCTION.

P-21. CONTRACTOR SHALL REPAIR  FRENCH DRAIN CURB OUTLETS WHERE DISTURBED IN THE FIELD.

P-22. ALL CRACKS SHALL BE SEALED WITH THE SEALANTS AS DESCRIBED IN THE 2019 ODOT STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS 47.6.1.1 AND 47.6.1.2. 

P-23. CRACK CLEANING AND SEALING WILL BE MEASURED BY THE NUMBER OF LINEAR FEET OF CRACK CLEANING AND SEALING AGREED TO BY THE
OWNER - COMPLETED, ACCEPTED AND MEASURED COMPLETE IN PLACE. THE ACCEPTED QUANTITIES OF CRACK CLEANING AND SEALING,
MEASURED AS PREVIOUSLY STATED, WILL INCLUDE ALL LABOR, MATERIALS AND INCIDENTALS NECESSARY FOR COMPLETE IN PLACE 
CRACK CLEANING AND SEALING, AND WILL BE PAID FOR AT THE ESTABLISHED UNIT PRICE.

ITEM
NO. SPEC. SPEC. NO ITEM DESCRIPTION PAY ITEM NOTES UNIT QUANITITY

1 ODOT 202(B) MUCK EXCAVATION & SELECT FILL P-11, 20 CY 0

3 ODOT 230(A) SOLID SLAB SODDING P-18, 19 SY 100

4 ODOT 303(A) AGGREGATE BASE TYPE A, 6" P-17 SY 1917

5 ODOT 310(B) SUBGRADE, METHOD B P-12, 17 SY 1917

6 ODOT 325 SEPARATOR FABRIC P-1 SY 1917

7 ODOT 414(A) P.C. CONCRETE PAVEMENT (PLACEMENT) P-2, 3, 9, 10, 17 SY 1917

8 ODOT 414(G) P.C. CONCRETE FOR PAVEMENT P-2, 3, 9, 10, 17 CY 373

9 ODOT 609(B) 6" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB & GUTTER P-17, 20, 21 LF 100

11 ODOT 619(B) REMOVAL OF CONCRETE PAVEMENT P-4, 7, 8, 9, 14 SY 1917

13 ODOT 619(B) REMOVAL OF CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER P-4, 7, 8, 9, 14, 15, 17 LF 100

14 ODOT 641 MOBILIZATION P-9 LSUM 1

15 ODOT 880(J) CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC CONTROL P-5, 9, 10 LSUM 1

16 CITY SPECIAL OWNER'S ALLOWANCE P-6 EA 1

17 CITY SPECIAL CRACK CLEANING AND SEALING (P.C. CONCRETE PAVEMENT) P-22, 23 LF 0

ITEM
NO. SPEC. SPEC. NO ITEM DESCRIPTION PAY ITEM NOTES UNIT QUANITITY

1 ODOT 202(B) MUCK EXCAVATION & SELECT FILL P-11, 20 CY 0

3 ODOT 230(A) SOLID SLAB SODDING P-18, 19 SY 100

4 ODOT 303(A) AGGREGATE BASE TYPE A, 6" P-17 SY 1506

5 ODOT 310(B) SUBGRADE, METHOD B P-12, 17 SY 1506

6 ODOT 325 SEPARATOR FABRIC P-1 SY 1506

7 ODOT 414(A) P.C. CONCRETE PAVEMENT (PLACEMENT) P-2, 3, 9, 10, 17 SY 1506

8 ODOT 414(G) P.C. CONCRETE FOR PAVEMENT P-2, 3, 9, 10, 17 CY 293

9 ODOT 609(B) 6" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB & GUTTER P-17, 20, 21 LF 100

10 ODOT 610(B) 6" CONCRETE DRIVEWAY APPROACH (H.E.S.) P-7, 13 SY 52

11 ODOT 619(B) REMOVAL OF CONCRETE PAVEMENT P-4, 7, 8, 9, 14 SY 1506

12 ODOT 619(B) REMOVAL OF CONCRETE DRIVEWAY P-4, 7, 8, 9, 14 SY 52

13 ODOT 619(B) REMOVAL OF CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER P-4, 7, 8, 9, 14, 15, 17 LF 100

14 ODOT 641 MOBILIZATION P-9 LSUM 1

15 ODOT 880(J) CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC CONTROL P-5, 9, 10 LSUM 1

16 CITY SPECIAL OWNER'S ALLOWANCE P-6 EA 1

17 CITY SPECIAL CRACK CLEANING AND SEALING (P.C. CONCRETE PAVEMENT) P-22, 23 LF 0

ITEM
NO. SPEC. SPEC. NO ITEM DESCRIPTION PAY ITEM NOTES UNIT QUANITITY

1 ODOT 202(B) MUCK EXCAVATION & SELECT FILL P-11, 20 CY 0

2 ODOT 221(G) TEMPORARY FIBER LOG P-16, 17 LF 13

3 ODOT 230(A) SOLID SLAB SODDING P-18, 19 SY 100

4 ODOT 303(A) AGGREGATE BASE TYPE A, 6" P-17 SY 1217

5 ODOT 310(B) SUBGRADE, METHOD B P-12, 17 SY 1217

6 ODOT 325 SEPARATOR FABRIC P-1 SY 1217

7 ODOT 414(A) P.C. CONCRETE PAVEMENT (PLACEMENT) P-2, 3, 9, 10, 17 SY 1217

8 ODOT 414(G) P.C. CONCRETE FOR PAVEMENT P-2, 3, 9, 10, 17 CY 237

9 ODOT 609(B) 6" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB & GUTTER P-20, 21 LF 100

11 ODOT 619(B) REMOVAL OF CONCRETE PAVEMENT P-4, 7, 8, 9, 14 SY 1217

13 ODOT 619(B) REMOVAL OF CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER P-4, 7, 8, 9, 14, 15 LF 100

14 ODOT 641 MOBILIZATION P-9 LSUM 1

15 ODOT 880(J) CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC CONTROL P-5, 9, 10 LSUM 1

16 CITY SPECIAL OWNER'S ALLOWANCE P-6 EA 1

17 CITY SPECIAL CRACK CLEANING AND SEALING (P.C. CONCRETE PAVEMENT) P-22, 23 LF 0

ITEM
NO. SPEC. SPEC. NO ITEM DESCRIPTION PAY ITEM NOTES UNIT QUANITITY

1 ODOT 202(B) MUCK EXCAVATION & SELECT FILL P-11, 20 CY 0

2 ODOT 221(G) TEMPORARY FIBER LOG P-16, 17 LF 20

3 ODOT 230(A) SOLID SLAB SODDING P-18, 19 SY 100

4 ODOT 303(A) AGGREGATE BASE TYPE A, 6" P-17 SY 1852

5 ODOT 310(B) SUBGRADE, METHOD B P-12, 17 SY 1852

6 ODOT 325 SEPARATOR FABRIC P-1 SY 1852

7 ODOT 414(A) P.C. CONCRETE PAVEMENT (PLACEMENT) P-2, 3, 9, 10, 17 SY 1852

8 ODOT 414(G) P.C. CONCRETE FOR PAVEMENT P-2, 3, 9, 10, 17 CY 361

9 ODOT 609(B) 6" CONCRETE BARRIER CURB & GUTTER P-17, 20, 21 LF 100

10 ODOT 610(B) 6" CONCRETE DRIVEWAY APPROACH (H.E.S.) P-7, 13 SY 13

11 ODOT 619(B) REMOVAL OF CONCRETE PAVEMENT P-4, 7, 8, 9, 14 SY 1852

12 ODOT 619(B) REMOVAL OF CONCRETE DRIVEWAY P-4, 7, 8, 9, 14 SY 13

13 ODOT 619(B) REMOVAL OF CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER P-4, 7, 8, 9, 14, 15, 17 LF 100

14 ODOT 641 MOBILIZATION P-9 LSUM 1

15 ODOT 880(J) CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC CONTROL P-5, 9, 10 LSUM 1

16 CITY SPECIAL OWNER'S ALLOWANCE P-6 EA 1

17 CITY SPECIAL CRACK CLEANING AND SEALING (P.C. CONCRETE PAVEMENT) P-22, 23 LF 0

HIGHLAND DRIVE

WILSHIRE AVENUE

WAVERLY AVENUE

OAKDALE DRIVE

PAY ITEMS & NOTES 064598212 5/15/2025 2



CITY OF BARTLESVILLE
CONCRETE PANEL
REPLACEMENTS

PROJECT NUMBER DATE SHEETDESCRIPTION BYDATE#

DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CGP

CGP

1437 SOUTH BOULDER AVE,
STE. 930, TULSA, OK 74119

P: 918-209-3191
FIRM NO. 2740

CHECKED BY: CDS
5/15/2025

DETAIL SHEET 064598212 5/15/2025 3

CONTRACTION JOINTS GENERAL NOTES:
1. ALL CONTRACTION JOINTS, INCLUDING THOSE IN CURBS, SHALL BE SEALED WITH A

SELF-LEVELING, LOW MODULUS, SILICON SEALANT AT A SPACING OF 24 TIMES THE THICKNESS OF
THE SLAB (MAXIMUM OF 15'-0" O.C. FOR NON-REINFORCED SLABS AND 30'-0" FOR REINFORCED
SLABS).

2. PANELS SHOULD BE SQUARE OR CLOSE TO SQUARE (MAX. RATIO 1 TO 1.5)
3. JOINT DEPTH SHOULD BE AS NOTED ON DETAILS.

1/4"

SAWED TRANSVERSE CONTRACTION JOINT

STANDARD CONCRETE PAVEMENT JOINTS

FILL W/ JOINT SEALER

1/4"

1/8" RAD.

1"

3/4"

3"

1"

@ 4' C/C
BAR 3'-0" LONG

#4 REBAR

FILL W/ JOINT SEALER

KEY TO FORM
FASTENING METAL
KEYWAY FORMED BY

1 
1/

2"

LUBRICATE THIS END

NO. 4 DOWEL
18" LONG @ 1'-3" C/C

ASPHALT IMPREGNATED FIBER
BOARD EXPANSION MATERIAL.

1"

FILL W/ JOINT SEALER

1 1/4"

TOOLED CONTRACTION JOINT

FILL W/ JOINT SEALER

1/4"

3/8" 25% OF THE
DEPTH OF
CONCRETE

FIRST SAWCUT 1/8" CUT TO A DEPTH
EQUAL TO 25% OF THE TOTAL DEPTH OF
CONCRETE FOR PAVEMENT LESS THAN 12".
(3" FOR PAVEMENTS 12"-18")
(16% OF DEPTH FOR PAVEMENTS OVER 18")

FINAL CUT FOR BACKER ROD (3/8" MIN.) AND
JOINT SEALANT.  (CLEAN JOINT THOROUGHLY
BEFORE PLACING BACKER ROD AND SEALANT)

NOTE:NOTE:

NOTES:

NOTE:
SAWING SHOULD BEGIN AS SOON AS CONCRETE IS STRONG ENOUGH TO SUPPORT EQUIPMENT.
AVOID RAVELING DURING SAWING OPERATION. ALL JOINTS SHOULD BE SAWED WITHIN 12 HOURS
OF CONCRETE PLACEMENT.  EARLIER IN HOT WEATHER AND WHEN CONCRETE IS CONSTRUCTED
ON STABILIZED BASE.

NOTE:
TOOLED JOINTS MUST BE RUN EARLY IN THE FINISHING PROCESS AND RERUN
LATER TO ENSURE GROOVE BOND HAS NOT OCCURRED.

LONGITUDINAL, CONTRACTION
& CONSTRUCTION JOINT

1/8"

T/
4

1/
4"

EXPANSION JOINT

1/2"

1"1/
4"

BACKER RODS ARE ACCEPTABLE FOR USE IN CONTRACTION AND/OR CONSTRUCTION
JOINTS PROVIDED THAT THE SILICONE JOINT SEALANT IS AT LEAST 1/2" THICK.

EXPANSION JOINT DETAIL
NTS

CONTRACTION JOINT DETAILS
NTS

CONSTRUCTION JOINT DETAIL
NTS

JOINT SEAL DETAIL
NTSC

1. REINFORCEMENT SHALL HAVE 1 1/2" MIN. COVER ON EXPOSED FACES AND 2" COVER ON GROUND CONTACT SURFACES.
2. ALL JOINTS MUST CONFORM TO ALL ODOT STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS FOR JOINTS AND SEALERS.
3. SEE ODOT STD. LECS-5-2 FOR ADDITIONAL DETAILS.

G
G2 G3

G1
C

C-6 C
C-6

C
C-6

C
C-6

PROVIDE CONSTRUCTION JOINTS WHERE 2 SUCCESSIVE PIECES OF CONCRETE MEET. KEYWAYS
SHOULD NOT BE USED ON PAVEMENT LESS THAN 9" THICK OR AT JOINTS THAT WILL CARRY
HEAVY LOADS.  INSTEAD, METAL DOWELS SHOULD BE USED.  DOWELS MUST BE CAREFULLY LINED
UP PARALLEL OR THEY MAY INDUCE RESTRAINT CAUSING RANDOM CRACKING AT END OF DOWEL.

PROVIDE EXPANSION JOINTS AT ALL RADIUS POINTS AND CORNERS.  ALSO AT JUNCTIONS OF
DRIVEWAYS WITH WALKS, CURBS, OR OTHER OBSTRUCTIONS AND AT JUNCTIONS OF WALKS
WITH BUILDINGS OR OTHER OBSTRUCTIONS.

TYPICAL CONCRETE PAVING SECTION
NTSA

TYPICAL PAVING DETAIL
NTSB

MUCK EXCAVATION DETAIL
NTSD

MUCK EXCAVATION

GENERAL NOTES:

1. STREET EXPANSION AND CONTRACTION
JOINTS SHALL MATCH EXISTING
PAVEMENT.  MAXIMUM SPACING OF
CONTRACTION JOINTS SHALL BE AS
FOLLOWS:

7" CONCRETE 14' ON CENTER
6" CONCRETE 12' ON CENTER
4" CONCRETE 8' ON CENTER

2. ONLY SILICONE SEALANT MEETING
ODOT STANDARDS & SPECIFICATIONS
SHALL BE ACCEPTABLE FOR USE.

3. ALL JOINTS SHALL BE SAND BLASTED TO
CLEAN AND THEN BLOWN OUT WITH
OIL-FREE COMPRESSED AIR.  SURFACES
MUST BE CLEAN, DRY, FROST-FREE, AND
DUST-FREE DURING INSTALLATION OF
BACKER ROD AND SILICONE JOINT
SEALANT.

DOWEL ALL NEW CONCRETE
PAVEMENT INTO EXISTING
CONCRETE PAVEMENT PER
ODOT STANDARD PCPR-4.

CONCRETE PAVING NOTES:

1. PROOF ROLL SUBGRADE AND REPAIR SUB-STANDARD AREAS.  REPAIR SHALL CONSIST OF EXCAVATING SUBSTANDARD MATERIAL, IMPORTING APPROVED MATERIAL, COMPACTING, &
TESTING.  PROOF ROLLING SHALL BE SUBSIDIARY TO OTHER BID ITEMS OF WORK.

2. FOR CONCRETE PANEL REPLACEMENT, DOWEL INTO EXISTING CONCRETE PAVING WITH 1" x 18" SMOOTH DOWEL AT 12" ON CENTER.  EMBED T/2" INTO CONCRETE.

6" CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER
NTSE

6"

2'-0"

6"
8"

6"2"R2"R

12
"

IF CURB ABUTTS EARTH -
BACKFILL W/ TOPSOIL.  SLOPE
TO DRAIN TOWARD STREET.
IF CURB ABUTTS WALK -
PROVIDE 1/2" EXPANSION
JOINT W/ JOINT SEALER.
PROVIDE POSITIVE DRAINAGE
TOWARD STREET.

6" TYPE 'A' AGGREGATE,
COMPACTED TO 95%
STANDARD PROCTOR
DENSITY

SUBGRADE COMPACTED
TO 95% STANDARD
PROCTOR DENSITY

GEOTEXTILE SEPERATOR
FABRIC (MIN 2' OVERLAP)

CURB JOINT NOTES:
1. PROVIDE EXPANSION JOINTS AT ALL

STARTS AND ENDS OF RADII AND AT A
MAXIMUM OF 48'-0" O.C.  ALSO
PROVIDE JOINTS WHERE CONNECTING
TO EXISTING.

2. PROVIDE SAW JOINTS AT 12'-0" ON
CENTER.

3. ALL JOINTS TO RECEIVE JOINT
SEALANT.

NTS
SECTION A-A

NTSH TYPICAL DRIVEWAY APPROACH REPAIR

MATCH EXISTING FLOW
LINE ELEVATION (NOT A JOINT)

MATCH EXISTING
WIDTH OF DRIVE

MATCH EXISTING SLOPE

1. PROVIDE EXPANSION JOINTS AT ALL STARTS
AND ENDS OF RADII AND AT A MAXIMUM OF
48'-0" O.C.  ALSO PROVIDE JOINT WHERE
CONNECTING TO EXISTING.

2. PROVIDE SAW JOINTS AT 12'-0" ON CENTER.
3. ALL JOINTS TO RECEIVE JOINT SEALANT.

CONCRETE JOINT NOTES:

1'-6"

MATCH EXISTING PAVEMENT
ELEVATIONS AND ENSURE
PROPER DRAINAGE FLOW

DOWEL INTO EXISTING PAVEMENT
(SEE CONCRETE PAVING NOTE 2)

SAWCUT EXISTING PAVEMENT
PRIOR TO INSTALLING NEW
PAVEMENT

EXISTING
PAVEMENT

7" 4,000 PSI ODOT CLASS 'A'
CONCRETE PAVEMENT

6" ODOT TYPE 'A' AGGREGATE
BASE COMPACTED TO 95%

STANDARD PROCTOR DENSITYEXISTING
CURB & GUTTER

PROVIDE EXPANSION
AT CURB

2' MIN. OVERLAP

DOWEL INTO EXISTING
CURB & GUTTER
(SEE CONCRETE PAVING NOTE 2)

SAWCUT

8" SUBGRADE PER ODOT
METHOD 'B' COMPACTED TO 95%
STANDARD PROCTOR DENSITY

GEOTEXTILE SEPERATOR FABRIC
(ODOT STANDARD SPECIFICATION SECTION 712.05)

2' MIN. OVERLAP

SELF LEVELING SILICONE
JOINT SEALANT

SELF LEVELING SILICONE
JOINT SEALANT

MATCH EXISTING JOINTS UNLESS EXISTING
JOINTS EXCEED MAXIMUM SPACING.  USE LOAD
TRANSFER UNITS PER ODOT STANDARDS SHEET.

MATCH EXISTING JOINTS.
USE LOAD TRANSFER UNITS PER ODOT
STANDARDS SHEET.

SAWCUT CURB LINE
FULL DEPTH COST

SUBSIDIARY TO OTHER
BID ITEMS OF WORK

PAVING (PER PLANS)

SEPARATOR FABRIC (MIN. 2' OVERLAP)

AGGREGATE BASE (PER PLANS)

IF AREAS ARE DISCOVERED
REQUIRING MUCK EXCAVATION,
IMMEDIATELY CONTACT
ENGINEERING INSPECTOR FOR
SITE VISIT.  ALL MUCK EXCAVATION
WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH 2009 ODOT
STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS
SECTION 202.04 (2).GEOTEXTILE SEPARATOR FABRIC

(TO MEET ODOT SPECIFICATION
SECTION 712.05)

EXISTING
DRIVE

6" THICK UNREINFORCED
H.E.S. CONCRETE

EX. STREET
PAVEMENT

COMPACT SUBGRADE
TO 95% STANDARD
PROCTOR DENSITY

6" TYPE 'A' AGGREGATE,
COMPACTED TO 95%
STANDARD PROCTOR
DENSITY

EXISTING CURB

EXPANSION JOINT

RADIUS TO
MATCH EXISTING

NEW TAPERED
CURBCURB &

GUTTER

SAW CUT EXISTING CURB
AND GUTTER FULL DEPTH

AND PLACE EXPANSION
JOINTS (TYP. BOTH SIDES)

MATCH EXISTING
GRADE

EXPANSION JOINT

NEW 6" THICK
HES CONCRETE
DRIVE APPROACH

NEW
TAPERED
CURB

EXPANSION JOINT

NOT A JOINT

NOTES:
1. SEE ODOT STD. PCR-4-2 FOR ADDITIONAL DETAILS.







NW HIGHLAND DR

NW
 B

RE
NT

W
O

O
D 

RD

NW HIGHLAND DR NW HIGHLAND DR

N
W

 A
LE

D
O

 D
R

SE
 F

R
AN

K 
PH

IL
LI

PS
 B

LV
D

SE WILSHIRE AVE SE WILSHIRE AVE

SE WILSHIRE AVE

S
E

 S
TA

TE
 S

T

S
E

 S
TA

TE
 S

T

SE
 F

R
AN

K 
PH

IL
LI

PS
 B

LV
D

SE
 S

TA
TE

 S
T

SE WAVERLY AVE

SE WAVERLY AVE

SE WAVERLY AVE
SE OAKDALE DR SE OAKDALE DR SE OAKDALE DR

SE W
O

O
D

LAN
D

 R
DBR

O
O

KS
ID

E 
PK

W
Y

SE W
O

O
D

LAN
D

 R
D

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE
CONCRETE PANEL
REPLACEMENTS

PROJECT NUMBER DATE SHEETDESCRIPTION BYDATE#

DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CGP

CGP

1437 SOUTH BOULDER AVE,
STE. 930, TULSA, OK 74119

P: 918-209-3191
FIRM NO. 2740

CHECKED BY: CDS
5/15/2025

KEYMAP 064598212 5/15/2025 6

N
O

R
TH

N
O

R
TH

N
O

R
TH

NORTH

5
LEGEND

SHEET NUMBER

7
7 8 9

10

9

11
11

12
13 13 14

MULTICORELINK:Highland Drive-SHEET 1 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Highland Drive-SHEET 1 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Highland Drive-SHEET 1 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Highland Drive-SHEET 1 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Highland Drive-SHEET 2 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Highland Drive-SHEET 2 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Wilshire Avenue-SHEET 1 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Wilshire Avenue-SHEET 1 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Wilshire Avenue-SHEET 2 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Wilshire Avenue-SHEET 2 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Wilshire Avenue-SHEET 1 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Wilshire Avenue-SHEET 1 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Waverly Avenue-SHEET 1 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Waverly Avenue-SHEET 1 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Waverly Avenue-SHEET 1 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Waverly Avenue-SHEET 1 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Waverly Avenue-SHEET 2 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Waverly Avenue-SHEET 2 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Oakdale Drive-SHEET 1 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Oakdale Drive-SHEET 1 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Oakdale Drive-SHEET 1 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Oakdale Drive-SHEET 1 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Oakdale Drive-SHEET 2 OF 2
MULTICORELINK:Oakdale Drive-SHEET 2 OF 2


503
HIGHLAND DR

505
HIGHLAND DR

500
HIGHLAND DR

502
HIGHLAND DR

504
HIGHLAND DR

506
HIGHLAND DR

508
HIGHLAND DR

501
HIGHLAND DR

507
HIGHLAND DR

510
HIGHLAND DR

509

HIGHLAND DR

S

S

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

WWWWW
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

NW HIGHLAND DR
NW HIGHLAND DR

N
W

 B
R

E
N

TW
O

O
D

 R
D

N
W

 B
R

E
N

TW
O

O
D

 R
D

EXISTING SIGN TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

229 SY

359 SY

509
HIGHLAND DR

511
HIGHLAND DR

515
HIGHLAND DR

517
HIGHLAND DR

519
HIGHLAND DR

521
HIGHLAND DR

512
HIGHLAND DR

514
HIGHLAND DR

516
HIGHLAND DR

518
HIGHLAND DR

520
HIGHLAND DR

522
HIGHLAND DR

524
HIGHLAND DR

513
HIGHLAND DR

WWWWWWWWWWWWWWWW
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

NW HIGHLAND DR

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

320 SY

563 SY

NW HIGHLAND DR

NW
 B

RE
NT

W
O

O
D 

RD

NW HIGHLAND DR NW HIGHLAND DR

N
W

 A
LE

D
O

 D
R

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE
CONCRETE PANEL
REPLACEMENTS

PROJECT NUMBER DATE SHEETDESCRIPTION BYDATE#

KEYMAP SCALE
1" = 350'

REPAIR LEGEND

  NOTES:
1. ONE LANE MUST REMAIN OPEN AT  ALL TIMES.

2. CONSTRUCTION MUST BE SIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

LATEST MUTCD.

3. ALL GRASS AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION SHALL

RECEIVE SOLID SLAB SODDING OF THE SAME GRASS TYPE.

4. CONCRETE PAVING SHALL UTILIZE LOAD TRANSFER UNITS FOR

ALL CONTRACTION AND EXPANSION JOINTS.

5. LOAD TRANSFER UNITS SHALL BE SUBSIDIARY TO OTHER PAY

ITEMS OF WORK.

6. PROPOSED JOINT LOCATIONS ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLANS.

CONTRACTOR SHALL FOLLOW PAVING DETAIL B ON SHEET 3

FOR JOINT SPACING.

7. PROPOSED SAWCUTS ALONG EXISTING GUTTER LINES ARE

ASSUMED TO BE 1.5' FROM FACE OF CURB. SEE DETAIL A ON

SHEET 3.

8. MINIMUM PATCH SIZE TO BE 4'X4'.

7" DOWEL JOINTED CONCRETE
PAVEMENT PANEL REPLACEMENT

6" HIGH-EARLY STRENGTH (HES)
CONCRETE DRIVE APPROACH

EXISTING SIGN

EXISTING STORM INLET

TEMPORARY FIBER LOG

EXISTING MANHOLES

SS

W

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER LINE

EXISTING WATERLINE

EXISTING STORM PIPE
CENTERLINE

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING WATER VALVE

SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES ON SHEET

1437 SOUTH BOULDER AVE,
STE. 930, TULSA, OK 74119

P: 918-209-3191
FIRM NO. 2740

DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CGP

CGP

CHECKED BY: CDS

REMOVE AND REPLACE
CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

5/15/2025

M
AT

C
H

 L
IN

E
1

M
ATCH LINE

1

N
O

R
TH

N
O

R
TH

HIGHLAND DRIVE
SHEET 1 OF 2

M
AT

C
H

 L
IN

E
2

064598212 5/15/2025 7

CONCRETE PAVEMENT PANEL REPLACEMENT: 1471 SY
7:

MULTICORELINK:Detail Sheet-DETAIL SHEET
MULTICORELINK:Detail Sheet-DETAIL SHEET


523
HIGHLAND DR

526
HIGHLAND DR

528
HIGHLAND DR

530
HIGHLAND DR

532
HIGHLAND DR

534
HIGHLAND DR

600
HIGHLAND DR

602
HIGHLAND DR

525
HIGHLAND DR

527
HIGHLAND DR

426
ALEDO DR

427
ALEDO DR

S

WWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWW

W
W

W

NW HIGHLAND DR

N
W

 A
LE

D
O

 D
R

EXISTING SIGN TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

144 SY

2 SY

12 SY

68 SY

2 SY

30 SY80 SY
33 SY

14 SY

61 SY

NW HIGHLAND DR

NW
 B

RE
NT

W
O

O
D 

RD

NW HIGHLAND DR NW HIGHLAND DR

N
W

 A
LE

D
O

 D
R

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE
CONCRETE PANEL
REPLACEMENTS

PROJECT NUMBER DATE SHEETDESCRIPTION BYDATE#

KEYMAP SCALE
1" = 350'

REPAIR LEGEND

  NOTES:
1. ONE LANE MUST REMAIN OPEN AT  ALL TIMES.

2. CONSTRUCTION MUST BE SIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

LATEST MUTCD.

3. ALL GRASS AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION SHALL

RECEIVE SOLID SLAB SODDING OF THE SAME GRASS TYPE.

4. CONCRETE PAVING SHALL UTILIZE LOAD TRANSFER UNITS FOR

ALL CONTRACTION AND EXPANSION JOINTS.

5. LOAD TRANSFER UNITS SHALL BE SUBSIDIARY TO OTHER PAY

ITEMS OF WORK.

6. PROPOSED JOINT LOCATIONS ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLANS.

CONTRACTOR SHALL FOLLOW PAVING DETAIL B ON SHEET 3

FOR JOINT SPACING.

7. PROPOSED SAWCUTS ALONG EXISTING GUTTER LINES ARE

ASSUMED TO BE 1.5' FROM FACE OF CURB. SEE DETAIL A ON

SHEET 3.

8. MINIMUM PATCH SIZE TO BE 4'X4'.

7" DOWEL JOINTED CONCRETE
PAVEMENT PANEL REPLACEMENT

6" HIGH-EARLY STRENGTH (HES)
CONCRETE DRIVE APPROACH

EXISTING SIGN

EXISTING STORM INLET

TEMPORARY FIBER LOG

EXISTING MANHOLES

SS

W

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER LINE

EXISTING WATERLINE

EXISTING STORM PIPE
CENTERLINE

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING WATER VALVE

SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES ON SHEET

1437 SOUTH BOULDER AVE,
STE. 930, TULSA, OK 74119

P: 918-209-3191
FIRM NO. 2740

DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CGP

CGP

CHECKED BY: CDS

REMOVE AND REPLACE
CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

5/15/2025

M
AT

C
H

 L
IN

E
2

N
O

R
TH

HIGHLAND DRIVE
SHEET 2 OF 2 064598212 5/15/2025 8

CONCRETE PAVEMENT PANEL REPLACEMENT: 446 SY
8:

MULTICORELINK:Detail Sheet-DETAIL SHEET
MULTICORELINK:Detail Sheet-DETAIL SHEET


373
WILSHIRE AVE

369
WILSHIRE AVE

365
WILSHIRE AVE

361
WILSHIRE AVE

376
WILSHIRE AVE

370
WILSHIRE AVE

366
WILSHIRE AVE

362
WILSHIRE AVE

358
WILSHIRE AVE

WILSHIRE AVE

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

WWWW

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

SE
 F

R
AN

K 
PH

IL
LI

PS
 B

LV
D

SE WILSHIRE AVE

EXISTING SIGN TO REMAIN

EXISTING SIGN TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

52 SY

4 SY

42 SY

6 SY

15 SY

6 SY

170 SY

10 SY

354
WILSHIRE AVE

357
WILSHIRE AVE

353
WILSHIRE AVE

349
WILSHIRE AVE

345
WILSHIRE AVE

339
WILSHIRE AVE

333
WILSHIRE AVE

327
WILSHIRE AVE

350
WILSHIRE AVE

346
WILSHIRE AVE

342
WILSHIRE AVE

338
WILSHIRE AVE

334
WILSHIRE AVE

330
WILSHIRE AVE

W

W

W

W

W

WWWWWWWWWWWWWWWWW

SE WILSHIRE AVE

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

7 SY

36 SY

10 SY

2 SY

6 SY

2 SY

5 SY

6 SY

388 SY

6 SY

6 SY 35 SY

SE
 F

R
AN

K 
PH

IL
LI

PS
 B

LV
D

SE WILSHIRE AVE SE WILSHIRE AVE

SE WILSHIRE AVE

S
E

 S
TA

TE
 S

T

S
E

 S
TA

TE
 S

T

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE
CONCRETE PANEL
REPLACEMENTS

PROJECT NUMBER DATE SHEETDESCRIPTION BYDATE#

KEYMAP SCALE
1" = 350'

REPAIR LEGEND

  NOTES:
1. ONE LANE MUST REMAIN OPEN AT  ALL TIMES.

2. CONSTRUCTION MUST BE SIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

LATEST MUTCD.

3. ALL GRASS AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION SHALL

RECEIVE SOLID SLAB SODDING OF THE SAME GRASS TYPE.

4. CONCRETE PAVING SHALL UTILIZE LOAD TRANSFER UNITS FOR

ALL CONTRACTION AND EXPANSION JOINTS.

5. LOAD TRANSFER UNITS SHALL BE SUBSIDIARY TO OTHER PAY

ITEMS OF WORK.

6. PROPOSED JOINT LOCATIONS ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLANS.

CONTRACTOR SHALL FOLLOW PAVING DETAIL B ON SHEET 3

FOR JOINT SPACING.

7. PROPOSED SAWCUTS ALONG EXISTING GUTTER LINES ARE

ASSUMED TO BE 1.5' FROM FACE OF CURB. SEE DETAIL A ON

SHEET 3.

8. MINIMUM PATCH SIZE TO BE 4'X4'.

7" DOWEL JOINTED CONCRETE
PAVEMENT PANEL REPLACEMENT

6" HIGH-EARLY STRENGTH (HES)
CONCRETE DRIVE APPROACH

EXISTING SIGN

EXISTING STORM INLET

TEMPORARY FIBER LOG

EXISTING MANHOLES

SS

W

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER LINE

EXISTING WATERLINE

EXISTING STORM PIPE
CENTERLINE

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING WATER VALVE

SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES ON SHEET

1437 SOUTH BOULDER AVE,
STE. 930, TULSA, OK 74119

P: 918-209-3191
FIRM NO. 2740

DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CGP

CGP

CHECKED BY: CDS

REMOVE AND REPLACE
CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

5/15/2025

N
O

R
TH

N
O

R
TH

WILSHIRE AVENUE
SHEET 1 OF 2

M
AT

C
H

 L
IN

E
3

M
ATC

H
 LIN

E
3

M
AT

C
H

 L
IN

E
4

064598212 5/15/2025 9

CONCRETE PAVEMENT PANEL REPLACEMENT: 762 SY

CONCRETE DRIVE APPROACH: 46 SY

9:

MULTICORELINK:Detail Sheet-DETAIL SHEET
MULTICORELINK:Detail Sheet-DETAIL SHEET


324
WILSHIRE AVE

319
WILSHIRE AVE

4401
STATE ST

330
WILSHIRE AVE

330
WILSHIRE AVE

330
WILSHIRE AVE

323
WILSHIRE AVE

315
WILSHIRE AVE

307
WILSHIRE AVE

4325
STATE ST

245
WILSHIRE AVE

W
W

W
W

W

W

W W W W

W
W

W
W

WW
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

WWWWW

S

SE WILSHIRE AVE

S
E

 S
TA

TE
 S

T

S
E

 S
TA

TE
 S

T

EXISTING SIGN TO REMAIN

EXISTING SIGN TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

6 SY

404 SY

51 SY 289 SY

SE
 F

R
AN

K 
PH

IL
LI

PS
 B

LV
D

SE WILSHIRE AVE SE WILSHIRE AVE

SE WILSHIRE AVE

S
E

 S
TA

TE
 S

T

S
E

 S
TA

TE
 S

T

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE
CONCRETE PANEL
REPLACEMENTS

PROJECT NUMBER DATE SHEETDESCRIPTION BYDATE#

KEYMAP SCALE
1" = 350'

REPAIR LEGEND

  NOTES:
1. ONE LANE MUST REMAIN OPEN AT  ALL TIMES.

2. CONSTRUCTION MUST BE SIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

LATEST MUTCD.

3. ALL GRASS AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION SHALL

RECEIVE SOLID SLAB SODDING OF THE SAME GRASS TYPE.

4. CONCRETE PAVING SHALL UTILIZE LOAD TRANSFER UNITS FOR

ALL CONTRACTION AND EXPANSION JOINTS.

5. LOAD TRANSFER UNITS SHALL BE SUBSIDIARY TO OTHER PAY

ITEMS OF WORK.

6. PROPOSED JOINT LOCATIONS ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLANS.

CONTRACTOR SHALL FOLLOW PAVING DETAIL B ON SHEET 3

FOR JOINT SPACING.

7. PROPOSED SAWCUTS ALONG EXISTING GUTTER LINES ARE

ASSUMED TO BE 1.5' FROM FACE OF CURB. SEE DETAIL A ON

SHEET 3.

8. MINIMUM PATCH SIZE TO BE 4'X4'.

7" DOWEL JOINTED CONCRETE
PAVEMENT PANEL REPLACEMENT

6" HIGH-EARLY STRENGTH (HES)
CONCRETE DRIVE APPROACH

EXISTING SIGN

EXISTING STORM INLET

TEMPORARY FIBER LOG

EXISTING MANHOLES

SS

W

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER LINE

EXISTING WATERLINE

EXISTING STORM PIPE
CENTERLINE

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING WATER VALVE

SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES ON SHEET

1437 SOUTH BOULDER AVE,
STE. 930, TULSA, OK 74119

P: 918-209-3191
FIRM NO. 2740

DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CGP

CGP

CHECKED BY: CDS

REMOVE AND REPLACE
CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

5/15/2025

N
O

R
TH

WILSHIRE AVENUE
SHEET 2 OF 2

M
AT

C
H

 L
IN

E
4

064598212 5/15/2025 10

CONCRETE PAVEMENT PANEL REPLACEMENT: 744 SY

CONCRETE DRIVE APPROACH: 6 SY

10:

MULTICORELINK:Detail Sheet-DETAIL SHEET
MULTICORELINK:Detail Sheet-DETAIL SHEET


4200
FRANK PHILLIPS BLVD

360
WAVERLY AVE

356
WAVERLY AVE

352
WAVERLY AVE

348
WAVERLY AVE

4112
SE FRANK PHILLIPS BLVD

361
WAVERLY AVE

357
WAVERLY AVE

353
WAVERLY AVE

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W
W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W

S

S
E

 F
R

A
N

K
 P

H
IL

LI
P

S
 B

LV
D

SE WAVERLY AVE

REMOVE AND REPLACE
CONCRETE CURB & GUTTER

EXISTING INLET
TO REMAIN

EXISTING SIGN
TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

45 SY

48 SY

16 SY 204 SY

9 SY

29 SY

WAVERLY AVE

353WAVERLY AVE 347
WAVERLY AVE

344
WAVERLY AVE

341
WAVERLY AVE

335
WAVERLY AVE

331
WAVERLY AVE

327
WAVERLY AVE

323
WAVERLY AVE

340
WAVERLY AVE

336
WAVERLY AVE

332
WAVERLY AVE

328
WAVERLY AVE

324
WAVERLY AVE

320
WAVERLY AVE

W

W

W

W

W

W

W W W W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

WSE WAVERLY AVE

EXISTING INLET
TO REMAIN

EXISTING INLET
TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

204 SY

258 SY

21 SY

4 SY

2 SY

157 SY

S
E

 F
R

A
N

K
 P

H
IL

LI
P

S
 B

LV
D

S
E

 S
TA

TE
 S

T

SE WAVERLY AVE

SE WAVERLY AVE

SE WAVERLY AVE

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE
CONCRETE PANEL
REPLACEMENTS

PROJECT NUMBER DATE SHEETDESCRIPTION BYDATE#

KEYMAP SCALE
1" = 350'

REPAIR LEGEND

  NOTES:
1. ONE LANE MUST REMAIN OPEN AT  ALL TIMES.

2. CONSTRUCTION MUST BE SIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

LATEST MUTCD.

3. ALL GRASS AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION SHALL

RECEIVE SOLID SLAB SODDING OF THE SAME GRASS TYPE.

4. CONCRETE PAVING SHALL UTILIZE LOAD TRANSFER UNITS FOR

ALL CONTRACTION AND EXPANSION JOINTS.

5. LOAD TRANSFER UNITS SHALL BE SUBSIDIARY TO OTHER PAY

ITEMS OF WORK.

6. PROPOSED JOINT LOCATIONS ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLANS.

CONTRACTOR SHALL FOLLOW PAVING DETAIL B ON SHEET 3

FOR JOINT SPACING.

7. PROPOSED SAWCUTS ALONG EXISTING GUTTER LINES ARE

ASSUMED TO BE 1.5' FROM FACE OF CURB. SEE DETAIL A ON

SHEET 3.

8. MINIMUM PATCH SIZE TO BE 4'X4'.

7" DOWEL JOINTED CONCRETE
PAVEMENT PANEL REPLACEMENT

6" HIGH-EARLY STRENGTH (HES)
CONCRETE DRIVE APPROACH

EXISTING SIGN

EXISTING STORM INLET

TEMPORARY FIBER LOG

EXISTING MANHOLES

SS

W

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER LINE

EXISTING WATERLINE

EXISTING STORM PIPE
CENTERLINE

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING WATER VALVE

SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES ON SHEET

1437 SOUTH BOULDER AVE,
STE. 930, TULSA, OK 74119

P: 918-209-3191
FIRM NO. 2740

DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CGP

CGP

CHECKED BY: CDS

REMOVE AND REPLACE
CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

5/15/2025

N
O

R
TH

NO
RTH

WAVERLY AVE
SHEET 1 OF 2

M
AT

CH
 L

IN
E

5

M
AT

C
H

 L
IN

E
6

M
AT

C
H

 L
IN

E
5

064598212 5/15/2025 11

CONCRETE PAVEMENT PANEL REPLACEMENT: 793 SY

TEMPORARY FIBER LOG: 13 LF

11:

MULTICORELINK:Detail Sheet-DETAIL SHEET
MULTICORELINK:Detail Sheet-DETAIL SHEET


316
WAVERLY AVE

319
WAVERLY AVE

315
WAVERLY AVE

311
WAVERLY AVE

307
WAVERLY AVE

301
WAVERLY AVE

312
WAVERLY AVE

306
WAVERLY AVE

300
WAVERLY AVE

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

SE
 S

TA
TE

 S
T

SE WAVERLY AVE

SE
 S

TA
TE

 S
T

SE WAVERLY AVE

EXISTING SIGN TO REMAIN

EXISTING SIGN TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

10 SY

124 SY

33 SY

15 SY
180 SY

22 SY

40 SY

S
E

 F
R

A
N

K
 P

H
IL

LI
P

S
 B

LV
D

S
E

 S
TA

TE
 S

T

SE WAVERLY AVE

SE WAVERLY AVE

SE WAVERLY AVE

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE
CONCRETE PANEL
REPLACEMENTS

PROJECT NUMBER DATE SHEETDESCRIPTION BYDATE#

KEYMAP SCALE
1" = 350'

REPAIR LEGEND

  NOTES:
1. ONE LANE MUST REMAIN OPEN AT  ALL TIMES.

2. CONSTRUCTION MUST BE SIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

LATEST MUTCD.

3. ALL GRASS AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION SHALL

RECEIVE SOLID SLAB SODDING OF THE SAME GRASS TYPE.

4. CONCRETE PAVING SHALL UTILIZE LOAD TRANSFER UNITS FOR

ALL CONTRACTION AND EXPANSION JOINTS.

5. LOAD TRANSFER UNITS SHALL BE SUBSIDIARY TO OTHER PAY

ITEMS OF WORK.

6. PROPOSED JOINT LOCATIONS ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLANS.

CONTRACTOR SHALL FOLLOW PAVING DETAIL B ON SHEET 3

FOR JOINT SPACING.

7. PROPOSED SAWCUTS ALONG EXISTING GUTTER LINES ARE

ASSUMED TO BE 1.5' FROM FACE OF CURB. SEE DETAIL A ON

SHEET 3.

8. MINIMUM PATCH SIZE TO BE 4'X4'.

7" DOWEL JOINTED CONCRETE
PAVEMENT PANEL REPLACEMENT

6" HIGH-EARLY STRENGTH (HES)
CONCRETE DRIVE APPROACH

EXISTING SIGN

EXISTING STORM INLET

TEMPORARY FIBER LOG

EXISTING MANHOLES

SS

W

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER LINE

EXISTING WATERLINE

EXISTING STORM PIPE
CENTERLINE

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING WATER VALVE

SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES ON SHEET

1437 SOUTH BOULDER AVE,
STE. 930, TULSA, OK 74119

P: 918-209-3191
FIRM NO. 2740

DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CGP

CGP

CHECKED BY: CDS

REMOVE AND REPLACE
CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

5/15/2025

WAVERLY AVE
SHEET 2 OF 2

NO
RTH

M
AT

C
H

 L
IN

E
6

064598212 5/15/2025 12

CONCRETE PAVEMENT PANEL REPLACEMENT: 424 SY
12:

MULTICORELINK:Detail Sheet-DETAIL SHEET
MULTICORELINK:Detail Sheet-DETAIL SHEET


1400
BROOKSIDE PKWY

1328
OAKDALE DR

1329
OAKDALE DR

1312
BROOKSIDE PKWY

W

W

W

W

W
W W W W W W W W W W W W

W
W

W

W

W
W

W
W

S

EXISTING INLET TO REMAIN

EXISTING INLET TO REMAIN

EXISTING SIGN TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

52 SY 21 SY
2 SY

13 SY
190 SY

SE OAKDALE DR

BR
O

O
KS

ID
E 

PK
W

Y

EXISTING INLET TO REMAIN

536 SY

(2) ADJUST VALVE
BOX TO GRADE

1309
OAKDALE DR

1326
OAKDALE DR

1313
OAKDALE DR

1317
OAKDALE DR

1319
OAKDALE DR

1325
OAKDALE DR

1318
OAKDALE DR

1312
OAKDALE DR

1304
OAKDALE DR

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W
W

W

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

16 SY 126 SY

54 SY
441 SY

12 SY 52 SY

SE OAKDALE DR

SE OAKDALE DR SE OAKDALE DR SE OAKDALE DR
SE W

O
O

D
LAN

D
 R

DBR
O

O
KS

ID
E 

PK
W

Y

SE W
O

O
D

LAN
D

 R
D

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE
CONCRETE PANEL
REPLACEMENTS

PROJECT NUMBER DATE SHEETDESCRIPTION BYDATE#

KEYMAP SCALE
1" = 350'

REPAIR LEGEND

  NOTES:
1. ONE LANE MUST REMAIN OPEN AT  ALL TIMES.

2. CONSTRUCTION MUST BE SIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

LATEST MUTCD.

3. ALL GRASS AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION SHALL

RECEIVE SOLID SLAB SODDING OF THE SAME GRASS TYPE.

4. CONCRETE PAVING SHALL UTILIZE LOAD TRANSFER UNITS FOR

ALL CONTRACTION AND EXPANSION JOINTS.

5. LOAD TRANSFER UNITS SHALL BE SUBSIDIARY TO OTHER PAY

ITEMS OF WORK.

6. PROPOSED JOINT LOCATIONS ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLANS.

CONTRACTOR SHALL FOLLOW PAVING DETAIL B ON SHEET 3

FOR JOINT SPACING.

7. PROPOSED SAWCUTS ALONG EXISTING GUTTER LINES ARE

ASSUMED TO BE 1.5' FROM FACE OF CURB. SEE DETAIL A ON

SHEET 3.

8. MINIMUM PATCH SIZE TO BE 4'X4'.

7" DOWEL JOINTED CONCRETE
PAVEMENT PANEL REPLACEMENT

6" HIGH-EARLY STRENGTH (HES)
CONCRETE DRIVE APPROACH

EXISTING SIGN

EXISTING STORM INLET

TEMPORARY FIBER LOG

EXISTING MANHOLES

SS

W

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER LINE

EXISTING WATERLINE

EXISTING STORM PIPE
CENTERLINE

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING WATER VALVE

SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES ON SHEET

1437 SOUTH BOULDER AVE,
STE. 930, TULSA, OK 74119

P: 918-209-3191
FIRM NO. 2740

DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CGP

CGP

CHECKED BY: CDS

REMOVE AND REPLACE
CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

5/15/2025

NORTH
NORTH

OAKDALE DRIVE
SHEET 1 OF 2

M
AT

C
H

 L
IN

E
7

M
AT

C
H

 L
IN

E
8

M
AT

C
H

 L
IN

E
7

064598212 5/15/2025 13

CONCRETE PAVEMENT PANEL REPLACEMENT: 1502 SY

CONCRETE DRIVE APPROACH: 13 SY

TEMPORARY FIBER LOG: 20 LF

13:

MULTICORELINK:Detail Sheet-DETAIL SHEET
MULTICORELINK:Detail Sheet-DETAIL SHEET


3501
WOODLAND RD

1305
OAKDALE DR

3429
WOODLAND RD

3432
WOODLAND RD

1212
OAKDALE DR

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W
W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

S

EXISTING SIGN TO REMAIN

EXISTING SIGN TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

EXISTING CURB AND
GUTTER TO REMAIN

41 SY

40 SY

80 SY

SE OAKDALE DR

SE W
O

O
DLAND RD

102 SY

87 SY

ADJUST VALVE
BOX TO GRADE

SE OAKDALE DR SE OAKDALE DR SE OAKDALE DR
SE W

O
O

D
LAN

D
 R

DBR
O

O
KS

ID
E 

PK
W

Y

SE W
O

O
D

LAN
D

 R
D

CITY OF BARTLESVILLE
CONCRETE PANEL
REPLACEMENTS

PROJECT NUMBER DATE SHEETDESCRIPTION BYDATE#

KEYMAP SCALE
1" = 350'

REPAIR LEGEND

  NOTES:
1. ONE LANE MUST REMAIN OPEN AT  ALL TIMES.

2. CONSTRUCTION MUST BE SIGNED IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE

LATEST MUTCD.

3. ALL GRASS AREAS DISTURBED BY CONSTRUCTION SHALL

RECEIVE SOLID SLAB SODDING OF THE SAME GRASS TYPE.

4. CONCRETE PAVING SHALL UTILIZE LOAD TRANSFER UNITS FOR

ALL CONTRACTION AND EXPANSION JOINTS.

5. LOAD TRANSFER UNITS SHALL BE SUBSIDIARY TO OTHER PAY

ITEMS OF WORK.

6. PROPOSED JOINT LOCATIONS ARE NOT SHOWN ON THE PLANS.

CONTRACTOR SHALL FOLLOW PAVING DETAIL B ON SHEET 3

FOR JOINT SPACING.

7. PROPOSED SAWCUTS ALONG EXISTING GUTTER LINES ARE

ASSUMED TO BE 1.5' FROM FACE OF CURB. SEE DETAIL A ON

SHEET 3.

8. MINIMUM PATCH SIZE TO BE 4'X4'.

7" DOWEL JOINTED CONCRETE
PAVEMENT PANEL REPLACEMENT

6" HIGH-EARLY STRENGTH (HES)
CONCRETE DRIVE APPROACH

EXISTING SIGN

EXISTING STORM INLET

TEMPORARY FIBER LOG

EXISTING MANHOLES

SS

W

EXISTING SANITARY SEWER LINE

EXISTING WATERLINE

EXISTING STORM PIPE
CENTERLINE

EXISTING FIRE HYDRANT

EXISTING WATER VALVE

SUMMARY OF QUANTITIES ON SHEET

1437 SOUTH BOULDER AVE,
STE. 930, TULSA, OK 74119

P: 918-209-3191
FIRM NO. 2740

DESIGNED BY:

DRAWN BY:

CGP

CGP

CHECKED BY: CDS

REMOVE AND REPLACE
CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER

5/15/2025

NORTH

OAKDALE DRIVE
SHEET 2 OF 2

M
AT

C
H

 L
IN

E
8

064598212 5/15/2025 14

CONCRETE PAVEMENT PANEL REPLACEMENT: 350 SY
14:

MULTICORELINK:Detail Sheet-DETAIL SHEET
MULTICORELINK:Detail Sheet-DETAIL SHEET


1 | P a g e

Agenda Item ___ 
June 26, 2025 

Prepared by 
Greg Collins, Special Projects Manager 

I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND

Consider and take action on appeals by Danny L. Blackwood of the Hearing Examiner’s Order of
Abatement for boarding and securing, and demolition and removal of dilapidated structures at 1032
SW Oak Ave., legally described as Lot 12, Block 1, McCaleb Addition, Bartlesville, Washington
County, Oklahoma (Code Enforcement Case Numbers DS-0325-0384 and -0385).

Exhibits/Attachments:
(1) Exhibit A: Aerial / Map Image (8)   Exhibit H: Deeds / Affidavits 
(2) Exhibit B: Zoning (9)   Exhibit I: Courtesy Notices w/ Receipts 
(3) Exhibit C: Photos/Images (10) Exhibit J: Notices of Violation w/ Receipts 
(4) Exhibit D: NSO Report/Case Notes (11) Exhibit K: Abatement Orders 
(5) Exhibit E: Timeline (12) Exhibit L: Notice of Unsecured Structure & 

Lien Claim 
(6) Exhibit F: County Assessor’s Report (13) Exhibit M: Notice of Dilapidation & Lien 
(7) Exhibit G: Treasurer’s Tax Roll (14) Exhibit N: Appeal 

Background:  

Mr. Danny L. Blackwood lives in Washington County, north of Wann, Oklahoma, and is the owner 
of 1032 SW Oak Avenue in Bartlesville.  He appeals the City Code Enforcement Hearing Examiner’s 
Orders of Abatement for (1) for boarding and securing an unsecured house and unsecured storm 
shelter, and (2) for the demolition and removal of dilapidated structures, violating Municipal Code 
Section 11-4 D. 1, and 11-4 G. 4. 

Mr. Blackwood acquired an ownership interest in this property in 1979 when his wife, Juanita 
Blackwood, conveyed a quit claim deed to herself and Mr. Blackwood, as joint tenants, with right of 
survivorship.  Ms. Blackwood died in 1999, according to an Affidavit of Surviving Joint Tenant, 
recorded at the Washington County Clerk’s Office at Book 1194, Page 1275-1278, on 10/20/2021. 

An aerial image, zoning map, and photos of the property are at Exhibits A-C, respectively.  The 
property is zoned RS-5 Single-Family Residential. 

Mr. Blackwood did not state the reasons for his appeals in his application (Exhibit N, Appeal). 

The present case started after Code Enforcement received a complaint on 3/20/2025 of an open 
structure on the property.  The Neighborhood Services Officer (NSO) (Code Enforcement Officer), 
Officer Isaac Amaro, investigated the property in an initial inspection on 3/21/2025 and confirmed 
that the house was open.  The house had several holes in the roof and floor, wood rot, signs of 
foundation damage, missing siding, holes in the walls, and flaking paint.  He found the main structure 
and a storm shelter were open and needed to be secured.  NSO Amaro also noted that several trees 
were hanging low and needed to be trimmed up over the road and sidewalk.  The sidewalk had several 

12.



2 | P a g e  
 

areas that need to be removed due to it being a walking hazard.  The fence of the property was 
missing railing and dilapidated.  NSO Amaro contacted City Utility Billing and learned that there 
has not been an active water account at this address for 14 years, since May 2011.   
 
NSO Amaro took photos of the property on 3/21/2025, and mailed to Mr. Blackwood and posted on 
the property Courtesy Notices of the unsecured house and storm shelter, and the dilapidated house, 
storm shelter, fence, and sidewalk, on 3/25/2025.  The Courtesy Notice informed Mr. Blackwood of 
the requirement for the owner to board and secure the house and storm shelter, and demolish and 
remove the house, storm shelter, fence, and portions of sidewalk, in 10 days, or further action would 
be taken. 
 
NSO Amaro re-inspected the property on 4/15/2025.  He found the property still in the same 
condition and still needing the same abatement measures.  He again mailed to Mr. Blackwood and 
posted on the property Notices of Violation on 4/15/2025, informing Mr. Blackwood of the 
requirement for the owner to board and secure the house and storm shelter, and demolish and remove 
the house, storm shelter, fence, and portions of sidewalk.  The Notices of Violation set a hearing date 
before the Hearing Examiner, John C. Holden, Esq., on 5/14/2025. 
 
NSO Amaro inspected the property a third time on 5/14/2025, the morning of the scheduled hearing 
on the property.  He took additional photos.  The photos show the property in the same condition as 
before.  The 5/14/2025 photos also show “For Sale” signs posted on the property since the time of 
the prior 3/25/2025 photos. 
 
See NSO Case Notes at Exhibit D, Photos and links to additional photos, at Exhibit C, and a 
summary Timeline of Events at Exhibit E. 
 
Hearing Examiner, John C. Holden, Esq. held a hearing on 5/14/2025.  Mr. Blackwood did not attend 
that hearing.  The Hearing Examiner found that the house and storm shelter were open and unsecured 
and needed to be boarded and secured in 10 days, or the City would do so, and bill the owner for the 
costs.  Mr. Holden also found that the house, storm shelter, fence, and portions of the sidewalk were 
dilapidated and a public nuisance, and required demolition and removal in 30 days by the owner, or 
the City would do so, and bill the owner for the costs. 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
The Hearing Examiner’s order to the owner to board and secure the house and storm shelter, and his 
order to the owner to demolish and remove the house, storm shelter, fence, and portions of sidewalk, 
should be affirmed by City Council, for several independent, separate reasons, any one of which 
alone is a sufficient basis to uphold the orders: 
 
1. State Statute 11 O.S. Section 22-112 C. 1:  The house, storm shelter, fence, and portions of 

sidewalk are “dilapidated” under state statute, because they are: 
 
“a.  a structure which through neglect or injury lacks necessary repairs or otherwise is in a 
state of decay or partial ruin to such an extent that the structure is a hazard to the health, 
safety, or welfare of the general public”  11 O.S. Section 22-112 C. 1.a. 
 
“b.  a structure which is unfit for human occupancy due to the lack of necessary repairs and is 



3 | P a g e  
 

considered uninhabitable or is a hazard to the health, safety, and welfare of the general 
public,”  11 O.S. Section 22-112 C. 1.b 
 
OR 
 
“e.  a structure declared by the municipal governing body to constitute a public nuisance”.  11 
O.S. Section 22-112 C. 1.e. 
 
City Council adopted state statute in Municipal Code Section 11-2: 

 
“The City of Bartlesville adopts all of the applicable provisions of Title 11 O.S. and 
any amendments made thereto concerning the General Power of Municipalities, and 
Title 63-1-1011 and any amendments made thereto concerning health nuisances, 
specifically dealing with the prohibition and abatement of nuisances as defined in this 
chapter.” 
 

2. State Statute 11 O.S. Section 22-112.1:  “A.  After a building has been declared dilapidated … 
and before the commencement of the tearing and removal of a dilapidated building, the 
governing body … may authorize that such a building be boarded and secured ….  
 
C.  A governing body … may cause an unsecured building to be boarded and secured ….” 
 

3. Municipal Code 11-4, D, D.1:  “A nuisance includes D.  Buildings, Structures and Fences.  1. 
any dangerous, deteriorated, abandoned, partially destroyed or unfinished building, addition, 
appendage, or other structure, or any building in violation of the codes as adopted by the city, 
and any vacated or abandoned building not securely closed at all times ….”  
 

4. Municipal Code 11-4, G, G.1, G.4:  “A nuisance includes G. Attractive Nuisance and 
Dangerous Conditions.  1.  [a]ny unguarded or abandoned excavation, pit, well or hold that 
may constitute a threat to welfare; or any well, cellar, pit foundation, or other excavation of 
more than two (2) feet in depth, on any unenclosed lot, without substantial curing, covering or 
protection.* * * 
 
* * *4.   [a]ny fence, wall, shed, house, garage, building, structure or any part of any of the 
aforesaid; or any tree, pole …; or any excavation, hole, pit, basement, cellar, sidewalk, 
subspace … or any lot, land, yard, premises or location which in its entirety, or in any part 
thereof, by reason of the condition in which the same is found or permitted to be or remain, 
shall or may endanger the health, safety, life, limb or property, or cause any hurt, harm, 
inconvenience, discomfort, damage, or injury to any one (1) or more individuals in the city, 
in any one (1) or more of the following particular: 

 
a) by reason of being a menace, threat, and/or hazard to the general health and safety 

of the community; 
b) by reason of being a fire hazard; 
c) by reason of being unsafe for occupancy, or use on, in, upon, about or around the 

aforesaid property; 
d) by reason of lack of sufficient or adequate maintenance of the property, and/or 

being vacant, any of which depreciates the enjoyment and use of the property in 



4 | P a g e  
 

the immediate vicinity to such an extent that it is harmful to the community in 
which such property is situated or such condition exists.  

 
These findings are evidenced by the photos taken by NSO Amaro and his observations written in his 
case report, summarized above.  The photos clearly show the property is not habitable.  They also 
show rotted wood framing members and missing and degraded flooring and ceiling.  The structure 
lacks water, sewer, electrical and other utilities, and lacks functioning fixtures.  The property does 
not satisfy International Property Maintenance Code or International Residential Code, as adopted 
by the City.  It would not pass inspection by a Code Enforcement Officer or a City Building Inspector 
for issuance of a certificate of occupancy or a certificate of compliance. 
 
5. Owner Repairing the Dilapidated Property is not likely feasible or cost effective 

 
There is no legal requirement for the City to grant more time, or give an option to rehab a dilapidated 
structure.  Such option in this case is likely cost prohibitive and infeasible in any event.  The property 
is not Mr. Blackwood’s residence.  Therefore, he would be required to hire state-licensed contractors 
to perform all mechanical, electrical, and plumbing work on the property.  He would be required to 
hire a state-registered roofing contractor to repair the roof.  He would also have to repair apparent 
wood framing, install fixtures, and have such other work done that the Chief Building Official or 
other reviewing City staff may determine upon review of a building permit application.   
 
Property Value.  The current value of the property as assessed by the Washington County Assessor 
is:  $1,920 land value + $16,800 improvement value (house) for a total taxable market value of 
$18,720.  See Exhibit F.  The cost of cleanup of the interior of the property, remodel and repairs 
and will likely exceed that amount by a multiple of that figure.  Rehab of the property is cost 
prohibitive. 
 
History of Lack of Maintenance of Property.  The property has not been legally habitable for 
over the last 14 years during Mr. Blackwood’s ownership, since City water service was discontinued 
in May 2011.  Mr. Blackwood has not demonstrated a record and ability to maintain the property.  
Mr. Blackwood has not rehabbed the property during all this time.   
 
Washington County land records show that during Mr. Blackwood’s ownership of the property, the 
City: 

• previously had to file a lien for cleaning and mowing of $217.47 on 5/28/2008. (The bill 
was paid and the lien was released on 6/5/2008).   

• previously filed a Notice of Dilapidation and Lien on the property on 5/26/2017.   
• just last month on 6/9/2025 the City filed a lien for cleaning and mowing of the property, 

for $363.60. 
 

Failure to Attend Hearings / Failure to Maintain Property.  Significantly, Mr. Blackwood failed 
to attend the hearings for the boarding and securing, and for the dilapidated structures, on 5/14/2025.  
Also, he failed to respond to a Courtesy Notice mailed on 3/25/2025 regarding tall grass/weeds, 
dead/damaged trees, and debris, trash, and waste.  This was abated by Code Enforcement on 
6/5/2025. 

 
In short, Mr. Blackwood has not demonstrated an ability to keep the property mowed and cleaned, 
much less an ability to rehabilitate or manage contractors to rehabilitate the property. 



5 | P a g e  
 

 
III.  CONCLUSION AND RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends that City Council deny the appeal, and uphold enforcement of the Hearing 
Examiner’s Administrative Orders, and declare that the property and structures at 1032 SW Oak Ave 
(Lot 12, Block 1, McCaleb Addition) was unsecured and is in need of boarding of securing, and is 
dilapidated, and a public nuisance.  Staff further recommends ordering the property owner to 
demolish and remove the house, storm shelter, fence, and portions of sidewalk, in 30 days, or the 
City will do so, and the City will bill the owner for costs. 



Appendix – Page 1 
 

 
Appendix:  State Statutory and Municipal Code Authority and Procedure 
 

A.  State Statutory Authority Granted to Municipalities. 
 
State Statute empowers municipalities to determine what is a nuisance.  Oklahoma State 
Statute 50 O.S. §16 states: 

 
“Cities and towns in this state shall have the right and power to determine what is and what 
shall constitute a nuisance within their respective corporate limits, and for the protection of the 
public health, the public parks and the public water supply, shall have such power outside of 
the corporate limits; and wherever it is practical to do so, said cities and towns shall have the 
power to summarily abate any such nuisance after notice to the owner, and an opportunity for 
him to be heard, if this can be given.” 

 
Oklahoma State Statute 11 O.S. § 22-121 states that “The municipal governing body may declare 
what shall constitute a nuisance, and provide for the prevention, removal, and abatement of nuisances.” 
 

B. State Statute Allows Municipal Governing Bodies to Delegate to an Administrative 
Officer or Administrative Body. 

 
State Statute 11 O.S. Section 22-112 A. states, in pertinent part: 
 

“A. A municipal governing body may cause dilapidated buildings with the municipal 
limits to be torn down and removed in accordance with the following procedures: 
 
1. At least ten (10) days’ notice that a building is to be torn down or removed shall be 

given to the owner of the property before the governing body holds a hearing.  A 
copy of the notice shall be posted on the property to be affected.  In addition, a copy 
of the notice shall be sent by mail to the property owner at the address shown by the 
current tax year’s rolls in the office of the county treasurer .... At the time of mailing 
of notice to any property owner … the municipality shall obtain a receipt of mailing 
from the postal service, which receipt shall indicate the date of mailing and the name 
and address of the mailee.” 

 
This requirement was satisfied by the Code Enforcement’s mailing and posting of the Courtesy 
Notices of Violation dated 3/25/2025 (Exhibit I), and their mailing and posting of the Notices 
of Violation/Request for Voluntary Correction of Code Violation dated 4/15/2025 (Exhibit J). 
 
State Statute 11 O.S. Section 22-112 A. continues, in pertinent part: 
 

2. A hearing shall be held by the governing body to determine if the property is 
dilapidated and has become detrimental to the health, safety, or welfare of the 
general public and the community, or if the property creates a fire hazard which 
is dangerous to other property. 
* * * 
 

3. Pursuant to a finding that the condition of the property constitutes a detriment 
or a hazard and that the property would be benefited by the removal of such 



Appendix – Page 2 
 

conditions, the governing body may cause the dilapidated building to be torn 
down and removed.  The governing body shall fix reasonable dates for the 
commencement and completion of the work. The municipal clerk shall 
immediately file a notice of dilapidation and lien with the county clerk ….” 
 

B. The municipality may designate, by ordinance, an administrative officer or 
administrative body to carry out the duties of the governing body specified in this 
section.  The property owner shall the right of appeal to the municipal governing body 
from any order of the administrative officer or administrative body. Such appeal shall 
be taken by filing written notice of appeal with the municipal clerk within ten (10) days 
after the administrative order is rendered.” 

 
Boarding and Securing.  Similar, parallel state statutory provisions are provided for 
unsecured structures at 11 O.S. Section 22-112.1, authorizing the governing body or their 
designee to cause an unsecured building to be boarded and secured. 
 
City Council Designation of Community Development Department and Hearing 
Examiner.  The City Council did designate the Community Development Department to 
enforce nuisance code in the city, through Municipal Code Section 11-8, and the creation of a 
Hearing Examiner position through Municipal Code Section 11-10 B.4, defined in Section 11-
3. (Ordinance No. 3148, 11-15-2004): 
 
“Section 11-8.  Nuisance abatement. 
This chapter [11] shall be administered and enforced by the building development department 
[community development] and where appropriate, the police and fire departments, and they are 
granted the authority expressly granted and impliedly needed and necessary for enforcement 
….” 
 
“Section 11-10.  Abatement Procedures.  A. Voluntary Correction” states that code 
enforcement officers “before taking other steps to abate the nuisance, shall make a reasonable 
attempt to secure voluntary correction or abatement of the nuisance by contacting the 
responsible person.”   
 
In this case, Code Enforcement did so, through Courtesy Notice letters dated 3/25/2025 
(Exhibit I).    
 
“Section 11-10.  Abatement Procedures.  B. Notice of Violation and Order” states that 
when the code enforcement officer is unable to secure voluntary correction, “the officer shall 
serve a written notice of violation and order to abate to the responsible person.”  Service can 
be made by “first class mailing with receipt of mailing” and also “posted on the affected 
property.”  The notice shall contain “the establishment of a date and time for examination” of 
the alleged violation “by a hearing examiner.”   
 
“Hearing Examiner” means “the city manager or his designee authorized to conduct hearings 
pursuant to this chapter [11].”  Municipal Code Section 11-3.  City Council on 8/5/2024 
approved an agreement having attorney, John C. Holden, Esq., serve as City Hearing 
Examiner. 



Appendix – Page 3 
 

 
In this case, Code Enforcement did serve multiple written notices of violation, through 
receipted mailing and posting of the property, of the Courtesy Notices and the Notices of 
Violation letters dated 3/25/2025 and 4/15/2025 (Exhibits I and J, respectively). 
 
A hearing took place on 5/14/2025, and Mr. Blackwood did not attend.  The Hearing 
Examiner, Mr. John Holden, heard testimony and received evidence from Code Enforcement 
officers.  The Hearing Examiner issued an Abatement Order for Mr. Blackwood to board and 
secure the house and the storm shelter in 10 days, and an Abatement Order to remove the 
dilapidated house, storm shelter, fence, and portions of the sidewalk, in 30 days, or the City 
will do so and send him a bill.  The orders were sent via receipted mail and posted to the 
property.  (Exhibit K).  A Notice of Unsecured Structure and Lien Claim, and a Notice of 
Dilapidation and Lien was filed on the property.  (Exhibits L and M, respectively). 

 
 



 
 

EXHIBIT A:  Aerial / Map Image 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT B:  Zoning 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 

EXHIBIT C:  Photos of 1032 SW Oak Ave. 
 
 
 
Complete Set of Photos from 3/21/2025 and 5/14/2025 viewable at this link:  
 
https://bit.ly/1032SWOakAvePhotosCombined 
 
 
Selected Photos on the Following Pages. 
 

https://bit.ly/1032SWOakAvePhotosCombined


 
 

 

 
 

 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 



 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 

 

 
 



 
 

 
 

 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 



 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 



1032 SW OAK AVE- Case # DS-0325-0385 (Unsecured Structure SFD, Inground storm shelter, fence & 
sidewalk.) 

Initial complaint- 3/20/2025 

Initial inspection date- 4/10/2025 

Mailing and posting date- 4/15/2025 

Hearing date- 5/14/2025 

NSO Amaro’s notes: 

Responding to an opened structure complaint at 1032 S Oak I found this complaint to be valid. This 
structure has several holes in the roof and floor, wood rot, signs of foundation damage, missing siding, 
holes in the walls, flaking paint. the main structure and storm shelter are open and need to be secured. 
Several trees are hanging low and need to be trimmed up over the road and sidewalk. The sidewalk has 
several areas that need to be removed due to it being a walking hazard.  The fence of the property is 
missing railing and dilapidated. There has not been an active water account as of May 2011, Pictures 
were taken and I will mail and post Courtesy notice on 03-25 and set an abatement for the weeds and 
trash for 04-10-25 if violation not corrected by the owner and set a reinspection for property violations 
on 04-07-25 and if violations still present set a hearing date for the property. 

 

05-14-25 This property is still open and unsecured. All openings to the house and underground shelter 
need to be secured. 

 

Hearing officer’s order- Owner given10 days to secure or after that the city will secure all openings to 
structures. 

jntucker
Text Box
EXHIBIT D



1032 SW OAK AVE- Case # DS-0325-0385 (Dilapidated Structure- SFD, Inground storm shelter, fence & 
sidewalk.) 

 

Initial complaint- 3/20/2025 

Initial inspection date- 4/10/2025 

Mailing and posting date- 4/15/2025 

Hearing date- 5/14/2025 

NSO Amaro’s notes: 

Responding to an opened structure complaint at 1032 S Oak I found this complaint to be valid. This 
structure has several holes in the roof and floor, wood rot, signs of foundation damage, missing siding, 
holes in the walls, flaking paint. the main structure and storm shelter are open and need to be secured. 
Several trees are hanging low and need to be trimmed up over the road and sidewalk. The sidewalk has 
several areas that need to be removed due to it being a walking hazard.  The fence of the property is 
missing railing and dilapidated. There has not been an active water account as of May 2011, Pictures 
were taken and I will mail and post Courtesy notice on 03-25 and set an abatement for the weeds and 
trash for 04-10-25 if violation not corrected by the owner and set a reinspection for property violations 
on 04-07-25 and if violations still present set a hearing date for the property. 

 

05-14-25 upon inspection this property is still in the same condition as before and meets all criteria for a 
Dilapidated Structure and is open and needs to be secured. NSO Amaro 

 

Hearing officer’s order- Dilapidated structures (SFD, Fence, Tree, Sidewalk & Underground Shelter must 
be removed in 30 days or city will do so. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

jntucker
Text Box
EXHIBIT D  Continued



Timeline of Events—1032 SW Oak Ave. 
Date Event 
11/8/1979 Juanita Blackwood, wife, conveys interest in property to herself and 

Danny Blackwood via Quit Claim Deed recorded this date. 
 

11/8/1999 Juanita Blackwood deceased. 
 

5/28/2008 City files lien for cleaning and mowing, $217.47 
 

6/5/2008 Cleaning and mowing bill is paid, lien released. 
 

5/26/2017 City files a prior Notice of Dilapidation and Lien on the property. 
 

10/20/2021 Affidavit of Surviving Joint Tenant signed by Danny Blackwood recorded 
at Washington County Clerk’s Office. 
 

3/20/2025 Code Enforcement receives complaint of open structure. 
 

3/21/2025 NSO Amaro investigates, inspects property, takes photos. 
 

3/25/2025 Courtesy Notices for unsecured structures and dilapidated structures 
posted on property and mailed to owner via receipted first class mail. 
 

4/10/2025 Code enforcement inspects property. 
 

4/15/2025 Notices of Violation/Requests for Voluntary Correction for unsecured 
structures and dilapidated structures posted on property and mailed to 
owner via receipted first class mail.  Hearing date: 5/14/2015. 
 

5/14/2025 NSO Amaro inspects the property a 3rd time, morning before hearing, 
takes 2nd set of photos.  The photos show “For Sale” signs on the property. 
 

5/14/2025 Hearing Examiner, John Holden, Esq., conducts hearing.   
 
Mr. Blackwood does not attend hearing.   
 
Mr. Holden issues Abatement Orders to owner to board and secure house 
and storm shelter, and to demolish and remove dilapidated house, storm 
shelter, fence, and portions of sidewalk.  Orders were mailed via receipted 
mail and posted on the property. 
 

5/16/2025-
6/17/2025 

Owner’s required commencement and completion dates for demolition 
and removal of dilapidated structures per Notice of Dilapidation & Lien. 
 

5/19/2025 Mr. Blackwood files appeals of both the Abatement Order for boarding 
and securing the house and storm shelter, and the Abatement Order to 
demolish and remove the dilapidated house, storm shelter, fence, and 
portions of sidewalk. 
 

 

jntucker
Text Box
EXHIBIT E



1032 Sw Oak Ave

CrossPointData

6/26/25, 4:20 AM Property Card

1/6

jntucker
Text Box
EXHIBIT F



6/26/25, 4:20 AM Property Card

2/6



General Details

Field Value

Address 1032 SW OAK AVE

City Bartlesville

State OK

Zipcode 74003

Section 0

Township 0

Range 0

Account Num 740014247

Parcel Num 010237-001012-000000-01

Square Feet 827

Lot (Acres) 1

Millage Rate 120.09

Description I-30 BARTLESVILLE

School District S030

Assessment Details

Field Value

Last Update 6/19/2025

Land Value $1,920

Improvement Value $16,800

Total Capped $18,720

Taxable Market Value $18,720

Mobile Home $0

Gross Assessed Value $2,246

Exemptions N/A

Net Assessed Value $2,246

6/26/25, 4:20 AM Property Card

3/6



Legal Description

Field Value

Legal Description LOT 12 BLK 1 MC CALEB'S

Owner

Owner's Name Address City State

Blackwood, Danny L 401246 W 300 Rd Wann 401246 W 300 RD 74083

Buildings

Building 1

General

Type Single Family

Style One Story

Total Sq. Feet 827

Year Built 1952

Bedrooms 0

Bathrooms 1

Details

Quality 2

Condition 1.5

Exterior Wall Frame, Siding, Vinyl

Foundation null

Roof Hip

Roof Material Composition Shingle

HVAC Forced Air Furnace

6/26/25, 4:20 AM Property Card

4/6



Sales History

Recorded
Date

Book |
Page

Deed Grantor Grantee
Sale

Amount

10/18/2021 1194 |
1275 AFSJT Blackwood, Danny L &

Juanita
Blackwood,
Danny L $0

Misc Improvements

Description Size Year

Raised Slab Porch - Covered 4x3 0

Open Frame Porch 24 0

Raised Slab Porch - Open 4x3 0

Yard Items

Description Dimensions Length Width Quality Condition Totalunits Yearin

Land

Soil Code Use Code Description LPI AG Use Value Acres

6/26/25, 4:20 AM Property Card

5/6



Tax Info

Year
Appraised

Land
Value

Appraised
Improvement

Value

Total
Capped

Value

Gross
Assessed

Value
Exemptions

Net
Assessed

Value

Total
Billed

2024 $1,920 $16,435 $18,355 $2,202 $0 $2,202 $264

2023 $1,920 $16,435 $18,355 $2,202 $0 $2,202 $262

2022 $1,920 $16,435 $18,355 $2,202 $0 $2,202 $264

2021 $1,920 $11,352 $13,272 $1,592 $0 $1,592 $187

2020 $1,920 $10,720 $12,640 $1,516 $0 $1,516 $182

2019 $1,920 $10,119 $12,039 $1,444 $0 $1,444 $173

2018 $1,920 $9,546 $11,466 $1,376 $0 $1,376 $164

2017 $1,920 $9,000 $10,920 $1,310 $0 $1,310 $160

2016 $1,920 $9,000 $10,920 $1,310 $0 $1,310 $150

2015 $1,920 $9,000 $10,920 $1,310 $0 $1,310 $153

View
more N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

DISCLAIMER: The information contained in this publication has been compiled by
ADVANCED PRODUCTION PARTNERS, LLC DBA CROSSPOINTDATA
(DATACROSSPOINT.COM) but no representation or warranty, express or implied is made, by
ADVANCED PRODUCTION PARTNERS, LLC DBA CROSSPOINTDATA
(DATACROSSPOINT.COM), its affiliates or any other person as to its accuracy, completeness
or correctness. The information provided is for informational purposes only and should not
be relied upon as financial or investment advice. To the full extent permitted by law,
ADVANCED PRODUCTION PARTNERS, LLC DBA CROSSPOINTDATA
(DATACROSSPOINT.COM), nor any of its affiliates, nor any other person, accepts any liability
whatsover for any direct, indirect or consequential loss arising from, or in connnection with,
any use of this publication or the information contained herein. See Terms and Conditions as
provided on (DATACROSSPOINT.COM) (C) ADVANCED PRODUCTION PARTNERS, LLC DBA
CROSSPOINTDATA (DATACROSSPOINT.COM).

6/26/25, 4:20 AM Property Card

6/6

https://datacrosspoint.com/
https://datacrosspoint.com/
https://datacrosspoint.com/
https://datacrosspoint.com/tos.html
https://datacrosspoint.com/


jntucker
Text Box
EXHIBIT G





jntucker
Text Box
EXHIBIT H





jntucker
Text Box
EXHIBIT I







jntucker
Text Box
EXHIBIT I (Continued)







jntucker
Text Box
EXHIBIT J







jntucker
Text Box
EXHIBIT J  Continued







jntucker
Text Box
EXHIBIT K





jntucker
Text Box
EXHIBIT K  Continued





jntucker
Text Box
EXHIBIT L





jntucker
Text Box
EXHIBIT M





jntucker
Text Box
EXHIBIT N





13. 









Agenda Item ___ 
June 10, 2025 

Prepared by Micah Siemers 
Engineering Department 

 
 
 
I. SUBJECT, ATTACHMENTS, AND BACKGROUND 

 
Presentation of potential capital election timelines for ½ Cent Sales Tax, General Obligation 
Bond, and Economic Development. 
 
Attachments: 

None 
 

II. STAFF COMMENTS AND ANALYSIS 
 
As the City of Bartlesville enters the final year in the 2020 ½ Cent Sales Tax (CIP) extension, 
Council needs to consider options for a future capital election.  Voters approved the current 5-
year CIP in August, 2020 along with the 2020 General Obligation Bond (GO Bond).  There are 
a few items to consider for a future capital election. 
 
One item is whether to hold elections for CIP and GO Bonds at the same time to get them on the 
same schedule.  Historically, CIP has been extended between 5 and 7 years.  GO Bond initiatives 
have ranged from 3 years to 5 years.  Some years CIP and GO Bond elections have been held at 
the same time and sometimes they have been staggered.  The current CIP sunsets June 30, 2026.  
The current GO Bond that was approved by voters in 2023 is a 4-year GO Bond that will sunset 
in 2027.  Staff believes there is some efficiency to getting on a schedule to extend CIP and GO 
Bonds at the same time, however that may not be the desire of the Council.   
 
Another thing to consider is the duration for each funding mechanism.  7 years seemed too long 
for the CIP in 2013.  It is difficult to plan projects that far in advance from a budget standpoint 
and from a citizen perspective, it takes too long to get to certain projects.  Limiting the duration 
to 5 years seems to work pretty well.  GO Bonds really haven’t gone much longer than 5 years.  
Council settled on a 4-year GO Bond in 2023 based on similar discussions.  This seems to work 
well by providing enough funding to have a robust package of projects that a shorter GO Bond 
might not produce, yet doesn’t seem to run too long to lose citizen interest. 
 
Regardless of the duration and whether or not we run the elections at the same time, staff will 
need direction from Council to establish a timeline to move forward, ultimately selecting the 
election date which helps us back into a schedule.  This is a lengthy process that requires starting 
about 7 months before the election date to make it all happen.  We have put together some very 
high-level budget scenarios that include rough estimates for what GO Bonds and sales tax could 
generate for 3, 4, and 5 years and compared that with when each funding source currently expires 
and when they would expire in each scenario.  That information is shown in the tables below.  
Note that Scenario 2 aligns the GO Bonds and CIP expirations.  We have also looked at available 
election dates that will ensure the CIP extension is approved before it expires in June, 2026.  We 
have provided a tentative schedule for each potential election date below. 

14.



Budget Scenarios 
   

Scenario 1 
Tax Type   Current Expiration   Proposed Expiration   Term   Annual Amt   Total  

G.O. Bond November 1, 2027 November 1, 2030 
                 
3   $    4,000,000   $ 12,000,000  

CIP Sales 
Tax June 30, 2026 June 30, 2031 

                 
5         3,400,000       17,000,000  

         $    7,400,000   $ 29,000,000  
Scenario 2 

Tax Type   Current Expiration   Proposed Expiration   Term   Annual Amt   Total  

G.O. Bond November 1, 2027 November 1, 2031 
                 
4   $    4,000,000   $ 16,000,000  

CIP Sales 
Tax June 30, 2026 June 30, 2031 

                 
5         3,400,000       17,000,000  

     $    7,400,000   $ 33,000,000  
Scenario 3 

Tax Type   Current Expiration   Proposed Expiration   Term   Annual Amt   Total  

G.O. Bond November 1, 2027 November 1, 2032 
                 
5   $    4,000,000   $ 20,000,000  

CIP Sales 
Tax June 30, 2026 June 30, 2031 

                 
5         3,400,000       17,000,000  

     $    7,400,000   $ 37,000,000  
 

Election Schedules 
 

Election Date Proclamation Date 
Council 

Mtg. Date 
Workshop 
Mtg Date 

Capital 
Requests 

Due 

Capital 
Requests 

Begin Council Decision 
1/13/2026 11/14/2025 11/3/2025 10/20/2025 9/30/2025 8/1/2025 7/7/2025 
2/3/2026 12/5/2025 12/1/2025 11/17/2025 10/31/2025 9/1/2025 8/4/2025 
3/3/2026 1/2/2026 12/1/2025 11/17/2025 10/31/2025 9/1/2025 8/4/2025 

 
 

III. BUDGET IMPACT 
 
There is no immediate budget impact with this presentation, however this is the first step towards 
establishing a schedule for future CIP sales tax and GO Bond capital funds. 
 

IV. RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
Staff recommends that Council select a scenario for our next capital elections to ensure sufficient 
time for the election process. 



15.






	City Council Agenda July 7, 2025
	Agenda Item 7.a.i. City Council Minutes June 2, 2025
	Agenda Item 7.b.i. Amanda Hakola Appointment to KBB w Attachment
	Council Memo - Amanda Hakola Appointment to KBB
	20250626180905

	Agenda Item 7.b.ii. Shavon Robles Appointment w Attachment
	Council Memo - Shavon Robles Appointment
	Shavon Robles PC Application

	Agenda Item 7.b.iii. Wyatt Gerth Appointment w Attachment
	Council Memo - Wyatt Gerth Appointment
	Wyatt Gerth Application

	Agenda Item 7.b.iv. BDA Ratification of Officers and New Trustee
	Agenda Item 7.c.i. WWII Cemetery Marker Resolution from Jess Kane
	Cemetery Markers for two Veterans Council Report Cover
	WWI Veterans Marker Resolution
	APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL AND SIGNED BY THE MAYOR OF THE CITY OF BARTLESVILLE THIS 7th DAY OF July, 2025.


	Agenda Item 7.c.ii. Resolution to Amend the contract of the CA, CJ and CM for compensation
	07072025 HR Council Cover Letter - Contract Employees
	Resolution -COLA AND MERIT CONTRACT EMP FY 25-26

	Agenda Item 7.c.iii. Resolution Amending FY 24-25 Health Insurance Fund
	Stop Loss Rev Council Cover Letter Template.pdf
	Stop Loss Revenue Reso 2025.pdf

	Agenda Item 7.c.iv. Resolution Amending FY 25-26 Fund Balance
	Fund Balance Council Cover Letter Template.pdf
	Fund Balance Reso 2026.pdf

	Agenda Item 7.d.i. Fire Dept Apparatus Purchase
	Council Staff Report Fire Apparatus Purchase Agreement
	APPARATUS PROPOSAL - BARTLESVILLE BID#1294 (002)
	Sheet1
	Blank Page

	Sourcewell Oklahoma PA with Conrad (1)
	113021-OKC-1 - Price Information_1 (1)

	Agenda Item 7.d.ii. Amendment to Employee Defined Contribution Plan Ordinance and Joinder Agreement
	HR Council Cover Letter Amended DC Plan Documents
	Memo re_ Summary of Material Changes (002) 07.07.25
	DC Bartlesville OJ (2025-07-01)
	DC Bartlesville Ordinance (2025-07-01)
	DC Bartlesville Joinder (2025-07-01)
	OKLAHOMA MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND


	Employee Retirement System of Bartlesville Oklahoma 07.07.25
	ARTICLE I  Name and Purpose of Plan
	1.1 Name of Plan
	1.2 Purpose
	1.3 Exclusive Benefit of Employees

	ARTICLE II  Definitions and Construction
	2.1 Definitions
	(a) Accrued Benefit
	(b) Actuarial Equivalent
	(c) Actuary
	(d) Anniversary Date
	(e) Authorized Leave of Absence
	(f) Basic Monthly Salary
	(g) Beneficiary
	(h) Break-in-Service
	(i) City
	(j) City of Bartlesville Defined Contribution Plan
	(k) Code
	(l) Committee
	(m) Compensation
	(n) Contract
	(o) Contribution
	(p) Contribution Accumulation
	(q) DC Plan Participant
	(r) Deferred Vested Pension
	(s) Disability
	(t) Disability Retirement Date
	(u) Disability Retirement Income
	(v) Earliest Retirement Age
	(w) Early Retirement Date
	(x) Early Retirement Income
	(y) Effective Date
	(z) Eligible Spouse
	(aa) Employee
	(bb) Employer
	(cc) Hour of Service
	(dd) Leased Employee
	(ee) Municipality
	(ff) Normal Retirement Age
	(gg) Normal Retirement Date
	(hh) Normal Retirement Income
	(ii) Participant
	(jj) Pension
	(kk) Plan
	(ll) Plan Year
	(mm) Postponed Retirement Date
	(nn) Predecessor Plan
	(oo) Qualified Domestic Relations Order (QDRO)
	(pp) Re-employment Date
	(qq) Retirement
	(rr) Retirement Date
	(ss) Spouse
	(tt) Trustees, Trust, Trust Agreement, Trust Assets and Trust Fund
	(uu) Year of Service

	2.2 Construction

	ARTICLE III  Participation
	3.1 Eligibility for Participation
	(a) Existing Employees
	(b) New Participants
	(c) Exclusions
	(i) An Employee hired after July 5, 1988, who is a commissioned member of the police department, or a uniformed member of the fire department,
	(ii) An Employee who participates in either the Oklahoma Police Pension and Retirement System or the Oklahoma Fire Pension and Retirement System,
	(iii) A Leased Employee,
	(iv) Effective for periods prior to October 1, 2024, an Employee who is in the position of City Manager and prior to October 1, 2024, was accruing benefits under another retirement system which has been approved by the City Council,
	(v) The City Attorney and the City Judge,
	(vi) An Employee who is a nonresident alien within the meaning of Section 401(b)(3)(C) of the Code, or a person who is an alien and not in the United States legally,
	(vii) Any person who has been classified by the Employer as an independent contractor and has had his compensation reported to the Internal Revenue Service on Form 1099 but who has been reclassified as an “employee” (other than by the Employer) shall ...
	(viii)  Effective January 1, 2010, any Employee hired before January 1, 2010 and who elected to become a DC Plan Participant, or
	(ix)  Effective January 1, 2010, any Employee hired on or after January 1, 2010.


	3.2 Entry Date
	3.3 Eligibility of a Former Participant Upon Reemployment

	ARTICLE IV  Contributions
	4.1 Contributions by the Employer
	4.2 Contributions by Participants.
	(a) Picked-Up Contributions.  Contributions by a Participant are neither permitted nor required under this Plan prior to July 1, 2006.  Effective July 1, 2006, an Employee shall contribute to the cost of providing benefits under this Plan while he rem...

	4.3 Pick-up Contributions
	4.4 Contributions Under Mistake of Fact and Disallowance of Deductions
	4.5 Payments to Plan
	4.6 Use of Plan Assets

	ARTICLE V  Normal Retirement
	5.1 Normal Retirement Income
	(i) “Past Service Benefit” shall mean, with respect to Employees who became Participants prior to July 1, 1978, a monthly income commencing on the Participant’s Normal Retirement Date equal to two percent (2%) of the Participant’s Basic Monthly Salary...
	(ii) “Normal Retirement Benefit” shall mean a monthly income equal to the aggregate of two percent (2%) of the Participant’s Basic Monthly Salary in effect each July 1 during the period which the Participant is receiving his Basic Monthly Salary and t...

	5.2 Payment of Normal Retirement Income
	5.3 Postponed Retirement Date
	5.4 Deferral of Normal Retirement Income

	ARTICLE VI  Death of a Participant
	6.1 Death Benefits
	6.2 Designation of Beneficiary
	6.3 HEART Act Provision

	ARTICLE VII  Early Retirement
	7.1 Early Retirement Income
	7.2 Deferral of Early Retirement Income

	ARTICLE VIII  Disability
	8.1 Disability Retirement
	8.2 Proof of Disability

	ARTICLE IX  Termination of Employment
	9.1 Termination of Employment - Vesting of Benefits
	(a) General
	(b) Vesting
	(i) After July 1, 1987 but Prior to July 1, 1997.
	(ii) On or After July 1, 1997.

	(c) No Forfeitures for Cause
	(d) Deferred Vested Pension
	(i) At Normal Retirement Date.  If the Participant has not met both the age and service requirements for an Early Retirement Date at the time he terminates his employment with the Employer, payment of his Deferred Vested Pension shall begin on the dat...
	(ii) Prior to Normal Retirement Date.  If the Participant has met the service requirement but not the age requirement to retire on his Early Retirement Date at the time he terminates his employment with the Employer, payment of his Deferred Vested Pen...
	(iii) Death.  If a Participant dies prior to commencement of receipt of a Deferred Vested Pension, any entitlement to benefits under this Plan shall be governed by Article VI herein.

	(e) Full Vesting at Normal Retirement Date
	(f) Severance Benefit

	9.2 Re-employment:
	9.3 Loss of Benefits

	PERCENTAGE OF ACCRUED
	YEARS OF SERVICE
	BENEFIT VESTED
	PERCENTAGE OF ACCRUED
	YEARS OF SERVICE
	BENEFIT VESTED
	ARTICLE X  Manner of Payment and Optional Benefits
	10.1 Optional Forms of Retirement Income
	(a) Forms of Options

	10.2 Minimum Distribution Requirements:
	(a) General Rules:
	(i) Effective Date.  The provisions of this Section will apply for purposes of determining required minimum distributions for calendar years beginning with the 2003 calendar year.
	(ii) Precedence.  The requirements of this Section will take precedence over any inconsistent provisions of the Plan.
	(iii) Requirements of Regulations Incorporated.  All distributions required under this Section will be determined in accordance with Section 401(a)(9) of the Internal Revenue Code, including the incidental death benefit requirement of Section 401(a)(9...
	(iv) TEFRA Section 242(b)(2) Elections.  Notwithstanding the other provisions of this Section, other than Subsection (iii), distributions may be made under a designation made before January 1, 1984, in accordance with Section 242(b)(2) of the Tax Equi...

	(b) Time and Manner of Distribution:
	(i) Required Beginning Date.  The Participant’s entire interest will be distributed, or begin to be distributed, to the Participant no later than the Participant’s Required Beginning Date.
	(ii) Death of Participant Before Distributions Begin.  If the Participant dies before distributions begin, the Participant’s entire interest will be distributed, or begin to be distributed, no later than as follows:
	(1) If the Participant’s surviving spouse is the Participant’s sole Designated Beneficiary, then, except as provided in the adoption agreement, distributions to the surviving spouse will begin by December 31 of the calendar year immediately following ...
	(2) If the Participant’s surviving spouse is not the Participant’s sole Designated Beneficiary, then, distributions to the Designated Beneficiary will begin by December 31 of the calendar year immediately following the calendar year in which the Parti...
	(3) If there is no Designated Beneficiary as of September 30 of the year following the year of the Participant’s death, the Participant’s entire interest will be distributed by December 31 of the calendar year containing the fifth anniversary of the P...
	(4) If the Participant’s surviving spouse is the Participant’s sole Designated Beneficiary and the surviving spouse dies after the Participant but before distributions to the surviving spouse begin, this Subsection (b)(ii), other than Subsection (b)(i...

	(iii) Form of Distribution.  Unless the Participant’s interest is distributed in the form of an annuity purchased from an insurance company or in a single sum on or before the Required Beginning Date, as of the first Distribution Calendar Year distrib...

	(c) Determination of Amount to be Distributed Each Year:
	(i) General Annuity Requirements.  If the Participant’s interest is paid in the form of annuity distributions under the Plan, payments under the annuity will satisfy the following requirements:
	(1) the annuity distributions will be paid in periodic payments made at intervals not longer than one year;
	(2) the distribution period will be over a life (or lives) or over a period certain not longer than the period described in Section (d) or (e);
	(3) once payments have begun over a period certain, the period certain will not be changed even if the period certain is shorter than the maximum permitted;
	(4) payments will either be nonincreasing or increase only as follows:
	a. by an annual percentage increase that does not exceed the annual percentage increase in a cost-of-living index that is based on prices of all items and issued by the Bureau of Labor Statistics;
	b. to the extent of the reduction in the amount of the Participant’s payments to provide for a survivor benefit upon death, but only if the beneficiary whose life was being used to determine the distribution period described in Section (d) dies or is ...
	c. to provide cash refunds of employee contributions upon the Participant’s death; or
	d. to pay increased benefits that result from a plan amendment.


	(ii) Amount Required to be Distributed by Required Beginning Date.  The amount that must be distributed on or before the Participant’s Required Beginning Date (or, if the Participant dies before distributions begin, the date distributions are required...
	(iii) Additional Accruals After First Distribution Calendar Year.  Any additional benefits accruing to the Participant in a calendar year after the first Distribution Calendar Year will be distributed beginning with the first payment interval ending i...

	(d) Requirements For Annuity Distributions That Commence During Participant’s Lifetime:
	(i) Joint Life Annuities Where the Beneficiary Is Not the Participant’s Spouse.  If the Participant’s interest is being distributed in the form of a joint and survivor annuity for the joint lives of the Participant and a nonspouse beneficiary, annuity...
	(ii) Period Certain Annuities.  Unless the Participant’s spouse is the sole Designated Beneficiary and the form of distribution is a period certain and no life annuity, the period certain for an annuity distribution commencing during the Participant’s...

	(e) Requirements For Minimum Distributions After the Participant’s Death:
	(i) Death After Distributions Begin.  If the Participant dies after distribution of his or her interest begins in the form of an annuity meeting the requirements of this Article, the remaining portion of the Participant’s interest will continue to be ...
	(ii) Death Before Distributions Begin.
	(1) Participant Survived by Designated Beneficiary.  If the Participant dies before the date distribution of his or her interest begins and there is a Designated Beneficiary, the Participant’s entire interest will be distributed, beginning no later th...
	a. unless the annuity starting date is before the first Distribution Calendar Year, the life expectancy of the Designated Beneficiary determined using the beneficiary’s age as of the beneficiary’s birthday in the calendar year immediately following th...
	b. if the annuity starting date is before the first Distribution Calendar Year, the life expectancy of the Designated Beneficiary determined using the beneficiary’s age as of the beneficiary’s birthday in the calendar year that contains the annuity st...

	(2) No Designated Beneficiary.  If the Participant dies before the date distributions begin and there is no Designated Beneficiary as of September 30 of the year following the year of the Participant’s death, distribution of the Participant’s entire i...
	(3) Death of Surviving Spouse Before Distributions to Surviving Spouse Begin.  If the Participant dies before the date distribution of his or her interest begins, the Participant’s surviving spouse is the Participant’s sole Designated Beneficiary, and...


	(f) Definitions (effective January 1, 2023):
	(i) Applicable Age.
	(1) In the case of an individual who attains age 70 before July 1, 2019, the Applicable Age is 70 ½.
	(2) In the case of an individual who attains age 70 on or after July 1, 2019, the Applicable Age is 72.
	(3) In the case of an individual who attains age 72 after December 31, 2022, and age 73 before January 1, 2033, the Applicable Age is 73.

	(ii) Designated Beneficiary.  The individual who is designated as the beneficiary under Section 6.2 of the Plan and is the Designated Beneficiary under Section 401(a)(9) of the Internal Revenue Code and Section 1.401(a)(9)-4 of the Treasury regulations.
	(iii) Distribution Calendar Year.  A calendar year for which a minimum distribution is required.  For distributions beginning before the Participant’s death, the first Distribution Calendar Year is the calendar year immediately preceding the calendar ...
	(iv) Eligible Designated Beneficiary.  An Eligible Designated Beneficiary is the individual designated by the Participant (or the Participant’s surviving Spouse) and who will receive the Participant’s interest under the plan and who is:
	(1) The surviving Spouse of the Participant,
	(2) A child of the Participant who has not reached majority,
	(3) Disabled,
	(4) A chronically ill individual, or
	(5) An individual not described above who is not more than 10 years younger

	(v) Life Expectancy.  Life expectancy as computed by use of the Single Life Table in Section 1.401(a)(9)-9 of the Treasury regulations.
	(vi) Required Beginning Date.  The April 1 of the calendar year following the later of the calendar year in which the Participant attains the Applicable Age, or the calendar year in which the Participant retires.


	10.3 Payments Under a Qualified Domestic Relations Order
	(a) General
	(1) the name, social security number, and last-known mailing address (if any) of the Participant, and the name and mailing address of the alternative payee covered by the order;
	(2) the amount or percentage of the Participant’s benefits to be paid by the Plan to the Alternate Payee;
	(3) the characterization of the benefit as to marital property rights, and whether the benefit ceases upon the death or remarriage of the Alternate Payee; and,
	(4) each plan to which such order applies.


	10.4 Suspension of Benefits After Participant’s Retirement Date
	10.5 Applicable Benefit Provisions

	ARTICLE XI  Employment Transfers
	11.1 Transfers From This Plan
	(a) To Another Category With This Employer
	(b) To Another Municipality

	11.2 Transfers to This Plan
	(a) From Another Category with This Employer
	(b) From Another Municipality
	(c) From Another Municipality
	(d) Previously Fully Vested With Another Municipality

	11.3 Notice of Transfers

	ARTICLE XII  General Benefit Provisions
	12.1 Re-employment of Former Employees
	12.2 Re-employment of Retired Employees
	(i) .  If a former Employee who retired under this Plan is re-employed before January 1, 2010 by the Employer, and again becomes an Employee under the Plan, no pension payments shall be made during the period of such re-employment.  Upon the subsequen...

	12.3 Rights of Previously Retired Participants
	12.4 Benefits Payable Only Upon Retirement, Death, Disability or Other Termination of Employment

	ARTICLE XIII  Limitations
	13.1 Limitations on Benefits Relating to Section 415 of Internal Revenue Code of 1986
	(a) Notwithstanding any other provision contained herein to the contrary, the benefits payable to a Participant from the Plan provided by employer contributions (including contributions picked up by the employer under Code Section 414(h)) shall be sub...
	(b) Except as provided below, effective for limitation years ending after December 31, 2007, any accrued retirement benefit otherwise payable to a Participant under the Plan at any time shall not exceed the Maximum Permissible Benefit.  If the benefit...
	(c) If the Participant is, or has ever been, a Participant in another qualified defined benefit plan (without regard to whether the Plan has been terminated) maintained by the Employer or a predecessor employer, the sum of the Participant’s Annual Ben...
	(d) The application of the provisions of this Article shall not cause the Maximum Permissible Benefit for any Participant to be less than the Participant’s accrued benefit under all the defined benefit plans of the Employer or a predecessor employer a...
	(e) The limitations of this Article shall be determined and applied taking into account the rules in Section 13.6.

	13.2 Definitions
	(a) Annual Benefit:  A benefit that is payable annually in the form of a straight life annuity.  Except as provided below, where a benefit is payable in a form other than a straight life annuity, the benefit shall be adjusted to an actuarially equival...

	13.3 Predecessor Employer
	13.4 Severance from Employment
	13.5 Year of Participation
	13.6 Other Rules:

	ARTICLE XIV  Provisions Relating to Participants
	14.1 Information Required of Participants
	14.2 Participants’ Right in the Plan
	14.3 Abandonment of Benefits
	14.4 Benefits Payable to Incompetents
	14.5 Conditions of Employment Not Affected by Plan

	ARTICLE XV  Administration
	15.1 Allocation of Responsibility Among Fiduciaries for Plan Administration
	15.2 Appointment of Committee
	15.3 Claims Procedure
	15.4 Review Procedure
	15.5 Other Committee Powers and Duties
	15.6 Rules and Decisions
	15.7 Committee Procedures
	15.8 Authorization of Benefit Payments
	15.9 Application and Forms for Benefits
	15.10 Serving in More Than One Capacity
	15.11 Funding Policy

	ARTICLE XVI  Amendment and Termination
	16.1 Right to Amend Plan
	16.2 No Reduction of Accrued Benefit
	16.3 Right to Terminate Plan
	(a) City Reserves Right to Terminate Plan
	(b) Payment to Participants
	(1) The Contribution Accumulation of each Employee or former Employee entitled thereto under Article IV, as of the date of such Plan termination, or earlier date of death or Retirement, less other benefit payments, if any, previously received in each ...
	(2) Pension benefits with respect to Participants whose active retirement date preceded the date of termination of the Plan.
	(3) Pension benefits with respect to Participants whose Normal Retirement Date preceded the date of termination of the Plan but had not actually retired.
	(4) Accrued pension benefits with respect to Participants (a) who have terminated employment with a nonforfeitable interest and (b) who are actively employed with a nonforfeitable interest.

	(c) Full Vesting
	(d) Termination Subject to Rules in Plan

	16.4 Rollover to Another Plan or IRA
	(a) Definitions
	(i) “Eligible Rollover Distribution”:  An “Eligible Rollover Distribution” is any distribution of all or any portion of the balance to the credit of the Distributee, except that an Eligible Rollover Distribution does not include: any distribution that...
	(ii) “Eligible Retirement Plan”:  An “Eligible Retirement Plan” is an individual retirement account described in Section 408(a) of the Code, an individual retirement annuity described in Section 408(b) of the Code, an annuity plan described in Section...
	(iii) “Distributee”:  A “Distributee” includes the Participant or former Participant.   In addition, the employee's or former employee's surviving spouse and the employee's or former employee's spouse or former spouse who is the alternate payee under ...
	(iv) “Direct Rollover”:  A “Direct Rollover” is a payment by the Plan directly to the Eligible Retirement Plan specified by the Distributee.



	ARTICLE XVII  Miscellaneous Provisions
	17.1 Articles and Section Titles and Headings
	17.2 Laws of Oklahoma to Govern
	17.3 No Contract Between Employer and Participant

	ARTICLE XVIII  Medical Benefits for Certain Eligible Retirees
	18.1 Definitions and Construction
	(a) “Eligible Retiree” means any terminated Participant who meets each of the following requirements:
	(i) the Participant has completed at least twenty (20) Years of Service with the Employer;
	(ii) the Participant is eligible for Normal Retirement Income or Early Retirement Income under the Plan; and
	(iii) the Participant terminated employment on or after July 1, 2006.

	(b) “Medical Benefits Effective Date” shall be July 1, 2006.
	(c) Effective January 1, 2010, “Medical Benefits” means the premiums for medical (including dental and vision) insurance coverage of the Participant, his spouse and eligible dependents under the terms of the Medical Plan applicable to an Eligible Reti...
	(d) “Medical Plan” means the medical benefits provided under the City of Bartlesville Health Insurance Plan.

	18.2 Eligibility for Payment of Medical Benefits
	18.3 Termination of Medical Benefits
	18.4 Funding of Medical Benefits
	18.5 Separate Account – Recordkeeping
	18.6 Expenses
	18.7 Non-Diversion of Separate Account Assets
	18.8 Forfeiture



	Agenda Item 7.d.iii. Agreement with HCC Life Insurance Company - HR
	070725 HR Council Cover Letter -Stop Loss Renewal
	Stop Loss Renewal Contract - 2025

	Agenda Item 7.d.iv. Hangar Lease Eagle Sky Patrol
	Agenda Item 7.d.v. Hangar Lease Phoenix Rising Aviation Inc. Hangar #6
	Agenda Item 7.d.vi. Tri County Tech Ageements
	Agenda Item 7.d.vii. Agreement with Pepsi Beverages Company and Golf Course
	Agenda Item 7.d.viii. Staff Report to Council for Sunset-butler Creek ROW Agreements with support
	Staff Report to Council for Sunset-butler Creek ROW Agreements Complete Package
	Right of Way Agreement_Sheltre
	Right-of-Way Deed_Sheltre
	Sheltre Parcel Map
	Right of Way Agreement_Andrews Osage CO
	Right-of-Way Deed_Andrews Osage County
	Andrews Osage CO Parcel Map
	Right of Way Agreement_Andrews Washington CO
	Right-of-Way Deed_Andrews Washington CO
	Andrews Wash CO Parcel Map
	Right of Way Agreement_Lansdown
	Right-of-Way Deed_Lansdown
	Lansdown Parcel Map

	Agenda Item 7.d.ix. Cingular SE tower lease
	Cingular SE tower lease Council Cover Letter Template
	10001066.NR304.250328.3160A1FD6P.OKL00137.2025CBAND.6TH AMD Draft
	EXHIBIT 1-D


	Agenda Item 7.e.i. County Tax Resale Properties 2025 Acceptance w Attachments
	Council Cover Memo_County Tax Resale Properties 2025 Acceptance
	Deeds 2025

	Agenda Item 7.f.i. Findings regarding Brad D Purvis appeal
	Agenda Item 7.g.i. Progress Report June 2025
	Agenda Item 7.h.i. Flock Report for June 2025
	June 2025 Flock Report Cover Letter
	Flock Monthly Report June 2025
	1. System Overview
	2. System Activity Summary
	3. Hotlist Monitoring
	4. User Access & Searches
	5. System Maintenance & Uptime
	6. Privacy & Compliance
	7. Comments/Recommendations

	Bartlesville OK PD _Organization_Audit_2025-05-26_2025-06-26
	Bartlesville OK PD _Organizatio

	Average_Days_Visited_1750866049788 June 2025
	sheet1


	Agenda Item 7.i.i. May 2025 Financials
	May 2025 Financials Council Cover Letter Template
	P11 May 2025 Financials
	P11 May 2025 Financials
	Cover
	TOC
	Highlights
	General Fund
	Wastewater
	Water
	Sanitation Operate
	OF - Revenue
	OF - Expense
	OF - Fund Balance

	Financial Statement Explanatory Memo


	Agenda Item 7.j.i. and ii. Bid No. 2025-2026-001 and 002 Invitatin for BidsWater Chemicals_Water Line Materials
	Agenda Item 7.j.iii. Bid No. 2025-2026-003 Invitation for bids
	Agenda Item 7.j.iv. Bid No. 2025-2026-005 Solicitation for bids-Airport
	Agenda Item 8. Bid Review Recommendation_W  WW Mat 6-24-25
	Bid Review Recommendation_W & WW Mat 6-20-25
	MATERIALS BID TABULATION 2025-2026-001
	Section A
	Section B
	Section C
	Section D
	Section E
	Section F



	Agenda Item 9. Bid Review Recommendation_Water Treat Chem 6-24-25
	20250624153310
	Recommended Award Bid Tabulation Water Treatment Chemicals 25-26
	Sheet2



	Agenda Item 10. BID REVIEW_2020 GO Bond Concrete Streets
	Agenda Item 10. Attachement Final Plans_Project No. 2024057_Concrete Panel Repl (Reduced)
	1 COVER SHEET
	1 COVER SHEET

	2 PAY ITEMS & NOTES
	2 PAY ITEMS & NOTES

	3 DETAIL SHEET
	3 DETAIL SHEET

	4 R-18
	4 R-18

	5 R-22
	5 R-22

	6 KEYMAP
	6 KEYMAP

	7 SHEET 1 OF 2
	7 SHEET 1 OF 2

	8 SHEET 2 OF 2
	8 SHEET 2 OF 2

	9 SHEET 1 OF 2
	9 SHEET 1 OF 2

	10 SHEET 2 OF 2
	10 SHEET 2 OF 2

	11 SHEET 1 OF 2
	11 SHEET 1 OF 2

	12 SHEET 2 OF 2
	12 SHEET 2 OF 2

	13 SHEET 1 OF 2
	13 SHEET 1 OF 2

	14 SHEET 2 OF 2

	Agenda Item 12. 1032 SW OAK AVE Code Enforcement Appeal Council FINAL Memo w ATTACHMENTS
	1032 SW OAK AVE Code Enforcement Appeal Council FINAL Memo w ATTACHMENTS
	1032 SW OAK AVE Code Enforcement Appeal Council FINAL Memo w ATTACHMENTS
	1032 SW OAK AVE Code Enforcement Appeal Council FINAL Memo w ATTACHMENTS
	1032 SW OAK AVE case notes
	Timeline
	County Assessor Report
	1032 Oak tax roll legals
	Deed Juanita to Juanita and Danny Blackwood - Book 731, Page 174 recorded 11.8.1979
	Affidavit of Surviving Joint Tenant - Book 1194, Page 1275-1278 recorded 10.20.2021
	1032 Oak DS BS CN w RECEIPT
	1032 Oak DS BS CN

	1032 Oak DS CN w RECEIPT
	1032 Oak DS CN

	1032 Oak DS BS VN w RECEIPT
	1032 Oak DS BS VN
	1032 SW OAK REC. OF MAILING

	1032 Oak DS VN w RECEIPT
	1032 Oak DS VN
	1032 SW OAK REC. OF MAILING

	1032 Oak BS Abatement Order RECEIPTED
	1032 Oak BS Abatement Order
	20250626133326

	1032 Oak DS Abatement Order RECEIPTED
	1032 Oak DS Abatement Order
	20250626133326

	1032 SW OAK DIL. STR. APPEAL


	1032 SW Oak Ave Notice Unsecured Lien
	1032 Oak Notice of Dilapidation and Lien Recorded

	1032 SW OAK AVE Code Enforcement Appeal Council FINAL Memo

	Agenda Item 13. Golf Course Green Fees etc.
	Agenda Item 14. Capital Election Scenarios
	Agenda Item 15. Strategic Planning Retreat

	Customer Name: BARTLESVILLE, OK
	Qty: 1
	Description: PIERCE SABER PUMPER
	Proposal Bid No: 1294
	Estimated Build Time: 6 MO
	Apparatus Purchase Price: 858839.53
	Tradein Value: 00
	Price After Tradein: 858839.53
	PrePayment Discount: 0
	Extrication Rescue Tools: 0
	Loose Equipment: 0
	Options: 0
	Payment TermsRow1: OPTION 1 PRICING IS NOT APPLICABLE WITH THIS SALE.

OPTION 2 PRICING IS BASED ON FULL PAYMENT BEING MADE AT TIME OF PRODUCT DELIVERY. 

	Apparatus Purchase Price_2: 858839.53
	Tradein Value_2: 0
	Price After Tradein_2: 858839.53
	NAExtrication Rescue Tools: 0
	NALoose Equipment: 0
	NAOptions: 0
	NotesRow1: ENCLOSED PRICING IS FOR PIERCE STOCK JOB#44088-01 AND IS OFFERED UNTIL THE ABOVE REFERENCED EXPIRATION DATE OR UNTIL SOLD TO ANOTHER DEPARTMENT.
	Sales Rep: ROGER BROWN
	Date3_af_date: 7/31/25
	Sale Price: 858839.53
	Date5_af_date: 6/6/25
	Due Upon Order: 858839.53
	Due Upon Delivery: 858839.53
	Date1_af_date: 6/6/25
	Dropdown1: [YES]
	Warranty Period: [Standard]


